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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 16 APRIL 2021  

(There  is  no  sound fo r  the  f i rs t  m inute  and 37 seconds. )  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson is  to  pu t  the  re levant  

par t s  o f  the  a f f idav i t  to  Montana and ask h im whe ther  he  

accepts  what  he  sa id  or  den ies  and i f  he  den ies  what  the 

bas is  o f  the  00 :01:42.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one second .   The l igh t ing  does not  

seem to  be  very  good.   So i f  somebody cou ld  do  someth ing  

about  i t .   Okay a l r igh t  ja  they w i l l  a t tend to  i t .   Yes,  yes  Mr  

Son i .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson then we wou ld  l i ke  to  

s ta r t  w i th  the  a ff idav i t  o f  Mr  Mo le fe  –  Mr  Montana Mr  

Mole fe ’s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh and i f  you are  ready to  s ta r t  a t  leas t  

Mr  Montana shou ld… 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh shou ld  be  sworn  in  I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do the  oa th  ja  o r  a f f i rmat ion .   P lease 

admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MONTANA:   Tshepo Lucky Mon tana.  20 

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MONTANA:   Not  a t  a l l .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  
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MR MONTANA:   Cor rec t .  That  i s  cor rec t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you so lemnly… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  okay le t  us  s ta r t  a f resh.   I  –  i f  

you  cou ld  speak  up a  b i t  I  d id  no t  hear  the  answer.   I  need 

to  hear  the  answer.  

MR MONTANA:   Sor ry  Cha i r  I  am too  ta l l   the  sys tem is  

jus t  a  b i t  –  sor ry  about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you –  and i t  i s  –  I  th ink  i t  does not  

come out  so  you cannot  ra ise  i t .   No but  tha t  i s  f ine  jus t  t ry  

your  best  –  oh  okay.   Okay jus t  s ta r t  a f resh Reg is t ra r.  10 

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MONTANA:   Tshepo Lucky Mon tana.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MONTANA:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR MONTANA:   I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g ive… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  I  d id  no t  hear  tha t  answer.  

MR MONTANA:   I  sa id  I  do  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay thank you.   Yes cont inue .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  
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bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

MR MONTANA:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you Mr  Montana;  you  may be 

seated.   Yes Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease.   Mr  Montana you have  

heard  what  I  have sa id  to  the  Cha i rperson about  the  

approach we in tend adopt ing .   I  want  to  s ta r t  w i th  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mo le fe  f i rs t  you w i l l  f ind  i t  in  Bund le  D wh ich  

is  in  a  f i le  in  f ron t  o f  you.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Thanks Cha i r  Mr  Son i  you –  you p robab ly  

have been in te rac t ing  w i th  the  commiss ion  in  the  las t  few  

days and I  requested I  th ink  on  Monday I  requested the  

oppor tun i ty  to  make a  s ta tement .    

I  rece ived an emai l  yes terday I  th ink  i t  was jus t  

a f te r  luncht ime in  the  a f te rnoon I  thought  I  jus t  go ing  to  

make –  j o t ted  comments  a t  the  beg inn ing  befo re  we s tar t  

Cha i r  and I  was to ld  tha t  no  you can –  you can make your  

s ta tement  bu t  i f  you  –  i f  you  submi t  tha t  and I  th ink  I  have 

been in  in te rac t i on  w i th  your  team and sent  them emai l  20 

even in  t he  ear l y  hours  o f  th is  morn ing  Cha i r  because I  

th ink  –  Cha i r  I  th ink  the re  has been a  lo t  sa id  about  the  –  

about  PRASA,  about  me and I  th ink  i t  i s  more  than fa i r  tha t  

I  be  a f fo rded oppor tun i ty  to  –  to  address a  few th ings tha t  

a re  o f  concern  to  me.  
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 Cha i r  I  have honoured notw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one second  before  you proceed Mr  

Montana.   I  d id  hear  tha t  you migh t  w ish  or  you wou ld  w ish  

to  make a  s ta tement .   I  th ink  I  have been to ld  there  is  a  

s ta tement  bu t  I  have not  had –  I  have not  ac tua l l y  seen i t .   

I t  m igh t  have been sent  to  me but  I  jus t  have not  had t ime  

and I  have not  read i t .   I  normal ly  want  to  see i t  i f  i t  a  

wr i t ten  s ta tement  so  tha t  I  can sa t is fy  myse l f  tha t  i t  i s  no t  

go ing  to  imp l ica te  peop le  who have not  been not i f ied  and  

so  on .   So –  so  I  assume you have got  the  s ta tement  Mr  10 

Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We rece ived i t  –  I  rece ived i t  a  few 

minutes  ago Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  i s  about  98  pages.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  jus t  looked a t  i t  very  qu i ck ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  I  do  no t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You have not  had  a  chance to… 20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  have not  even… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Except  fo r  the  fac t  tha t  i t  i s  f rom Mr  

Montana I  know noth ing  about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   I s  tha t  more  or  less  cor rec t  i t  i s  
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about  98  pages?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  indeed.   I  –  the  in ten t ion  is  no t  to  

read the  fu l l  s ta tement .   Cha i r  you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  I  have  

ra ised numerous concerns about  the  p rocess tha t  we have  

embarked upon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   A t  the  commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   And Cha i r  I  th ink  le t  me say tha t  the  

commiss ion  to ld  me I  th ink  i t  was a t  f i ve  past  two 10 

yesterday tha t  i f  you  want  to  make  a  s ta tement  i t  must  be  a  

wr i t ten  s ta tement  submi t ted .   And I  submi t ted  i t  –  i t  i s  t rue  

because I  had to  s i t  down and wr i te  the  s ta tement  in  the  

ear l y  hours  o f  th is  morn ing .   And I  know Cha i r  t ha t  the  

procedure  is  very  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   (Speak ing  in  ve rnacu lar )  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   That… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Espec ia l l y  ( speak ing  in  vernacu la r ) .  20 

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r  indeed Cha i r.   So I  th ink  I  

wou ld  apprec ia te  Cha i r  I  p romise  I  am not  imp l ica t ing  

anyone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Beyond what  I  wou ld  have sa id  in  my o ther  
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a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  the  sub jec t  o f  d iscuss ion  and  debate  

be tween myse l f  and the  commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  jus t  be fore  you proceed Mr  Montana  

both  you and I  have jus t  sa id  some th ings in  a  language  

o ther  than Is i -Zu lu  we need to  share  w i th  everybody  so  you 

must  s ta r t  to  say what  you sa id  i n  I s i -Zu lu  or  i s  i t  I s i -Xhosa  

then I  w i l l  a lso  say what  I  sa id .   I  w i l l  pu t  i t  in  Eng l ish  so  

tha t  nobody th inks  tha t  we do not  want  some peop le  to  

unders tand what  … 

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  I  am not  su re  i f  I  can  t ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   (speak ing  in  vernacu la r ) .  

MR MONTANA:   (speak ing  in  ve rnacu lar )  I  can t rans la te  

Zu lu  I  am Ped i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   (speak ing  in  vernacu la r ) .  

MR MONTANA:   (speak ing  in  vernacu la r ) .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe … 

MR MONTANA:   You are  be t te r  p laced Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe in  a  f r iend ly  you meant  you are  

ask ing  in  a  f r iend ly  way you a re  no t  f igh t ing .  

MR MONTANA:   In  a  respect fu l  manner  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   In  a  respect fu l  way.   Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   That  we may not  have –  because  o f  the  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   That  I  have rece ived.   Cha i r  I  mean le t  me 
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be  very  f rank.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Maybe before  you do tha t  le t  me say  

a lso  what  I  sa id  I  s imp ly  sa id  in  I s i -Zu lu  tha t  espec ia l l y  

because he had jus t  taken the  oa th  l i te ra l l y  t rans la ted  what  

he  sa id  was he was ask ing  in  a  –  what  i s  i t  –  church  sp i r i t  

l i t e ra l l y  you know or… 

MR MONTANA:   (Speak ing  in  ve rnacu lar ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  meant  –  i t  i s  meant  to  say in  a  

respect fu l  way.   So I  sa id  par t i cu la r ly  because he had jus t  

taken the  oa th .   That  i s  what  I  sa id .   You –  you are  –  I  ge t  10 

the  impress ion  tha t  you are  now say ing  we l l  because tha t  

s ta tement  we have not  read and i t  i s  long one needs a  lo t  

o f  t ime.   I  am suspect ing  you wan t  to  say can you jus t  be  

g iven a  chance to  say a  few words.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And are  no t  go ing  to  imp l ica te  anybody.  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed –  indeed Cha i r  I  w i l l  apprec ia te  

tha t  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   F ive  m inutes?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ten minutes?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  I  th ink  we –  I  thought  you were  

work ing  on  averages o f  th i r t y  m inu tes  Cha i r  fo r… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  –  no  I  have been –  I  th ink  I  cannot  

say  tha t  I  have been def in i te  w i th  everybody but  genera l l y  
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speak ing  i t  has  been  between ten  to  f i f teen minutes  maybe  

twenty  bu t  i f  somebody says I  know so  and so  he  went  to  

th i r t y  then maybe tha t  m ight  be  happen but  most  o f  the 

t ime i t  has  been ten ,  f i f teen,  twenty  m inutes .   I s  tha t  f ine?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  no  I  th ink  tha t  i s  fa i r  I  w i l l  respect  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No tha t  i s  f ine  I  w i l l  a l low you.   I  w i l l  take 

your  word  tha t  you w i l l  no t  imp l ica te  anybody.   Thank you 10 

Mr  Montana you may make your  –  your  remarks .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Cha i rperson,  Deputy  Ch ie f  

Jus t ice  fo r  an  oppor tun i ty  to  address you today.   I t  was in  

my in i t ia l  app l i ca t ion  S i r  to  address a  w ide  range o f  i ssues 

fac ing  our  count ry  here  today tha t  i s  beyond the  cha l lenges  

o f  PRASA.  

 Those o f  us  we  had the  oppor tun i ty  to  se rve  in  

government ,  in  leadersh ip  pos i t ions .  I  th ink  we have got  

the  du ty  when we come here  no t  imp l ica te  o ther  peop le ,  

no t  to  a t tack  o ther  peop le ,  no t  to  dea l  w i th  the  rea l  i ssues 20 

fac ing  the  count ry  and I  th ink  in  the  course  o f  my tes t imony  

today I  w ish  to  do  tha t .  

 Deputy  Cha i r  –  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  beh ind  the  

s to ry  o f  PRASA there  is  a  s to ry  about  ou r  peop le .   I t  i s  a  

s to ry  about  the  poss ib i l i t i es  tha t  we have as  a  count ry.   
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And I  th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  tha t  we –  we ready  to  take  

t ime to  d iscuss i t .   I  know tha t  a  number  o f  i ssues have 

been made.   I  have expressed my reserva t ions.   I  have  

made the  s ta tement  Deputy  –  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  tha t  I  

f ind  the  commiss ion  b iased.   I  f ind  the  commiss ion  

pursu ing  a  prede termined agenda  and I  want  to  pu t  those 

on reco rd  today.  

 What  I  mean by  tha t  because I  th ink  i t  i s  very  

impor tan t  and le t  me put  on  record  tha t  I  had ser ious 

reserva t ions Advocate  Son i .   When I  rece ived th is  10 

par t i cu la r  summons because –  because I  wou ld  be  hav ing  

an  on -go ing  bat t le  w i th  the  commiss ion .   I  have prepared  

an a f f idav i t .  

 My in te rac t ion  w i th  th is  commiss ion  there  is  no th ing  

to  do  w i th  the  a l legat ions made by  Mr  Popo Mole fe ,  by  Ms  

Ngoye and Mr  O l le rman.  

 I  wro te  to  the  Cha i r  on  the  26 t h  o f  Ju ly  2019 ask ing  

fo r  an  oppor tun i ty  to  tes t i f y  h igh l igh t ing  a  who le  range o f  

i ssues tha t  I  in tended to  address.   Cha i r  the  commiss ion  

came back to  me a t  tha t  t ime they wanted to  cu r ta i l  my 20 

ev idence.   They wanted me to  take  some par ts  tha t  dea ls  

w i th  the  appo in tment  o f  Werksmans A t to rneys and  a  who le  

range o f  invest iga tors .  

 I  fo l lowed the  commiss ion  very  c lose ly  Cha i r  and I  

have taken issues w i th  a  number  o f  –  w i th  the  way in  wh ich  
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the  commiss ion  has addressed issues and I  aga in  

respect fu l l y  Cha i r  you sa id  in  one o f  the  s ta tements  tha t  

there  w i l l  be  a  t ime when we have to  s i t  and face  each  

o ther  to  –  face  each o ther  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   You want  to  say someth ing  to  

Mr  Montana?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  jus t  wanted h im to  ad jus t  h is  

m icrophone.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H is  m ic  okay a l r i gh t .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Mr  –  thank you.   Thank you 10 

Advocate  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

MR MONTANA:   And Cha i r  I  –  I  th ink  tha t  the  issues tha t  I  

wanted to  ra i se  re la tes  to  how the  commiss ion  and I  am 

a f ra id  Cha i r  tha t  some o f  the  issues tha t  I  want  to  ra ise  

re la tes  to  some o f  the  comments  tha t  the  –  as  Cha i r  and  

you know i t  was a  d i f f i cu l t  th ing .   I  sa id  how do I  say  th is  

w i thout  –  te l l  the  t ru th ,  be  fo r th r igh t  wh i ls t  a t  the  same 

t ime respect ing  the  Cha i rperson and respect ing  th is  

par t i cu la r  commiss ion .  20 

 Cha i r  le t  me –  le t  me ind ica te  tha t  the  way in  wh ich  

as  a  count ry  w i th  these 00:13:50  s ta te  owned enterp r ises  

and pub l i c  en te rpr ises  tha t  there  are  successes and  

fa i lu res  I  th ink  serves as  a  constant  reminder  o f  our  

co l lec t i ve  na t iona l  s ide .  
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 We are  qu ick  to  f ind  fau l t  and appor t ion  b lame as a  

na t ion .   We tend  to  engage not  to  engage se r ious ly  and  

th ink  deep ly  abou t  the  res t  o f  the  issues fac ing  ou r  count ry  

today.  

 We as a  na t ion  we –  we speak loud (A f r i can  

language)  bu t  we  are  hes i tan t  to  f igh t  o r  even f rown upon  

the  deep inequa l i t ies  and the  ind ign i ty  o f  the  major i t y  – 

tha t  the  major i t y  o f  our  peop le  are  sub jec ted  to .  

 We seem to  be  a  na t ion  de f ined by  shor t  memory,  

fo rge t t ing  who we  rea l l y  a re  and where  we come f rom.   We 10 

seem to  be  a  peop le  tha t  fa i l  to  recogn ise  tha t  we are  

bound by  our  h is to ry  and tha t  we have a  common fu ture  

and tha t  i s  why you see o thers  th ink  they can come to  the 

commiss ion  and score  a  v i c to ry  over  o the rs .  

 Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  th is  commiss ion  has go t  an  

impor tan t  ro le  fo r  our  count ry.   I t  i s  beyond –  i t  has  a  

cho ice  to  e i ther  depend a  conf l i c t  and the  d iv is ions in  our  

soc ie ty  o r  lay  the  bas i s  fo r  un i ted  and a  prosperous  fu tu re  

fo r  a l l  South  A f r i cans.  

 We a re  a  na t ion  tha t  re fuses to  –  to  accept  tha t  we 20 

are  f i rs t  and fo remost  an  A f r i can count ry  and Cha i r  we fa i l  

to  unders tand ou r  pos i t ion .   We a re  –  I  a lways say  we are  

a  na t ion  a t  war  w i th  each o the r.  

 Cha i r  there  is  –  the  no t ion  o f  s ta te  capture  i t  f inds  

resonance w i th  our  –  w i th  th is  na t iona l  s ide .   I t  i s  our  
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psychosoc ia ls  psycho log ica l  and emot iona l  makeup wh ich  

de f ine  ou r  -  we respond co l lec t i ve ly  when we hear  and tha t  

i s  why in  South  A f r i ca  the re  is  news every  day.   But  the  

responses have been very  shor t  te rm in  na ture  and not  

s t ra tegy.  

 I  th ink  we have made many ga ins  Cha i r  as  a  count ry  

I  th ink  tha t  our  SOE’s  in  pa r t i cu la r ;  key  SOE’s  and pub l i c  

en t i t ies  they have p layed a  major  ro le  and they are  be ing  

dest royed today.  

 I f  we look a t  PRASA Cha i r  PRASA has made majo r  10 

ga ins  over  the  las t  ten  years  w i th in  a  very  shor t  space o f  

t ime however  those ga ins  have been reversed w i th in  a  

per iod  o f  th ree  years  and more  spec i f i ca l l y  a f te r  I  had le f t  

PRASA.  

 We have invested  as  a  count ry  over  R100 b i l l i on  to  

change the  face  o f  pub l i c  t ranspor t .   Today we have  

noth ing  to  show fo r  the  mass ive  investment  in  our  ra i lways 

and –  and no ser ious d iscuss ion  oh  no th is  i s  how we got  

to  where  we are  today.   Jus t  under  th ree  years .   

 In f ras t ruc ture  and I  am re fer r ing  Cha i r  to  be tween 20 

2018 and today we have over  an  in f ras t ruc tu res  es t imated  

over  R30 b i l l i on  tha t  has been dest royed and par t  o f  the 

reason Cha i r  i s  because we chose tha t  we –  secur i t y  

cont rac ts  a re  i r regu la r  we are  go ing  to  cance l  them and the  

resu l t  has been the  in f ras t ruc tu re  has been dest royed in  
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the  count ry.  

 So we are  a  count ry  tha t  i s  p repared to  lose  

R100.00 to  save R1.00 Cha i r  and tha t  i s  why we see  a l l  our  

th ings are  fa l l ing  apar t  in  the  count ry.    

 Cha i r  –  and th i s  does not  on ly  a f fec t  PRASA i t  

a f fec t  our  na t iona l  a i r l ine .   I  can  go on and on  and on  

about  South  A f r i can A i rways.  I  can go on and  on about  

Transnet ,  Eskom and a l l  o f  those th ings.  

 A l l  what  has been sa id  here  in  th is  commiss ion  

Cha i r  i s  ac tua l l y  no t  the  to ta l i t y  o f  our  exper ience and 10 

rea l i t y  o f  our  count ry.  

 Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  I  w i l l  add Cha i r  and ask  you  

tha t  we leave a t  –  we look a t  our  h is to ry  in  the  round.   We 

fa i l  to  bu i ld  on  our  s t rengths  as  a  count ry.   There  a re  

mass ive  resources and capac i ty  represented by  key  SOE’s  

and pub l i c  en t i t ies  l i ke  Eskom,  Te lkom,  ACSA,   

Transnet  and PRASA i t se l f  and  many o thers  are  

be ing  da i l y  dest royed because we  fa i l  to  unders tand these  

are  impor tan t  ins t ruments  in  the  hands o f  a  democra t ic  

government  to  d r ive  economic  t ransfo rmat ion .   We change 20 

the  we l lbe ing  o f  the  peop le  and to  w i ths tand the  s to rm so  

preva len t  in  our  wor ld .  

 Cha i r  you know the  00 :18:14 o f  s ta te  captu re  and 

are  many and in  my a f f idav i t  tha t  th is  commiss ion  has ye t  

to  accept  have  been ab le  to  e leva te  the  mean ing  o f  
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i r regu lar  to  becoming to  mean c r im ina l i t y  and cor rup t ion .  

 That  i s  no t  co r rec t  Cha i r.   The t ru th  i s  i r regu lar i t y  i s  

no t  seen as  much w i th  cor rup t ion .   Indeed the  i r regu la r  

expend i tu re  and  a  poor  cont ro l  env i ronment  c rea te  a  

favourab le  cond i t ion  fo r  f raud and  cor rup t ion .   There  are  

ins tances where  i r regu la r i t ies  are  a  d i rec t  resu l t  o f  cor rup t  

p rac t ice  however  i r regu lar i t y  in  i t se l f  does not  con  –  does  

not  const i tu te  cor rup t ion .  

 And I  want  to  make tha t  po in t  very  s t rong ly  and  

debate  i t  in  th is  commiss ion  Cha i r.   When the  Min is te r  o f  10 

Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  Prav in  Gordhan and our  Nat iona l  

D i rec tor  o f  Pub l i c  Prosecut ions Cha i r  Shami la  Batoh i  speak  

o f  b i l l i ons  los t  to  s ta te  capture  they are  no t  re fe r r ing  to  

cor rup t ion  or  s tea l ing  money but  they ac tua l l y  d raw f igures  

f rom i r regu la r  expend i tu re .  

 As  a  na t ion  we a re  now us ing  i r regu la r  expend i tu re  

as  a  barometer  to  measure  cor rup t ion .   Our  cour t s  in  my 

v iew Cha i r  seem to  have fa l len  in to  th is  t rap .   We have  

crea ted an unfo r tunate  p ic tu re  o f  South  A f r i ca  as  an  

ex t remely  cor rup t  na t ion .   We a re  say ing  i t  eve rywhere  20 

inc lud ing  our  –  our  de legat ions go  to  dev i l s  when we are  a t  

in te rna t iona l  fo rum.   We even say tha t  we are  the  most  

cor rup t  00 :19 :45 invest iga te .  

 Even –  even the  Cha i rperson has been mak ing  

s ta tements  abou t  the  leadersh ip  o f  the  count ry  be ing  
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ser ious about  f igh t ing  cor rup t ion .   I  ask  the  quest ion  Cha i r  

i s  th is  fac tua l l y  cor rec t?   And how do we fea ture  or  shou ld  

we be fea ture  –  shou ld  we fea tu re  among the  mos t  cor rup t  

na t ions in  the  wor ld?  

 I f  we make a  d i s t inc t ion  you wou ld  ac tua l l y  rea l i se  

tha t  we need to  make i t  ten  because Cha i r  we t ru l y  l i ve  in  

the  age o f  madness in  my v iew.   

 South  A f r i ca  and  her  peop le  w i l l  never  be  ab le  to  

d ream b ig  and  take  both  in i t ia t i ves  to  t ransform our  

count ry.   As  long as  the  dominant  nar ra t i ve  about  our  10 

count ry  i s  in fo rmed by the  fa lse  na t ion  o f  s ta te  cap ture .  

 Our  count ry  i s  in  despera te  need o f  po l i t i ca l  

bus iness,  the  r i t ua l  and communi ty  leadersh ip  wh ich  w i l l  

con f ron t  the  rea l  p rob lems fac ing  our  count ry  and the  

cont inent  inc lud ing  address ing  the  h is to ry  o r  demands o f  

the  b lack  major i t y  in  our  count ry.  

 A leadersh ip  wh ich  accept  tha t  we sha l l  no t  have  

mean ing fu l  f reedom and susta inab le  growth  when the  

economy fa i l s  to  mob i l i se  in to  product ive  ac t iv i t y  70% of  

h is  g rea tes t  resources.  20 

 Ne lson Mande la  sa id  the  g reates t  resource  a re  ou r  

peop le .   The count ry  needs a  leadersh ip  w i th  the  courage 

to  make the  b reak w i th  a  s t ruc tu re  o f  the  economy 

inher i ted  over  100 years  ago  tha t  b reeds mass ive  

unemployment ,  pover ty  and equa l i t y.    
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 I t  i s  a  leadersh ip  tha t  recogn ise  and or  tha t  shou ld  

abandon the  very  no t ion  o f  s ta te  capture  and how i t  i s  

dest roy ing  the  ve ry  fabr i c  o f  our  own soc ie ty.  

 Cha i r  bo th  in  my s ta tement  as  we l l  as  in  my  

a f f idav i t  tha t  I  pu t  be fore  the  commiss ion  I  de ta i l  exact ly  

th is  so  tha t  I  can substant ia te  i t .  

 Cha i r  when on the  26 t h  I  wro te  –  I  wro te  the  –  to  

you request ing  fo r  an  oppor tun i ty  to  he lp  –  to  ass is t  the  

commiss ion  in  i t s  work  I  was more  than happy and th i s  

fo l lowed the  dec i s ion  o f  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress the  10 

ANC tha t  i s  members  and members  o f  the  pub l i c  shou ld  

coopera te  w i th  and ass is t  the  commiss ion  in  i t s  work .  

 Wel l  I  must  a lso  pu t  on  record  Cha i r  tha t  wh i l s t  I  

fo l lowed tha t  I  th ink  tha t  the  ANC is  no t  pay ing  a t ten t ion  to  

the  work ings o f  th is  commiss ion  because th is  commiss ion  

is  very  impor tan t .    

I t  i s  no t  about  DCJ Zondo,  i t  i s  no t  about  peop le  

who tes t i f y  i t  is  about  the  fu tu re  o f  our  count ry  and  

there fo re  tha t  ba lance because  today we can use the  

commiss ion  to  chase o the rs  tomorrow because  o f  the 20 

nature  o f  soc ie t y  and the  chang ing  po l i t i ca l  dynamics  

o thers  w i l l  be  chased and I  th ink  tha t  i s  very  impor tan t .  

 Cha i r  le t  me jus t  h igh l igh t  a  few th ings tha t  I  –  I  

take  spec i f i c  except ion  w i th  some o f  the  th ings tha t  the 

Cha i rperson aga in  w i th  the  u tmost  o f  respect  Cha i r  –  i t  has  
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taken me two years  be fore  I  come to  s i t  be fore  the  Cha i r  

and th is  i s  no t  because o f  my own mak ing  i t  i s  because  

th is  commiss ion  has t r ied  a t  every  s tage o f  the  pa th  to  –  to  

undermine eve ry th ing  tha t  I  have submi t ted  Cha i r.  

 But  le t  –  I  want  to  e labora te  on  the  -   on  the  –  on  

what  I  ca l l  b ias  and a  pu rsue o f  the  predete rmined agenda 

by  th is  commiss ion .    Cha i r  and th is  i s  based on ev idence  

and I  th ink  you  wou ld  reca l l  Cha i r  aga in  in  (A f r i can  

language)  to  the  commiss ion  (A f r i can language)  bu t  I  th ink  

tha t  less  te l l  cer ta in  t ru ths  tha t  make me actua l l y  upset .  10 

(A f r i can language)  s i t t ing  w i th  my own fami ly  and l i s ten ing  

to  some o f  the  th ings be ing  sa id  by  the  commiss ion  or  i t s  

Cha i rperson.  

 Le t  me dea l  w i th  the  f i rs t  one Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  the  

Cha i r  dea l t  dur ing  the  tes t imony so  Popo Mole fe ,  Mar tha  

Ngoye and Fana D ing iswayo on the  mat te r  o f  the  –  o f  the 

d i rec tora te  fo r  p r io r i t y  c r ime inves t iga t ion  and the  na t iona l  

p rosecut ion  au thor i t y  and the  var ious PRASA 

invest iga t ions the  Cha i rpe rson was  so  voc i fe rous.    

A t  some s tage Cha i r  you even to ld  your  peop le  to  20 

meet  a f te r  –  a f te r  in  your  chambers  you even sa id  c leaned 

a l l  the  money i f  he  has gone home le t  them ca l l  00 :23 :49  

when you a re  done.   

 I  have done each and every  Cha i r  I  have got  w i th  

me the  c l ips  o f  each and every  hear ing  tha t  the  –  tha t  you  
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have done.  

 Cha i r  I  -  I  u rge  you to  have a  ser ious look a t  these 

th ings because I  th ink  tha t  you w i l l  rea l i se  when  you are  

a lone or  when you wr i te  your  repor t  tha t  these were  gross ly  

un fa i r.  Ac tua l l y  they suggested tha t  th is  commiss ion  i s  

captured and le t  me ind i ca te  Cha i r  what  I  mean by  tha t .  

 Cha i r  the  –  the  –  you sa id  tha t  there  is  cor rup t ion ,  

ev idence o f  co r rup t ion  and you –  and Cha i r  a t  some s tage  

you near l y  h i t  the  Cha i r.   The DPCI  and NPA were  no t  

w i l l i ng  to  ac t .   Cha i r  I  want  to  say today th is  i s  fac tua l l y  10 

inco r rec t .  

 The –  PRASA had requested and th is  i s  pa r t  o f  the  

ev idence by  annexure  tha t  I  –  tha t  I  b rought  to  the 

commiss ion .   PRASA had requested the  DPCI  to  p r io r i t i se  

the  Swi fambo as we l l  as  the  S iyangena invest iga t ions.    

The DPI  d id  exact ly  tha t  Cha i r  bu t  when the  DPCI  

ask  and aga in  i t  i s  b lack  and wh i te  in  the  cor respondence 

between the  two organ isa t ions asked fo r  ev idence not  what  

PRASA p resented in  the  c iv i l  case but  fo r  a  c r im ina l  

invest iga t ions bo th  Popo Mole fe  Matangoye fa i led  to  20 

de l i ver  tha t  ev idence because i t  does not  ex is t  Cha i r  and i f  

i t  was de l i vered Cha i r  I  want  to  say i t  was not  de l i vered  

here  because I  l is tened to  a l l  o f  the i rs .    

They made s ta tements  and Cha i r  I  f ind  i t  qu i te  

ex t raord ina ry  tha t  –  tha t  i f  we are  commi t ted  to  jus t i ce  i t  
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means there fore  tha t  you must  hear  bo th  s ides in  th i s  th ing  

and then make a  de terminat ion .  

 Cha i r  th is  th ing  was not  p resented he re  I  want  to  

a rgue tha t  and I  th ink  tha t  the  Cha i r  and excuse me fo r  – 

fo r  the  word  tha t  I  w i l l  use  because tha t  i s  no t  the  word  

you use but  fo r  lack  o f  a  be t te r  word  the  Cha i r  b las ted  the  

DPCI  as  we l l  as  the  NPA.  

 Cha i r  you know i t  i s  a  sad s ta te  o f  a f fa i rs  i f  the  

Cha i r  had looked deeper  in to  the  dec is ion  you ac tua l l y  

have rea l i sed tha t  what  was  happen ing  Werksmans 10 

A t to rneys w i th  Popo Mole fe  were  ac tua l l y  t ry ing  to  

in f luence the  DPCI  and the  NPA.    

 They ac tua l l y  took a  company one  o f  the  compan ies  

cont rac ted  to  them and they sa id  to  the  HAWKS you guys 

do  not  have the  capac i ty  to  invest iga te  what  i s  ca l led  

complex  invest iga t ion .   They d id  t ha t  because they  wanted 

to  wr i te  a  sc r ip t  tha t  Lucky Montana and o thers  we must  

manufac ture  ev idence ins ide  the  HAWKS i t se l f .  

 And Cha i r  when  I  was –  when I  l i s tened to  your  

comments  I  was so  angry.   I  was seeth ing  Cha i r  because I  20 

say Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  i s  ac tua l l y  undermin ing  the  ve ry  

independence o f  the  –  o f  –  i t  may not  have been  

in ten t iona l  Cha i r  bu t  i s  undermin ing  the  very  independence  

o f  bo th  the  DPCI  and the  NPA and the  ab i l i t y  to  p rosecute  

w i thout  fear  o f  h im.  
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 The HAWKS term inated the  –  the i r  engagement  w i th  

Howard  when they rea l i sed tha t  in  fac t  th is  company was  

cont rac ted  to  Werksmans i t  was  do ing  both  s ides and 

t ry ing  to  in f luence i t .    

 Now Cha i r  i f  we  ta lk  about  jus t i ce  your  comments  

are  ac tua l l y  s t rengthen ing  Popo Mole fe ’s  hand and  

Werksmans in  them t ry ing  to  fo rce  the  HAWKS.   I  th ink  

Cha i r  ac tua l l y  –  I  wro te  in  my  s ta tement  I  th ink  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  no t  on ly  un fa i r  conduct  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  un lawfu l  in  my –  in  my v iew.  10 

 Cha i r  i t  i s  one issue and le t  me a lso  in fo rm you –  

Deputy  Cha i r  –  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  i t  i s  no t  on ly  those charges.   

They to ld  you about  on ly  charges  tha t  re la tes  the  charges 

tha t  they have made.   There  were  charges and  in  my 

s ta tement  I  p rov ide  even case numbers .    

I  opened a  case in  H i l lb row where  I  show tha t  Popo 

Mole fe ,  Mar tha  Ngoye pa id  what  you ca l l  South  A f r i can  

fence and gate  i r regu lar l y  and tha t  money ended in  the  – 

some o f  tha t  money ended in  the  –  in  the  foundat ion  t rus t  

o f  Popo Mole fe .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember  t he  p romise  about  no t  

imp l ica t ing .  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r  I  –  (A f r i can language)  on  th is  

un fa i r  th ing  because I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  crux  o f  the  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  
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MR MONTANA:   Sor ry  –  sor ry  Cha i r  I  w i l l  move th is  p iece .   

Cha i r  tha t  money ended in  my a f f idav i t  I  asked the  

commiss ion  p lease subpoena the  accounts  o f  Popo Mole fe  

because he –  Popo Mole fe  has  been one o f  the  best  

w i tnesses here ,  the  most  p re fer red  w i tness o f  th is  

commiss ion .  

 I f  you  ca l cu la te  the  amount  o f  t ime when before  the  

–  the  lockdown Cha i r  you ask  Advocate  Son i  here  you sa id  

h im,  how much t ime do you want  w i th  th is  w i tness?  He 

sa id  th i r t y  m inutes .   He went  to  a  four  days Cha i r  he  had – 10 

he had four  days  and he was ca l led  across beyond  PRASA 

i t se l f .   Popo Mole fe  had the  most  amaz ing  t ime he re .  

 Yet  th is  commiss ion  is  rev is ioned  to  ask  about  a l l  

the  un lawfu l  th ings tha t  he  has done some o f  them we have  

la id  charges.  

 I  have opened a  case a t  B rook l yn  po l i ce  s ta t ion .   

Cha i r  th is  commiss ion  d id  someth ing  o the r  than the  NPA 

the  man ipu la t ion  on  the  NPA mat te r  –  HAWKS and the  NPA 

mat te r.   Advocate  Son i  says to  me here  today he wants  me 

to  respond to  the  issues ra ised by  your  own invest iga tor  20 

and PRASA 00:29 :37.  

 Cha i r  rea l l y  Advocate  Son i  we  know tha t  th is  

commiss ion  never  d id  an  inves t iga t ion  on  th i s  mat te r.   

Never  even in  –  came to  –  they never  even gave –  gave me 

the  oppor tun i ty  t o  come and speak.   Th is  commiss ion  took 
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a  22  page a f f idav i t  wr i t ten  by  Mr  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  00:30:03 

a t  B rook l yn  po l i ce  s ta t ion  sudden ly  i t  i s  p re l im inary  repor t  

o f  the  commiss ion .  

 Cha i r  how do we respect  the  commiss ion?  Mr  Son i  

h imse l f  he  is  s i t t ing  he re  h igh ly  conf l i c ted .   I  do  no t  know i f  

he  d isc losed to  you Cha i r  tha t  he  in  fac t  had wr i t ten  an  

op in ion  fo r  Werksmans.   Mr  Vincent  Maleka is  no  longer  

w i th  the  commiss ion  I  am not  sure  Cha i r  bu t  when you look 

a t  i ssues about  i r regu la r  ad-hoc  con t rac ts  he  d id  an  

op in ion .    10 

Now we come here  the  commiss ion  te l l s  me take out  

s tu f f  about  Werksmans but  i t s  own ev idence leaders  –  i t s  

own invest iga tors  a re  conf l i c ted  on  th is  –  on  these  

par t i cu la r  mat te rs .  

 Cha i r  I  w i l l  no t  go  much in to  de ta i l s  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  th ink  tha t  I  f ind  the  commiss ion  

h igh l y  –  h igh ly  compromised because these issues  is  no t  

jus t  –  I  mean there  are  i ns tances  wh ich  shows Cha i r.   I  

know peop le  have sa id  ask  fo r  the  commiss ion  fo r  the  20 

Cha i r  to  recuse h imse l f .  

 Cha i r  fo r  me I  am ra is ing  issues I  do  no t  even want  

here  I  am happy tha t  you are  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  you are  

cha i r ing  th i s  commiss ion .   But  a lso  I  am say ing  Cha i r  l i ke  – 

and we a lways say tha t  when someone is  in  a  pos i t ion  o f  
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leadersh ip ,  a  pos i t ion  o f  au thor i t y  and th is  wou ld  be  my 

f ina l  po in t  i t  i s  God and i t  i s  those  who have g iven b i r th  to  

you –  (A f r i can language)  and (A f r i can l anguage)  bu t  none  

Cha i r  I  am a  ch i ld  o f  somebody.    

I  am born ,  I  am a  son o f  Karee  S tephen Mat la la  

(A f r i can language)  these are  peop le  who gave b i r t h  to  me 

and they hear  th is  commiss ion  mak ing  ser ious a t tacks  on  

me  Some o f  them so fac tua l l y  incor rec t  and I  th ink  dur ing  

the  –  th roughou t  the  –  th is  tes t imony and answer ing  

quest ions I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  do  tha t .  10 

 Cha i rperson (A f r i can language)  and th is  –  these are  

no t  cowards.   Both  Bakon i  Mat la la  (A f r i can language)  these  

are  war r io rs  Cha i r  in  h is to ry  and  the i r  b lood in  my b lood  

ve ins  here  a re  no t  cowards.   I t  is  the  Mat la la ’s ,  i t  i s  the  

Kekana ’s ,  i t  i s  the  Montana ’s .    

Cha i r  and I  th ink  tha t  we shou ld  be  –  and when we  

dea l  w i th  these i ssues I  want  to  show th is  commiss ion  bu t  

th is  –  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  p laced i t  de f ines Cha i r  the  

s ta r t ing  po in t .   Not  because I  do  no t  respect  you Cha i r  I  do  

no t  respect  the  Advocate  Son i  bu t  I  th ink  a  lo t  o f  t h ings I  20 

am go ing  to  take  them head on based on the  ev idence and  

I  hope tha t  the  commiss ion  w i l l  t rea t  me wi th  the  k ind  o f  

fa i rness and g ive  me the  space in  the  same way tha t  you 

have g i ven Popo Mole fe  in  pa r t i cu la r.  

 For  a l l  the  hearsays he  was not  there  when PRASA 
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d id  a l l  th is  work  Cha i r  so  I  pu t  tha t  Cha i r  as  an  open ing  

s ta tement  and hope tha t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  some o f  the 

issues in  the  course  o f  the  –  o f  the  conversa t ion .  

 Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you  Mr  Montana fo r  la rge ly  

no t  rea l l y  imp l ica t ing  anybody.   I  jus t  want  to  say to  you  

tha t  I  commend the  fac t  tha t  whatever  concerns you have 

w i th  the  commiss ion ,  i t s  lega l  team or  invest iga to rs  o r  even  

w i th  the  Cha i r  you have ar t i cu la ted  those concerns I  

be l ieve  in  a  const ruc t i ve  manner  and –  and I  have not  seen  10 

anyth ing  dest ruc t i ve  or  d is respect fu l  in  the  manner  in  

wh ich  you a r t i cu la ted  your  concerns.  

 We as a  commiss ion  shou ld  be  open to  peop le  

ar t i cu la t ing  the i r  concerns about  us .   Th i s  i s  a  ve ry  deep  

and impor tan t  commiss ion .   I t  has  go t  many peop le ,  men 

and women who  are  qu i te  commi t ted  to  i t s  work  wou ld  

invest  tha t  they fa i r  bu t  we –  i t  wou ld  be  wrong to  – fo r  us  

to  th ink  tha t  we never  e r r  –  tha t  we never  make some 

mis takes or  tha t  eve ry th ing  we say w i l l  a lways be 

unders tood in  the  way we in tended .  20 

 We –  I  cer ta in ly  accept  tha t  somet imes I  may say  

someth ing  in tend ing  one mean ing  and i t  m igh t  be  

unders tood in  a  d i f fe ren t  way.    

 So I  hear  what  you have sa id  a l l  I  can  say to  you is  

I  am very  keen to  hear  a l l  s ides.   I  am very  keen to  hear  
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d i f fe ren t  perspect ives  about  mat te rs .   When  I  gave  

judgment  in  the  –  or  a  ru l ing  in  the  mat te r  o f  the 

app l i ca t ion  by  Mr  A jay  Gupta  fo r  leave to  c ross-examine 

some wi tnesses and I  d ismissed the  app l i ca t ion  one o f  the 

th ings I  sa id  was  i f  they  were  to  come back I  wou ld  grant  

them leave to  c ross-examine.  

 I  had no doubt  about  tha t  as  long  as  they compl ied  

w i th  the  ru les .   I  am ve ry  keen to  hear  par t i cu la r l y  persons 

who are  imp l ica ted  in  a  very  ser ious way.   I  want  to  hear  

the i r  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  be fore  any f ind ings can be made.   10 

And where  they do  not  par t i c i pa te  i t  i s  a  p i t y  because I  

wou ld  rea l l y  p re fer  to  have a l l  –  everybody ’s  pe rspect ive .  

 So I  can assure  you tha t  the re  is  no  p redete rmined  

outcome I  have on anyth ing  bu t  I  respect  everyone ’s  v iew 

but  ce r ta in ly  I  can assure  you o f  tha t .    

 I  can  assure  you tha t  I  am look ing  a t  a l l  ev idence.   I  

may a t  a  par t i cu la r  t ime th ink  a long ce r ta in  l ines  on  

someth ing  bu t  i t  does not  mean  I  have made a  f ind ing .   

When I  hear  another  s ide  I  am s t i l l  open to  say ing  oh  but  

tha t  was not  r igh t .    20 

So –  so  –  bu t  I  –  I  am happy tha t  you are  here .   I  

am happy tha t  you –  you are  ready to  dea l  w i th  i ssues and  

whatever  concerns you have you have ar t i cu la ted  and you 

have ar t i cu la ted  them in  a  manner  tha t  i s  const ruc t i ve  as  

fa r  as  I  am concerned.  
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 So  –  so  we w i l l  con t inue.   I  must  jus t  say  th is  

because maybe  I  w i l l  no t  –  I  m ight  fo rge t  you made  

re ference to  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you  sent  las t  year  I  th ink  … 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry  Cha i rperson I  have been asked  

to  ask  you to  pu t  your  m ic  a t  the  cent re  they are  no t  be ing  

ab le  to  reco rd  –  I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  am used to  peop le  say ing  my vo ice  

is  loud and 00:39 :04.    10 

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  vo ice  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  –  so  I  jus t  want  to  say about  tha t  

a f f idav i t  Mr  Montana because I  d id  read i t  –  the  who le  o f  i t .   

I t  con ta ined a  number  o f  th ings tha t  I  was very  in te res ted  

in  and I  can te l l  you  now and I  shared th is  w i th  Mr  Son i  

then tha t  the  impress ion  I  had a f te r  read ing  tha t  a f f idav i t  

was tha t  i t  appeared tha t  you had taken a  dec i s ion  to  rea l l y  

be  he lp fu l  to  the  commiss ion .   That  was the  impress ion  I  

have –  I  had and I  shared i t  w i th  Mr  Son i .  

 There  are  a  number  –  there  are  many mat te rs  tha t  20 

you dea l  w i th  in  tha t  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  th ink  are  very  impor tan t  

and as  you know the  commiss ion  I  de termined a  da te  when  

I  wanted you to  come and tes t i f y  ear ly  in  January  

un for tunate l y  there  were  issues about  annexures and so  on  

but  I  jus t  want  you to  know tha t  tha t  i s  the  impress ion  I  had  
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a f te r  read ing  tha t  a f f idav i t  and I  want  you to  know tha t  

there  are  a  number  o f  mat te rs  in  tha t  a f f idav i t  tha t  I  was 

very  in te res ted  in .  

 Indeed the  lega l  team had gone  to the  ex ten t  o f  

even send ing  the  a f f idav i t  o r  por t ions  thereof  to  imp l ica ted  

persons even though the  annexures were  no t  there  

because the  idea was they wanted as  I  unders tood i t  to  

exped i te  mat te rs .    

 So I  thought  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  ment ion  tha t  so  tha t  

you know i t  and  –  and o f  cou rse  there  were  cha l lenges 10 

about  the  –  there  were  cha l lenges tha t  we a l l  know –  know 

o f .   So –  bu t  I  thought  tha t  tha t  i s  –  tha t  i s  a l l  I  w ish  to  say.   

 But  I  must  a lso  maybe say tha t  you w i l l  have  

not iced tha t  the  issue o f  the  –  o f  Werksmans has been 

brought  to  the  commiss ion  and tha t  i s  because in  par t  

because your  ra i s ing  o f  the  mat te r  made i t  poss ib le  fo r  one 

to  say le t  us  have a  look because  he –  he  ra ises  th is  i ssue  

he fee l s  s t rong ly  about  i t .   So  i t  has  been brought  to  the  – 

to  the  commiss ion  and –  so  I  jus t  ment ion  tha t .  

 Okay le t  us  –  oh  you want  to  –  yes  Mr  Montana.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r.   Cha i r  I  th ink  we shou ld  –  

we shou ld  p roceed but  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  am actua l l y  p leased to  hear  Cha i r  

tha t  in  respect  o f  the  mat te r  o f  the  a f f idav i t  because th is  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 30 of 335 
 

was the  i ssue tha t  I  was go ing  to  ra ise  today  tha t  I  

p repared an a f f idav i t  and i t  reca l l ed  tha t  my a f f idav i t  was 

not  p repared in  response to  any a l legat ion .  

 Popo Mole fe  tes t i f ied  in  March e igh t  months  a f te r  I  

have approached  the  commiss ion  a f te r  I  had g iven the  

commiss ion  and I  sa id  I  want  to  ass is t  the  commiss ion  w i th  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  know in  my ro le  in  government  f rom 

pub l i c  en te rpr i ses  when we res t ruc tur ing  a l l  the  s ta te  

owned ente rpr i ses  to  t ranspor t  and my l i fe  in  PRASA and I  

sa id  I  am wi l l i ng  to  do  tha t  Cha i r.  10 

 The prob lem wi th  the  summons  today is  tha t  i t  

inv i tes  me –  my a f f idav i t  has  no t  been adm i t ted  as 

ev idence and we  know the  commiss ion  has spoken Cha i r  

about  my annexures and I  w i l l  no t  d rag  the  issue but  I  jus t  

want  to  pu t  i t  on  record .    

 Cha i r  the  –  when  I  submi t ted  my a f f idav i t  as  I  have  

sa id  I  th ink  you have seen i t  i s  a  447 page a f f idav i t  and I  

sa id  I  do  no t  want  to  burden th i s  a f f idav i t  I  w i l l  submi t  my  

annexures separa te ly  and I  th ink  I  worked  to  the 

commiss ion .   They came to  my house to  co l lec t  a l l  the 20 

papers .   Every  number  l inks  to  –  oh  and the  annexures 

l inks  to  the  issues tha t  a re  the re .    

 The commiss ion  has sa id  to  me no but  these th ings 

are  no t  p roper l y  marked or  numbered and I  sa id  no ,  no  i t  i s  

f ine  le t  me work  w i th  the  commiss ion  so  tha t  we co r rec t  a l l  
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the  –  what  you say ing  is  no t  p roper ly  marked or  numbered  

so  tha t  –  the  commiss ion  sa id  to  me Cha i r  you d id  no t  use  

what  you ca l l  i t  es tab l i shed prac t ice  –  the  fo rmat  tha t  we 

use.   And I  asked Cha i r  can I  have th is  fo rmat  so  tha t  my 

annexures are  in  l ine  w i th  what  the  commiss ion  requ i res?   

 I t  has  taken me over  th ree  months  and I  have  

rea l i sed tha t  no t  such fo rmat  ex is ts  Cha i r.   So I  am 

p leased Cha i r  tha t  I  th ink  tha t  your  words are  assur ing ,  

tha t  you have looked a t  the  commiss ion  and Cha i r  I  am not  

ra is ing  the  issue o f  Werksmans and to  ta lk  about  10 

i r regu lar i t y.  

 In  fac t  the  conc lus ion  o f  my annexure  I  –  because 

th is  impact  on  our  –  on  our  democra t ic  d ispensat ion  as  a  

count ry  and I  say  in  my -   in  my a f f idav i t  there  in  my  

conc lus ion  the  work  o f  th is  commiss ion  wou ld  be  

incomple te  w i thout  i t  look ing  deeper  because i t  i s  no t  

about  i r regu lar  and f raudu len t  expen – appo in tment .  

 I t  i s  Cha i r  about  the  fac t  tha t  I  submi t ted  th is  

ev idence,  a  lo t  o f  repor t s  tha t  shows tha t  Werksmans and 

the  compan ies  work ing  w i th  them have ac tua l l y  based the i r  20 

repor ts  inc lud ing  those tha t  they have g iven to  the  HAWKS 

through i r reg  –  un lawfu l  surve i l lance ac t iv i t y.  

 My house has been b roken a  number  o f  t imes.   My 

son near l y  d ied .   So these are  mat te rs  o f  l i f e  and death  bu t  

i s  the  –  the  mat te r  we d i scuss o f  the  HAWKS and NPA 
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ac tua l l y  shows the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  democra t ic  ins t i tu t ions  

can ac tua l l y  be  man ipu la ted  to  ach ieve nefar ious goa ls  as  

i t  were  and tha t  i s  the  sp i r i t  in  wh ich  I  am ra is ing  the  

Werksmans issue .  

 But  Cha i r  thanks  very  much tha t  you have sa id  you  

w i l l  have a  look a t  i t  and I  am hop ing  tha t  the  commiss ion  

w i l l  engage me so  tha t  go  deeper  because in  each and 

every  –  a f te r  every  pa rag raph I  pu t  an  annexure  to  suppor t .  

 You ask Cha i r  f ina l l y  you ask  some o f  you r  

w i tnesses here  Mr  Koko the  commiss ion  ask  h im Mr  Koko 10 

why do you in te rac t  w i th  i s  i t  Reg iment  Cap i ta l  when the  

cont rac t  i s  w i th  McK insey or  whatever  i t  i s  ca l led?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  Tr i l l i an .  

MR MONTANA:   Or  Tr i l l i an .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  McK insey –  McK insey.  

MR MONTANA:   Exact ly  those par t ies  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   McK insey ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  tha t  was the  po in t  tha t  Advocate  

Se leka took on  here  w i th  Mr  Koko.   You w i l l  see  Cha i r  

when we say Werksmans has been pa id  R350 mi l l ion  we 20 

ac tua l l y  re fe rs  to  compan ies  tha t  a re  no t  cont rac ted  to  

PRASA but  who a re  cont rac ted  by  Werksmans.  

 Some o f  them the i r  job  s imp ly  to  chase a f te r  me,  

b reak in to  my houses so  tha t  they  can t ry  to  f ind  anyth ing  

tha t  they can –  so  tha t  I  can be p rosecuted th rough what  
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you  ca l l  manufac tured charges and t rumped up  charges 

Cha i r.  

 So I  am g lad  tha t  we open up th i s  th ing  then we are  

dea l ing  w i th  the  rea l  s ta te  capture  tha t  we shou ld  be  

look ing  a t  Cha i r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  le t  me say th is  about  your  a f f idav i t .   

Because o f  where  we are  in  te rms o f  t ime fo r  the 

commiss ion  I  do  no t  know i f  much  can be done i f  the  issue 

o f  annexures were  to  be  f i xed  but  I  wou ld  be  –  I  wou ld  be  

very  happy i f  they  wou ld  be  a  way  to  sor t  ou t  tha t  issue o f  10 

annexures because as  I  say  your  a f f idav i t  has a  lo t  o f  

th ings tha t  I  th ink  are  ve ry  impor tan t  tha t  th is  commiss ion  

wou ld  l i ke  to  look  in to .  

 I t  i s  jus t  a  p i t y  tha t  we are  where  we are  in  te rms o f  

t ime you know.   So I  wou ld  be  very  happy I  know tha t  

be tween yourse l f  and the  commiss ion  maybe cer ta in  th ings  

have been sa id  and a l l  o f  tha t  bu t  maybe a  d iscuss ion  tha t  

we have been hav ing  th is  morn ing  maybe i t  m igh t  jus t  open  

the  way or  an  a t tempt  to  t ry  and sor t  tha t  ou t  (A f r i can 

language) .   Mr  Son i  you remember  the  phras ing  (A f r i can  20 

language) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   In  a  sp i r i t  o f  coopera t ion  and  

w i thout  f igh t ing  and so  on  so  –  so  –  because then once  

tha t  has been f i xed  one can app ly  one ’s  m ind to  what  can  
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be  done w i th  i t  a t  the  t ime where  we are .   Okay  a l r igh t .   

Thank you.   We are  a t  s ix  m inu tes  to  e leven I  wonder  

whethe r  we shou ld  jus t  take  the  tea  break now and then –  

so  tha t  when we come back we go  s t ra igh t  up  to  luncht ime? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe we shou ld  do  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson may I  p lace  someth ing  on  

record?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  am not  go ing  to… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   You –   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  am not  go ing  to  dea l  w i t h  o the r  

mat te rs  tha t  Mr  Montana has ra i sed.   Mr  Montana says I  

am conf l i c ted .   As  the  –  an  o f f i cer  o f  cou r t  and I  accept  th is  

i s  no t  a  cour t  bu t  in  genera l  I  am deep ly  consc ious o f  no t  

invo l v ing  myse l f  in  ac t i v i t ies  tha t  m ight  invo lve  a  conf l i c t .  

 So I  want  to  p lace  on record  I  have never  been 

br ie fed  by  Werksmans A t to rneys  in  any mat te r  invo lv ing  

PRASA or  Mr  Montana.   Th i s  i s  no t  the  f i rs t  t ime Mr  

Montana has ra i sed i t .   He has ra ised i t  w i th  journa l i s ts  20 

who communica ted  w i th  me and out  o f  concern  I  wro te  to  

the  lead counse l  o f  the  commiss ion  Mr  Pre tor ius  and 

p laced on reco rd .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   What  the  pos i t ion  is  and so  le t  me do 
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i t  now because i t  w i l l  fo rm par t  o f  th is  reco rd .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you to ld  me.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  d id  as  we l l  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  have never  been br ie fed  by  

Werksmans A t to rneys i n  respect  o f  e i ther  Mr  Mon tana or  

PRASA ever  be fo re  o r  a f te r  the  commiss ion .   I  was br ie fed  

by  Werksmans once about  four teen/ f i f teen years  ago in  a  

mat te r  in  Durban i t  was a  commerc ia l  mat te r  i t  had noth ing  

to  do  w i th  PRASA.   10 

 In  regard  to  PRASA one mat te r  on  wh ich  I  was 

br ie fed  was a  mat te r  in  wh ich  I  was asked to  g ive  an  

op in ion  on  whether  c r im ina l  cha rges cou ld  be  brought  

aga ins t  Mr  Montana.  

 I  am surpr ised tha t  Mr  Montana  th inks  tha t  tha t  

d isqua l i f ies  me because tha t  op in ion  sa id  tha t  g iven the  

pos i t ion  Mr  Montana occup ied  he  cou ld  no t  be  cr im ina l l y  

invo l ved.   But  i t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  anyth ing  tha t  the  

commiss ion  is  in .  

 And Cha i rperson  when I  came to  the  commiss ion  I  20 

was not  aware  o f  what  s t ream I  wou ld  be  f i t ted  in to  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  I  jus t  want  to  assu re  you 

Cha i rperson,  pub l ic  a t  la rge  and perhaps Mr  Montana i f  he  

is  open to  persuas ion  tha t  I  am not  conf l i c ted  a t  a l l .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Le t  us  take  a  –  

the  tea  ad jou rnment  now so  tha t  we do not  s ta r t  s top ,  s ta r t  

s top .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease .  

CHAIRPERSON:   We take the  tea  ad jou rnment  now and 

a f te r  tha t  we w i l l  go  up  to  quar te r  past .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease .  

CHAIRPERSON:   E leven and then we w i l l  resume a t  

quar te r  past  and then cont inue.   We ad journ .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease  Cha i r.  10 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   As you please Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Chai rperson there is Mr Hotz f rom 

Werks – Werksmans he wants to place something on record.   

He asked me to place – to  indicate to you Mr Hotz f rom 

Werksmans.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   What is that  we are supposed to start  wi th 

the wi tness evidence now.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Hotz what is  that?  Put  on your mic.  

We have been meaning to commence with the wi tness’ 
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evidence.  Somebody wi l l  help you.    

ADV HOTZ:   Thank you Chai r.   Chair  in l ight  of  the 

proceedings this morning I  merely wanted to alert  the Chai r  

unfortunately  our  senior counsel  could not  at tend this 

morning but  I  wanted to  p lace on record Chai r  as you would 

be aware that  Werksmans has indeed appl ied to the Chair  for  

permission to cross-examine Mr Montana.    

Obviously we – we are in your hands Chai r  as to how 

and when but  I  merely wanted to p lace on record that  there 

is that  appl icat ion Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.   At  some stage I  – i t  

would be deal t  wi th there are a lot  – qui te a number of  

appl icat ions for leave to cross-examinat ion that  are being 

f inal ised so – okay alr ight .   Thank you.   That  is –  yes Mr 

Montana.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  – I  unfortunately  I  represent  mysel f  

as wel l  on the legal  s ide.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

MR MONTANA:   But  Chai r  I  th ink I  would – I  would also take 

legal  advice on th is issue.   I  have welcomed the – when the 20 

commission a lerted me to the fact  that  Werksmans wants to 

cross-examine I  said no I  welcome in fact  there are a lot  of  

th ings that  the – I  th ink that  i t  would be good for  them to 

cross-examine me.  Chair  but  they – they can do that  only on 

the basis of  my aff idavi t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  am here to reply to respond.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no they are not  going to do that  today.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  no Chai r  I  accept  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  am saying even procedural ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I t  is on the basis not  of  my response to Mr 

Popo Molefe but  i t  should be under basis of  my aff idavi t  

which is not  the statement.   So I  th ink – I  th ink Chai r  we wi l l  10 

deal  wi th i t  at  the r ight  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   And I  wi l l  take legal  advice once you have 

made your decision Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes wel l  put  i t  th is way i f  you – i f  subject  

to issues of  t ime and condonat ion i f  you did not  previously 

f i le anything in re lat ion to i t  having read what they wrote in 

support  of  the appl icat ion you might  when you take legal  

advice get  advice as to whether there is anything you should 

put  before me before I  make the decision.   Okay al r ight .   Mr 20 

Soni .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   As you please Chai rperson.   Just  one 

more housekeeping.   Mr Johan Van Loggerenberg who was 

ment ioned in Mr Montana’s aff idavi t  asked me to place on 

record that  he is  here – he is not  represented but  he just  
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wants to place on record that  he is in fact  here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh was he ment ioned in the aff idavi t?  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   In the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  we – is not  being used today? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh as long as he is advised that  i t  is not  

being used today.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight  thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Mr Montana can I  just  explain what I  10 

want to do today and i t  can ei ther be fast  t racked or i t  can be 

a slow process.   Mr Molefe has made a number of  

al legat ions against  you in his aff idavi t .   I  want  to look at  the 

re levant  parts or the relevant  paragraphs of  his aff idavi t  and 

ask you whether you deny or conf i rm the correctness of  what 

he said and anyth ing you may want to add.   

 Okay I  am going to refer to speci f ic  paragraphs and I  

hope you wi l l  not  mind I  wi l l  read them i t  just  becomes easier 

so that  the record is complete and your answer to that  

quest ion appears al l  in one.  20 

 Is that  al r ight?  I  want to start  wi th you wi l l  have … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  say f i rst  Mr Soni  what bundle we are 

using.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For the record.  
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ADV VAS SONI SC:   Bundle D Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   PRASA Bundle D.  Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   PRASA Bundle D.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And i t  is Exhib i t  SS6.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  – and that  wi l l  be Mr Popo Molefe’s  

aff idavi t?  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   That  – that  is so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now have you got  i t  Mr Montana? 10 

MR MONTANA:   I  have got  i t  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can keep your mic on al l  the t ime Mr 

Montana.  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Chai r.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   I f  you – we are going to look at  page 

numbers and paragraph numbers.  I  wi l l  start  off  wi th page 

number the f i rst  page is page 3 i t  is  the page on the top r ight 

hand corner in red.    

MR MONTANA:   On the top.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Page 3.  20 

MR MONTANA:   Top r ight .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Page 3 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  wi l l  read 003.  

MR MONTANA:   3  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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ADV VAS SONI SC:   So at  paragraph 11 he says that  he was 

appointed to the PRASA board on the 1s t  of  August  and soon 

thereaf ter he met  wi th  you in your  capaci ty as Group Chief  

Execut ive,  is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   He says you then congratulated him on 

his appointment and to ld  h im that  the previous – that  you 

had told  the previous chai rperson that  you intended 

res igning as you had been with PRASA for many years and 

that  you st i l l  intended resigning in the future,  is that  correct? 10 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chai r  but  the – that  was not  

on our f i rst  – on our f i rst  meet ing ja,  but  that  is correct ,  you 

are r ight .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   So can I  just  ask and i t  is on record but  

is i t  re levant  that  i t  was not  at  the f i rst  meet ing? 

MR MONTANA:   I t  is re levant  Chai r  because we – I  th ink at  

the f i rst  meet ing i t  was immediately af ter Mr Molefe had 

been appointed the whole board had been actual ly appointed 

by cabinet .    

There was a cabinet  statement issued and I  then 20 

obtained his mobi le number;  cal led him to congratulate him 

and made arrangements to go and see him.  He was playing 

gol f  at  the Gauteng Golf  Estate.   He had arranged a venue – 

met there.   I  int roduced mysel f .   We spoke about the history 

– where we come from and how I  know him part icular ly as a 
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young act iv ist  in the UDF in the 1980’s and then I  lef t  – I  

gave him three documents.   I  said these are your bedt ime 

readings.   I t  is not  the board induct ion we wi l l  have a board 

induct ion at  the r ight  t ime.   

I  gave him the st rategy of  PRASA what they cal l  a  

corporate plan.   I  gave him some of  the documents deal ing 

wi th the – wi th our modernisat ion program and I  gave h im 

our document out l in ing our real  estate strategy and that  is 

how we parted ways.   He says I  wi l l  read and then we start  

wi th the process and we wi l l  have an induct ion.    10 

So the – the issue about me intending to resign I  

ra ise i t  of  course a few months la ter and this is af ter Mr 

Molefe had said to me, you know we think got  a new board 

you must  si t  wi th us one of  the three years.    

And I  said no and there is a reason for that  I  th ink at  

a later  – in the course of  the conversat ion we wi l l  come to 

that  Advocate Soni .   But  the real i ty is I  said to him at  that  

t ime that  look I  have been here for almost  ten years.    

My heal th is not  good I  want to  step aside and 

everything but  there wi l l  be subsequent meet ings where 20 

some of  these things were deal t  wi th but  the – but  –  so that  

was not  the – in  the f i rst  meet ing but  i t  happened almost  

wi thin the same – more or less the same t ime – t imel ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On a l ighter Mr Montana you say you 

wanted to step aside or step down at  that  t ime? 
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MR MONTANA:   I  wanted to do both Chai r  step aside but  I  

st i l l  have thi r ty days in respect  of  the step aside the rule 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And then in paragraph 12 Mr Montana 

he is – Mr Montana – Molefe says he responded by saying 

that  PRASA was carrying out  a major program of  

modernisat ion and the board would need you to remain and 

lead the team at  PRASA to discharge histor ical  past ,  d id that  

happen? 10 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  indeed that  – that  happened.  Mr 

Molefe had wanted me or  rather  suggested to  me that  I  

should stay at  PRASA for another three years.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Right  then in paragraph 13 he says and 

start ing in the second sentence on the second l ine of  

paragraph 13.  

“There is – PRASA was beginning i ts 

execut ion of  an ambit ious government  

program of  modernisat ion. ”  

And then at  paragraph 14 he goes on to say:  20 

“That  the cost  of  that  was going to  be R172 

bi l l ion over a per iod of  4 – of  40 years. ”  

Is that  more or less correct? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  the – the ambit ious program to 

modernise our rai lways was of  course underway at  that  t ime 
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when Mr Molefe arr ived.   The R172 bi l l ion investment would 

have been over  a 20 year  per iod and not  40 years.   Over a 

20 year per iod.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   20? 

MR MONTANA:   20 ja not  40 years.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Then at  paragraph 15 he says that :  

“At  the t ime h is board assumed off ice most  of  

the major programs which had – which ran 

into bi l l ions had a lready been concluded. ”  

Is that  correct? 10 

MR MONTANA:   No that  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And then he says:  

“The board asked you in your capaci ty as 

CEO to make detai led presentat ion on the 

status of  the var ious cont ract  –  contracts 

including future contracts.”  

Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   No Chair  that  is not  correct .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   The board d id not  ask? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no,  Chair  we had a – an induct ion 20 

program.  This induct ion program addressed everything.   I t  

was addressed by – f i rst ly by me – we welcomed the new 

board where I  br iefed the ent i re board on the st rategy and 

we gave them two big f i les.    

 So the one on the st rategy side summarising those 



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 45 of 335 
 

issues and the other one was address – were issues 

addressed on the – on the regulatory legislat ive side which 

was addressed by the Company Secretary Mr Lindikaya at  

that  t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   I  am just  asking did that  never happen 

that  the board asked for presentat ions.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  – in fact  on the day he said that  I  

was si t t ing here l istening.   I  came especial ly for that  and I  

want to say that  i t  is a – and he sa id I  refused to cooperate 

wi th them.  That  is fa lse Chai r.   How would I  go and see the 10 

chairman at  the gol f  estate,  offer  him documents about 

PRASA when we welcome him.  And then a few months later 

I  wi thhold documents.   I  – for me i t  d id not  make sense.   

There is no object ive basis why I  wi thhold this.  

 Chair  let  me say the PRASA modern isat ion program 

and I  th ink that  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wait  before you cont inue I  wanted to say I  

was not  sure whether he said you refused or he simply said 

you – you never provided the documents.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  even that  is fa lse.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   I  had – we actual ly provided so much 

informat ion i f  there is one th ing is a weakness and you can 

see Chai r  I  wrote these statements in the ear ly hours of  th is 

morning.   I  provide informat ion and – and there was no 
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reason because we – you see we were not  involved in 

cr iminal i ty.  There is no reason for us to hide documents and 

do these kind of  th ings.    

So Chai r  i t  is not  – his assert ion is  -  is so incorrect  –  

i t  is wrong and I  do not  know where – where he f inds that  – 

where he f inds that  – where or how he can make such a 

statement.   He got  al l  the informat ion including regular  

quarter ly meet ings of  the board.    

I  wrote detai led reports and annexures on issues that  

the board had to deal  wi th.   There are cont racts of  course – 10 

i f  we deal  wi th  one cont ract  the rol l ing stock renewal  

program the R53 b i l l ion to replace the ent i re f leet  of  

MetroRai l .    

I  mean these documents are wi th  lawyers i t  was – 

they were so big I  do not  even carry those documents.   But  

they were accessible to the board.    

Let  me – let  me hasten to add though Mr Soni  Mr 

Molefe and I  when we were inv i ted to Parl iament  and I  

cannot recal l  the date now to br ief  and he has just  jo ined 

PRASA to br ief  the Standing Commit tee.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Port fo l io Commit tee.  

MR MONTANA:   The Standing Commit tee on Appropr iat ion.   

I t  was chai red at  that  t ime by Mr – Mr Paul  Mashat i le.   We 

went there;  I  br iefed the commit tee;  I  presented to the 

commit tee and then he opened of  course and said the CEO 
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wi l l  take us through a presentat ion.   At  the end Mr Molefe 

then in fact  was saying – was talk ing about the ro l l ing stock 

program more speci f ical ly that  you know we have even 

invest igated this matter and we f ind that  i t  is perfect  i t  is  

done in a proper way.  

 Now Chai r  I  d id  not  know that  was in – i t  was being 

invest igated.   For the f i rst  t ime just  three months of  Mr 

Molefe – of  Mr Molefe being in PRASA I  heard in Parl iament 

f rom his own statement that  they have invest igated this issue 

and they are sat isf ied wi th the fact  that  th is cont ract  was 10 

done properly.  

 Chair  when we deal  wi th the Werksmans issues we 

are going to come to this part icular issue.   Mr – so i t  actual ly 

shows that  the re lat ionship in my aff idavi t  I  say there is a  

network and this I  want to br ing you to – to th is part icular 

network that  has been in operat ion including the fact  that  

they started invest igat ing me when I  was st i l l  at  PRASA 

without  actual ly even any board resolut ion – board resolut ion 

to that  effect .  

 Chair  I  want  to assure this commit tee I  am – I  have 20 

got  my own shor tcomings and the wi tnesses but  I  respect  

author i ty and that  is  why when Mr Molefe was appointed the 

f i rst  th ing I  d id  was to congratulate – to welcome him, 

congratulate him.  I t  was not  – I  would have wai ted – I  could 

have wai ted for the board induct ion when they came at  
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PRASA.  I  fo l lowed him to where he was and said Mr Molefe 

– I  even told him that  he inspi res me Chai r  and I  th ink he 

ment ioned that  po int  because the re lat ionship wi th Mr Molefe 

even though he d id not  know me personal ly at  that  t ime but  

there is a long history to i t  which I  th ink may not  be relat ive 

at  th is – at  th is po int  in t ime.  

 Chair  – Chai r  there is no reason why I  would wi thhold 

any informat ion f rom Mr Molefe for  the board as they – as 

they were a properly const i tuted board of  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Mr Soni .  10 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   As you please Chai r.   So we can accept  

that  when Mr Molefe says that  he asked for these you were 

not  cooperat ive and he had to secure – he and the board had 

secure the documents as he says in  the rest  of  that  

paragraph f rom the at torneys concerned.  

MR MONTANA:   Not  on his.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   That  that  is not  correct .  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  want  to say that  is – and Mr Molefe 

knows he is probably watching th is  he knows that  th is – that  

is not  correct .  20 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay.   At  least  we know the areas of  

di fference so … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And – and i t  is not  a si tuat ion where he 

might  be mistaken about  the t imeframe where he locates that  

request  – maybe i t  is a request  that  happened later because 
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I  th ink your – you started by saying you – the request  was 

not  made, is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you said on your own you had provided 

a lot  of  documentat ion.  

MR MONTANA:   A t  my own ini t iat ive Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Chair  let  – let  me say the relat ionship and I  

deal  wi th th is at  length in my aff idavi t .   My re lat ionship wi th  

Mr Molefe when he became chai r  between August  unt i l  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   2014.  

MR MONTANA:   August  2014 unt i l  November – end of  

November we had a very good relat ionship.   We had one on 

one meet ings.   Wel l  then we had one on one meet ings in fact  

most  of  the meet ings were not  even taken place at  PRASA.   

They were taking place at  his off ices – he is a di rector of  

Lereko Investments which is based in I l lovo and most  of  the 

meet ings were happening there.  

 But  Chair  I  wi l l  explain in the course of  th is – of  th is  

test imony.   I  knew why Mr Molefe was there.   You heard the 20 

test imony of  – of  former Minister of  Transport  Dipuo Peters,  

Mr Peters spoke about you ask a quest ion to Mr Molefe in  

March you ask him what happened in  the relat ionship,  why 

things were good and why things turn bad?   

Chair  I  do not  know i f  th is is the r ight  t ime but  I  want  
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to help you understand,  answer that  quest ion for  you 

because both Mr Molefe and Mr Dipuo Peters did not  provide 

you wi th the r ight  answer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR MONTANA:   Outside in the st reets Chair  on a l ighter 

note to  say at  that  t ime i t  was the same Whatsapp group and 

then i t  went  the other way pear shape and that  is why we 

have the kind of  problems that  we are talk ing about Chai r.    

 So he did – he d id not  make any mistake Chai r  he 

just  know that  his assert ions – his statement to the 10 

commission was not  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You must not  forget  I  would l ike you to 

make an input  on that  quest ion but  maybe at  the r ight  t ime 

so – so you and Mr Soni  – Mr Soni  wi l l  a lso keep an eye as 

to when the r ight  t ime would be.  

MR MONTANA:   ( Inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you can deal  wi th i t .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Then he says in paragraph 16:  20 

“That  there was a problem in that  the 

2014/15 audi t  indicted that  there was 

i rregular  expendi ture of  more than R500 

mi l l ion.”  

And that  the Audi tor General  sorry i f  you look later in the 
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paragraph and the Minister and the board ’s audi t  commit tee 

had convened an urgent  work shop to deal  wi th these 

concerns.  

Are you aware of  that? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  you know somet imes when you do 

things as an af ter thought because you want th ings to f i t  into  

each other you say things l ike that .    

 In 2014 we had a delay to our  audi ted f inancia l  

statement.   Not  because of  management problems Chair  no 

because there was a huge issue between us and the Audi tor  10 

General  at  that  t ime.  I t  had to do wi th the locomot ives.    

 As you know the locomot ives Chai r  we are going to 

ta lk at  length about that .   The locomot ives were – were – 

Chair  we unl ike the commuter t rains which we bui ld a factory 

but  the locomot ives 88 of  them but  we ended up contract ing 

for  70.   They have to be bui l t  in  Spain and I  know there has 

been a lot  of  debate about whether we should have bui l t  

them or not  I  th ink at  the r ight  t ime again I  wi l l  deal  wi th that  

issue Chai r  to show the issue of  publ ic interest .  

 We never faced this chal lenge about the R500 20 

mi l l ion.   Chair  when I  was at  PRASA and I  know that  Mr 

Molefe painted a picture – he does that  at  the end of  his  

paragraph as an organisat ion that  is dysfunct ional ,  that  has 

got  weak controls or non-existent  and many individuals 

deployed in st rategic posi t ions lacked the required ski l ls  to  
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adequately fu l f i l  their  roles.   

 You know this PRASA I  do not  know Chai r.   I  was at  

PRASA I  was CO for nine consecut ive years.  We have never 

had a qual i f ied audi t  when I  was at  PRASA.  This was not  

conveyed to this  commission and that  is very important  

because there may not  have been – have been – there may 

have been audi ted f inancial  statements and annual  reports 

and the Audi tor General  making cer tain f indings but  when the 

audi t  was delayed in 2014 the Audi tor General  sa id to us we 

want to t ravel  to Spain to go and ver i fy the components that  10 

have been bought and everything and see how they should 

be t reated in the account ing – in the statements of  PRASA.   

Okay – that  is what the Audi tor General  said.  

 We then agreed;  we prepared for the t r ip.   The 

Audi tor  Genera l  then came back to change i ts  posi t ion and 

said no we want PRASA to t reat  the Swifambo t ransact ion as 

a pre-payment together wi th the other rol l ing stock program 

and i f  you do not  do that  we wi l l  d isqual i fy –  we wi l l  

d isqual i fy oh sorry we wi l l  qual i fy the f inancials to PRASA.  

 This was towards the end and this board has just  20 

jo ined.   This workshop that  the Chair  is referr ing to is 

actual ly the f i rst  induct ion workshop and i t  is at  that  meet ing 

that  we indicated to them that  we may need a special  agent  

Audi t  and Risk Management Commit tee of  the board to meet 

to deal  wi th th is part icular issue.  
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 So when I  read and l istened to Mr Molefe si t t ing 

there;  up there manipulat ing these facts to convey to the 

commission that  we have got  th is  dysfunct ional  ent i ty.   No 

that  is not  PRASA Chai r.   

 The PRASA that  we – that  we formed and I  p layed a 

leading ro le in th is establ ishment had major problem there 

because our rai lway system was fal l ing apart .   But  I  wi l l  te l l  

you Chair  that  when I  was CO of  PRASA some of  my former 

col leagues are here i f  a t rain does not  move old – this old  

t rains and I  do not  get  the sat isfactory response the 10 

management knew that  I  wi l l  act .   They know that  I  wi l l  f i re  

them and ask them to say let  us get  them to the t ra ins in the 

ear ly hours of  the morning so that  we can deal  wi th the real  

business of  th is organisat ion.  

 So Chai r  th is  pic ture that  is be ing presented here  

that  the commission should look at  the – at  these ent i t ies as 

being – you know i f  there is one ent i ty that  I  th ink South 

Afr icans notwi thstanding i ts many chal lenges should have 

been proud of .   I  th ink one of  them should have been PRASA 

and take out  Montana there and deal  wi th th is ent i ty and I  20 

think in my statement I  detai l  some of  the things that  we 

have achieved and I  deal  wi th what happened the per iod 

af ter.  

 So Chai r  we never  heard.   I  only appeared to in  

SCOPA once Chair  on each 00:24:02 i rregular expendi ture.   
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That  was in 2013 I  th ink and there the amount was R32 

mi l l ion Chair  –  R32 mi l l ion in 2013 and this amount  had 

nothing to do wi th thef t  of  money.   I t  is a fact  that  PRASA 

because of  f inancials – cash f lows could not  pay the 

Municipal i t ies in t ime and they charged interest .   The Audi tor  

General  said to  us because you are paying and you are 

paying wi th interest  we wi l l  then t reat  that  – those interests 

as i r regular or wastefu l  expendi ture.  

 I  had to go and explain i t  to SCOPA.  

 2014 the f inancial  year the i rregular expendi ture was 10 

only R100 mi l l ion Chair  – only R100 mi l l ion.   What happened 

is that  the R500 mi l l ion had to do wi th – and I  had lef t  

PRASA that  t ime when they f inal ised in July I  lef t  on the 15t h  

the board and management had then to f inal ise the f inancials 

Chai r.   They ever go to the pr ior year.   I  was outs ide PRASA 

when I  hear about  R500 mi l l ion which then was included into 

that  th ing which was used as a just i f icat ion for the i rregular  

appointment of  Werksmans Chai r.  

 So again you know – you know Chair  the extent  to  

which Mr Molefe I  th ink that  when you – when I  l isten to the 20 

test imony of  Ms Dikeledi  Magadzi  the current  Deputy 

Minister of  Transport  and a former chai rperson of  the 

Port fo l io  Commit tee on Transport  when you l isten to the 

test imony of  Martha Ngoyi  – sorry Chair  not  Martha Ngoyi  I  

am sorry I  was ta lk ing to her just  now that  is why she is – of 
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Dipuo Peters you actual ly see that  in fact  the evidence of  Mr 

Popo Molefe and I  am t rying to avoid using a st rong word but  

Chair  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MONTANA:   Did not  assist  the commission i t  was t ry ing 

to create and i t  was – i t  was a pol i t ical  statement more than 

providing the commission wi th facts.   Unfortunate ly I  had 

wri t ten my aff idavi t  before he make these al legat ions but  I  

d id later incorporate some of  those things.  

 I t  is fa lse Chai r.   The reason why the Audi t  10 

Commit tee is not  R500 mi l l ion – i t  is not  a R500 mi l l ion 

which came at  a later stage but  i t  has to do Mr Soni  wi th the 

fact  that  the Audi tor  General  wanted to change what you cal l  

an account ing t reatment of  how we t reat  locomot ives.  

 So i f  PRASA pay Swifambo money and this money 

goes to  Vossloh and they buy an engine f rom another  

company now that  engine is in Spain but  PRASA had paid 

the money how do we t reat  that  in the books? 

 So there was a debate about that  which impacted on 

the f inancia ls and not  i r regular expendi ture or steal ing of  20 

money as being pro jected here or lack of  cont rols Chai r.  

 And so i t  is not  correct  Mr Soni   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Can I  just  ask you to turn to page 38 

this – because the basis that  Mr Molefe bases that  on PM2 

and I  do not  want you to th ink Mr Montana that  I  am trying to  
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favour Mr Molefe’s version I  am just  t ry ing to on the basis of  

the informat ion before us to  show you that  i t  does appear in 

the f inancial  statements.   I f  you look at  page 38 which is 

PM2.  

MR MONTANA:   Remind – PM – remind me Chai r  we are 

using the numbers at  the top is i t  not? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes 038.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The red numbers but  he – he wi l l  not  

ment ion the let ters and every – and the 0 he wi l l  just  say 38 

so you.  10 

MR MONTANA:   Page 38? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV VAS SONI SC:   You wi l l  see at  paragraph 14 i t  says:  

“As disclosed in note and that  not  was to be 

at tached to the f inancia l  statements the 

agency incurred i rregular expendi ture to the 

amount of  R550 mi l l ion. ”  

MR MONTANA:   Yes but  I  am saying this – this f inancials 

which f inancial  year is th is?   20 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   This is 2014 and 2015.  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chair  but  that  conf i rms my point .   In  

2013/20 – 2014/2015 the f inancials  the i r regular expendi ture 

R100 mi l l ion.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay 
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MR MONTANA:   Then what happened is that  I  lef t  in July  

before the f inancials were draf ted.   The only let  us know 

Chair  I  wi l l  not  even accept  that .   I  work wi th the off ice of  the 

Audi tor  General  but  I  go into the detai ls of  the business 

including you know get t ing . . . [ indis t inct  – dropping voice]  at  

a la te r  s tage but  i t  has  to  do ,  Mr  Son i ,  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  

the  Aud i to r  Genera l  wanted to  change the  – what  do  you  

ca l l  i t  –  account ing  t rea tment  o f  how t rea t  locomot ives .   So 

i f  PRASA pa id  Swi fambo money and th i s  money goes to  

Voss loh  and they buy an  eng ine  f rom another  company.    10 

 Now tha t  eng ine  is  no t  s tab le  bu t  PRASA takes 

the  money.   How does i t  s i t  in  the  books?  So there  was a  

debate  about  the  in  the  f inanc ia ls  and not  the  regu la r  

expend i tu re  or  s tea l ing  o f  money  tha t  i s  be ing  pro jec ted  

here  or  lack  o f  cont ro l ,  Cha i r.   So i t  i s  no t  cor rec t  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Can I  jus t  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 38.   

Th is  –  because i t  bas is  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  bas is  tha t  on  PM2 

and I  do  no t  want  you to  th ink ,  Mr  Montana,  tha t  I  am 

t ry ing  to  favour  Mr  Mole fe ’s  vers ion .   I  am jus t  t ry ing ,  on  

the  bas i s  o f  in fo rmat ion  be fo re  us ,  to  show you tha t  i t  does 20 

appear  in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements .   I f  you  look a t  page 38 

wh ich  is  PM2 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    PM. . .   Remind you,  Cha i r,  we are  us ing  

the  numbers  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    The red  numbers .   But  he  w i l l  no t  

ment ion  the  le t te r  and every  and the  zero .   He w i l l  jus t  say  

38 .   So you. . .  

MR MONTANA :    38 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    You w i l l  see  a t  paragraph 14,  i t  says :  

“As d i sc losed in  no te  [and tha t  no te  was to  be  

a t tached]  in  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements ,  the  

agency incur red  i r regu la r  expend i tu re  to  the  10 

amount  o f  R 550 mi l l ion . . . ”  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  bu t  I  am say ing  th is  f inanc ia l s  –  

wh ich  f inanc ia l  year  i s  th is?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Th is  i s  2014 and 2015.  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Ja ,  bu t  tha t  conf i rms my 

po in t .   In  2014/2015,  the  f inanc ia ls  says the  i r regu lar  

expend i tu re  i s  R 100 mi l l ion ,  Cha i r.   Then what  happened 

tha t ,  I  le f t  in  Ju ly  be fore  the  f inanc ia ls  were  dra f ted .   I  w i l l  

no t  even accept  tha t .   I  worked  w i th  the  Off i ce  o f  the  

Secre tary  Genera l  bu t  I  go  in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  bus iness  20 

inc lud ing ,  you know,  g iv ing  adv i ces f rom peop le  in  the 

account ing  f ie ld .   That  goes to  say what  does tha t  mean,  

okay?   

 And they fought  –  I  a lways fought  w i th  them.   

respect ing  the  o f f i ce  bu t  mak ing  su re  tha t  they ge t  the  r igh t  
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–  and so  these  f inanc ia ls  do  no t  suppor t  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

v iew(? ) .   I t  i s  supposed the  fac t  tha t  a f te r  I  have  le f t  in  

2014 –  in  2015,  Ju ly.   When they  f ina l i sed,  they added in  

the  i r regu lar  expend i tu re .    

 Cha i r,  you ra i sed a  concern .   I  th ink  when  

Min is te r  Peters  was here ,  you were  a lso  very  s t rong on  

tha t  po in t .   Cor rec t ly,  so  to  say how can i r regu la r  

expend i tu re  inc rease so  much to  a lmost  R 20 b i l l i on  and  

noth ing  was be ing  done.   Cha i r,  a t  the  r igh t  t ime I  want  to  

dea l  w i th  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Because I  have a l so  go t  a  sc ien t i f i c  

answer  to  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  i ssue.   So  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t .  So th is  

i s  a  record  a f te r  -  and there  have been agreements  

be tween in  my absence.   Sp.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And Mr  Montana,  aga in ,  I  do  know – 

what ,  as  the  Commiss ion ,  we have got  to  do  i s .   We have  

got  to  look  a t  documents  tha t  a re  presented to  us .   I f  you 

look a t  page 34,  tha t  says tha t  th is  i s  The F ina l  

Management  Repor t  on  The Aud i t  Wi th  the  Year  Ended  20 

31 o f  March 2015 .   That  i s  the  head ing  to  th is  document .    

 Now,  I  am on ly  ra is ing  th is  i n  th is  contex t  

because I  accept  you tha t  the  f inanc ia ls  were  done a f te r  

you le f t  bu t  i t  i s  s t i l l  fo r  the  per iod  wh i le  you were  there  

2014/2015.   Un less  you are  say ing  to  us  tha t  these 
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f inanc ia l  s ta tements  m isrepresent  the  pos i t ion  a f te r  you 

le f t .    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  -  Mr  Son i ,  we  shou ld  

be  par t ia l (? ) .   Le t  me perhaps exp la in  i t  sys temat ica l l y  

w i thout  even d ive r t ing  on  o ther  i ssues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    There  is  2014.   I  am say ing  the  f inanc ia ls  

–  the  Commiss ion  is  be ing  –  o r  ra the r,  the  AG,  the  Aud i to r  

Genera l ’s  f ind ings fo r  2014/2015 was?  

CHAIRPERSON :    R  500 mi l l ion .  10 

MR MONTANA :    R  500 mi l l ion  fo r  2014/2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    And i f  you look a t  Mr  Mole fe ’s  s ta tement ,  

he  is  de f in i te ly  conf la t ing  the  f inanc ia l s  o f  2014/2015.   In  

2014,  what  caused the  de lay  was the  account ing  t rea tment  

and the  aud i to rs  had pros(? ) .   In  2015,  i t  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  

mat te r  a l togethe r,  okay?  So there  is  no th ing  wrong w i th  

what  you po in ted .   There  i s  a  reco rd .   I  am not  cha l leng ing  

i t .   There  is  a  le t te r,  though,  tha t  I  have wr i t ten  fo r  –  to  

cha l lenge the  f inanc ia ls .   I  have wr i t ten  to  the  Speaker  o f  20 

Par l iament ,  Ba leka Ba leka . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mbete .  

MR MONTANA :    Mbete .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    Where  I  ac tua l l y  a rgued and wro te  a t  
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length  tha t  the  f inanc ia l s  o f  PRASA is  p resented  by  the  

Board  o f  PRASA actua l l y  a re  wrong and they are  

m is lead ing  both  Par l iament  and the  users  o f  the  repor ts .   

So I  th ink ,  Mr  Son i ,  the  –  when –  the  aud i t  fo r  2014 was 

f ina l i sed wh ich  was the  year.    

 So Mr  Mole fe  j o ined in  August .   We had the  

de lay.   So i t  means he wou ld  have l i s t (? ) .   I f  he  jo ined on 

the  1s t  o f  Ju ly,  he  wou ld  no t  have  been par t  o f  the  2014 – 

what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  aud i to r  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  because 

they were  ge t t ing  approved by  the  board  submi t ted  on  the  10 

21 s t  o f  Ju ly.   Bu t  because there  was a  de lay  about  the 

account ing  t rea tment ,  so  i t  then went  to  h is  board .    

 Now the  amount  tha t  we are  dea l ing  speaks to  

2015.   So th is  i s  cor rec t .   I t  does  not  suppor t  –  what  i s  i t  

ca l led  –  i t  does  not  suppor t . . .   I t  does not  suppor t  the  

asser t ions  by  Mr  Mole fe  because he is  ac tua l l y  re fe r r ing  to  

the  –  the  R 500 mi l l ion  speaks to  the  2015 F inanc ia l  Year.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  le t  me put  i t  in  a way I  unders tand i t .   

Le t  us  take  out  Mr  Mole fe  fo r  the  t ime be ing .    

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And le t  me s tar t  what  you sa id  about  

2013/2014.   I  unders tand you to  say.   In  respect  o f  the 

F inanc ia l  Year  2013/2014,  the  i r regu lar  expend i tu re  was  

R 100 mi l l ion .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Now I  unders tand these f inanc ia l  

s ta tements  to  say in  respect  o f  the  F inanc ia l  Year  

2014/2015,  the  i r regu lar  expend i tu re  i s  –  i s  i t  R  500 mi l l ion 

or  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    R  550 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mi l l i on  Rand.   And my unders tand  o f  tha t  

i s  tha t  whatever  i t  i s  tha t  had g iven –  tha t  gave r i se  to  tha t  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  o f  R 550 mi l l ion  happened du r ing  the  

F inanc ia l  Year  o f  2014/2015.   A re  we on the  same page on  

tha t?  10 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  no ,  cer ta in ly  we a re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    We are  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  tha t  I  accept .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You accept ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Except  Cha i r  tha t  the  aud i to rs  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .made the i r  own f ind ings based  on the  20 

ev idence tha t  has been presented  to  them and tha t  i s  why  

the  2015/2016 F inanc ia l  Year  a t  the  -  what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  the  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  by  PRASA . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    . . .a re  fac tua l l y (?)  cha l lenged,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Because –  you  see,  when the  aud i to rs  

come –  and le t  me put  i t  up  f ron t  so  tha t  when Mr  Son i  

takes me th rough  he unders tands what  my po in t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  a t  the  hear t  o f  my le t ter  to  the 

Par l iament  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    To  the  Speaker.  

MR MONTANA :    My le t te r  to  the  Speaker  o f  Par l iament  

wh ich  I  cop ies  to  the  Cha i r  o f  SCOPA,  Mr  Themba God i .   I  10 

sa id  PRASA made ser ious m is representa t ions because  

immedia te ly  when the  f i rs t  R 100 mi l l ion  s to ry  and la te r  

then became R 14 b i l l i on .   R  500 mi l l ion ,  i t  went  to  

R 14 b i l l i on  in  the  next  yea r.   I  then took a  repor t  to  the 

Aud i to r  Genera l  to  ana lyse  i t .   I t  was not  a  t rus t (? ) .    

 Cha i r,  I  found  someth ing  ve ry  shock ing .   

Ac tua l l y,  I  d id  the  ca lcu la t ion .   That  the  twe lve  ou t  o f  the  

R 14 b i l l i on ,  R 12  b i l l i on  o f  tha t  amount  was ac tua l l y  w i th  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re .   The aud i to rs  ment ion  i n  the i r  repor t  

tha t  the  account ing  au tho r i t y  and management  fa i led  to  20 

prov ide  them wi th  reco rds  though the  payment  had(?)  a  

cont rac t  and a l l  o f  those th ings.    

 They speak abou t  the  l im i ta t ion  o f  scope in  the i r  

du t ies  and what  happened,  there fore ,  i s  tha t  –  then they 

s ta r ted  to  dec la re  a l l  o f  these th ings as  i r regu la r.   Now,  we 
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know these cont rac ts  a re  there  a t  PRASA.   We know in  the  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements  the  payments  tha t  PRASA does.   They  

can pu l l  ou t  those numbers  and g i ve  i t  to  them.   Then Popo 

Mole fe  went  ou t  to  the  med ia ,  Cha i r.    

 We a re  f ind ing  a  lo t  o f  cor rup t ion .   R  14 b i l l i on .   

And some o f  t ha t ,  by  the  way,  R 4  b i l l i on  o f  tha t  

R 14 b i l l i on  -  R 4  b i l l i on(?)  o f  the  R 4  b i l l i on(?) ,  Cha i r,  has 

happened in  the  year  tha t  he  was Cha i r.   Number  one.   

Number  two.   He then went  to  –  back to  2012,  okay?   I f  you  

want  to  dest roy  a  count ry  and an o rgan isa t ion ,  you must  do  10 

tha t  Cha i r.    

 When we fo rmed  –  when we in fo rmed PRASA in  

2008 –  I  had a  sess ion  w i th  the  aud i to rs ,  Aud i to r  Genera l .   

They sa id  to  us :   We do not  l i ke  the  way in  wh ich  you t rea t  

some o f  the  asse ts  tha t  you have.   You see,  we have got  

the  work  in  p rog ress and every th ing  bu t  what  we have is  

tha t  when you guys have spent  money on the  re furb ish ing  

a  t ra in  you then cap i ta l i sed  i t  in  the  s ta tements  as  in  to ta l  

as  i t  i s .    

 They say:   We want  you to  move away f rom tha t .   20 

We want  you to  s ta r t  to  say th i s  coach tha t  you have  

re furb ished,  cap i ta l i se  the  money  fo r  work (?)  separa te ly.   

So the  componen ts  tha t  a re  in  the  t ra in ,  you break them in 

tha t  way.   That  became the  prac t ise  and the  Aud i to r  

Genera l  had g i ven us  unqua l i f ied  aud i t  fo r  the  en t i re  pe r iod  
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I  was there .    

 That  aud i to rs  comes –  because  in  2014,  the 

board  ex tends the  cont rac t  o f  the  compan ies  invo l ved in  

the  re furb ishment .   The Aud i to r  Genera l ’s  o f f i ce ,  you  

expend ing  th is  cont rac t .   The board  approved tha t  you  

ex tend these cont rac t  f rom 2014  to  2019 wh i ls t  you are  

wa i t ing  fo r  a  de l i very  o f  new t ra ins .   Can we see the  

cont rac t?   Can we see the  payments?    

 The Board  o f  PRASA under  Popo Mole fe ,  we  

have heard  tha t  in fo rmat ion  f rom the  aud i to rs .   And when  10 

the  aud i to rs  recap a l l  o f  those th ings go ing  back to  2014,  

okay.   I  remember  even the  amount .   I  wro te  to  the  

Speaker.   The amount  we pa id  to  th is  company,  to  the 

compan ies  invo l ved in  the  re furb ish ing ,  Mr  Son i ,  was  

R 5 .6  b i l l i on .   We have re furb i shed over  3  000 

compar tments(?)  be tween 2008 and 2014.   So tha t  i s  good 

va lue  fo r  money.   But  the  aud i to rs  say:   Furn i sh  us  w i th  the  

documents .    

 The Board  o f  PRASA under  Mr  Popo Mole fe  and  

the  Company Secre tary,  Mr  L ind i kaya and my good f r iend,  20 

Mr  Nat i  Ge ldenhuys(?)  here ,  who was the  ac t ing  CEO af te r  

I  le f t .   They fa i led  to  p rov ide  tha t  to  the  Aud i to r  Genera l ’s  

o f f i ce .   And wha t  d id  I  do?  The Aud i to r  Genera l  says:   

Even in  p r io r  years  where  we have g i ven you an  

unqua l i f ied  aud i t ,  we are  then go ing  to  dec la re  those as  
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i r regu lar  expend i tu re .    

 Then Mr  Mole fe  jumps,  goes to  the  cour t .   We 

are  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  a  lo t  o f  i r regu la r  expend i tu re .   Cha i r,  I  

w i l l  never  accept  i t .   Even th is  R 500 mi l l ion .   I t  was done 

a f te r  I  had le f t .   I  sa id  no t (? )  in  you.   Cha i r,  i r regu la r  

expend i tu re ,  as  I  sa id  tha t  the  –  they wanted to  meet  

SCOPA’s  R 32 m i l l ion .   In  the  fo l low ing year  we had  

R 100 mi l l ion .   Th is  R 550 mi l l ion  was cooped(? )  as  a  

jus t i f i ca t ion  to  appo in t  Werksmans so  tha t  they can have  

work  a t  PRASA and cont inue to  do .    10 

 And tha t  i s  why I  am wai t ing  fo r  a  day,  Cha i r,  

where  Werksmans w i l l  b r ing  i t s  top  guns and come and be  

cross-examined because I  th ink  they have got  a  lo t  to  

exp la in  to  the  count ry  and not  me  Cha i r.   So Mr  Son i ,  what  

I  am s imply  say ing  is  the  Cha i r  t r ied  to  capture ,  okay?   

There  is  no th ing  wrong w i th  what  you are  re fer r ing  to  me in  

pages 32,  34 .    

 I t  re f lec ts  tha t  i f  you  do not  go ,  you do not  

unders tand the  s to ry  you are  go ing  to  say:   Hey,  indeed 

Montana was runn ing  th is  b ig . . .   You get  the  i r regu la r  20 

expend i tu re  th ree ,  four teen b i l l i on .   I t  i s  fa lse  Cha i r.   I  

th ink  my le t te r  wou ld  be  pa r t  o f  the  ev idence but  tha t  

comes he re ,  where  I  sa id ,  ac tua l l y  Par l iament  was  mis led .   

They use us  or  the  repor ts  o f  PRASA.    

 But  bo th  Par l iament  and the  users  hav ing  –  so  
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Cha i r,  you can see tha t  th is  i s  a  po l i t i ca l  games tha t  i s  

be ing  p layed.   He wanted to  increase the  i r regu lar  

expend i tu re .   He  even fo rge t  tha t  some o f  i t  i s  incur red  

under  your  leadersh ip .   And you go there  bu t  no .   We want  

to  f igh t  th is  cor rup t ion  because co r rup t ion  means i r regu lar  

expend i tu re  i s  no t  t rans la ted  to .   Cor rup t ion .    

 Le t  me f in i sh  i t  in  th is  way,  Mr  Son i ,  so  tha t  I  do  

no t  d ig ress  here .  Wel l ,  le t  me s tar t  w i th  poor  Peters  and I  

thought  she ta lked about  i t .   She wou ld  a l l  le t te r  to  

Mr  Mole fe  and one w i th  them dea l t  w i th  the  i ssue o f  10 

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  and the  appo in tment  o f  Werksmans.   I  

do  no t  know,  I  th ink  the  lega l  f i rm they sa id  Werksmans.   

Cha i rman and i t  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  fo r  qu i te  some t ime now I  

have not  been  sure  whether  i t  i s  Workmans(s ic )  o r  

Werksmans.   So  but  I  th ink ,  you  know,  some peop le  say  

Werksmans,  o the rs  are  Workmans(s ic ) .   So.    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  want  to  ca l l  them the  way I  ca l l  

them when I  speak to  my peop le  Malamute .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  i t  became Werksmans the  t ime fo r  

PRASA.   What  i s  th is  Werksmans?  What  a re  they do ing  a t  

PRASA?  Mr  De Voor (?)  wr i tes  a  le t te r,  Cha i r,  to  Mr  Mole fe  

and  say:   S top  th is  th ing  about  Werksmans.   I t  i s  no t  

budgeted fo r  and  i f  they  expend i tu res  are  i r regu la r.   You 
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know,  tha t  was Mr  Mole fe ’s  response.   That  i t  came in ,  

Cha i r.    

 He says,  in  h is  response to  the  Min is te r :   Wel l ,  

R  550 mi l l ion ,  we  w i l l  pay  Werksmans th is  amount  fo r  a  

p ro jec t  o f  th is  na ture .   We pay compan ies  no t  more  than  

10% of  the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t .   So Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  p lease repeat  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Le t  me repeat ,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .a t  leas t  I  can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Because I  can see you change your  face  10 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

MR MONTANA :    Aga in  –  and I  l i ke  tha t  Cha i r  because th is  

po in t  i s  very  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Wel l ,  on  a  l igh ter  no te .   

Somebody e l se  is  go ing  to  say I  am agree ing  w i th  you.   

MR MONTANA :    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  you are  in  th is  d i f f i cu l t  pos i t ion  

Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r  I  was  watch ing  aga in  w i thout  

d ig ress ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I  was watch ing  a  mov ie ,  th is  N iger ian  
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mov ie .   So th is  chap was ta lk ing  and the  o ther  chap i s  a  

ch ie f .   He does not  l i ke  what  he  is  say ing  bu t  th is  chap 

ind ica ted  the  ch ie f  does not  –  so  he  changes the  fac ia l  

express ion  and th is  chap jus t  say  to  h im:   I  do  no t  l i ke  the  

geography(?)  i n  your  face .   So Cha i r,  I  l i ke  the  

geography(?)  in  your  face  on th is  one.   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  le t  me go back.   These fac ts  –  the 

Min is te r  o f  Transpor t  shou ld  no t  ask  about  the  payments  o f  

Werksmans in  the  i r regu la r i t y  because normal ly  on  10 

cont rac ts  o f  th is  na ture ,  we w i l l  charge 10% of  the  va lue  o f  

the  work  tha t  they are  do ing .   So tha t  i t  te l l s  you Cha i r  i s  

tha t  they do  not  on ly  appo in t  Werksmans regu la r ly.   And 

then in  my a f f idav i t  I  thorough ly  demonst ra ted  tha t  ac tua l l y  

the  appo in ted  Werksmans f raudu len t ly.   Up to  pa id  work  fo r  

Werksmans,  they  then ra i sed the  numbers .   The h igher  the  

i r regu lar  expend i tu re  and waste fu l  expend i tu re  a t  PRASA.   

So 10% of  R 100,00,  Mr  Son i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  i t  i s  R 10,00 or  whatever  i f  my 20 

mul t ip l i ca t ion  is  r igh t .   Ten percent  o f  R 14 b i l l i on  

[speak ing  vernacu lar ]  Cha i r.   So Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  remember  to  t rans la te  those  

vernacu la r.   [ laughs]    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  w i l l  t ry,  hey.  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 70 of 335 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   But  i t  looks  l i ke  i t  i s  qu i te  a  

t rend,  you know.   Today is  what?   When was Mr  Mantashe 

here?   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  th ink  Wednesday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  the  course  o f  h is  ev idence,  a t  some 

s tage a lso ,  he  sa id  the  ev idence leader  [ speak ing  

vernacu lar ]  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .   [ laughs]   He resor ted  to  

h is  Xhosa but  qu i te  a  few wi tnesses have done tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  Mr  Zuma a lso  d id  when he  10 

tes t i f ied  in  2019.   He wou ld  pu t  in  some Zu lu  words.    

MR MONTANA :    I  do  no t  know whether  the  ANC th ing (?)  

Cha i r  o r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

MR MONTANA :    . . .we learn t (? )  i t  f rom there .   But  Cha i r  

the  response is  ex t raord inary.   Here  is  the  Min is te r  who is  

accountab le  fo r  PRASA.   And a t  tha t  t ime,  the  re la t ionsh ip ,  

i t  was no longer  the  same Whatsapp g roup.   I t  has  gone – 

then Min i s te r  D ipuo Pete r  then wr i tes  some very  hard  

le t te rs .   PRASA i s  fa l l ing  apar t .   The board  is  no t  focuss ing  20 

on the  r igh t  th ings.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang  on.   Because I  seem to  

remember  someth ing .   When you ta lk  about  the  re la t i onsh ip  

o f  be ing  the  same peop le  be ing  in  the  same Whatsapp 

group.   You are  ta lk ing  about  Mr  Mole fe  and Min is te r  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Min is te r  D ipuo Pe ters .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .D ipuo Peters .   But  I  seem to  have the  

impress ion  tha t  you and the  Min is te r  we a l so ,  a t  some 

s tage,  ge t t ing  a long qu i te  we l l  bu t  tha t  had changed.   So 

tha t  i s  why I  wanted to  know,  who now a re  you  ta lk ing  

about?  

MR MONTANA :    You know Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . .every  t ime I  ta lk  about  the  e lders  and I  10 

th ink  a t  some s tage when we come to  the  meet ing  w i th  the  

Pres ident  because I  laughed,  I  was to ld  i t (? )  s topped fo r  

many hours .   The  Pres ident  fe l l  as leep and every th ing .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    My grandmother,  Nona l le le (?) ,  she wou ld  

teach me,  Cha i r.   I f  I  speak to  an  e lde r  in  a  manner  where  I  

do  no t  show respect  and tha t  she has taught  me the  

pr inc ip le ,  an  e lde r  i s  r igh t  and i f  they  are  wrong,  you are  to  

accept  i t .   Min is te r  D ipuo Peters ,  Cha i r,  I  showed  her  my  

suppor t  and respect .   I  le f t  the  tes t imony here ,  okay.  20 

Because she to ld  the  t ru th  bu t  she fo rgo t  one fundamenta l  

t ru th ,  Cha i r.   And  tha t  fundamenta l  t ru th  was the  fac t  tha t  

her  and Popo Mole fe  were  work ing  together. . .  

 Cha i r,  and I  e labora te  on  th is  in  my a f f idav i t  –  

and a t  tha t  t ime we must  look  a t  the  speeches a t  the  AGM 
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o f  PRASA immed ia te ly  a f te r  I  have le f t  and a  year  la te r  

when tha t  re la t ionsh ip  changed.   Mr  Mole fe  –  you  know,  

Cha i r,  le t  me put  i t  b lun t ly  here .    

Popo Mole fe  was appo in ted ,  Cha i r  –  he  was appo in ted  

Cha i r  o f  PRASA because I  and  my cha i rman,  Mr  S f iso  

Buthe lez i  re fused  to  accept  tha t  I  am a  lawfu l  ins t ruc t ion  to  

cance l  an  award ,  no t  a  cont rac t  a t  tha t  t ime,  an  award  o f  a  

cont rac t  –  an  award  fo r  the  new t ra ins  tha t  we bu i ld  

because our  peop le  –  I  a lways say in  my a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  very  

c lea r.   PRASA was dest royed by  g reedy ANC po l i t i c ians pu t  10 

in  l igh t  and award  to  a  company.   Do even tenders  – why 

do you appo in ted  the  French?   

 And I  sa id  to  them change the  laws and te l l  us  

tha t  we shou ld  no t  appo in t  imper ia l i s t  o r  mu l t i -na t iona l  

compan ies  because you are  par t  o f  a  we l l -o i led  t ra ined  

organ isa t ion .   You have s igned th ings.   I  was not  even  

there  tha t  you are  even go ing  to  a l low these compan ies  to  

–  when they w in  you cannot  say  you do not  l i ke  them.   

Cha i r,  they  re fused an un lawfu l  ins t ruc t ion .    

 And we were  a t  Mu jant i (? )  House  when the  f i rs t  20 

t ime the  then Min is te r  D ipuo Peters  to ld  Popo – to ld  me 

and Mr  S f iso  Buthe lez i  and a  chap by  the  name o f  Peet (? )  

S ivu la (?) .   She come there  –  and th is  was the  second 

meet ing ,  we had one in  Cape Town –  where  she says:   Ja ,  

we cannot  be  d ic ta ted  t imes to  by  the  French and  
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every th ing .    

 And I  sa id :   Min is te r,  we are  no t  gu ided by  the  

French.   We are  gu ided by  the  cond i t ion  o f  Met ro ra i l .   I f  

you  do not  make  th is  in te rvent ion ,  Met ro ra i l  w i l l  co l lapse  

w i th in  th ree  years .   That  i s  what  they want .   And second ly,  

i f  we fo l low the  ins t ruc t ions –  we have obta ined lega l  

op in ion  and i t  i s  very  c lear  tha t  i f  we cance l  th is  award  to  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  led  by  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  we w i l l  ac tua l l y  be  ac t ing  

in  v io la t ion  o f  the  Procurement  Law.    

 And i f  these guys  take  us  to  cour t ,  we are  go ing  10 

to  pay them R 50 b i l l i on  w i thout  even buy ing  a  t ra in .   In  

tha t  meet ing ,  she sa id :   Wel l ,  I  am go ing  to  change the  

board .   Yes,  the  Board  o f  PRASA was due fo r  –  i t  was 

coming to  the  end o f  i t s  l i fe  Cha i r.   They are  appo in ted  fo r  

th ree  years .    

 But  Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  I  am not  su re  i f  Mr  S f iso  

Buthe lez i  my fo rmer  Cha i r  wou ld  come.   Ask h im ,  Cha i r,  

how many t imes  he has had d iscuss ions w i th  Min is te r  

D ipuo Peters .   Some o f  them on the  phone in  my presence,  

when Mr  Mole fe  was ta lk ing  to  the  Min is te r,  where  he  was  20 

promised here  the  board  i s  empty,  we are  go ing  to  

reappo in t  you.    

 The next  day,  we are  no t  go ing  to  appo in t  you 

but  we were  to ld  a t  Mu jant i  House  in  March,  I  th ink  i t  was 

March/Apr i l  2014 tha t  they were  go ing  to  change the  board  
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a f te r  we re fused  to accept  th is  th ing .   They are  go ing  to  

change the  board  and tha t  he  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  they  

are  go ing  to  b r ing  Mr  Popo Mole fe .    

 Cha i r,  le t  me say and Mr  Son i .   I  knew I  was  

go ing  to  lose  my  job .   I  knew because I  have def ied  ve ry  

power fu l  po l i t i c ians in  the  ANC.   I  w i l l  no t  ment ion  them 

today because I  am wai t ing  fo r  us  to  reach consensus o f  

my a f f idav i t .   I  dea l  w i th  tha t  mat te r  in  g rea t  de ta i l ,  Cha i r.   

So they wanted to  appo in t  the i r  own peop le .   I  sa id  i t  i s  no t  

go ing  to  happen.    10 

 You know,  the  ANC peop le ,  Cha i r,  somet imes the  

ANC – the  ANC is  my par t y  Cha i r.   I  be long to  the  A f r i can  

Nat iona l  Congress.   I  jo ined i t  in  my teenage years  as  a  

s tudent  ac t i v is t  in  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and w i th  a l l  the  th ings  

happen ing  today  I  s t i l l  remain  loya l  to  the  ANC.   But  we 

were  no t  happy -  those who are  f igh t ing  Pres ident  Zuma,  

they are  ex t remely  happy tha t  I  went  to  Par l iament  to  

tes t i f y  be fore  the  Par l iamentary  Inqu i ry  a t  Eskom and I  

have dea l t  w i th  the  Gupta ’s  there .   They were  so  happy  

because th is  th ing  was go ing  to  be  used aga ins t  Zuma.    20 

 No,  I  am happy Cha i r  because I  sa id  i t  i s  no t  

on ly  the  Gupta ’s .   The Gupta ’s  t r ied  to  man ipu la te  our  

p rob lem.   Cha i r,  I  re fused.   I  fought  w i th  them and I  to ld  

them not  in  our  name.   I  to ld  the  Min is te r  o f  Transpor t  a t  

tha t  t ime tha t  no th ing  –  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  happen but  there  
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i s  –  so  i f  the  Gupta ’s  were  the  le f t  s ide ,  the  r igh t -hand s ide  

–  Cha i r,  I  ment ion  them in  a  –  Advocate  Son i ,  you have 

read my a f f idav i t .    

 I  ment ioned a l l  o f  them,  Cha i r,  in  de ta i l  and 

prov ide  the  ev idence.   So they wanted to  do  exact ly  what  

the  Gupta ’s  –  the  Gupta ’s  were  f igh t ing  fo r  cer ta in  th ings.   

They had the  r igh t  to  do  bus iness w i th  us  bu t  when they 

t r ied  i l l ega l  th ings,  they t r ied  to  man ipu la te  the  PRASA,  the  

programme.   I  to ld  them tha t ,  no ,  Min is te r  Dan Mar t ins  

ac tua l l y  sa id  –  he  tes t i f ied  in  Par l iament  the  day a f te r  10 

tes t i f y ing ,  he  sa id :   Lucky,  I  fought  w i th  these guys fo r  

more  than an hour  in  the  meet ing  because I  sa id  you  

cannot  –  money in  our  names in  our  names.   You  cannot  

te l l  peop le  to  go  ou t  o f  the  count ry  tha t  you are  work ing  fo r  

us  and you a re  work ing  fo r  P res ident  Zuma.    

 Tony Gupta  represent  Zuma.   Zuma was the re .   I  

to ld  them:   Guys,  th is  i s  our  Pres ident .   He must  –  we have 

got  a  du ty  to  p ro tec t  h im and i f  you guys go  ou t  o f  the 

count ry  and you  want  money f rom these compan ies  tha t  

came to  work  fo r  the  Pres ident ,  I  am go ing  to  f igh t  aga ins t  20 

tha t  and I  am go ing  to  convey tha t  to  the  Pres iden t .   So I  

d id  tha t  Cha i r.   So i t  i s  de ta i led  in  my s ta tement  inc lud ing  

what  I  sa id  in  Par l iament .   But  they were  happy and sa id ,  

no ,  focus on  the  Gupta ’s .    

 You know,  the  b ig  –  another  ana lys t  sa id  the  
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bu l l - f rogs (?) .   The bu l l - f rogs are  here  Cha i r.   That  i s  why I  

became an enemy and I  knew tha t  they wou ld  f igh t  w i th  us .   

And I  to ld  B ishop(? )  Ken i te (?) .   So when I  to ld  Mr  Pop 

Mole fe  tha t  I  was go ing  to  res ign ,  I  s ta r t  w i th  B ishop 

Ke l lece(? )  because when Min is te r  Prav in  Gordhan gazet ted  

the  PRASA ro l l ing  s tock  in  2014,  he  d id  no t  want  to  do  tha t  

Cha i r.   I t  was a  b ig  f igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  th ink ,  Mr  Montana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Can I  jus t  make th is  las t  po in t  qu i ck ly  and  

then I  –  I  am sor ry  Mr  Son i .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Because –  so  the  po in t  I  am mak ing  is  

tha t  I  knew a t  tha t  t ime when he had to  s ign ,  even  aga ins t  

h is  w i l l ,  tha t  p roper  p rocurement  p rocess,  he  d id  no t  want  

to  s ign  i t .   And I  s tood up fought  Cha i r.   When i t  go t  s igned  

and gazet ted ,  I  ce leb ra ted  and I  sa id  Shange(?) ,  to  S f iso  

Buthe lez i :   Shange,  we have done th is  and no one can  

reverse  the  fac t  tha t  our  peop le  in  the  next  40-years  w i l l  

have decent  t ra ins ,  s im i la r  equ iva len t  to  the  Gaut ra in  and  

even probab ly  be t te r  than the  Gaut ra in  in  some ins tances.    20 

 But  th is  i s  go ing  to  come a t  a  h igh  pr ice  and tha t  

I  am go ing  to  leave PRASA.   They pe rsuaded me to s tay.   

So when Popo Mole fe  came –  one o f  the  t r ips(?)  was in  

January  a t  the  InnoTrans i n  2016.   No,  sor ry  in  2014.   So  

he came in  August .   The InnoTrans,  wh ich  is  the  b iggest  
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exh ib i t ion  in  ra i lways where  ra i lway  leaders ,  

manufac ture rs ,  f inanc ia l s  come every  two years  in  Ber l in .    

 So  we are  the re .   And I  sa id  to  h im what  the  

Gupta ’s  w i th  t ry ing  to  do  and what  they d id  and I  have a l so  

ind ica ted  to  h im tha t :   Look,  I  want  to  s tep  down.   Because  

I  knew Pop Mole fe  came to  the  board ,  Cha i r,  p rec i se l y  

because the  then  Min is te r  o f  Transpor t ,  okay,  was unhappy 

w i th  the  fac t  tha t  we re fused to  fo l low ins t ruc t ions.   The  

Min is te r  o f  Transpor t ,  I  thought ,  Ms D ipuo Pete rs  wou ld  

have to ld  th is  Commiss ion  why they appo in ted  Pop Mole fe .   10 

I t  i s  in  my a f f idav i t .    

 Why they appo in ted  Pop Mole fe  in to  the  Board  o f  

PRASA because  Popo Mole fe  was never  nominated by  

anyone.   Soto  Manase was never  nominated by  anyone.   

Wi l lem Steenkamp was  nominated  but  they were  i n to  the  

board  o f  PRASA to execute  a  mandate .   But  Cha i r,  I  

became d isc ip l ined to  work  w i th  them.    

 So Mr  Son i ,  I  am s imply  say ing .   We shou ld  no t  –  

we shou ld  be  ca re fu l  tha t  these th ings are  no t  man ipu la ted .   

The 20014 f inanc ia ls  i s  R 100 mi l l ion .   The 2014/2015 o f  20 

the  ’15  year  i s  –  bu t  does th is  suppor t  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

a f f idav i t?   Because he is  ta lk ing  about  when there  was a  

de lay  and then there  i s  a  new board  had to  dea l  w i th  the  –  

approve the  f inanc ia l s  fo r  a  per iod  tha t  there  were  no t  

board  members ,  Cha i r,  wh ich  2014/2015.   The de lay  was  
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caused by  account ing  t rea tment .    

 R  500 mi l l ion  comes w i th  the  2015 F inanc ia l  

Year  and i t  i s  based on gross  m isrepresenta t i on  and 

ho ld ing  back cr i t i ca l  in fo rmat ion  o f  2014/2015 so  tha t  we  

can increase the  10% of  tha t  amount .   The h igher  i r regu lar  

expend i tu re ,  the  h igher  the  10% -  the  va lue  o f  10% for  tha t  

share ,  Cha i r,  and  I  w i l l  e labora te  on  tha t .   Sor ry,  Mr  Son i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana you know,  I  am the  

ev idence leader  the  Cha i rpe rson obv ious l y  ru les  what  10 

happened.   You know we have got  a  lo t  to  go  th rough,  th is  

i s  what  I  am go ing  to  suggest  and  I  rea l l y  do  no t  want  you 

to  I  m isunders tand.    

I  want  to  go  th rough them,  I  sa id  to  you the  process  

I  was us ing .   Every th ing  you have sa id  i s  re levant  and I  am 

not  tak ing  tha t  away.   Le t  us  pu t  in  the  r i gh t  p lace  because 

there  is  another  i ssue.    

As  we were  ta lk ing  I  was jus t  th ink ing ,  how does the  

Cha i rperson,  when he i s  wr i t ing  h i s  repor t ,  pu t  the  var ious 

par t s  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  in  a  log ica l  way because they are  20 

a l l  ove r  the  p lace ,  i f  you  know wha t  I  mean.  

MR MONTANA:    Sure ,  sure .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  i f  we cou ld  jus t  be  d isc ip l ined 

about  tha t ,  you can say …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    I  w i l l  coopera te  w i th  you ,  Cha i r,  
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somet imes I  ge t  –  because I  happen to  connect  so  many o f  

the  do ts  and I  pu t  i t  togethe r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So  fee l  f ree  a l so  to  say no ,  le t  us  park  

tha t  and le t  us  dea l  w i th  what  i s  be fore  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  long as  we are  on  the  same page.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   A lso ,  when  you are  done,  when Mr  

Son i  i s  done,  i f  there  i s  anyth ing  tha t  you th ink  he  d id  no t  

touch on wh ich  you th ink  i s  impor tan t ,  I  w i l l  g ive  you a  10 

chance to  dea l  w i th  those.   So you  can makes notes  as  we 

go a long o f  th ings tha t  you do not  want  to  fo rge t .  

MR MONTANA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rpe rson .   Then 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  can I ,  w i thout  in te r rup t ing  you,  

can we jus t  conf i rm,  Cha i r,  on  what  bas is  you are  leav ing  

th is  th ing  because I  was t ry ing  to  c la r i f y  the  2014/2015  

f inanc ia l  year.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  I  unders tand.  

MR MONTANA:    They are  no t  one and the  –  so  th is  th ing  

tha t  Mr  –  ev idence on the  annua l  f inanc ia l  –  aud i ted  

f inanc ia l  s ta tements ,  they are  speak ing  ac tua l l y  to  a 

d i f fe ren t  mat te r  t o  what  Mr  Mole fe  i s  ra is ing .   That  i s  what  
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I  am say ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  pu t  i t  th is  way,  cer ta in ly  f rom my 

s ide  I  hear  what  you say.   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  la te r  on  when 

I  look  a t  i t ,  I  m igh t  need more  c la r i f i ca t ion  bu t  I  have heard  

what  you say and  Mr  Son i ,  i f  he  needs c la r i f i ca t ion ,  he  w i l l  

ask .   I f  he  la te r  on  th inks  he  needs  c la r i f i ca t ion  you can be 

approached to  p rov ide  c la r i f i ca t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  the  c la r i f i ca t ion  tha t  I  

want  now is  th is .   You have seen PM2 wh ich  says there  

was tha t  i r regu la r  expend i tu re  -  we have been to  page 38.   10 

Now as you were  ta lk ing  I  unders tood you to  say bu t  tha t  i s  

based on fa l se  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was presented  to  the  

in te rna l  aud i to rs ,  i s  tha t  you r  po in t  as  we l l?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  am say ing  tha t  when the  

f inanc ia ls  were  f ina l i sed I  was –  when I  le f t ,  there  was no  

500 on the  tab le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  I  unders tand.  

MR MONTANA:    So  there  was no 500 on the  tab le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  wanted  to  c la r i f y.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  you say tha t  tha t  i s  fa lse .  

MR MONTANA:    I  am say ing  tha t  i f  you  look a t  

2015/2016/2017  f inanc ia l  yea r,  ac tua l l y  the  PRASA 

s ta tements ,  par l i ament  aud i t  s tand ing  commi t tee ,  shou ld  

no t  have accepted those f inanc ia ls .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  bu t  we  have been th rough tha t ,  

I  do  no t  want  you  to .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  ja ,  I  am conf i rm ing tha t ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sure .   Then a t  paragraph 17 he says 

tha t  as ide  f rom tha t  cha l lenge abou t  the  aud i t ,  he  says tha t  

there  was a  concern  tha t  employees were  regu lar ly  

suspended or  d ismissed o f ten  in  v io la t ion  o f  the i r  

const i tu t iona l l y  guaranteed labour  r igh ts  and he says the  

CCMA reversed many o f  the  dec is ions to  d ismiss  them.   Do  

you agree w i th  tha t?  10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  sha re  th is .   Mr  

Mole fe  was not  a t  PRASA when  these execut ives  were  

f i red ,  the  on ly  peop le  tha t  were  e i ther  d ismissed – there  

were  two peop le  tha t  were  d ismissed and I  th ink  tha t  bo th  

who tes t i f ied  be fore  you,  Cha i r,  Mrs  Mar tha  Ngoy i  we l l  as  

Mr  Fan i  D ing i swayo.    

Now we can see tha t  –  you know,  we are  m ix ing  up  

issues here ,  the  NTM i ssue –  I  am the  Group CEO,  Cha i r,  I  

employ  w i th  the  approva l  o f  the  board ,  I  appo in t  CEOs o f  

the  PRASA d iv is ions and subs id ia r ies ,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t ,  Mr  Montana,  I  am so r ry,  I  am 

go ing  to  have to  l im i t  you to  answer  th is  i ssue.   He is  

ta lk ing  about  employees,  no t  Cha i rpersons o f  boards and  

so  on .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  hear  me,  Mr  Son i ,  I  hear  
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what  you a re  say ing .   I  am say ing  he  is  say ing  here  peop le  

who were  reversed CCMA on one  occas ion  more  than 500  

members  o f  the  Nat iona l  Transpor t  Movement ,  NTM,  were  

d ismissed on ly  t o  be  la te r  re ins ta ted  by  the  Labour  Cour t  

whethe r  o r  no t  he  was u l t imate  dec i s ion-maker,  the  CEO 

had to  take  u l t imate  respons ib i l i t y.   Cha i r  rea l l y.   Rea l ly,  

Cha i rperson.    

And th is  –  and when I  say  subs id ia ry,  I  am no t  

ta lk ing  about  Cha i rpersons,  I  am ta lk ing  about  CEOs so  a l l  

the  group execut i ves  and the  CEOs were  appo in ted  in  fac t  10 

by  the  board .   I  w i l l  recommend to  the  board  appo in t  these  

peop le .    

A person who works  a t  a  s ta t ion  or  a t  the  depot  in  

Braamfonte in  does not  repor t  to  the  group CEO.   You know 

a  person who works  a t  the  depot  i s  a  member  o f  the 

Nat iona l  Transpor t  Movement .   He works  a t  the  depot ,  he  

repor t  to  a  depot  manager  o f  superv i so r,  who  in  tu rn 

repor ts  to  h igher  peop le .    

These peop le  were  no t  d ismissed by  me,  the  reason  

they were  d ismissed,  I  th ink  they  were  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  bu t  20 

fo r  –  I  th ink  tha t  you can see tha t  Mr  Mole fe  i s  t r y ing  to  

s t re tch  th is  po in t  where  he  wants  the  pe rson d ismissed a t  

the  co rner  the re  to  be  a t t r ibu ted  to  me persona l i t y  and you  

can see tha t  he  i s  no t  even sure ,  he  says whether  he  is  the  

u l t imate  dec is ion  bu t  he  must  u l t imate ly  take  respons ib i l i t y.   
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A t  what  po in t  does the  CEO take respons ib i l i t y?    

Cha i r,  i f  I  pu t  cont ro ls ,  I  pu t  sys tems in  p lace  and 

someone v io la te  tha t ,  I  do  no t  take  cont ro l  bu t  i f  a  d r ive r,  a  

t ra in  d r iver  smashes a  t ra in  and an invest iga t ion  says bu t  

the  CEO d id  no t  pu t  in  p lace  the  necessary  cont ro ls ,  th is  

d r iver  sa id  he  crashed the  t ra in  because he cou ld  no t  see 

and they rea l i sed  tha t  he  d id  no t  go  fo r  a  med ica l  check-up 

to  see annua l ly  and tha t  I  d id  no t  pu t  in  p lace  a  sys tem to  

make sure  tha t  t h is  d r iver  goes fo r  tha t .  I  am persona l ly  

respons ib le .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  long and shor t  o f  you r  answer  i s  

tha t  he  is  no t  ta lk ing  he re  about  peop le  tha t  you d i smissed.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  he  is  ta lk ing  about  500  

members .   Where  are  these peop le?   These are  jun io r  

employees in  the  company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    You know,  some o f  them I  have not  seen 

w i th  my own eyes,  how do –  who issued a  l e t te r  o f  

suspens ion  or  d i smissa l  o f  these employees?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  I  th ink  what  the  Cha i rpe rson is  20 

say ing  and I  shou ld  no t  ta lk  fo r  h im but  le t  us  ge t  the  fac t .   

The fac t  i s  the  employees were  d ismissed,  they were  

re ins ta ted  by  the  CCMA.    

You say tha t  i s  no t  a  mat te r  fo r  wh ich  you shou ld  be  

he ld  respons ib le  because those dec is ions  were  taken by  
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o ther  PRASA o f f i c ia ls ,  i s  tha t  your  answer?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  am say ing  probab ly  two or  

th ree  d i f fe ren t  th ings.   The f i rs t  one I  am say ing  here  a re  

jun io r  employees,  Mr  Mole fe  i s  c lu t ch ing  a t  s t raws,  he  does 

not  even know who took the  pos i t ion  bu t  he  says Montana 

must  take  respons ib i l i t y,  Cha i r.   That  i s  wrong.   So  tha t  i s  

the  f i rs t  th ing  I  am say ing .    

 Second ly,  Mr  Mole fe  does not  s ta te  he re ,  Cha i r,  

who was i r regu lar ly  d ismissed o r  suspended.   Okay?   

 Today I  am prepared to  ta lk  about  two peop le ,  he  10 

does not  ment ion  them.   I s  he  re fer r ing  Ms Ngoy i  and Mr  

Fan i  D ing iswayo?   He does not  s ta te  here ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  Mr  Montana,  le t  me he lp  you.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And rea l l y  we must  ge t  on .   I  am 

sor ry,  I  am go ing  to  have to  be  f i rm about  h is .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  reason I  am say ing  tha t  i s ,  i t  

i s  qu i te  c lea r,  we a l l  know tha t  Ms Ngoy i  and Mr  

D ing iswayo were  d ismissed in  2017.   He is  ta lk ing  about  20 

2014 and 2015.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  they were  d i smissed by  me,  Cha i r,  in  

2015.   Ms Mar tha  Ngoy i ,  she is  here ,  Mr  Fan i  D ing iswayo,  

they were  f i red  by me in  2015.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  we l l  he  is  c lear l y  no t  ta lk ing  
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about  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Who is  ta lk ing  about ,  Cha i r,  so  tha t  we 

can be spec i f i c?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  sor ry,  sor ry,  sor ry.   Wel l ,  I  am not  

sure  how impor tan t  th is  a l legat ion  is  o f  the  d ism issa l  o f  

500 members .   In  the  pa r t i cu la r  pa rag raph Mr  Mole fe  does 

not  ment ion  the  year,  as  I  see i t ,  in  the  prev ious 

parag raph,  he  is  ta lk ing  about  the  issue o f  the  500  mi l l ion 

where  he  re fers  to  2015/2016 but  as  I  unders tand i t ,  as  fa r  10 

as  you a re  concerned,  nobody  tha t  –  the  500 members  o f  

Nat iona l  Transpor t  Movement  Trade Un ion ,  you say those –  

the  dec i s ion  to  d i smiss  them wou ld  no t  have been taken by  

you.   That  i s  one o f  the  th ings you say.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  can I  ask  you to  address fo r  

one minute?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja ,  no ,  i t  i s  f ine .  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  th ink  the  S ta te  Captu re  20 

Commiss ion ,  the  workers  tha t  were  d ismissed and the  

count ry  needs to  unders tand what  ac tua l l y  has happened.   

We jus t  spoke about  the  500 mi l l ion ,  tha t  goes to  14  

b i l l i on ,  to  t ry  and present  the  par t i cu la r  p i c tu re .    

Le t  me exp la in  to  you what  happened,  Cha i r.   The 
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NTM members ,  those employees,  they were  d i smissed by  

PRASA,  number  one.   They went  to  cour t ,  to  the  Labour  

Cour t ,  they  los t ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue.    

They los t .   And you know what  happened?  I  was  

s t i l l  there  and fo r  me,  as  Group CEO,  even though I  d id  no t  

par t i c i pa te  in  the  d ismissa l ,  because here  i t  i s  peop le  tha t  

were  on  s t r i ke  ac t ion ,  there  was burn ing  o f  t ra ins  and 

every th ing .   I  had  to  show the  cour t  how much we have los t  

as  a  resu l t  o f  th is  un lawfu l  s t r i ke  where  assets  were  

dest royed.    PRASA one the  case,  Mr  Son i .    10 

 What  happened thereaf te r  i s  tha t  15  Ju l y  came,  I  

leave PRASA.   The employee re la t ions  guys,  they ge t  f i red  

a t  PRASA because no,  employee peop le ,  you are  

Montana ’s  peop le .   They get  f i red .   The mat te r  then goes –  

MTN,  w i th in  i t s  r igh ts ,  cor rec t l y  so ,  goes to  the  Labour  

Cour t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Appea ls  the  ear l ie r  dec is ion  o f  the  

Labour  Cour t .  

MR MONTANA:    Appea ls  tha t  dec i s ion  by  the  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  you must  go  and see –  so  they w in  

tha t  appea l  because PRASA,  exact ly  the  po in t  tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  i s  do ing ,  they do  not  then defend th is  mat te r  

p roper ly,  they ac tua l l y  co l lude w i th  the  MTN peop le ,  

PRASA loses.    
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You know what  the  cost  o f  th is  cour t  judgment ,  

Cha i r?   A b i l l i on  rand fo r  PRASA to  re ins ta te  these peop le .   

I t  i s  a  b i l l i on  rand wh ich  i t  does not  have in  i t s  opera t iona l  

budget .    

So,  Cha i r,  here  is  someone who  is  dest roy ing  an  

ent i t y,  okay?  He is  man ipu la t ing  the  S ta te  Capture  

Commiss ion  tha t  peop le  are  be ing  d i smissed and  

every th ing .    

He does not  wr i te  here  tha t  i f  we hand led  th i s  i ssue 

–  in  fac t ,  when I  rea l i sed tha t  PRASA i s  go ing  to  be  in  10 

t roub le ,  I  then pu t  a  tweet  -  and th is  w i l l  be  my f ina l  po in t ,  

Mr  Son i  –  I  pu t  a  tweet ,  I  say  i f  I  was s t i l l  CEO of  PRASA 

before  the  mat te r  –  because I  was  rea l i s ing  I  had in te l  on  

what  i s  happen ing  on th i s  mat te r,  I  say  i f  was PRASA,  ca l l  

back these peop le ,  re ins ta te  them,  renegot ia te  the  t ime so  

tha t  we have w in -w in  s i tua t ion  and peop le  say no ,  l i ke  he  

wants  to  ru le  f rom the  grave.    

I t  went  to  the  cour t .   PRASA fa i led  to  do  i t s  work .   

They cou ld  no t  even exp la in  to  the  cour t  tha t  each  o f  these  

employees tha t  were  pa r t  o f  the  500,  the  cour t  was  say ing  20 

we do not  want  a  common purpose approach where  you say  

there  was a  s t r i ke  so  i f  the  t ra in  was burn t ,  a l l  500 are  

respons ib le .    

But  PRASA d id  no t  do  i t s  p roper  work ,  Cha i r,  

mak ing  sure  tha t  i t  fo l lowed those procedures,  the  impact  
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i s  tha t  i t  has  go t  these employees who have been  

re ins ta ted  –  and  unders tand me,  Cha i r,  I  am not  say ing  

they must  no t  be  re ins ta ted ,  bu t  the  cost  to  the  bus iness o f  

p lay ing  po l i t i ca l  games are  exact ly  what  Mr  Mole fe  has  

done as  he  done w i th  the  i r regu lar  expend i tu re ,  500,  14  

b i l l i on  and then,  Cha i r,  you were  ask ing  a  month  ago,  how 

does i t  come to  R20 or  R21 b i l l i on?  Prec i se l y  because we  

are  p lay ing  games w i th  ins t i tu t ions  tha t  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  i t  w i l l  

no t  happen when  I  was there ,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  never  agree to  

i t .  10 

 So th is  i s  the  rea l  s to ry,  Cha i r.   So th is  th ing  tha t  

Montana d i smissed peop le ,  peop le  who do not  fo l low my 

ins t ruc t ions,  peop le  who do not  do  the i r  work  or  peop le  

who f ind  tha t  they are  –  because u l t imate ly  I  am charged,  I  

repor t  to  a  board .    

When I  go  to  a  board  and they say Mr  Montana – my  

board ,  peop le  th ink  they are  my f r iends,  they were  tak ing  

me to  task  and  my team had to  ra ise  the i r  s tandards,  

Cha i r,  and make sure  tha t  they de l i ver  and a t  some s tage  

Ms Ngoy i ’s ,  fo r  example ,  document ,  she ta l ks  about  how 20 

she was d ismissed.   I  th ink  a t  the  r igh t  t ime we w i l l  ta lk  

about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    So ,  Cha i r,  I  am say ing  I  do  no t  accept  

th is ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  fa lse ,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  g ross  
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m isrepresenta t ion  by  Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  w i l l  j us t  a le r t  you to  th i s  so  tha t  we 

are  no t  a t  odds,  bu t  tha t  i s  more  or  less  a  f ind ing  made by  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  as  we l l  bu t  we w i l l  come to  tha t  

because I  am go ing  to  g i ve  you an  oppor tun i ty  to  dea l  w i th  

i t .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  no t  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am mere ly  mak ing  the  po in t ,  tha t  i s  

one o f  the  reasons I  ra ised i t .  10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Mr  Son i ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  cor rec t .   

Which  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  repor t?   A re  you re fer r ing  to  

Dera i led?  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Mole fe ,  le t  me  jus t  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    I  wou ld  love  to  be  Mr  Mole fe ,  Mr  Son i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana,  le t  me jus t  say  to  you 

can we p lease make progress?  You are  say ing  you want  to  

ass is t  the  Commiss ion ,  I  have to  ins i s t  tha t  we do th ings in  

a  s t ruc tu red way.   I  am not  s topp ing  you but  I  d id  no t  want  20 

to  leave tha t  po in t  when I  was say ing  to  we a re  go ing  to  

re turn  to  i t .  

MR MONTANA:    A re  we go ing  to  re turn  to  i t ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We wi l l ,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay,  no  I  wanted to  cor rec t  to  the  Cha i r  
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tha t  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We wi l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  then 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    We never  dea l t  w i th  i t ,  yes .   Okay,  i t  i s  

f ine ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then in  pa ragraph 19 he says  tha t  in  

regard  to  the  Braamfonte in  Depo t  modern i sa t ion  pro jec t  

and the  purchase o f  ra i l s  and tu rnouts ,  the  board  be fore  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Son i ,  maybe one o f  the  

th ings tha t  you shou ld  do  f rom your  pa r t  to  fac i l i ta te  what  

you want  to   -  what  you were  ta lk ing  to  Mr  Montana about  

i s  maybe do not  take  too  b ig  a  junk to  pu t  to  h im.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe more  manageab le  po in ts  and le t  

h im respond to  those po in t s .   Maybe i t  i s  go ing  to  be  

be t te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes ,  as  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  in  paragraph 18 he re fe rs  to  two 

tenders ,  the  Braamfonte in  Depot  modern i sa t ion  p ro jec t  and 

the  purchase o f  ra i l s  and tu rnouts .   A re  you aware  o f  those  

two tenders?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  am aware .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then he says tha t  a t  a  meet ing  i t  

was sa id  tha t  those tenders  were  impor tan t  –  I  mean,  sor ry,  

were  urgent .   Do you agree tha t  tha t  i s  what  happened? 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  the  meet ing  o f  the  27  November,  

th is  was a  board  –  yes,  those tenders  were  very  impor tan t ,  

ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  okay.   Then he says tha t  –  in  

parag raph 19 before  the  board  approved o f  tha t ,  tha t  i s  h is  

board  now,  i t  wanted a  prob i ty  repor t  as  an  assurance tha t  

the  re levant  p rocurement  p resc r ip ts  and processes had 10 

been fo l lowed.   I s  tha t  cor rec t  tha t  he  asked fo r  a  repor t?  

MR MONTANA:     A re  you re fe r r ing  to  parag raph 19?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Paragraph 19 .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  the  board  never  requested  fo r  th is  

th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  i t  i s  pay ing  d iv idends,  smal le r  

po in ts .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  can I  –  there  is  a  mater ia l  po in t ,  

Cha i r,  I  am t ry ing  to  ass is t  Mr  Son i .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  you see,  I  do  no t  want  to  us  to  lose  

the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  su re .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  what  has happened here ,  when we  
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embarked,  there  were  two major  p rog rammes,  the  buy ing  o f  

new commuter  t ra ins  and the  depots  because when they  

were  buy ing  new t ra ins ,  the  depots  where  they were  go ing  

to  be  main ta ined,  needs to  be  ready.    

So we had these  major  p rog rammes.   And th is  was 

done under  t imes  tha t  were  sa id  by  the  m in is te r  –  by  the  

Honourab le  Min i s te r  o f  F inance  a t  tha t  t ime,  Min is te r  

Prav in  Gordhan.   

 Now one o f  the  th ings the  board  o f  PRASA,  tha t  is  

be fore  Popo Mole fe ,  under  Mr  S f iso  Buthe lez i ,  was tha t  10 

because these are  b ig  we need to  appo in t  p rob i ty  o f f i cers  

to  make sure  because we were  go ing  to  have a  b ig  f igh t  on  

these issues,  peop le  are  go ing  to  take  us  to  cour t ,  le t  us 

appo in t  a  p rob i ty  o f f i cer  so  tha t  when as  the  board  makes  

dec is ions,  because these are  no t  dec is ions by  the  CEO,  i t  

i s  a  dec i s ion  by  the  board ,  we ge t  an  assurance tha t  the  

process has been  fo l lowed.    

So tha t  was the  s tandard  prac t ice .   They d id  no t  

have to  ask  fo r  tha t .   So i t  s ta r ted  dur ing  Mr  Buthe lez i ’s  

t ime.   I t  was a  major  governance cont ro l  i ssue.  20 

 Now when we come to  th is  spec i f i c  meet ing ,  Cha i r,  

we say tha t  the  repor t  i s  no t  there  and I  am ask ing  to  

answer  i t  in  two ways in  18  and 19 qu ick ly.    

You know,  Cha i r,  here  are  major  ins inuat ions been 

made aga ins t  someone tha t  Mr  S f iso  Buthe lez i  wanted  
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these th ings to  be  approved before  he  leaves.   A t  tha t  t ime 

he was no l onger  the  Cha i r  o f  the  board ,  he  was the  Cha i r  

o f  the  PRASA’s  F inance Cap i ta l  Investmen t  and 

Procurement  Commi t tee  wh ich  bas i ca l l y  be fo re  you go to  

the  board ,  they  are  the  ones who rev iew these th ings 

be fore  they recommend them.  

 18  is  so  fa lse ,  i t  i s  based on i ns inuat ion  where  

ev idence -  Mr  Buthe lez i  never  d id  anyth ing  o f  the  so r t ,  

Cha i r,  he  never  wanted to  push th i s  cont rac t .   In  fac t  these 

mat te rs  were  dea l t  w i th .    10 

Management  came –  not  Lucky Montana ,  

management ,  the  Ch ie f  P rocurement  Off i cer  and the  teams 

to  come and present  these issues tha t  were  there .   So 18 

is  fa lse ,  Cha i r,  th is  asser t ion  i s  fa lse  and i s  ac tua l l y  t ry ing  

to  pu t  a  [ ind i s t inc t ]  Buthe lez i ,  ins inuate  tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i  

had an in te res t  in  th is  th ing  on  the  depot  modern isa t ion  

th ing .    

Th is  depot  i s  impor tan t  p rec ise l y,  Cha i r,  because 

we knew in  2015  we w i l l  ge t  the  f i rs t  t ra in ,  i t  had to  come 

there ,  so  tha t  i s   a  number  –  le t  me answer  number  19  20 

there ,  Cha i r.  

 In  19 ,  the  reason why,  Cha i r,  there  was the  th ing .   

A t  th is  meet ing  no  one was aware  tha t  the  cont rac t  o f  the 

prob i ty  o f f i cer  had ac tua l l y  exp i red ,  Cha i r,  and  i t  was  

ac tua l l y  –  i t  had to  be  renewed,  to  be  ex tended and  i t  was  
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th rough tha t  p rocess.    

I  was s i t t ing  here  when I  heard  Mr  Mole fe  say ing  

tha t  I  p romised them th i s  repor t  and then la te r  i t  was not  

there .    

The meet ings on  th is  Braamfonte in  th ing  was  

ac tua l l y  he ld  when I  was on leave la te r  and the  CEO was a  

Mrs  Ngoy i .   So,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  fa lse ,  I  do  no t  accept  i t ,  i t  i s  

fa lse  and the  reason why the re  was no repor t ,  Cha i r,  and  

the  reason why there  was no repor t ,  Cha i r,  was p rec i se l y  

because myse l f  as  CEO and the  board ,  we d id  no t  even 10 

know tha t  the  prob i ty  o f f i cer ’s  cont rac t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Had exp i red .  

MR MONTANA:    Had exp i red  and  tha t  has no t  a t  tha t  t ime 

been b rought  to  a t ten t ion .   Now th is  th ing  is  be ing  tu rned 

to  say we are  m is lead ing  the  board  and we were  to  te l l  

them tha t  i t  i s  a  repor t .    

Mr  Mole fe  had gone out  to  say there  is  co r rup t ion  in  

th is  i ssue.   In  my  a f f idav i t  and ev idence I  p rov ide  ev idence  

tha t  ac tua l l y  tha t  i s  fa lse ,  Cha i r .   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana,  can I  jus t  summar i se  20 

what  you sa id?   F i r s t l y  you say there  was no prob i t y  repor t  

so  you and Mr  Mole fe  had ag reed w i th  –  bu t  you say he  

never  asked fo r  a  p rob i ty  repor t .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  i t  was a  s tandard  pract ice ,  Cha i r ,  

w i th  a l l  the  modern isa t ion  p ro jec ts  tha t  we were  
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imp lement ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  was the re  a  prob i ty  repor t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  no ,  there  was not  in  th is  

par t i cu la r  meet ing ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  tha t  i s  the  answer  you and h im  

agree on.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  no ,  Cha i r ,  no ,  no ,  Cha i r ,  he  is  

say ing  here  -  the  issue he re ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  tha t  i f  we end i t  

there  we wou ld  be  mak ing  a  ser ious m is take because we 

w i l l  be  m is lead ing  the  Cha i r ,  the  issues …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  hang on,  I  th ink  what  Mr  Son i  i s  

do ing ,  he  m ight  be  coming to  the  po in t  tha t  you want  to  

emphas ise .   He is  tak ing  var ious  par ts  o f  your  po in ts  to  

make sure  tha t  he  has unders tood  them cor rec t ly .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  he  m ight  be  coming to  the  po in t  tha t  

you want  to  emphas ise .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you  p lease,  Cha i r .   So,  Mr 20 

Montana,  le t  me ask you th is .   You have to ld  us  tha t  the  

prob i ty  o f f i cer ’s  cont rac t  had exp i red .   That  i s  cor rec t?   I f  

you cou ld  say yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And I  do  no t  mean i t  w i th  d is respect .  
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MR MONTANA:    I  am sor ry ,  jus t  uncomfor tab le  in  the 

cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now what  I  want  to  ask  is ,  even 

though the  cont rac t  had exp i red  you say there  was a  repor t  

o r  there  was not  a  repor t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  in  th is  meet ing  I  am conf i rm ing  

there  was no repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R igh t .  

MR MONTANA:    And a t  the  meet ing  I  was a lso  no t  aware  10 

the  repor t  –  the  cont rac t  had exp i red ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes ,okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.  So but  the  po in t  then is  tha t  

the  rea l  content ion  be tween you and Mr  Mole fe  i s  he  says  

he  asked you fo r  the  prob i ty  repor t ,  you promised prob i ty  

repor t ,  you a re  say ing  tha t  tha t  i s  fa lse .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  i t  i s  fa lse .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    And,  by  the  way ,  Mr  Son i ,  th is  repor t  i s  

no t  taken to  the  board  by  me.   The  commi t tee  o f  the  board ,  20 

the  peop le  –  because you remember ,  Cha i r ,  we  have a  

de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  o f  100 mi l l ion .    

I f  the  teams do a  tender  and i t  is  100 or  be low i t  

w i l l  be  recommended to  me fo r  approva l .    

I f  the  cont rac t  i s  over  R100 mi l l ion  and here  we are  
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dea l ing  w i th  cont rac t  fa r  above my de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y ,  

the  cont rac t  wou ld  go  th rough the  board  and tha t  w i l l  go  

each subcommi t tee  wh ich  w i l l  look  a t  i t .   So  there  is  a  

repor t  be fore  the  board  f rom th i s  commi t tee ,  Cha i r .   

 So I  am say ing  a t  tha t  t ime mater ia l l y  bo th  the  

board  and I  d id  no t  even know tha t  the  cont rac t  –  there  

was no repor t  and in  the  d iscuss ion ,  dur ing  the  d i scuss ion ,  

Cha i r ,  then the  i ssue comes up but  Mr  Mole fe  d id  no t  ask  

Mr  Montana where  is  the  prob i ty  o f f i cer?   We never  had  

tha t ,  Cha i r .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   So tha t  i s  the  on ly  d i f fe rence 

between you and h im.  

MR MONTANA:    And i t  i s  a  fundamenta l  d i f fe rence .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  I  unders tand tha t ,  he  is  

obv ious ly  t ry ing  to  say tha t  you were  be ing  def ian t  o r  no t  

coopera t ive  or  be ing  d ishonest .   Whatever  i t  i s ,  we know 

what  the  d i f fe rence …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r ,  h is  reason,  Mr  Son i ,  I  

ac tua l l y  captured  in  in te rv iews and these in te rv iews a re  

ava i lab le  to  the  commiss ion ,  he  says th is  R4 b i l l i on  tender  20 

was a  cor rup t  tender  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

ou ts ide  the  Commiss ion .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Now then he says soon a f te r  
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th is  you asked to  be  re leased on leave say ing  tha t  you  

were  su f fe r ing  f rom fa t igue,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  I  went  on  leave and I  po in ted  Ms 

Ngoy i  to  ac t  in  my pos i t ion  and I  had ind ica ted  tha t  look ,  i t  

has  been a  busy year  and I  needed to  take  a  res t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then he says in  the  meant ime the  

board  asked fo r  a  p rob i ty  assessment  o f  the  tender  

p rocesses and he puts  up  the  repor t  as  PM3.   I  wou ld  l i ke  

you to  look  a t  p lease pages 88 and  89.  

MR MONTANA:    Page 18?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  88  and 89.   Remember  we are  

look ing  a t  the  top  r igh t  hand red  numbers .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Th i s  i s  the  repor t  –  and I  jus t  want  to  

look  a t  the  las t  par t  because i t  is  what  concerns you:   I t  

says :  

“Overa l l  management  in  the  board  must  take  a  

dec is ion  to  accep t  o r  re jec t  the  noncompl iance w i th  

the  po l i cy  fo r  the  two a f fec ted  tenders  rev iewed.   

Th is  recommendat ion  has been d iscussed w i th  the  20 

Group CEO and  h is  response and ac t ion  p lan  i s  

re f lec ted  be low. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t  tha t  the  mat te r  was  d iscussed w i th  you? 

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  th is  repor t  was presented –  

was presented to  management  and I  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  a  
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cor rec t  re f lec t ion  o f  what  happened .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  i f  you  look a t  page 89 then i t  

says :  

“Management ’s  response and ac t ion  p lan . ”  

And i t  says :  

“A f te r  due cons idera t ion  o f  the  contents  o f  th is  

repor t  f rom the  i n te rna l  aud i t  consor t ium we a re  o f  

the  v iew tha t  the  two tenders  are  noncompl ian t  and  

w i l l  there fore  be  cance l led . ”  

Was tha t  your  –  was tha t  management ’s  v iew?  10 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  we took  tha t  dec i s ion  on  those  

par t i cu la r  cont rac ts ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then in  the  ac t ion  p lan  i t  is  sa id :  

“We wi l l  des ign  a l te rna t ive  tender  p rocedures to  

acqu i re  the  equ ipment  and the  serv i ces  requ i red .   

Consequence management  w i l l  be  imp lemented  

accord ing ly . ”  

And the  person respons ib le  was yourse l f ,  Mr  Montana,  as  

Group CEO.   I s  tha t  a l l  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  i t  i s  abso lu te ly  co r rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then le t  us  look a t  what  we  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    A re  we s t i l l  on  th is  po in t?   A re  we mov ing  

f rom th is  po in t?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  we mov ing  f rom i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Can I  make a  qu ick  po in t ,  Cha i r?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  no  o f  course .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  you see –  and tha t  i s  why –  you 

know,  the  way th is  ev idence comes here  is  equa l ly  very  

impor tan t .    

My annexures,  Mr  Son i ,  to  th is  mat te r ,  ac tua l l y  I  

p resent  the  in te rac t ion  be tween PRASA and the  what  i s  

ca l led  the  prob i t y  o f f i cers .   Okay?  Inc lud ing  where  some 

o f  the  observa t i ons by  the  p rob i ty  o f f i cers  were  e i ther  10 

inco r rec t  o r  they were  no t  r igh t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  sor ry  to  in te r rup t  you.   I  

unders tood you to  say there  were  no  prob i ty  o f f i cers  a t  the 

t ime,  so  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  unders tand how your  

cor respondence wou ld  be  w i th  nonex is ten t  persons .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  d id  no t  unders tand 

me.   I  sa id  be fo re  Popo Mole fe  even came to  PRASA we 

appo in ted  the  p rob i ty  o f f i ce r  fo r  the  b ig  p ro jec ts  tha t  were  

there .   What  I  sa id  was tha t  when we had th is  spec i f i c  

meet ing  the  prob i ty  o f f i cer ’s  cont rac t  had ac tua l l y  exp i red .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  tha t  i s  the  po in t  I  am mak ing .   And 

there fo re  there  was a l ready a  process under taken to  

ensure  tha t  the  –  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  i t  i s  ex tended  beyond  

tha t  t ime because the  serv ices  were  s t i l l  needed o r  
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requ i red  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

 Now when the  prob i ty  o f f i cers  cont inued w i th  the i r  

work  and in te rac ted ,  Cha i r ,  there  i s  f i ve  o ther  repor t s  on  

th is  very  mat te r  and I  wou ld  want  to  u rge the  Commiss ion  

tha t  do  no t  base th is  th ing  on ly  th is  repor t  because 

ac tua l l y  there  was even areas where  there  was consensus 

between management  and the  prob i ty  o f f i ce rs  on  what  

needs to  be  done,  and by  the  way I  a t tached th is  very  

repor t  Cha i r  and I  quote  –  go  back to  page 88 Mr  Son i ,  I  

quote ,  you know i t  says  the  –  what  do  you ca l l  i t ,  the  10 

prob i ty  o f f i cers  i t  i s  an  overa l l ,  management  a t  the  board  

must  take  a  dec i s ion  to  accept  o r  re jec t  a  non-compl iance  

w i th  a  po l i cy  fo r  the  two a f fec ted  tender  rev iews.  

 Now Cha i r  these  are  pro fess iona ls ,  i f  they  knew 

tha t  th is  tender  i s  cor rup t  they w i l l  never  make tha t  

recommendat ion ,  they w i l l  say  i t  i s  a  cor rup t  tender  fo r  

th roughout  the  documents  tha t  I  have rev iewed a f te r  Mr  

Mole fe  had been  mak ing  asser t ions  o f  cor rup t ion ,  none o f  

the  repor ts ,  Cha i r,  on  Braamfonte in ,  on  –  because non-

compl iance and i r regu lar i t ies  Cha i r,  I  want  to  come back to  20 

tha t ,  i t ’s  no t  cor rup t ion  and here  are  the  aud i to rs  say ing ,  

we are  p ick ing  up  areas o f  non-compl iance.   For  example ,  

one o f  the  -  I  want  to  po in t  the  th ing .   We adv ised tha t  

there  shou ld  be  a  workshop fo r  the  CSFC which  is  a  Cross  

Funct iona l  Sourc ing  Commi t tee  pr io r  to  the  s i t t ing  fo r  
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eva lua t ion  to  ensure  tha t  there  is  gu idance fo r  them around 

the  sourc ing  c r i te r ia  fo r  cons is tency.   So,  they ’ re  

ident i f y ing  an  impor tan t  cont ro l  i ssue to  say  tha t  i f  

members  o f  the  CSFC cannot  go  in  a  p roper  way and  

there ’s  no  cons is tency then there ’s  go ing  to  be  a  prob lem 

wi th  th is  tender.   They are  no t  say ing  there  is  cor rup t ion ,  

then Mr  Mole fe  runs …[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  you must  answer  my  

quest ions,  I ’m  so r ry  Mr  Montana,  bu t  I ’m  not  dea l i ng  w i th  

what  Mr  Mole fe  sa id ,  I ’m  dea l ing  w i th  what  i s  in  th is  10 

a f f idav i t  and tha t ’s  a l l  I ’m  ask ing  you about .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  bu t  in  th is  a f f idav i t…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  what  was the  quest ion  Mr  –  

jus t  remind me,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The quest ion  was,  does he  accept  

what  i s  re f lec ted  a t  pages 88 and 89 o f  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he sa id  he  accepts .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He accepts  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then he says,  a re  we f in ished w i th  20 

th is  po in t  because I  want  to  come back to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  fac t  i s ,  nowhere  in  any o f  

th is  p rocess,  Cha i rperson,  i s  there  any a l lega t ion  o f  

cor rup t ion .   Now I  have l i t t le  –  I  have fu l l  sympathy  fo r  Mr  
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Montana want ing  to  say,  bu t  le t ’s  accept  tha t  even i f  i t  was  

non-compl ian t ,  i t  doesn ’ t  mean i t  was cor rup t  and tha t  must  

be  p laced on record ,  bu t  we can ’ t  go  on  rev is i t ing  

documents  tha t  a re  be fore  us  Cha i rperson,  because i t  w i l l  

be  an  end less  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  bu t  Mr  Montana,  what  was  

the  po in t  you wanted to  add,  jus t  le t  me hear  what  the  

po in t  was?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  we ’ re  m iss ing  each o the r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you  may be,  I  jus t  want  10 

to…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    Le t  me exp la in  Mr  Son i  because  I  don ’ t  

want  us  to  f igh t  about  unnecessary  th ings,  bu t  they are  

very  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    You see,  Mr  Son i  p resents  –  he re ’s  the  

repor t  Cha i r,  he ’s  p resent ing  i t  to  conf i rm what  Mr  Mole fe  

presents  –  s ta tes  in  th is  a f f idav i t ,  so  these are  Annexures,  

they ’ re  no t  Mr  Mole fe ’s .   Now,  i f  you  look a t  th is  pack and  

you look a t  bo th…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Bo th  the  a f f idav i t  as  we l l  as  the  

tes t imony,  so  we  need to  have the  t ranscr ip t  Cha i r,  Mr  

Mole fe  ac tua l l y  –  in  the  t ranscr ip t  he  goes in  much greater  

de ta i l ,  so  i t  i s  no t  ev idence in  a  newspaper  o r  i n  the  med ia ,  
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i t ’s  what  he  sa id  when he f i rs t  tes t i f ied ,  in  Braamfonte in  

there  was cor rup t ion  and every th ing ,  Cha i r…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t ’s  why you then…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  why Cha i r  because you see  in  the  

t ranscr ip t  he  i s  ac tua l l y  suggest ing  in  the  tes t imony here ,  

tha t  there  was wrongdo ing  on the  par t  o f  –  and tha t  i s  why  

the  ins inuat ion  I  dea l t  w i th ,  . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  wanted th is  th ing  

to  be  dea l t  qu ick l y  and leave PRASA and then the  spo i l s  o f  

the  …[ ind is t inc t ]  tha t  f low Cha i r,  and I  cannot  leave tha t  

po in t  because th is  th ing  here ,  Cha i r,  aud i to rs  –  I  mean I  10 

th ink  tha t  I  w i l l  repor t  them to  the  pro fess iona l  body  i f  they  

found cor rup t ion  bu t  they s t i l l  say  i t  i s  the  Board ,  the 

management  tha t  must  dec ide  whether  to  accept  i t .   They  

are  ta lk ing  abou t  a compl iance issue,  no t  a  cor rup t ion  

issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  I  th ink  tha t  i t ’s  a  fa i r  po in t  fo r  Mr  

Montana to  make i f  he  says in  connect ion  w i th  th is  

t ransact ion ,  in  h is  o ra l  ev idence Mr  Mole fe  sa id  th is  was  

cor rup t ion  bu t  when you look a t  the  documents  he  re l ies  on  

they don ’ t  suppor t  the  a l legat ion  o f  cor rup t ion ,  they jus t  20 

say i t ’s  non-compl iance and you can accept ,  Mr  Montana,  

tha t  bo th  Mr  Son i  and I  unders tand the  d i f fe rence between 

someth ing  tha t ’s  i r regu la r  because somet imes i t  i s  i r regu lar  

bu t  there  is  cor rup t ion  bu t  somet imes the re  is  no  co r rup t ion  

i t  i s  jus t  i r regu la r.  
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MR MONTANA:    Indeed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  you can accept  tha t ,  tha t  we accept  

ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes and we must  accept  tha t  Mr  

Montana must  p lace  on reco rd  tha t  what  i s  be fore  us  now,  

there  is  no  suggest ion  o f  cor rup t ion ,  i t  i s  th ings Mr  Mole fe  

ind ica ted  tha t  the re ’s  cor rup t ion ,  he  den ies  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no  and we want  to  hear  what  you 

have to  say about  th is  th ing .   So,  the  on ly  d i f fe rence is  tha t  

we might  jus t  go  in  a  cer ta in  o rder,  bu t  in  the  end where  10 

you fee l  tha t  there  is  a  cer ta in  contex t  tha t  m ight  be  los t ,  

ask  to  make the  po in t  and then i f  we th ink  i t  shou ld  be  

made la te r  we ’ l l  ta lk  bu t  in  the  end you w i l l  ge t  a  fu l l  

oppor tun i ty  to  make the  po in ts  you  want  to  make.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I ’m  smi l ing  because you see ,  in  the  

ANC on the  ground my job  was no t  to  car ry  f i rea rms,  i t  was 

on p ropaganda and a lways say someth ing  tha t  mat te rs  tha t  

mater ia l l y  a f fec ts  the  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    And I  ea r l ie r  on ,  ind ica ted  about  the  MTN 20 

th ing  wh ich  I  sa id  was a  l ie .   Le t  me exp la in  to  you what  

th is  th ing  means ,  Cha i r  so  tha t  th is  Commiss ion  has an  

apprec ia t ion  o f  what  i t  means in  congruence.   Cha i r,  when  

th is  th ing ,  th is  t ender  was cance l led  in  Braamfonte in  the  

Pres ident  went  to  N ige l  in  …[ ind i s t inc t ]  where  we bu i l t  the  
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fac tory,  no t  any  o ther  pe rson,  us  okay.   Th is  modern  

fac tory  to  bu i ld  t ra ins ,  the  t ra ins ,  Mr  Son i ,  they  s ta r t  to  

come in to  the  sys tem.   F ive  years  –  s ix  years  a f te r  I ’d  le f t ,  

Cha i r,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  the  money was there ,  PRASA 

has not  been ab le  to  bu i ld  a  s ing le  depot ,  okay.   Cha i r,  

what  i t  means is  tha t ,  as  t ra ins  are  char te red,  they can ’ t  

even be dep loyed …[ ind is t inc t ]  in  Soweto  o r  Kwamashu or  

in  Khaye l i t sha or  in  Bonteheuwel  i s  ac tua l l y  no t  ab le  to  ge t  

the  benef i t  o f  th is  investment  because these t ra ins  can ’ t  be  

used.   So,  I  th ink  tha t  the  –  when you p lay  po l i t i ca l  games 10 

th is  i s  the  resu l t  o f  what  you have,  Cha i r.   Now here ’s  a  

repor t  tha t  te l l s  us  tha t  i t  was w i th in  –  the  Board  had to  

use i t s  p rerogat ive  to  p roceed or  no t  and i f  he  says tha t  

the  i r regu lar i t y  o r  non-compl iance  is  mater ia l  o r  no t ,  they  

must  make tha t  dec i s ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  f i ve  years  down the  l ine  we have  

invested  over  R50b i l l i on  to  buy new t ra ins  and most  o f  

them come today,  s ix  years  a f te r  I ’ ve  le f t  PRASA,  they 

can ’ t  come in to  the  sys tem because some repor t  i s  20 

e levated above any –  the  requ i rements  o f  the  economy and 

ord inary  peop le  access ing  job  oppor tun i t ies ,  th is  i s  what  

we have [speak ing  in  vernacu lar ] ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Peop le  are  go ing  hungry  tha t ’s  what  I ’m 
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say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  can ’ t  le t  th is  go ,  Cha i rperson,  I  

don ’ t  want  to  –  Mr  Montana the  prob lem on tha t  i ssue,  and  

I  don ’ t  want  to  address i t  in  your  absence.   The prob lem 

about  what  you ’ve  jus t  sa id  now is ,  you,  a t  pages 88 and  

89,  concede tha t  a  tender  must  be  re issued,  must  

be…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .   So tha t  i s  –  you are  par t  

o f  tha t  dec is ion  mak ing  process,  i t  may have been a  wrong 

dec is ion  and you ’ re  en t i t led  to  ra ise  tha t ,  bu t  you can ’ t  10 

ra ise  i t  on  the  bas i s  tha t ,  see,  because o f  my absence – 

because you were  par t  o f  tha t  dec i s ion  mak ing  process.   

I ’m  jus t  pu t t ing  tha t  on  record .  

MR MONTANA:    I  don ’ t  unders tand,  Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  

unders tand th is  po in t  be ing  made.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  I ’ ve  made my 

po in t…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    Not  because I  re jec t  i t ,  I ’m  jus t  say ing ,  I  

can ’ t  fo l low.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  can ’ t  fo l low what  Mr  Son i  i s  say ing  

tha t ’s  what…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  maybe  jus t  repeat  i t  Mr  Son i ,  

because I  wasn ’ t  sure  a lso ,  jus t  repeat  i t?  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  I  unders tand the  mask tha t  you ’ve  

seen,  you sa id  on  account  o f  th is  repor t  we are  los ing  

b i l l i ons  o f  rand,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I ’m  not  say ing  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  okay,  then I  m isunders tood you.  

MR MONTANA:    I ’m  not  say ing  tha t  I ’m  s imp ly  say ing  tha t  

here ’s  a  repor t  wh ich  has go t  a  who le  range o f  o ther  fac t  

and in fo rmat ion  to  i t .   A tender  i s  cance l led ,  Cha i r,  and  

somebody,  o f  course ,  te l l s  the  Commiss ion  about  how 

i r regu la r,  lack  o f  cont ro ls  and  a l l  sor t s  o f  th ings and then 10 

s ix  years  down the  l ine ,  I ’m  not  say ing  –  I  was par t ,  I  was 

there  bu t  when the  Board  took a  dec i s ion  on  the  23 r d  o f  

December  2014,  Cha i r,  Mar tha  Ngoy i  was s i t t ing  in  my 

pos i t ion ,  I  was not  a t  PRASA – I  was not  there  bu t  I ’m  not  

d isowning tha t  pos i t ion .   I  was the  CEO of  PRASA,  and  

you ’ l l  see  in  my s ta tement  and in  my a f f idav i t  tha t  I  say,  I  

come before  th is  Commiss ion  to  take  accountab i l i t y  and I  

take  fu l l  respons ib i l i t i es ,  and Cha i r,  you know th is  th ing ,  I  

happen to  know i t  f rom the  t ip  o f  my hands.   When  

somebody p lays  games,  l i ke  what  i s  happen ing  w i th  th is  20 

a f f idav i t ,  I  know I ’ l l  be  ab le  to  po in t  i t  and,  in  th is  ins tance,  

I ’m  say ing  Cha i r,   I ’m  s t i l l  repeat ing  Mr  Son i ,  Popo  Mole fe  

d idn ’ t  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ,  ac tua l l y  was t r y ing  to  d r ive  i t  

towards a  pa r t i cu la r  d i rec t ion  and I  –  one o f  the  th ings I ’ l l  

be  ab le  to  –  I  shou ld  be  ab le  to  do ,  to  ass is t  the  
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Commiss ion ,  to  ge t  the  two fac ts .   The Cha i rperson w i l l  

assess,  based on what  he  has sa id ,  based on what  has 

been sa id  in  the  ev idence and come to  a  de term inat ion ,  

Cha i r,  I ’ l l  respect  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then,  a t  parag raph 23,  Mr  Mole fe  

says tha t  as  a  resu l t ,  and I  know you ’ve  d isputed the  fac t  

tha t  he  asked fo r  the  prob i ty  repor t  o r  tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i  

t r ied  to  push th is ,  tha t ’s  the  po in t  he  makes a t  paragraph 

21,  bu t  parag raph  23 he says,  10 

“That  he  was o f  the  v iew tha t  there  was too  much 

power  concent ra ted  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  CEO”,  

 You don ’ t  have to  –  I ’m  jus t  p lac ing  tha t  on  record .   

Then he says,  i f  you  look roundabout  four  l ines  or  f i ve 

l ines ,  

“Accord ing ly,  the  Board  w i thd rew f rom Mr  Montana ,  

Cha i rpersonsh ip  o f  the  subs id ia r i es  and appo in ted 

Cha i rperson ’s  f rom wi th in  respect i ve  subs id ia r ies  to  

lead them” ,  

 D id  tha t  happen?  20 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  when I  le f t  PRASA I  was s t i l l  the 

Cha i r  o f  the  …[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Don ’ t  speak too  fa r  away f rom the  m ic .  

MR MONTANA:    I ’m  sor ry  Cha i r,  I ’m  say ing  when I  le f t  

PRASA I  was the  Cha i r  o f  the  two subs id ia r ies ,  Group 
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CEO,  the re ’s  a  good reason fo r  t ha t  Cha i r.  So,  th is  i s  the  

v iew tha t  Popo Mole fe  i s  advanc ing .   I  want  to  ask  Mr  Son i ,  

you know,  23 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Paragraph 23.  

MR MONTANA:    Paragraph 23 Cha i r,  I  want  to  make two  

po in ts .   I s  th is  fundamenta l  to  the  co l lapse o f  PRASA today  

and I  want  the  Cha i r  to  have an apprec ia t ion  o f  tha t .   

Cha i r,  every  year,  when I  s ta r ted  a t  PRASA,  a t  SRCC 

before  we fo rmed PRASA,  my de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  was 10 

R20mi l l ion .   When –  la te r  on  the  Board  had increased the  

de legat ion  to  R50mi l l ion  and i t  went  to  R100mi l l ion .   Every  

year,  as  a  requ i rement  Cha i r,  we are  assessed both  on  the  

issues o f  mater ia l i t y ’s  and s ign i f i can t  f ramework  o f  the 

bus iness,  the  leve l  o f  spend ing  and the  leve l  o f  investment  

so  tha t  you don ’ t  want  the  s i tua t ion  where  the  Board  comes 

everyday to  the  company because Management  i s  no t  ab le  

to  make dec i s ions.   So,  i f  you  look a t  the  R100mi l l ion ,  

Cha i r,  a t  tha t  t ime was appropr ia te  fo r  PRASA and th is  was  

approved by  the  Board ,  was rev iewed annua l l y  as  i t  were .  20 

Now,  there  are  two l ies  Cha i r,  tha t  a re  be ing  to ld  in  th is  

th ing .  Mr  Montana was a  one-man-show,  he ’s  no t  us ing  so  

many words,  he  d idn ’ t  consu l t .   Cha i r  I  th ink  the  Commi t tee  

shou ld  summon the  minutes  o f  the  PRASA Exco,  the  leve l  

o f  debate  and d i scuss ion  and you know,  Cha i r,  when the  
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Board  de legate  R100mi l l ion  to  me,  in  tu rn  I  had to  de legate  

R25mi l l ion  to  t he  CEO’s ,  R10mi l l ion  to  the  Group 

Execut ives .   So,  i f  we ta lk  about  PRASA,  anyth ing  be low 

R25mi l l ion  I  d idn ’ t  see Cha i r.   Anyth ing  above R100mi l l ion  

went  to  the  Board .  Now,  le t  me te l l  you  a  s to ry,  

Cha i r…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry,  Mr  Montana,  I  don ’ t  know 

whethe r  i t ’s  you or  me.   I  though t ,  much ea r l ie r  you sa id  

your  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  was R100mi l l ion?  

MR MONTANA:    R100mi l l ion  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay –  oh  i t ’s  jus t  an  example  when you  

made –  ta lk  abou t  R100mi l l ion  and  R25mi l l ion ,  you ’ve  been 

ta lk ing…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  may have made a  

m is take I ’m  re fer r ing  to  R100mi l l ion ,  i t  s t i l l  remained 

R100mi l l ion  when I  le f t  bu t  I ’m  s imp ly  say ing  tha t  

de legat ions o f  au thor i t y  a re  no t  numbers  tha t  a re  thumb 

sucked they are  made because you want  opera t iona l  

e f f i c iency,  you want  dec is ion  mak ing  but  s t i l l  the  Board  

can ’ t  abd ica te  i t s  respons ib i l i t i es .   That  i s  why,  even i f  a  20 

cont rac t  i s  R5mi l l ion  they p i ck  up  tha t  i t  i s  a  p rob lem,  the  

Board  says,  CEO not  even in  your  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  

bu t  in  the  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  down the re  someth ing  

wrong is  happen ing .   So,  de legat ion  doesn ’ t  mean 

abd ica t ion ,  Cha i r,  i t ’s  very  impor tan t .   Second ly,  I ’m  say ing  
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Cha i r  tha t ,  I  wanted to  te l l  you  a  s to ry  how th i s  i ssue,  what  

Popo Mole fe  and  them d id  a t  PRASA because o f  th is  th ing  

in  23  and i t ’s  par t  o f  the  Annexures I ’ ve  submi t ted .   One o f  

the  th ings tha t  i s  v i ta l  to  runn ing  t ra ins  i s  i ssues o f  

ma in tenance and ava i lab i l i t y  o f  components .   Ma in tenance,  

very  v i ta l  fo r  ra i lways,  Cha i r  wha t  happens tha t  because  

there  is  th is  –  th is  Montana is  power fu l  the  Board  comes 

and cu ts  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  to  the  CEO but  

because they want  to  cont ro l ,  a lso ,  what  ge ts  approved in  

the  bus iness,  they then te rm inate  the  de legat ion  o f  10 

au thor i t y  to  peop le  who run  t ra ins  on  the  ground.   I  never  –  

I  he ld  peop le  accountab le ,  Mr  Son i ,  bu t  I  w i l l  no t  go  there  

and say,  you are  buy ing  th is  component ,  tha t  de legat ion  

must  be  g iven so  tha t  we can ho ld  peop le  accountab le .   

There ’s  a  repor t  o f  PRASA peop le ,  wh ich  is  pa r t  o f  my  

a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r,  i t  ac tua l l y  shows tha t  the  reason why the  

number  o f  ava i lab le  t ra ins  tha t  co l lapsed in  the  count ry,  i s  

because peop le  in  the  depots  are  no t  ac tua l l y  ab le  to  buy 

even the  smal les t  spares because  eve ry th ing  is  approved  

a t  the  head o f f i ce .   So,  i t ’s  inappropr ia te ,  he re ’s  a  20 

Cha i rman who comes and te l l s  th i s  Board  –  so  i t  te l l s  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  you know,  R100mi l l ion  Cha i r,  in  the  

contex t  o f  a  company tha t  must  spend R15b i l l i on  on  cap i ta l  

a  year  i s  a  very  smal l  amount  o f  money but  i f  you  look a t  

how they ’ve  dest royed PRASA because o f  th is  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 113 of 335 
 

i r respons ib le  th ing ,  wh ich  is  no t  hav ing  any sc ien t i f i c  or  

management  bas i s  you want  your  peop le ,  so  tha t  when a  

t ra in ,  par t i cu la r ly  an  o ld  sys tem l i ke  Met rora i l .   Cha i r,  

peop le  come f rom overseas to  ask  me,  hey man,  th is  th ing  

is  o ld  bu t  how do  you keep i t  runn ing   okay because I  had 

to  make sure  tha t  a t  leas t ,  ou t  o f  100 t ra ins  85  o f  those  

t ra ins  run  and my peop le  i f  they  don ’ t  do  the i r  work  a t  the  

depots ,  they ’ ve  go t  de legat ions to  ge t  the  r igh t  components  

and every th ing .   Popo Mole fe  comes,  sc raps th is  th ing  and 

what  you have is  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  count ry  today,  Cha i r  10 

today,  the  count ry  can ’ t  run  70% of  the  t ra ins  tha t  I  ran ,  

okay.   I  ran  the  number  o f  t ra ins ,  he ld  peop le  accountab le ,  

Cha i r,  I  th ink  maybe I  shou ld  request  one day  fo r  you and  

Mr  Son i  du r ing  l uncht ime,  le t ’s  go  to  Park  S ta t ion  and you 

see the  d isas te r,  in  th ree  years ,  what  i t  took  us  to  bu i ld  in  

10  years ,  the  Board  o f  Popo Mole fe  dest royed in  less  than  

th ree  years  Cha i r  and they are  no t  he ld  accountab le .   Le t  

me make th is  f ina l  po in t ,  Mr  Trevor  Manua l  was here  Cha i r,  

when he tes t i f ied ,  I  th ink  i t  was September  2018,  he  made 

a  ve ry  pro found po in t ,  he  sa id  –  and I  th ink  he ’s  one  o f  the  20 

reasons why I  ag reed to  te l l  you ,  he  sa id ,  Cha i r,  i t ’s  very  

impor tan t  tha t  we go back and look a t  what  happened a t  

tha t  t ime.   You see now peop le  say,  S ta te  Capture ,  

cor rup t ion  and then you get  con fused.   Le t ’s  ge t  to  the  

de ta i l ,  why were  t ra ins  runn ing  a t  84 /85% when Montana  
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was there .   Why  today,  we can ’ t  even run  t ra ins  a t  20%,  

because they came and b reak th is  th ing  in  the  name o f  

f igh t ing  S ta te  Capture  and co r rup t ion .   I t ’s  wrong  Cha i r,  

le t ’s  tu rn  th i s  th ing ,  my s ta tement  today,  i s  an  asser t ion  I ’m 

cha l leng ing  th is  fa lse  no t ion  because I  th ink  we ’ re  go ing  to  

dest roy  the  count ry  and I  see i t  happen ing  w i th  o the r  S ta te  

owned –  so  th is  23 ,  i f  th is  Commiss ion  were  to  accept  23 ,  

Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  th is  count ry  i s  go ing  to  go  to  the  dogs,  

excuse my French Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,   I  th ink  we are  a t  th ree  minutes  10 

past  one,  I  th ink  we shou ld  take  the  lunch ad journment ,  o r  

d id  you have a  quest ion  tha t  you wanted to  ask?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  wanted to  f in ish  th is ,  Mr  –  in  

parag raph 23 a l l  tha t  was sa id  was,  tha t  he  had removed,  

f rom you,  the  Cha i rpersonsh ips  o f  the  subs id ia r ies ,  you are  

say ing  tha t  tha t ’s  fa lse?  

MR MONTANA:    No Cha i r,  I  know tha t  they were  

d iscuss ing  the…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I ’m  jus t  ask ing ,  was i t  fa lse?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  want  to  use the 20 

word ,  fa lse .   Cha i r,  the  Board  o f  Popo Mole fe  had  sa id ,  in  

l ine  w i th  what  they a re  say ing  he re  tha t  in  the i r  v iew,  the  

Group CEO Cha i r ing  subs id ia r ies ,  okay bu t  I  th ink  by  the  

t ime I  le f t  PRASA they haven ’ t  a f fec ted  tha t  par t i cu la r  

dec is ion  and Cha i r  i t ’s  an  op in ion  tha t  he  has  bu t  I  
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th ink…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  jus t  a t  a  fac tua l  leve l ,  I  th ink  

tha t ’s  what  Mr  Son i ’s  ask ing  fo r.   When they say they 

w i thdrew your  Cha i rpersonsh ip  o f  the  subs id ia r ies ,  i s  tha t  

t rue?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  when I  le f t  PRASA I  was 

s t i l l  cha i r ing  the  Board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  Auto  Packs and In te r  S i te  as  i t  

were  ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  they –  bu t  a t  tha t  t ime were  you  

Cha i r ing  the  same number  o f  Boards o f  subs id ia r ies  as  you 

had been Cha i r ing  when they –  when Mr  Mole fe ’s  Board  

came or  had the  number  reduced? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  there  are  two subs id ia r ies  a t  

PRASA,  the  o thers  are  d iv is ions ins ide  the  Board ,  so ,  I  was 

Cha i r ing  these two and there ’s  a  par t i cu la r  reasons 

why…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  never  changed unt i l  be fore  

you le f t ,  tha t  d id  no t  change? 20 

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  I ’m say ing  Cha i r,  I ’m say ing  tha t  the  

Board  o f  Popo Mole fe ,  in  the i r  d iscuss ions,  I  accept  tha t  

po in t ,  they ’ve  ra i sed the  i ssue o f ,  i f  the  CEO – tha t  i s  why I  

say,  in  the  Board ’s  v iew tha t  d id  no t  make –  tha t  d id  no t  go  

we l l  fo r  good corpora te  governance.  The Board  o f  PRASA,  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 116 of 335 
 

under  Popo Mole fe  had tha t  d iscuss ion  and I ’m aware  o f  

tha t  d iscuss ion…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  in  te rms o f  ac tua l l y  w i thdrawing 

or…[ in te rvenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  i t  was never  w i thdrawing Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  d id  no t  happen?  

MR MONTANA:    I  was never  w i thd rawn Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA:    May in  someone ’s  imag ina t ion  bu t  when I  

le f t  PRASA I  was –  I  le f t  PRASA I  was the  Cha i r  o f  the  two 10 

subs id ia r ies ,  Cha i r…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and I  guess there  w i l l  be  m inutes  o f  

Board  meet ings…[ in tervenes] .  

MR MONTANA:    There ’ l l  be  m inutes ,  exact ly  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  I ’m  say ing  th is  po in t  a t  the  

b igger  leve l ,  I ’m  say ing  th is  asse r t ion  as  we l l  i t ’s  so  wrong 

Cha i r.   I f  you  want  to  run  PRASA wi thout  runn ing  i t s  rea l  

es ta te  l i ke  many  ra i lway compan ies  a re  do ing  then you ’ re  

go ing  to  dest roy  th is  company,  Cha i r,  and tha t ’s  what  we 20 

see.   You need to  a l ign  what  you have proper ty  –  you need 

to  ensure  tha t  your  p roper ty  d i v is ion  or  the  p roper ty  

por t fo l io  rea l l y  suppor ts  th i s  bus iness.   Th is  was a  

dest ruc t ion  o f  va lue ,  so  i t  sounds good,  good co rpo ra te  

governance but  in  bus iness in  rea l  te rms congruent ly  i t  
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ac tua l l y  has a ,  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  a  –  I  d idn ’ t  want  to  –  the  

oppos i te  e f fec t .  Whether  i t  was in tended or  no t ,  i t ’s  

someth ing  e l se  Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  want  to  debate  tha t  bu t  I ’m  

say ing  tha t  I  don ’ t  even ag ree w i th  tha t  v iew but  yes ,  Mr  

Mole fe  i s  r igh t  tha t  h is  Board  d id  say,  we do not  th ink  tha t ,  

mov ing  fo rward  we want  to  have a  s i tua t ion  where  the  

Group CEO a lso  Cha i rs  subs id ia ry  Boards and  maybe 

tha t ’s  what  made peop le  say tha t  he  th inks  I ’m  a  very  

power fu l  man.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  you are  say ing ,  the  Board  d id  have  10 

such a  d iscuss ion  and took tha t  v iew but  wh i le  you were  

there ,  they d id  no t  imp lement  tha t  dec is ion .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r  i t  was not  imp lemented.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  th ink  we must  take  the  

lunch ad journment ,  we are  a t  s ix  m inutes  past  one,  le t  us  

resume a t  ten  past  two.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:  Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   As you please Chai rperson.   Mr 

Montana we had stopped at  paragraph 23 can I  just  ask you 

to look very br ief ly at  paragraph 24 where Mr Molefe says he 
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became aware that  the Publ ic Protector had released an 

inter im report  and he came – became aware of  i t  through the 

press.   Now just  to ask a couple of  quest ions around that  

issue.  

 When d id you f i rst  become aware of  the Publ ic  

Protector ’s inter im report? 

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink the report  could have been shared 

wi th us in May 2014.  Ja I  th ink around that  t ime – Apri l  –  

May i f  I  am – I  cannot recal l  the exact  date.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now the point  that  Mr Molefe makes in 10 

the last  paragraph of  24 that  the board had not  been aware 

of  th is,  is that  correct  or had you informed them? 

MR MONTANA:   No Chair  I  th ink the previous board was 

ful ly aware and mandated me Chai r  to deal  wi th th is  matter 

and PRASA had actual ly responded in a number of  occasions 

– in a number of  – there has been lots of  correspondence 

within PRASA and the Publ ic Protector and – but  also I  can – 

let  me indicate that  th is is also not  correct .   Mr Molefe I  do 

not  know when he read the newspapers but  he was informed 

by me.  I  actual ly  shared a copy of  the – of  the report  wi th 20 

him.  In fact  later  on I  deal  wi th the – wi th issues – the f ights 

between mysel f  and Mr Molefe relates to  th is  part icular 

matter.    

 So I  actual ly 00:02:09 in the what you cal l  the 

provincial  report  o f  the part icular 00:02:16.  
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ADV VAS SONI SC:   He comes to that  in a moment.   Let  us 

deal  wi th that  because I  th ink that  is deal t  wi th in the – in 

the next  paragraph at  paragraph 25 he says:  

“ In March 2015 I  asked Montana – Mr 

Montana i f  he had received the PP report . ”  

Is that  about  the t ime you …? 

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  th ink that  – that  happened there 

is no in March 2015.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja March I  th ink – Chai r  I  th ink he may 10 

actual ly be – Mr Molefe may be r ight  in terms of  the date ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Ja.   Then he says that :  

“We need not  deal  wi th that  because that  is a 

personal  matter. ”  

He says i t  looked l ike there was a b i t  of  mist rust  between the 

two of  you that  is his impression and I  do not  need you to 

comment on i t  unless you want to.   Then he says:  

“He then said that  the Publ ic Protector had 

issued an inter im report  and had posed 

several  quest ions that  needed to be 20 

responded to. ”  

Is that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  the – the invest igat ion by the Publ ic 

Protector dates back to 2012.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:   And you see in 2012/2013/2014/2015 there 

has been a lot  of  exchanges we had – we had al ready 

responded to – to  al l  the issues.  We had submit ted even lots 

of  f i les of  tenders,  contracts to the Publ ic  Protector  to have 

a – to have a review of  those.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay so I  am – okay so I  know because 

I  have read the Publ ic Protector ’s  report  the quest ion I  am 

asking is did  you tel l  h im that  the Publ ic Protector had posed 

quest ions which you had answered? 

MR MONTANA:   No Chai r  I  th ink – I  th ink that  we understand 10 

these quest ions.  When the Publ ic Protector wri tes a report  

one of  the things he then descr ibe – def ine or descr ibe the 

matter in detai l  and he depose in quest ions in deta i l  so – 

so… 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Sorry I  do not  want to stop you I  th ink 

you misunderstanding my quest ion.  

MR MONTANA:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Mr Molefe is saying that  you told him 

that  the Publ ic Protector had posed quest ions which were 

being responded to that  is al l  I  am asking.   Did you tel l  Mr 20 

Molefe that? 

MR MONTANA:   You know Chai r  I  br iefed him about th is  

matter because i t  dates back to 2012.   When the new board 

came… 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   No,  no I  am saying.  
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MR MONTANA:   I  br iefed him about th is part icular issue yes.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Oh and then he says he raised this  

issue just  before the memorial  service of  Minister  Col l ins 

Chabane and he says -  is that  correct  i f  you look at  f ive l ines 

f rom the top of  paragraph 25.    

“Because I  ra ised the issue again later in  

March just  before the memorial  serv ice of  the 

late Minister Col l ins Chabane.”  

MR MONTANA:   No Chair  I  do not  th ink the sequence is 

r ight .   The sequence is not  r ight  and I  th ink that  – no Chai r  I  10 

volunteered informat ion to Mr Molefe not  what is descr ibed 

here but  I  th ink the long and short  of  i t  I  shared informat ion 

wi th him and we did not  discuss th is Publ ic Protector matter 

in detai l  and he reported – he reported the matter  to  the 

board to say there is th is issue;  i t  is being at tended to and 

that  is what i t  was lef t  at  unt i l  of  course then there was a 

major dispute and I  deal  wi th i t  on this part icular matter.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay.   So let  us just  go on wi th  what he 

says at  the rest  – in the rest  of  paragraph 25.   He says:  

“You then handed h im a f i le containing the 20 

Publ ic Protector ’s  I  th ink the inter im report . ”  

MR MONTANA:   Ja let  us cal l  i t  the r ight  word is provisional  

report .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Provis ional .  

MR MONTANA:   Publ ic Protector ’s  provisional  repor t  and I  
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indicated to him that  as a company’s management  we are – 

we are responding to al l  those issues.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.   Now I  am asking did this happen? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Did you hand him the f i le just  before 

the memorial  serv ice for Minister Chabane? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  no I  th ink the – the – i t  could have 

been around that  t ime because I  know that  when we went to  

the memorial  serv ice of  Minister  Chabane that  is  when I  had 

given h im my let ter  that  I  wi l l  step down f rom my – f rom the 10 

posi t ion of  CO.   

 I f  I  recal l  when we had a d ispute on this part icular 

issue around early – ear ly Apri l  so I  th ink that  in terms of  

t ime i t  may be more or less the same t ime but  Chai r  I  gave – 

I  gave him the provisional  report  o f  the Publ ic  Protector.   I f  

the f i le refers to that  I  conf i rm that .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   That  is what he is saying as I  

understand i t .  

MR MONTANA:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   You gave him – you gave him the report  20 

at  the same t ime you gave him the let ter.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no,  no i t  could have been – i t  could not  

have been the same t ime. No that  came af ter.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay.    

MR MONTANA:   The let ter was just  an envelope before we 
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went  to the memorial  service of  the late Minister and I  said – 

I  actual ly – we would not  even open i t .   He did not  even 

know. I  said Chai r  i f  you can read this – i f  you can have this 

as your bedt ime reading.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Ja he says in  fact  that  you suggested 

you read i t  – he reads i t  when he gets home.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja,  no I  th ink we may be confusing two 

things.   I  th ink both happened but  I  do not  th ink they 

happened at  the same t ime.  There was a t ime I  shared a 

let ter of  resignat ion – my let ter of  res ignat ion on the 15t h of  10 

March and then la ter on we had – we had for example I  th ink 

we had the memor ial  service and then before we – a few 

days or a week la ter we went to the funeral  in Limpopo and I  

th ink we were both at  the off ice so those – I  th ink i t  is more 

or less the same – the same t ime ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay.   They – I  mean in essence we 

can say there may be a di fference of  a week or so but  al l  of  

that  … 

MR MONTANA:   Happened ja.   I  can conf i rm that .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Then he says in the let ter you indicated 20 

that  you had elected not  to renew your contract  when i t  

expired at  the end of  March – no i t  says there 2015 that  is 

obviously 2016? 

MR MONTANA:   No 2015 ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   And that  you were resigning for 
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personal  reasons,  is that  what your let ter said? 

MR MONTANA:   Yes that  is what my let ter stated ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:    

“ I  presented the resignat ion he says Mr 

Molefe to the board which accepted Mr 

Montana’s resignat ion but  asked him to 

cont inue to work whi le  the board searched 

for a replacement. ”  

And then he at taches a copy of  the let ter.  

MR MONTANA:   My let ter of  resignat ion? 10 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   No,  no a copy of  h is reply to your let ter  

of  resignat ion.   That  is what PM4 is.  

MR MONTANA:   Oh that  is my – that  is h is let ter.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   That  is his let ter.  

MR MONTANA:   For me.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   To you conf i rming the board’s – i t  is 

very interest ing Mr Soni  that  he tel ls us about the board ’s 

response.   Did he at tach my let ter o f  resignat ion? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   No he did not .  

MR MONTANA:   And let  me – I  asking that  for  a  reason 20 

Chai r.   When I  resigned f rom PRASA and my let ter is there I  

th ink i t  is part  of  the record already.   Yes I  th ink at  some 

stage you asked Chair  but  you see the let ter of  resignat ion.   

I  said my contract  provides for me to – provides for  a three 

months’ not ice per iod but  I  sa id to Mr – I  said in the let ter to 
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the chai rman I  do not  want to do three months.    

I  said my cont ract  provides for that  but  I  would asked 

the board to f ind a sui table replacement and I  am prepared 

to spend six months so that  thei r  new CO can understand 

PRASA and what dr ives i t ,  i ts logic and everything.    

I  offered that  in the let ter.   So i t  is  not  – i t  is not  the 

way he puts i t .   Of  course in the let ter of  response they did 

say the board reserves the r ight  to say look we do not  serve 

your not ice per iod but  I  offered the board Chai r  and I  

explained to the board.   I  explained to Mr Molefe.  10 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  Now… 

MR MONTANA:   I f  – i f  in my let ter  that  i f  I  leave in  the 

middle of  a l l  these major changes there are going to be 

di ff icul t ies.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   In fa i rness to  Mr Molefe I  have got  to  

place this on the record when he gave the evidence he did 

place that  on record you had indicated you were prepared to  

stay for s ix.  

MR MONTANA:   But  I  offered – I  offered the board yes.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.   But  can I  just  ask you quickly to 20 

turn to PM4 which is on page 147?   

MR MONTANA:   147? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   147.   You wi l l  see in the – in the f i rst  

paragraphs he acknowledges receipt  of  your let ter in the 

second paragraph.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry do you want to f i rst  announce 

what document i t  is Mr Soni? 

MR MONTANA:   Oh I  am sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja f rom who to whom and about what and 

what date i t  is? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes I  wi l l  I  am sorry Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja for the record.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is much easier so we ident i fy i t  on the 

t ranscr ipt  when… 10 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Mr Montana would th is be correct  that  

th is is the let ter which is dated the 1s t  of  Apri l  2015 in which 

Mr Molefe responds in – to your not ice of  terminat ion? 

MR MONTANA:   That  is correct  Chair.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Now in paragraph 2 he says that  the 

board accepts your resignat ion and the point  you made is 

that  you had given them the extra t ime but  what is s igni f icant  

here and i t  re lates to something we talked about ear l ier is 

what is contained in paragraph 3 of  the let ter.   He says:  

“We wi l l  communicate further wi th you in 20 

regard to speci f ic measures that  we would 

l ike to int roduce concerning your  author i ty  

dur ing the not ice per iod unt i l  separat ion. ”  

Then he cont inues.  

“The speci f ic aspects of  your author i ty that  we 
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may wish to regulate for example concern 

1.  Your author i ty to make senior execut ive 

appointments.   We would expect  that  you do 

not  make any further appointment  regards 

express author i ty of  the board in the present  

ci rcumstances and your  author i ty to approve 

signi f icant  procurement matters as we – and 

we would simi lar ly expect  you to raise these 

wi th the board in each speci f ic instance. ”  

So this one t ime when he did curta i l  your powers I  mean I  am 10 

just  saying that  that  ear l ier you had said in re lat ion to the 

Chairpersonship of  the – of  the subsidiar ies that  that  had not  

been done.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   But  here i t  had been done.  

MR MONTANA:   Where – where are you reading Mr Soni? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   I  am – the thi rd paragraph of  page 147.   

The – the response to your let ter of  res ignat ion.  

MR MONTANA:   But  what is your quest ion speci f ical ly? 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   No I  am just  saying that  on this  20 

occasion there is  a speci f ic curtai lment of  your power.   Is  

that  correct? 

MR MONTANA:   Chair  I  am smi l ing Mr Soni  because Chai r  I  

read – I  received this let ter,  I  conf i rm that .   But  i t  is a funny 

let ter I  must  say because the let ter  descr ibe or t r ies to  
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curtai l  what  has not  actual ly not  been the t ruth.    

Chair  the – as Group CO of  PRASA the delegat ion of  

author i ty was very clear f rom since the organisat ion was 

formed in fact  f rom the days we had a South Afr ican Rai l  

Commuter Corporat ion.   The appointment of  execut ives is a  

responsibi l i ty of  the board.   I  recommend to the board.    

So I  th ink th is let ter and perhaps once I  – Advocate 

Soni  is done here I  want to go back and make the point  

because you – you wi l l  not  understand my let ter and this  

let ter and what  happened in the matter  of  the Publ ic 10 

Protector report  i f  you do not  understand the background.

 Why I  decided to resign at  that  point  and the 

re lat ionship and the reasons I  provide and what happened 

when I  met Mr Molefe in Knysna.   So – so the let ter was 

served on me; i t  does curtai l  anything Chai r.    

I  th ink you know Mr Molefe he would have loved to 

have the opportuni ty to ei ther f i re me, dismiss me or curta i l  

me and he found that  i t  is not  possible in th is l i fet ime Chai r.  

 The issue is the execut ives were appointed by the 

board so you r ight  and say there is  no execut ive that  are 20 

appointed.   I f  I  had interviewed people I  had to  interview 

them with the – what you cal l  the board ’s remunerat ion and 

HR commit tee of  the board.   We interv iew recommend to the 

board and there are t imes when between us mysel f  and the 

board we do not  agree on this part icular appointment and 
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then I  have to ei ther convince the board that  th is is the r ight  

00:16:38 you win some, you lose some that  is the nature of  

the 00:16:39.    

 And then of  course – the approval  of  the contract .   

Chair  there is th is th ing that  you can see that  there is th is 

th ing Advocate Soni  – Mr Soni  that  – that  I  was approving – 

what is the word Chair  s igni f icant  procurement matters.  

 No I  have sa id ear l ier on in my test imony anything 

below R25 mi l l ion I  d id not  touch.   Anything above R100 

mi l l ion – 100 mi l l ion at  th is t ime this was the si tuat ion.    10 

 So in real  t imes the board had to say to me we are 

changing the delegat ion of  author i ty you can no longer 

approve at  100 mi l l ion or approve at  50 mi l l ion.   I t  was never 

done.  

 When I  lef t  PRASA I  st i l l  had the author i ty to approve 

so this let ter ref lects rather a big f ight  that  was brewing up 

wi thin PRASA and I  – and I  want to request  that  I  be given 

the opportuni ty just  touch a bi t  on that  so that  we – we 

understand the context .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   In fa i rness to  – and he is not  here to 20 

defend himsel f  but  I  am not  defending I  am just  placing 

something on record.   Because you are r ight  that  the board 

could not  curtai l  your powers so what he says here is :  

“We would expect  you do not  make. ”  

He does not  say you may not  make he says:   
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“We would expect  you do not  make execut ive 

appointments or you – you do not  approve 

signi f icant  procurement matters wi thout  the 

express approval . ”  

I  am just  placing that  in context .  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no I  hear – I  hear you and I  agree fu l ly 

there.   Here is a let ter but  I  am s imply saying that  why do 

you tel l  me about . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You say i t  d id not  happen? 

MR MONTANA:   We did not  – because i t  d id not  happen in 10 

real  t imes.   I  had 100 mi l l ion what  is s igni f icant  when I  st i l l  

approve 100 mi l l ion.   I  d id not  approve – I  d id not  appoint  

execut ives.   The execut ives are appointed by the board.   So 

this let ter ref lects something that  I  want to touch Mr Soni .  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.  

MR MONTANA:   To touch on sorry.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Yes.   Wel l  are you going to do that  at  a 

later stage? 

MR MONTANA:   Wel l  I  wanted – I  thought when you are 

done with probing this matter you give me the opportuni ty.  20 

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Okay.   I  am … 

MR MONTANA:   Unless i f  you want me to do i t  now.  

ADV VAS SONI SC:   Ja so long as i t  is – i t  is  going to be 

conf ined to the issue.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no I  am going – i t  is a f ive days’ wel l  
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and the young people l ike us we need to be 00:19:08 Mr 

Soni .  

 Chair  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   There are st i l l  no part ies is i t  not? 

MR MONTANA:   I  am exposing mysel f  here Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  the – the – I  said ear l ier  in my 

test imony that  Mr Molefe came to PRASA for a part icu lar 

reason.   In his operat ion and me and him as I  said we – we 

used to interact  so ei ther basements of  PRASA we ta lk ANC 10 

pol i t ics and everything and somet imes he wi l l  say me 

Comrade Lucky and I  kept  on reminding him no,  no Chair  I  

am going to cal l  you Chairman cal l  me CEO and that  you are 

my senior or my leader,  you are the same age as my father 

so you cannot be my comrade even i f  in the structures we 

want to t reat  people as required.   That  is what I  d id.  

 Now the point  I  want  to make is that  between 

November and February there was very good interact ion 

including the fact  and he does not  say i t  in his aff idavi t  Mr 

Molefe brought in  a lot  of  business people to meet wi th me 20 

the CO at  the off ices in the 00:20:25 because other than the 

mandate that  was given when he was appointed in respect  of  

the cont ract  Mr Molefe had his own personal  di ff icul t ies that  

I  do not  want to  deal  wi th here because that  is not  my 

intent ion.    
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 He brought and say can we help this one,  can we 

help this one and al l  of  those things.   Chai r  for me I  meet 

these people and I  wi l l  not  br ing back and say he brought  

that  and – no that  is not  the – what I  wi l l  do is that  when a 

leader says can you help I  look at  how I  can help,  other 

people I  help,  others I  te l l  them i t  is  not  possible.  

 But  we had the February board meet ing and that  is 

why you need to understand these three matters.   In 

February board meet ing the board of  PRASA. 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is 2015? 10 

MR MONTANA:   2015 Chai r  my apologies – 2015.  Six or –  

six or s ix months af ter Mr Molefe had been in th is board we 

appointed we had the meet ing in the North West I  th ink just  

c loser to Sun City  the board meet ing for the year.  

 I t  was act  – i t  was basical ly the f i rst  real  meet ing of  

the board af ter i t  came and had to at tend to the issues about  

al l  these – the induct ion but  I  was unhappy wi th that  board 

meet ing.   I  spent  a lot  of  t ime outside wi th the board having 

an in-commit tee meet ing.   Okay.  

 That  is number 1.  20 

Number 2 the board wanted to rest ructure somehow to 

rest ructured the business.   I t  is a  prerogat ive of  the board I  

said that  but  the way i t  is done when you restructure 

business i t  is very important  you must  have al l  the 

informat ion on the tab le and that  informat ion is done whether 
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you appoint  a  consul tant  outside or you ask management you 

do not  just  come and say now the approval  for th is  we are 

placing there because you are running an organisat ion wi th a 

lot  of  interdependencies.    So i t  is very important  to  

understand that .  

 So I  was unhappy wi th that .   Now when they have 

and I  th ink Advocate – Mr Soni  I  want also to – to advise you 

to also look at  the – some of  the statements made by Mr 

Col l ins Letsoalo which I  th ink are relevant  to – to my 

part icular matter.  10 

 So there was an at tempt to change.  I  said to Mr 

Lindikaya who was the Company Secretary at  the end of  that  

board meet ing I  said today is a day I  am leaving PRASA.  I  

was not  resigning in that  board meet ing of  February but  I  

have al ready not iced what was happening and I  decided to 

leave.  

 But  I  d id not  want  to f ight  Chai r  I  wanted to leave in  

peace and I  – that  is  why my let ter  is  craf ted in the manner 

that  i t  is craf ted so that  when I  leave there is st i l l  uni ty,  there 

is stabi l i ty in the business.    A lready I  have seen our  20 

execut ive management team being div ided between people 

who are loyal  to Popo Molefe who are loyal  to me I  d id not  

want to do that .   I  wanted to leave in peace.    

But  I  –  I  said that  dur ing the break Mr Soni  to you 

that  in Af r ican t radi t ion when someone – your v is i tor  leaves 
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– leave your homestead you assure them that  I  have 

t ightened my dogs,  do not  worry,  leave in peace.   Okay.   So 

that  is what I  was doing and Mr Molefe said – and when I  lef t  

approaching the gate he then unleashed this terr ib le dogs 

okay to come for me.  

 So I  had given him that  let ter.   I  was unhappy and I  

then gave effect  to my decision to resign.   But  in my 

departure I  d id not  want to create a f ight  wi th Mr Molefe or  

the board so that  let ter comes.  This let ter Chai r  and let  me 

remind you Mr Molefe had always said Mr Montana I  want 10 

you to stay for three years because you are the one who 

understands this then can help us.   Okay.  

 Now when I  resigned he goes to the thing and I  speak 

to board members who 00:24:25 he was agi tat ing that  

Montana must  leave.  This let ter was in my v iew when I  

received i t  I  laughed i t  was t ry ing to  effect  to what the board 

could not  do in  February meet ing which is basical ly to  

rest ructure and take over  certain th ings.   So that  is what  

they were t ry ing to do.  

 Now let  us deal  wi th the Publ ic  Protector matter  20 

because i t  is relevant  to  that .   I t  was – Chai r  I  was in Cape 

Town there were two people wi th th is inter im report  f rom the 

Publ ic Protector.   I t  was me and I  had made a copy for Mr 

Molefe – the provisional  report .  

 Then I  got  a  cal l  f rom the – f rom a journal ist .   There 
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was a Cape Town jazz fest ival  PRASA played an important 

ro le in that  event .   The chai rman and board members met in  

Cape Town and they were – so thei r  board meet ing where 

they – where they approved to accept  my resignat ion was in 

Apri l  the 1s t  of  Apr i l .   I  was happy wi th that .    

But  a day later a journal ist  f rom the Business Day 

cal ls me and say you are leaving because of  the Publ ic 

Protector report .   I  was angry I  knew where i t  was coming 

f rom.  

 She was quot ing the provisional  report .   I  then cal led 10 

Mr Molefe he was in Johannesburg I  was in Cape Town.  

Chairman I  need to see you.   Okay.   He says no I  am not  in 

Cape Town I  am in Joburg but  I  am f ly ing to Knysna.   I  say I  

am in  Cape Town I  am going to dr ive to Knysna to come and 

see you Si r.   I  went  to Knysna.   I  ar r ived the night  before we 

met  the fol lowing day at  the – again at  the gol f  c lub as i t  

were.   We sat  there for a very long t ime.   

We had a meet ing I  th ink i t  lasted f ive to seven 

hours.   And I  said to Mr Molefe as I  cal led him Dada Molefe.   

I  cal led this meet ing because I  was t ry ing to  be pol i te and 20 

leave in peace because I  have sat  in th is organisat ion – I  

have done everything here there is  nothing more to do.   I  do 

not  need to remain here.   But  I  have requested this meet ing 

to te l l  you the t ru th af ter I  got  that  th ing f rom the journal ist  

f rom the Business News.  
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 We met.   Chair  I  sat  wi th Mr Molefe and I  to ld him a l l  

the things – al l  the wrong things that  he was doing f rom that  

per iod of  t ime which I  said these are the reasons.   I  d id not  

want to disclose them.  But  today let  me tel l  you he even 

said to me – and I  said to him you are asking me to stay for  

three years but  you are sharpening your spear to stab at  the 

back.   And I  said to h im I  am not  going to give you that  

pr iv i lege.  

 He used the words he said are you accusing me of  

being involved in  a low intensi ty warfare.   I  sa id indeed 10 

Chairman you are – you are launching a very ser ious f ight 

against  me.  I  wanted to leave.  

 So – so I  was angry wi th  the fact  that  th is Publ ic  

Protector report  there was no-one who had this report  except  

me and Mr Molefe.   I  gave h im the report  and i t  end up wi th  

a journal ist  and you can see the campaign to start  to  put  me 

in a bad l ight  Chair.   I t  dates back including what  he said in 

that  commit tee there – the commit tee in Parl iament  of  Mr 

Mashatele.    

 So this has been an on-going systemat ic th ing but  I  20 

said – and I  to ld  him even Chair  when I  lef t  PRASA Dada 

Molefe you are going to win the bat t le but  you are going to 

lose the war because I  wi l l  cont inue to chase you as and I  do 

not  want to do that  as I  respect  Mr Molefe.  

 When I  was here Chair  even af ter he has at tacked me 
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on th is plat form I  was si t t ing there,  I  was pol i te,  I  greeted 

him, I  greeted him but  what I  know is that  Mr Molefe stands 

on the other side of  the r iver,  I  stand on the end – the two of  

us even i f  there were a br idge to be bui l t  wi l l  never  connect  

– we stand on di fferent  s ides there are crocodi les in that  

r iver we cannot even at tempt to meet each other.  

 So I  have accepted that  but  i f  you do not  understand 

that  context  you wi l l  not  understand the three let ters – the 

two let ters – my let ter to him, my let ter to – his – the board’s  

let ter to me and how the Publ ic Protector matter was – was 10 

deal t  wi th.   So that  is the real  context  of  these let ters.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  when exact ly would you say your  

re lat ionship changed because at  a certain t ime or qui te some 

t ime you – you have said that  you used your f ingers to say 

you were l ike th is I  th ink you said.  

MR MONTANA:   No him and Minister.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh h im and Minister  

MR MONTANA:   Minister Peters.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you see people who have been g iven 

evidence here have been descr ib ing thei r  relat ionships in  20 

di fferent  ways.   Mr Koko was here and he said he and Mr 

Abram Masango were and as he put  i t  t ight  you know l ike 

that .   He said that  is a township l ingo they were t ight .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  then things changed.  So between you 
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and Mr Molefe you – you were f ine you had a good 

re lat ionship I  th ink that  is what you said.  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For some t ime. 

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  I  th ink let  me descr ibe the 

re lat ionship as – you know I  respected Mr Molefe.   I  th ink we 

had a  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Because o f  the  way he came to  PRASA,  I  

knew.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  knew Mr  Mo le fe ,  Cha i r.   He d id  no t  – 

he  probab ly  d id  no t  know me because I  –  when I  met  h im I  

exp la ined to  h im.   I  sa id  the  f i rs t  t ime I  met  Mr  Mole fe  was 

when he was in  –  i t  was in  cour t  a t  the  De lmas  Pr ison 

Tr ia l .   I  was par t  o f  the  young peop le  who went  to  cour t  to  

suppor t  our  leaders  a t  tha t  t ime.  

 When Mr  Mole fe  and them were  sentenced to  

p r ison,  I  was outs ide  the  cour t  on  tha t  par t i cu la r  day.   

When they went  to  Robben Is land and they appea led ,  I  was  20 

par t  –  be fo re  they were  sentenced,  Cha i r,  there  was a  b ig  

meet ing  a t  the  Johannesburg  Cen t ra l  Method is t  Church  in  

1988 where  we  had the  so l ida r i t y  meet ing  wh ich  was  

d is rup ted by  the  po l i ce .    

 So I  have seen  th is  man,  the  b ig  man tha t  I  
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respect  as  par t  o f  the  leaders  in  the  th ing .   When they 

were  re leased f rom pr ison,  they s t i l l  ac tua l l y  were  wear ing  

pr ison c lo thes,  Jan Smuts  A i rpor t ,  no t  O.R.  Thambo.   

Young k ids  w i l l  no t  know tha t  t ha t  was the  Jan  Smuts  

A i rpor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    We were  the  youth  who were  car ry ing  

them and s ing ing  and ce lebra t ing . . .   So when he was  

appo in ted  as  Cha i rman I  sa id  we a re  –  I  am happy to  have 

th is  man but  I  knew tha t  there  was th is  o ther  reason why  10 

he was appo in ted ,  bu t  I  t r ied  to  work  w i th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   By the  February  meet ing ,  2015,  

was your  re la t ionsh ip  s t i l l  f i ne?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  i t  was on a  descent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    We were  on  a  downh i l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  we were  –  I  th ink  the  re la t ionsh ip  was  

decent .   But  a f te r  Apr i l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween myse l f  and 

Mr  Mole fe  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Became host i le .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .became host i le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    We were  no t  see ing  eye to  eye.   We were  

no t  p lann ing  board  meet ings togethe r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    We were  do ing  th ings together  as  

requ i red .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  meet ing  a t  Knysna was  the  ten  

po in t?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  what  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  no t  the  meet ing  where  you say –  

where  you –  I  th ink  you d id  no t  use  the  word  bu t  i t  looks  10 

l i ke  you conf ron ted h im.  

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  I  d id  no t  conf ron t .   I  was po l i te ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    But  very  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    F i rm.  

MR MONTANA :    Very  f i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  made i t  very  c lear  and sa id  th is  i s  the 

s i tua t ion  and I  want  you to  know tha t  I  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  I  20 

was not  go ing  to  f igh t  w i th  h im because the  dec is ion  to  

leave PRASA was my dec is ion  a lone and every th ing .   And 

he kept  on  say ing  –  Hey,  Cha i r  and  he -  you remember  they 

p laced h im wi th  Min is te r  D ipuo regard ing  the  meet ing  w i th  

the  Pres ident .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  our  re la t ionsh ip  co l lapsed and 

much comple te ly  now a f te r  tha t  meet ing .   I t  was my  

dec is ion  ins t ruc t ing  PRASA Techn ica l  CEO tha t  he  must  

cance l  the  cont rac t  o f  South  A f r i can Fence and Gate .   That  

company fa i led  to  de l i ve r  on  h is  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  ye t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay do not  go  in to  de ta i l s  now.  

MR MONTANA :    Indeed,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    A round . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MONTANA :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . tha t  was happen ing  roundabout  when? 

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lea r. ]  

MR MONTANA :    Th is  was around Apr i l /May 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  I  am a f ra id  I  am b r ing ing  

th is  up  and I  rea l l y  aga in ,  I  do  no t  want  to  say someth ing  

when you are  no t  here .   As  I  unders tood your  answers  to  

the  Cha i rpe rson ’s  quest ions.   You know two po in ts .   One is  

you worked toge ther  w i th  h im bu t  you made the  second 20 

po in t  tha t  you were  aware  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  had been  

appo in ted  to  ge t  r id  o f  you.   Now,  i s  –  have I  unders tood  

cor rec t l y  o r  d id  tha t  someth ing  –  i s  tha t  someth ing  tha t  

deve loped in  h is  m ind la te r?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  look ,  I  d id  no t  use  those words 
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because I  d id  no t  know whether  i t  was exp l i c i t  bu t  I  th ink  

the  po in t  he re  is  tha t  I  was commi t ted  to  work  w i th  h im.   He  

–  I  th ink  tha t  he  dec ided tha t  he  is  go ing  to  take  a  d i f fe ren t  

pa th(?) .   There  were  ac t ions.   I  mean,  the  cance l la t ion  o f  

the  -  what  i s  i t  ca l led  –  the  cont rac t  on  the  –  or  ra ther  the  

tender  on  the  Braamfonte in  modern isa t ion    

 He had a  lo t  o f  t ime(?) .   He was  ac tua l l y  even  

out  o f  town when the  board  meet ing  was se t ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  

how you run  compan ies  because  you want  a  CEO to  do 

th ings in  a  par t i cu la r  manner.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  no .   I  am not  t ry ing  to  s top  you.   

Do not  fo rge t  my quest ion .   My  quest ion  i s  a  s l igh t ly  

d i f fe ren t  one.   D id  you have the  impress ion ,  whether  you 

put  i t  in  so  many words or  no t ,  tha t  one o f  the  reasons 

Mr  Mole fe  had accepted the  appo in tment  o r  was appo in ted  

as  Cha i rperson o f  the  Board  o f  PRASA was to  ge t  r id  o f  

you?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no ,  Cha i r.   I  wou ld  no t  say  tha t ,  no .   I  

wou ld  no t  say  tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you –  I  unders tood you to  say suggest  20 

tha t  he  was brought  in  to  ensure  tha t  what  you and your  

management  were  no  prepared to  do  was done in  te rms o f  

the ,  I  th ink ,  cance l la t ion  o f  a  ce r ta in  cont rac t  o r  award?  

MR MONTANA :    The award  to  the  Tegeta  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   I  unders tood you co r rec t l y.  
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MR MONTANA :    Yes,  you unders tood me cor rec t ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  whethe r  tha t  w i l l  mean me be ing  f i red  

or  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  someth ing  e l se .   Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .o r  me leav ing  the  company,  i t  i s  

someth ing  e lse ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now you have a l ready dea l t  w i th  the 

Knysna meet ing  wh ich  i s  addressed a t  parag raph 28.   Now 10 

he says the re  tha t  in  add i t ion  to  make a  l i tany  o f  

compla in t s  –  and  you have ind i ca ted  what  some o f  those  

are  –  you a lso  a t tacked Min i s te r  D ipuo Peters .   I s  tha t  

cor rec t ,  a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  no t  me.   That  i s  no t  me.   

I  am very  fo r th r igh t  and d i rec t  bu t  a t tack ing  peop le ,  i t  i s  

no t  me Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Now you might  remember  my  

quest ion  to  you a  coup le  o f  m inu tes  ago.   I f  you  look a t  

parag raph 29,  i t  is  in fo rmed by  the  fo l low ing.    20 

MR MONTANA :    Le t  me go there  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Paragraph 29 .  

MR MONTANA :    29?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I t  i s  29 .  

MR MONTANA :    29 .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Page 9 .  

MR MONTANA :    Page 9 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Paragraph 29 .    

MR MONTANA :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    He says:    

“A t  th is  meet ing  in  Knysna,  Mr  Montana 

accused us  o f  consp i r ing  [ tha t  i s  ask ing  the  

board ]  o f  consp i r ing  w i th  Min is te r  Peters  to  

work  aga ins t  h im. . . ”  10 

 Now,  obv ious ly,  you are  say ing  tha t  d id  no t  

happen.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  in  Knysna . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes?  

MR MONTANA :    . . tha t  i s  no t  what  we d i scussed.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t ,  yes ,  subsequent  to  tha t ,  I  th ink  tha t  

we d id  a f te r  I  have met  the  M in is te r  on  two d i f fe ren t  

occas ions.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  I  unders tand.  20 

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  then he goes on to  say:  

“ In  h is  v iew,  the  board  had been appo in ted  

w i th  the  exp ress pu rpose o f  ge t t ing  r id  o f  

h im. . . ”  
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 D id  you te l l  Mr  Mole fe  th is  a t  the  Knysna 

meet ing?  

MR MONTANA :    Not  a t  the  Knysna meet ing ,  Cha i r,  no .   A t  

the  Knysna meet ing ,  Cha i r,  I  spoke  about  our  repor t  ge t t ing  

to  the  journa l i s t ,  the  prov i s iona l  repor t ,  and tha t  he  was 

te l l ing  me to  s tay  bu t  he  was car ry ing  a  dagger.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    I f  tha t  i s  what  he  was t ry ing  to  descr ibe  

than tha t  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Now you sa id  tha t  you  d id  no t  10 

te l l  h im th is  a t  the  Knysna mee t ing .   I s  there  on  any 

occas ion  when you to ld  h im tha t  the  board  had been  

appo in ted  w i th  the  express pu rpose o f  ge t t ing  r id  o f  you? 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  we have had a  lo t  o f  in te rac t ions  

inc lud ing  i n  wr i t ing ,  in  b lack  and wh i te ,  and I  cannot  reca l l  

spec i f i ca l l y  say ing  tha t  to  Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  I  know the  s i tua t ion  had dete r io ra ted  

and we were  th rowing –  we were  go ing  a t  each o ther  in  a  

very  b ig  way.   Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  see .   Le t  me ask you th is .   You may  

not  have sa id  i t  to  h im but  d id  you ever  en ter ta in  tha t  

no t ion  tha t  Mr  Mo le fe  had been appo in ted  as  cha i rperson –  

sor ry  –  and h is  board  had been appo in ted  fo r  the  express 

purpose o f  ge t t ing  r id  o f  you?  
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MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  was  very  susp ic ious  o f  the 

appo in ted  o f  th ree  peop le . . .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Because the  appo in ted ,  I  have regarded  

as  i r regu la r.   The  ent i re  Board  o f  PRASA was adver t i sed by  

Min is te r  Dan Mar t ins  and then  he was rep laced as  a  

Min is te r  w i th  the  Cab ine t  reshuf f led .   Min is te r  D ipuo came 

in .   She took a l l  the  peop le  tha t  were  nominated th rough a  

pub l i c  p rocess.   They were  a l l  nominated by  members  o f  

the  pub l i c .   There  were  th ree  peop le  tha t  were  brought  to  10 

tha t  board ,  Ms Mole fe ,  Ms Zoto  Manase and Ms Wi l lem 

Steenkamp.   And i f  you unders tand,  aga in  the re  is  a  

contex t  to  th is  to  unders tand why they were  brough t  in  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  am sor ry.   We wi l l  come to  the  

appo in tment  o f  the  board  on  a  d i f fe ren t  occas ion .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  am ask ing ,  s l igh t ly,  a  d i f fe ren t  

quest ion .   I  am say ing ,  d id  you enter ta in  tha t  thought  in  

your  m ind?  Because now we have ment ioned th ree  board  20 

members .   As  I  unders tand i t ,  there  were  11  board  

members .   Because the  idea he re  is  tha t  the  board  had 

been appo in ted  to  ge t  r id  o f  you.   Now th is  i s  th ree  out  o f  

11 .    

 I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  work  ou t  because in  some 
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ways,  Mr  Montana,  I  need to  be  fa i r  to  you.   I s  the  s top-

shop-d ispute (?)  [Speaker  moves  away f rom microphone  

and not  c lea r ]  be tween you and  Mr  Montana –  I  mean,  

Mr  Mole fe?    

 A t  some s tage,  I  w i l l  have to  make  submiss ion  to  

the  Cha i rperson and the  Cha i rpe rson a t  a  la te r  s tage wou ld  

have to  make a  dec i s ion .   We wou ld  have to  base –  I  –  my 

submiss ion  and the  Cha i rperson h is  dec i s ion  based on a l l  

the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  we have been ab le  to  ou t  f rom the  

d i f fe ren t  w i tnesses.   But  I  jus t  want  to  know in  respect  o f  10 

what  your  v iew is  about  the  purpose or  one o f  the  purposes 

o f  the  appo in ted  or. . .?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  in  my a f f idav i t  and in  the  s ta tement  

tha t  I  p resented today,  I  make ment ion  o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  

Board  o f  PRASA led  by  Mr  S f iso  Buthe lez i  was –  t he  te rm 

o f  tha t  board  was coming to  an  end.   So natura l l y  there  

was go ing  to  be  the  appo in tment  o f  a  new board ,  whethe r  

Mr  Buthe lez i  and members  o f  –  some members  o f  h i s  board  

w i l l  con t inue in  tha t  ro le ,  I  th ink  i s  ne i the r  here  no r  there .    

 The issue is  tha t  there  were  an  in t roduct ion  o f  20 

the  appo in tment  o f  Mr  Mole fe ,  i t  had to  do  w i th  –  excuse  

me –  w i th  what  the  Min is te r  had sa id  to  us  in  a  meet ing ,  

where  he  sa id  tha t :   I  am go ing  to  b r ing  Mr  Popo Mole fe .   

And te l l  you ,  Mr  Buthe lez i  was in  a  meet ing .   He sa id  to  

the  Min is te r :   I  am a  dep loyer  o f  the  ANC.   I  w i l l  respect  
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every  dec is ion  o f  the  ANC.    

 My response was a lso  very  s imp le .   I  am the  

CEO of  PRASA.   So usua l l y  i t  i s  the  pre rogat ive  o f  the  

Min is te r  in  Cab ine t  and we respect  o f  tha t  p rocess bu t  

there  is  a  CEO – i f  you  fac i l i ta te  a  host i le  takeover,  you 

br ing  in  peop le  tha t  I  th ink  they are  now go ing  to  p lay  a  

pos i t i ve  ro le .    

 And th is  I  d id  no t  b r ing  w i th  –  I  d id  no t  want  to  

say to  Min is te r  Peters ,  I  have a l so  sa id  i t  to  Min is te r  Ben  

Mar t ins  when the  Gupta  wanted  to  change the  board  o f  10 

PRASA.   I  sa id  i f  you  br ing  peop le  to  change,  to  takeover,  

as  the  CEO I  have got  a  r igh t  no t  s tay  and to  leave .   Now,  

Cha i r,  the  two –  there  is  a  f ine  l ine  be tween the  two.    

 So I  am say ing  tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i  –  and I  th ink  

you –  the  Cha i rman o f  the  PRASA Board  w i l l  come and  

speak fo r  h imse l f  about  tha t  p rocess because he kept  on  

br ie f ing  me on what  was happen ing ,  espec ia l l y  be tween the  

–  w i th  the  conversa t ion  tha t  he  had w i th  Min is te r  D ipuo.    

 Now i f  you br ing  tha t  in to  accoun t ,  you ac tua l l y  

rea l i se  tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  these th ree  spec i f i c  peop le  20 

and how the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r,  I  t ry  to  avo id  dea l ing  w i th  

tha t  i ssue.   In  my ear l ie r  s ta tement  I  sa id  there  word  o f  

b rought - in  was ac tua l l y  a  –  what  i s  the  r igh t  word  fo r  th is  

abuse –  th is  co l labo ra t ion  be tween th ree  spec i f i c  peop le ,  

okay?  
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 And le t  me ment ion  the i r  names so  tha t  we can 

make th ings much s imp le r.   Cha i r,  the  prob lems o f  PRASA 

s tar ts  when in  February  2014 the  Min is te r  o f  F inance 

de l i vers  h is  budget  speech and casts  a  lo t  o f  susp ic ion  and 

in  fac t  suggested  tha t  the  PRASA ro l l ing  s tock  prog ramme 

was a  cor rup t  p rogramme.    

 And tha t  i s  why you w i l l  see  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  

take  tha t  i ssue a t  g rea t  length  because we have been 

hav ing  b ig  f igh ts  w i th  Min i s te r  Gordhan in  respect  o f  how 

to  run  the  new re la t ion(?)  o f  p rob lems when he was s t i l l  10 

Min is te r  o f  F inance.   He t r ied ,  in  my v iew,  to  con t ro l  the  

programme,  to  take  ove r  the  cont ro l  and I  –  to  take  over  

the  runn ing  o f  the  programme and most  impor tan t ly  he  

ac ted  in  v io la t ion ,  in  my v iew,  o f  Cab ine t  dec is ions and he 

v io la ted  h is  powers  as  the  Min is te r  o f  F inance.  

 In  2014,  two years  a f te r  we have  gone now to  

the  market  and issued the  RFP,  the  Min i s te r  o f  F inance had  

to  s ign  i n  gazet te  th is  p rogramme.  Cha i r,  fo r  no  ob jec t i ve  

and sound or  ra t iona l  reasons he was b rought  in  tha t  

par t i cu la r  p rocess,  okay,  as  the  Min is te r  o f  F inance unt i l ,  20 

o f  cou rse ,  h is  te rm ended w i th  the  e lec t ions in  May 2017.  

 Then there  was –  then Min i s te r  D ipuo Peters  was  

brought  in  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  in  2014?  

MR MONTANA :    Sor ry,  in  2014.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    So  the  budget  speech was –  bu t  my  

le t te rs ,  my annexures Cha i r,  wh ich  is  a  source  o f  debate ,  

shows the  ongo ing  f igh t  wh ich  invo lved PRASA and the  

Min is te r  o f  F inance and the  Min i s te r  o f  Transpor t  in  respect  

o f  th is  pa r t i cu la r  p rogramme.   PRASA i s  where  – i s  

p rec ise ly  because o f  tha t  and I  de ta i l  tha t  in  my a f f idav i t .    

 Then the re  was  Min is te r  D ipuo  Peters .   Then 

there  was a  th i rd  man,  the  Treasurer  Genera l  o f  the  ANC,  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   Now each –  these th ree  peop le ,  Cha i r,  they  10 

were  te l l ing  Buthe lez i  tha t  the  dep loyment  o f  the  –  by  the  

ANC. . .   No,  Cha i r,  the  dec i s ion  about  the  appo in tment  o f  

th is  –  o f  these  th ree  peop le  in to  the  board  was the  

dec is ion  o f  the  in te rac t ion  be tween  the  th ree  peop le ,  okay?   

 And tha t  i s  why in  my a f f idav i t  –  in  my a f f idav i t  I  

respond –  I  ac tua l l y  take  up the  i ssue o f  the  appo in tment  

o f  Mr  Mole fe  and  say:   Te l l  us  how you appo in ted?  Who  

nominated you?  How you came to  the  board?  Le t  Zo to  

Manase to ld  us .   Le t  Wi l lem Steenkamp te l l  us  how he got  

in to  tha t  board  Cha i r  and i t  i s  no t  because. . .  20 

 So i f  there  i s  a  f ind ing  tha t  –  I  w i l l  suggest ,  

Mr  Son i ,  tha t  you recommend to  the  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  the 

process o f  appo in tment  o f  board  members ,  was i t  managed  

in  a  proper  way,  in  a  t ransparent  way?  Even i f  you have to  

manage government  in te res t  because there  is  a 
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shareho lder  in  tha t  bus iness,  tha t  has to  be  taken in to  

account .  

 But  we are  where  we are  because th ree  peop le  

conn ived and they brought  in  peop le  who p layed a  lead ing  

ro le  in to  tha t  board  and tha t  i s  why we are  here  today 

Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Mr  Montana,  I  jus t  want  to  see i f  I  

unders tand you cor rec t l y.   You say  -  and I  am not  d isput ing  10 

i t ,  I  am not  accepted i t  bu t  I  am not  d isput ing  i t  e i ther  – 

you say Mr  Mole fe ,  Ms Manase and Mr  S teenkamp were  

appo in ted  i r regu lar ly  in  whatever  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    No,  I  am say ing  tha t  Cha i r  in  no  uncer ta in  

te rms,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  no  I  unders tand.   But  the  fac t  

tha t  they were  appo in ted  i r regu la r ly  does not  mean tha t  

they were  appo in ted  to ,  in  a  sense ,  to  ge t  r id  o f  you.   That  

i s  –  so  tha t  i s  what  my quest ion  was d i rec ted .  

MR MONTANA :    Sure .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Not  was i t  a  p roper ly  const i tu ted  

board .  

MR MONTANA :    Sure .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And so ,  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  aga in  your  

answer  on  tha t .   Was,  in  your  v iew,  the  purpose  o f  the 
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boa rd  or  some members  o f  the  board  to  ge t  r id  o f  you  

fo rge t t ing  whethe r  they were  appo in ted  proper l y  o r  no t?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  you comes a f te r  –  

you reca l l  in  my –  excuse me –  in  my tes t imony ear l y  in  the  

day.   I  spoke about  our  meet ing  in  Cape Town.   You know,  

Cha i r,  and I  desc r ibed i t  in  de ta i l  because I  th ink  Mr  Son i  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay le t  me in te r rup t  you.   Aga in ,  in  the  

sp i r i t  o f  mak ing  sure  we can make progress.   I  th ink  what  

Mr  Son i  seeks to  do .   I  do  know tha t  you sa id  ea r l ie r  on 10 

tha t  Mr  Mole fe  –  I  do  no t  know i f  you added Ms Manase  

and Mr  S teenkamp . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    He d id ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .was appo in ted  w i th  a  par t i cu la r  

purpose.   Mr  Son i  re fe rs  to  t he i r  appo in tment  be ing  

i r regu la r.   So I  am not  sure  whe ther  you sa id  tha t  the i r  

appo in tment  was  i r regu la r  o r  when you sa id  they were  

appo in ted  or  he  was appo in ted  fo r  a  spec i f i c  purpose,  tha t  

i s  the  i r regu lar i t y  you were  ta lk ing  about?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  the  Board  o f  PRASA . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    . . . the  Min i s te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Sor ry,  Mr  Montana.   Cou ld  you 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Sor ry,  sor ry.    
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker  i s  unc lea r. ]  

MR MONTANA :    The Board  o f  PRASA . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [Speaker  i s  unc lea r. ]  

[Speakers  in te rven ing  each o ther  –  unc lea r. ]  

MR MONTANA :    Board  o f  PRASA – I  sa id  f i rs t l y,  i t s  t ime 

had exp i red .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th the  board  be fore  Mr  Mole fe  or  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Be fore  Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  the  board  be fore . . .   Ja .  10 

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t s  t ime had exp i red .  

MR MONTANA :    I t  was,  ja .   I t  was coming to  an  end.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    And you see,  Cha i r,  we are  dea l ing  w i th  

i ssues in  the  m idd le ,  un for tunate ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Because o f  the  na ture  o f  the  issue  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    And tha t  my a f f idav i t  i s  no t  on  the  tab le .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    In  my a f f idav i t  I  exp la in ,  in  fac t ,  what  has  

happened and why I  s ta r ted  to  fo rm cer ta in  op in ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    O f  course ,  to  s top  –  to  respond d i rec t l y.   I  
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do  no t  know i f  Mr  Mole fe ,  Ms Manase or  Mr  S teenkamp 

were  g iven a  mandate  tha t  the  Min is te r  o f  Transpor t  fo r  

those th ree  or  the  o ther  two peop le  to  say:   You must  ge t  

r id  o f  Montana.   But  cer ta in  th ings happened a f te rwards  

wh ich  I  th ink  t ha t  wou ld  have  g iven tha t  –  to  made  

impress ion .   Le t  us  s ta r t  f i rs t  w i th  the . . .   I  was work ing  

very  c lose ly  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  bu t  he  goes to  Par l iament  a t  

the  Commi t tee  on  Appropr ia t ion .   I  hear  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  

Cha i r,  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  so r ry.   No,  Mr  Montana,  I  –  we 10 

heard  th is  ear l ie r  and so  I  am not  t ry ing  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    No,  I  want  to  b r ing  some o ther  po in t  

wh ich  is  very  impor tan t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    Which ,  un for tunate ly,  i s  in  my a f f idav i t .   

Le t  me jus t  go  s t ra igh t  to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    So ,  we heard  tha t  ear l ie r,  yes ,  bu t  fo r  the 

f i rs t  t ime I  hear  t ha t  there  i s  a  –  t here  was invest iga t ion  on  

th is  b ig  cont rac t  tha t  the  m in is te rs  had prob lem,  Cha i r.   20 

Then a f te r  tha t  p resenta t ion  to  the  Appropr ia t ion  

Commi t tee  –  and  I  –  aga in ,  I  de ta i led  th is  in  my a f f idav i t  – 

Mr  Mole fe  leaves  w i th  the  Cha i r  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  

who had a t tended the  meet ing  o f  the  Appropr ia t ion  

Commi t tee .    
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 And Cha i r,  they  leave.   They go and have lunch 

a f te r  the  –  a f te r  we have been fo r  the  presenta t ion .   I  a lso  

go  in  an  oppos i te  d i rec t ion .   The Cha i r  o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  had la te r  tha t  even ing  ca l led  me to  br ie f  me  

about  what  had t ransp i red .   And th is  I  repor ted  –  i t  is  in  my 

s ta tement  to  the  Par l iamentary  Inqu i ry  on  Governance a t  

Eskom.    

 Cha i r,  the  –  Mr  Mole fe  –  tha t  i s  why I  thought  

Ms Magadz i ,  D ike led i  Magadz i ,  the  Deputy  Min i s te r  o f  

Transpor t  he  wou ld  have conveyed th is  to  the  commi t tee  10 

dur ing  the  tes t imony.   He sa id  on  tha t  ve ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  po in t  tha t  you want  to  te l l  me 

about ,  Mr  Montana,  i s  the  po in t  to  suppor t  what  you say,  

namely,  tha t  you got  an  impress ion  a t  some s tage tha t  they 

had been appo in ted  to  ge t  r id  o f  you.  

MR MONTANA :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you are  say ing  i t  i s  an  impress ion .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  bu t  no t  when they ar r i ved.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja  la te r.   Tha t  i s  what  I  mean.  

MR MONTANA :    Over  a  per iod  o f  t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Then a  lo t  o f  th ings have happened 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . inc lud ing  to  what  she  to ld  to  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 156 of 335 
 

Ms Magadz i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . tha t  Lucky is  there  to  s tea l  fo r  Zuma.   

That  i s  what  they  sa id  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.   Tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    And un less  –  i f  you  look a t  my a f f idav i t  

where  I  d id  te l l  these th ings,  you then not  unders tand. . .   

So,  f i rs t l y,  here  is  the  –  or  the  board  has no t  taken a  

dec is ion  tha t  he  must  inves t iga te  th is  pa r t i cu la r  

commi t tee(? ) .   I t  i s  ment ioned in  Par l iament .   I  hear  i t  fo r  10 

the  f i rs t  t ime.   Th ree months  in to  the  te rm,  who was  

appo in ted  to  do  th is  invest iga t ion?   What  a re  the  te rms o f  

re fe rence?  That  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue,  Cha i r.  

 Second ly,  the  cha i r  o f  the  commi t tee  comes and 

says:   Your  cha i rman says there  is  go ing  to  be  an  

invest iga t ion  because you do work  fo r  –  you are  s tea l ing  –  

you are  do ing  cont rac ts  fo r  Zuma.   And Cha i r,  when you  

look a t  the  documents  –  on  Werksmans.   Werksmans t rus t  

invest iga t ion .   I t  i s  on  the  cont rac t .   And tha t  i s  no t  a  

co inc idence o f  h is to ry.   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  ro l l -ou t .   20 

 So my impress ion ,  Cha i r.   I  th ink ,  under  the  

c i rcumstances,  a re  we l l - founded .   They are  no t  jus t  

someth ing  where  Mr  Mole fe  ar r i ve  and I  do  no t  t rus t  h im.   I  

see h is  ac t ions ,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  I  say  I  respect  to  

work  w i th  h im,  I  see what  he  is  do ing .   And i t  i s  reasonab le  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   So,  bas ica l l y,  you are  

say ing .   You are  no t  ab le  to  say de f in i t i ve ly  tha t  the  

purpose o f  the  appo in tment  was to  ge t  r id  o f  you but  you  

say a f te r  some t ime you deve loped –  you ga ined the  

impress ion  tha t  was the  purpose?  

MR MONTANA :    That  wou ld  be  fa i r  summat ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .   Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   

Mr  Mole fe  in  pa ragraphs 30 and 31 says,  more  o r  less ,  10 

what  you sa id  tha t  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween you and h im 

s tar ted  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    I  am t ry ing  to  f ind  the  page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Oh,  sor ry.   Page 9 ,  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA :    Page 9  o f  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    O f  the  a f f idav i t .  

MR MONTANA :    Ja ,  okay?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Paragraphs 30 and 31.   We can go –  

I  mean,  tha t  i s  –  i t  i s  what  bo th  o f  you seem to  ag ree on.    

MR MONTANA :    Okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Then he in  pa ragraph 32 he  

dea ls  w i th  the  appo in tment  o f  Werksmans A t to rneys and 

says tha t  tha t  appo in tment  was brought  about  because o f  

cer ta in  recommendat ions made by  the  AG in  h is  repor t .   

A re  you aware  o f  tha t ,  the  appo in tment  o f  Werksmans to 
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conduct  the  invest iga t ion  tha t  the  AG repor t  has requ i red?   

Are  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    A re  you ask ing  me about  the  appo in tment  

o f  Werksmans?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  no .   I  am say ing  tha t  the  reason 

tha t  somebody was appo in ted ,  no t  Werksmans themse lves,  

was because the  AG had requ i red  fo rens i c  invest iga t ions.   

A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r.   The on ly  th ing  I  know is  that  

the  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  o f  course ,  had  10 

recommended tha t  cont rac ts  o f  R  10 mi l l ion  and above be  

invest iga ted  and then la te r  the  AG’s  o f f i ce .   Yes,  I  th ink  d id  

the  –  d id  make  i t  on  recommendat ion  around tha t .   I  

thought  Min is te r  Peters  dea l t  w i th  the  issue about  how to  

combine these invest iga t ions and a l l  o f  those th ings.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   So are  you in  a  pos i t ion  to  say  

tha t  tha t  i s  no t  the  reason why fo rens ic  i nvest iga t ions – I  

am not  say ing  Werksmans was proper ly  –  tha t  i s  no t  my  

po in t .   I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  fo rens ic  

invest iga to rs ,  accord ing  to  Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  tha t  the  AG’s  20 

repor t  had requ i red .    

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  we are  no t  go ing  to  go  a round th is  

i ssue because I  th ink  and natu ra l l y  i t  requ i red  in  my 

a f f idav i t  because  I  dea l  w i th  i t  and I  have used the  te rm 

in fo rmat ion .   There  a re  two th ings here .   The  Pub l ic  
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P ro tec tor  i s  very  spec i f i c  and who shou ld  be  appo in ted  to  

look  a t  th is  and  th is .   And second ly,  we know tha t  the  

Min is te r  o f  Transpor t ,  and she sa id  here ,  oppose th is  th ing  

and sa id :   I  met  w i th  the  AG a t  the  a i rpor t  w i th  Mr  Mole fe .   

The AG –  we then agreed tha t  le t  us  conso l ida te  th is  

repor t ,  th is  inves t iga t ion  under  the  Treasury  invest iga t ion ,  

as  i t  were .    

 A t  tha t  t ime,  i f  you  look a t  the  amount  tha t  has 

been spent  on  i nvest iga t ion  –  ac tua l l y,  the  amount  was 

even less  and then subsequent ly  –  so  Cha i r,  even  i f  we 10 

wanted to  do  tha t ,  the  –  I  am very  c lear  about  the  

appo in tment  o f  Werksmans and tha t  i s  why I  wou ld  love  

Werksmans to  c ross-examine me because o f  many  o f  the 

l ies  tha t  Werksmans has even to ld ,  p resented fo r  the i r  own  

appo in tment  in  b lack  and wh i te .    

 I  th ink  tha t  –  so  I  am inv i t ing  them to  come and 

cross-examine.   I  w i l l  be  more  than happy Cha i r  because I  

th ink  we w i l l  have  a  great  day w i th  the i r  teams.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   Le t  us  leave because we know 

tha t  Werksmans  issue. . .   [Speaker  i s  unc lea r. ]   As  the  20 

Cha i rperson has  sa id  a l ready,  ev idence has been  led  on 

tha t  and obv ious ly  you want  to  lead ev idence.   Can we 

leave tha t  as ide  fo r  today?  

MR MONTANA :    Today,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And dea l  w i th  i t  whenever.   Wel l ,  
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cer ta in ly  now.   Not  fo r  today.  

MR MONTANA :    Thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Okay.   And then he po in t s  ou t  tha t  

there  were  d i f f i cu l t ies  bu t  le t  us  jus t  leave out  a l l  the  

issues ra i sed in  paragraph 32 about  the  appo in tment  o f  

Werksmans.   And  I  w i l l  make a  no te  tha t  th is  i s  s t i l l  to  be  

dea l t  w i th .   And you w i l l  ge t  a  fu l l  oppor tun i ty  to  p resent  

every th ing  you want .    

MR MONTANA :    Can I  h igh l igh t  on  paragraph 31?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  yes .  10 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  the  s ta tement  tha t  has been made 

–  and th i s  i s  impor tan t  because a t  a  la te r  s tage I  want  to  

dea l  w i th  th is  mat te r  about  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor.   Mr  Mole fe  

says the  invest iga t ions in to  PRASA,  par t i cu la r l y  the  CEO,  

Mr  Montana,  I  am hop ing  tha t  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  lead 

ev idence on tha t  because you w i l l  see  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  ho ld  on  one second.   Paragraph 31  

says:  

“Soon thereaf te r  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  re leased 

her  repor t  on  he r  invest iga t ion  in to  compla in ts  20 

made by  employees aga ins t  PRASA’s  

management  in  par t i cu la r  the  CEO,  Mr  

Montana. . . ”  

 That  i s  what  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  I  say  a t  a  la te r  s tage we want  to  
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dea l  w i th  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r.   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  in  today ’s  

s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    Because I  fee l  tha t  par t  o f  the  process is  

to  p resent  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  as  i t  is  about  

Montana.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    And Cha i r,  I ,  in  fac t  as  a  mat te r  o f  fac t ,  

tha t  repor t  d id  no t  make any f ind ing  o f  cor rup t ion  and 

ac tua l l y  the re  a re  very  few ins tances where  I  fea ture .   She  10 

dea ls  w i th  employees,  the  i r regu lar i t ies  in  the  –  bu t  no t  –  

bu t  i f  you  l i s ten ,  you read now th is  repor t  i s  a  damning  

repor t  on  Montana and every th ing  and I  read th is ,  Cha i r,  

and say –  and the  med ia  repeats  t hese l ies  w i thout  read ing  

and shar ing  the  fac ts  o f  the  –  so  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  want  to  

take  i t  ou t  a t  the  r igh t  t ime when I  p resent  my own 

a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  i t  m igh t  be 

one o f  those th ings you wou ld  no te  fo r  la te r.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  fo r  now so  tha t  I  do  no t  d is tu rb  the  20 

t ra in  o f  thought  o f  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   Then a t  pa ragraphs 33 the  

po in ts  a re  to  two cont rac ts  t ha t  were  rev iewed and se t  

as ide ,  the  Swi fambo cont rac t  and  the  S iyangena cont rac t .   

Now aga in  I  wou ld  ask  tha t  we jus t  leave tha t  because I  
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have some spec i f i c  quest ions based on the  f ind ings  o f  the  

board .   Now in  the  las t  sentence o f  paragraph 33 he re fers  

to  Mr  Roy Mood ley  and then in  the  next  sec t ion  o f  h is  

a f f idav i t  he  dea ls  w i th  Mr  Roy Mood ley.   Before  we dea l  

w i th  what  Mr  Mole fe  says,  le t  me ask you,  d id  you know Mr  

Roy Mood ley?  

MR MONTANA:    As  CFO of  PRASA? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  I  d id  know h im,  Cha i r,  I  knew h im.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wel l?  10 

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  know we l l ,  Cha i r,  I  know h im,  he  

was cont rac ted  to  PRASA long before  so  he  was one o f  the  

key secur i t y  r i sk  company I  th ink  Roya l  Secur i t y  p rov ided 

serv i ces .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  I  am on ly  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

those mat te rs  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  invo lves PRASA wi thout  

hon ing  i n  on  Mr  Mole fe  because  you have read he says 

tha t  Mr  Mood ley  t r ied  to  captu re  h im,  tha t  i s  what  he  says 

bu t  you a re  no t  here  to  de fend Mr  Mood ley,  and  I  wou ld  

hope not ,  bu t  the  on ly  po in t  I  am mak ing  is  you cannot  add 20 

anyth ing  to  i t  so  I  am go ing  to  conf ine  my ques t ions in  

respect  o f  Mr  Mood ley  who these issues,  the  ones a t  

parag raph 34 and  35.  

MR MONTANA:    I  can  add,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  can  add.   

Aga in ,  you know,  I  was taken aback when I  l i s ted  to  Mr  
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Mo le fe  ta lk ing  about  Mr  Mood ley.   Cha i r,  i t  was l i ke  th is  

and they even agreed to  go  and  p lay  go l f  together,  they 

to ld .   They were  l i ke  th is ,  Cha i r.   These same ones are  

group ing(?)  and today I  sa id ,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on.  

MR MONTANA:    So  I  want  to  say,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  Mr  Mood ley,  you see,  the  t ransc r ip t  

w i l l  no t  show th i s .   So you mean they were  c lose ,  they  

were  f r iends.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  they  were  to ld  a t  some s tage –  Mr  10 

Mole fe  to ld  me tha t  h im and Mr  Mood ley,  they are  go ing  to  

t rave l  together  to  the  US to  p lay  the  go l f  event .   I  do  no t  

p lay  go l f ,  I  have  never  p layed go l f ,  I  was a  caddy  fo r  12  

years  and i t  was  a t  a  t ime when p layers ,  wh i te  p layers  in  

par t i cu la r,  wou ld  pay you based on how they p layed the  

game,  tha t  I  rea l ly  cannot  p ick  up ,  I  was a  caddy and tha t  

i s  why I  do  no t  the  way I  hear  my o the r  execut ives  they  

were  go ing  to  p lay  go l f .   I  take  the  v iew o f  a  caddy,  I  do  

no t  go  to  –  so  they were  f l y ing ,  Cha i r,  they  wanted  –  they 

p lanned a  t r ip  whether  to  the  UK,  the  US together  and then 20 

I  come and s i t  he re ,  I  hear  tha t  Mr  Mood ley  t r ied  to  capture  

Mr  Mole fe .   Very  in te res t ing .   Very  in te res t ing ,  Cha i r.   I  can  

–  tha t  i s  the  best  I  can say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Son i .   Wel l ,  I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  d id  

g ive  some ev idence re la t ing  to  …[ in tervenes]  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The US Masters .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes ,  ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He says in  t he  second sentence,  tha t  

i s  in  the  m idd le  o f  paragraph 34 –  remember  th i s  i s  the i r  

S ta te  Captu re  Commiss ion  or  the  S ta te  Captu re  

Commiss ion  and he says:  

“ In  my exper ience these captors  are  the  dec is ion-

makers  so  tha t  they can d i rec t  cont rac ts  and 

u l t imate ly  money to  favour  compan ies  or  

ind iv idua ls .   As  I  de ta i l  immedia te ly  hereunder,  the  10 

conduct  o f  Mr  Mood ley  i s  a  c lear  example  o f  th is  

method o f  opera t i on . ”  

That  i s  Mr  Mole fe ’s  v iew.   I  am not  ask ing  you to  comment ,  

I  am jus t  in t roduc ing  Mr  Mood ley  in to  th is  contex t .   He says  

a t  paragraph 35:  

“ I  d id  no t  know Mr  Mood ley  un t i l  I  was appo in ted  to  

PRASA’s  board . ”  

A re  you ab le  to  d ispute  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  I  do  no t  know the i r  re la t ionsh ip  

be fore  tha t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  he says:  

“And soon thereaf te r  I  no ted  the  name o f  Roy  

Mood ley  was on the  l ips  o f  many a t  PRASA. ”  

I s  tha t  an  impress ion  you got  as  we l l?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  i s  very  in te res t ing  
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tha t  –  i t  i s  very  i n te res t ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  th is  po in t  i s  made  

by  Mr  Mood ley,  bu t  i t  i s  a lso  made by  Mr  Fan i  D ing iswayo  

in  h is  a f f idav i t .   So i t  i s  no t  co inc idence,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Ms Ngoy i  …[ in te rvenes]3  

CHAIRPERSON :    You meant  Mr  Mole fe ,  you sa id  Mood ley.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Fan i  

D ing iswayo.   They both  make th is  po in t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  no ,  I  unders tand what  you  

say bu t  inadver ten t ly  you sa id  i t  i s  funny tha t  th is  po in t  i s  

made by  Mr  Mood ley  and Mr  Fan i  D ing iswayo.  10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  was meant  to  say Mr  

Mole fe  and I  apo log ise .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  what  I  mean,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  was meant  to  say Mr  –  and,  Cha i r,  the 

po in t  –  I  know tha t  [ ind is t inc t ]  here ,  I  do  no t  want  to  

respond to  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  bo th  in  my a f f idav i t  and  in  my 

s ta tement  today  –  you see,  the  proper  names o f  s ta te  

capture ,  i f  you  look a t  what  he  says,  you look  a t  the 20 

tes t imony o f  Min i s te r  Prav in  Gordhan in  October  2018,  he  

makes s im i la r  po in ts .   So th is  i s  an  ideo logy,  i t  i s  no t  an  

ob jec t i ve  th ing .   Mr  Mood ley,  who d id  he  in f luence because 

Mr  Mood ley  was  appo in ted  I  th ink  in  Ra i lways i n  a round 

1991 when I  check the  h i s to ry  o f  tha t  company.   So who d id  
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he  use money to  pay to  appo in t  h im?  Because  he was 

appo in ted  –  I  was not  eve r  p robab ly  bo rn ,  I  was  not  a t  

PRASA.   There  was no PRASA a t  tha t  t ime.   Met roRai l  was 

not  even known by i t s  name,  i t  was s t i l l  par t  o f  Transnet .   

So I  th ink  he  mus t  come and exp la in .    

 So,  i f  you  make tha t  po in t ,  make i t  more  concre te  to  

say we th ink  Mood ley  pa id  Montana o r  pa id  to  ge t  th is  

cont rac t  bu t  you a lso  have to ld  us  tha t  be fore  Montana was 

born  Mood ley  was a t  PRASA a t  Transnet  o r  Ra i lways in  

1991,  no t  –  I  on ly  jo ined PRASA in  2006,  the  South  A f r i can  10 

Ra i l  Commute r  Corpora t ion  in  2006.   Mood ley  was a l ready 

hav ing  a  cont rac t  fo r  over  10  years ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i rperson.   Then he 

says:  

“Some employees desc r ibed Mr  Mood ley  as  the  

owner  o f  PRASA. ”  

Are  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    I  may –  i f ,  as  a  CEO,  I  do  no t  know tha t  

bu t  the  cha i rman,  non-execut ive  cha i rman,  Cha i r,  knows  20 

tha t  employees a t  PRASA –  I  mean,  how do you measure  

tha t?   Which  employees,  in  wh ich  depot ,  in  wh ich  s ta t ion  

sa id  tha t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  your  answer  i s  you do not  know.  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know but  I  am ask ing  
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myse l f ,  i t  ra ises  d i f fe ren t  quest ions tha t  i s  here  is  a  

cha i rman who goes around get t ing  to  s ta t ions,  ask ing  

employees and where  d id  they cha l lenge(?)  th is  th ink ,  

Cha i r?   I s  th is  ev idence,  i s  i t  s ta te  capture  where  we are  

to ld  rumours  and hearsay because tha t  i s  what  he  is  say ing  

here .   Which  employees?  I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  what  the  

Commiss ion  shou ld  do ,  shou ld  ask  Mr  Mole fe  to  p rov ide  

de ta i l s  and we get  those employees to  come and  tes t i f y  

here  or  e l se  i t  i s  hearsay,  Cha i r,  I  cannot  reca l l  to  hearsay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana,  I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  10 

in  law i t  i s  no t  whethe r  Mr  Mood ley  was the  owner,  i t  i s  

where  the  peop le  descr ibed h im and to ld  Mr  Mole fe .   That  

i s  in  i ssue [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .   So when you say  

i t  i s  hearsay,  o f  course  i t  i s ,  bu t  i t  does not  mean i t  i s  

inadmiss ib le  in  l aw.   I  am jus t  mak ing  tha t  po in t  so  tha t  you 

unders tand the  contex t  in  wh ich  Mr  Mole fe ’s  ev idence on  

th is  i ssue is  [ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Mr  Son i ,  does i t  no t  surp r ise  you tha t  

me,  Lucky Montana,  who was then the  Group CEO of  

PRASA does not  know about  th is  issue.   I t  i s  someone who  20 

is  fu l l t ime and then someone who is  supposed to  come 

there  once in  th ree  months ,  he  in te rac t s  w i th  these 

employees,  he  knows i t .   I  mean,  I  jus t  f ind  i t  odd,  I  f ind  i t  

very  s t range.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  okay.   So …[ in tervenes]  
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MR MONTANA:    So  I  am not  say ing  i t  i s  fa lse .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  am say ing  I  f ind  i t  very  odd,  as  a  

non-execut ive  cha i rman.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you were  no t  aware  o f  such.  

MR MONTANA:    I  was not  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  i s  why each t ime  I  kept  

ask ing  you are  you aware ,  and tha t  i s  a l l  tha t . . .  Says:  

“ I  was to ld  tha t  he  had severa l  compan ies  wh ich  10 

prov ided serv ices  to  PRASA rang ing  f rom secur i t y  

in  the  fo rm o f  Roya l  Secur i t y  to  adver t i s ing  th rough 

a  f i rm ca l led  S t rawberry  Walks . ”  

A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    O f  S t rawberry  Works?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    I  am aware  o f  them,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Roya l  Secur i t y?  

MR MONTANA:    Roya l  Secur i t y,  Cha i r,  I  am say ing  is  

be ing  do ing  work  in  Ra i lways s ince  1991.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t ,  I  mean,  you are  aware  tha t  Mr  

Mood ley  is  assoc ia ted  w i th  them.  

MR MONTANA:    He is  an  assoc ia te?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  I  say  he  is  assoc ia ted  w i th  tha t  

company.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    He was assoc ia ted  w i th  i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Wi th  Roya l  –  no ,  no ,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  know 

tha t ,  I  am wel l -aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     

“ I  wou ld  go  so  fa r  as  to  say tha t  i f  one d id  no t  know 

Mr  Mood ley  one  wou ld  eas i l y  m is take h im fo r  an  

execut ive  manager  o f  PRASA.   I  was to ld  tha t  he  

wou ld  o f ten  wa lk  a round w i th  managers  in  the i r  

work  env i ronment  a lmost  as  i f  he  were  the  PRASA 

manager. ”  10 

You are  no t  aware  o f  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Son i ,  do  you  be l ieve  th is  s ta tement?   

And le t  us  look  a t  th is  – Cha i r,  le t  us  look a t  th is  

s ta tement .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  I  am ask ing  a  d i f fe ren t  

quest ion .   So [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  am –  I  can  –  Cha i r,  I  am not  aware  

bu t  I  can see tha t  i s  a  very  fa lse  s ta tement .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    You say tha t  maybe a  cont rac tor  may 20 

have unfa i r  advantage but  to  say tha t  go ing  as  fa r  as  

wa lk ing  in  the  workp lace is  l i ke  h im serve  as  a  manager.   I  

th ink ,  Cha i r,  i s  –  i s  th is  the  PRASA I  know?  I  do  no t  th ink 

we a re  ta lk ing  about  the  same o rgan isa t ion  here .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Then he says a t  pa rag raph 37:  
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“Shor t l y  a f te r  my appo in tment  Mr  Mood ley,  who 

appeared to  know o f  my love  fo r  go l f  inv i ted  me to  a  

go l f  day he  had ar ranged and  tha t  wou ld  be  

a t tended by  Mr  Montana.   D id  you a t tend any ha l f  

days o rgan ised by  Mr  Mood ley?”  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  no t  a t  a l l .   I  do  no t  p lay  

go l f ,  I  do  no t  go  to  those events .   I  have never  been –  the  

las t  t ime I  was a t  the  go l f  course  was when I  was a  caddy  

a t  the  I rene Count ry  C lub  in  Pre tor ia .   I  used to  ge t  in to  a  

t ra in  a t  Eers te  Fabr iek  and Mamelod i  and then t rave l  back,  10 

Cha i r.   So th is  th ing  about  go l fs ,  Roy Mood ley,  they have  

got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  me,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  the i r  d iscuss ion  and I  

th ink  the  two o f  them must  come and te l l  the  Cha i r  how d id  

they meet ,  wh ich  go l f ,  who was pay ing  fo r  those  th ings.   

They have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  me,  I  was never  invo lved 

in  any go l f  ac t i v i t y  w i th  Mr  Mood ley.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   May I  ask  you then to  look  a t  

parag raph 33 where  he  says tha t  Mr  Mood ley  inv i ted  h im to 

the  Durban Ju ly,  I  th ink  i t  was in  2015.   

“There  was an a t tempt  to  persuade me to  a t tend.   20 

Mr  Mood ley  to ld  me tha t  then Pres ident  Zuma and  

Min is te r  Je f f  Radebe and o ther  m in i s te rs  had 

accepted the  inv i ta t ion  and were  h is  guests  a t  the  

event  every  year. ”  

A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 171 of 335 
 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Have you  ever  a t tended any Ju ly  

event  tha t  Mr  Mood ley hosted?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  have a t tended the  1  Ju ly.   

I  was inv i ted  by  Vodacom and I  a lso  had a  su i te  the re .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  never  by  Mr  Mood ley?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  no ,  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

Mr  Mood ley,  th is  was a  –  probab ly  I  d id  no t  know Mr  

Mood ley  a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Mr  Montana,  to  take  the  10 

process fo rward ,  in  the  res t  o f  th is  sec t ion  o f  the  a f f idav i t  

un t i l  paragraph 45 Mr  Montana (s ic )  e f fec t i ve ly  says tha t  

Mr  Mood ley  wanted to  pay fo r  h i s  t r ip  to  a  go l f  tou rnament  

ca l led  the  Maste rs  in  Augusta  in  t he  Un i ted  S ta tes .   I  am 

jus t  p lac ing  on  record  tha t  he  does make the  po in t  tha t  Mr  

Mood ley  wanted to  go  –  he  d id  no t  want  to  go  w i th  Mr  

Mood ley  and then Mr  Mood ley  d ropped o f f  and he went  o f f  

on  h is  own.   I  am jus t  p lac ing  tha t  on  reco rd  so  tha t  we 

know the  issue you have ra ised here .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  know tha t ,  I  do  no t  know the  20 

deta i l s  bu t  Mr  Mole fe  d id  te l l  me about  the  fac t  tha t  they  

are  ta lk ing  about  the  US,  who pa id ,  who was go ing ,  I  was  

never  par ty  to  i t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    And le t  us  look a t  paragraph 46 now,  th is  
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i s  now we have f in ished w i th  tha t  sec t ion  on  Mr  Mood ley  

because i t  does not  –  i t  i s  no t  a  mat te r  on  wh ich  i t  wou ld  

be  fa i r  to  ask  you  to  comment .   So paragraph 46 he says:  

“A f te r  be ing  appo in ted ,  the  new board  was ser ious 

about  d ischarg ing  i t s  f iduc ia ry  du t ies .   The Pub l i c  

Pro tec tor  in  he r  repor t  Dera i l ed  had exposed 

i r regu lar i t ies  and  mal feasance a t  PRASA and the  

board  was determined to  ho ld  management  

accountab le . ”  

Now tha t  i s  h is  v iew,  I  am jus t  se t t ing  i t  ou t  here .   He says:  10 

“ In  my v iew i t  is  th is  de terminat ion  tha t  led  to  a  

s t ra ined re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  board  and Mr  

Montana and an inev i tab le  fa l lou t . ”  

Now is  tha t  an  impress ion  you w i l l  share?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know,  i t  i s  h is  v iew,  bu t  i t  

i s  fac tua l l y  incor rec t ,  I  mean the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  repor t  

was re leased,  Cha i r,  in  August ,  I  had a l ready le f t  PRASA in  

August  2015 so  how can a  repor t  tha t  was re leased  a f te r  I  

have le f t  be  the  bas i s  o f  a  fa l lou t?   I t  i s  so  i l l og ica l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

MR MONTANA:    So  on a fac tua l  –  so  whatever  v iew he  

has tha t  he  was  there  to  ho ld  peop le  –  bu t  then te l l  us 

about  o ther  th ings,  no t  the  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  –  because i t  

was wr i t ten  in  August ,  I  le f t  in  Ju ly.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:    And th is  invest iga t ion  was ongo ing  before  

Mr  Mole fe  became a  Cha i rman o f  PRASA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   I  w i l l  jus t  [ ind is t inc t ]  you  

aga in  fo r  the  purposes o f  unders tand ing  what  the  

d i f fe rence between you and Mr  Mole fe  i s .   Mr  Mole fe  says  

the  fa l lou t  be tween you and h im occur red  because he t r ied  

to  ho ld  management  –  he  and h is  board  t r ied  to  ho ld  

management  accountab le .   You are  say ing  no ,  i t  was 

because he had  a  predetermined agenda,  i f  I  can  put  i t  

[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  10 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  ho ld ing  management  accountab le ,  

does not  requ i re  someone spec ia l  fo r  tha t .   The  

management  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  Mr  Montana,  I  am sor ry,  I  am 

ask ing  you a  d i f fe ren t  –  so  my quest ion  is  th is ,  he  says you 

–  the  fa l lou t  was because he t r ied  to  ho ld  you accountab le ,  

you g ive  a  d i f fe ren t  reason.   I s  tha t  a  fa i r  assessment  o f  

your  d i f fe rence?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  no .   I ssue o f  the  accountab i l i t y  

does not  fea ture .   Ear ly  in  the  morn ing  Mr  Son i  asked a  20 

quest ion  about  th is  i ssue o f  repor ts ,  me  ho ld ing  

in fo rmat ion .   I  dea l t  w i th  the  issue  o f  accountab i l i t y.   As  a  

CEO,  I  am accountab le  to  the  board ,  i t  appo in t s  me,  I  am 

accountab le  to  t he  board .   I t  does not  requ i re  a  spec ia l  

person because tha t  i s  what  Mr  Mole fe  i s  t ry ing  to  –  our  
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d isagreement ,  Cha i r,  had to  do  w i th  o the r  i ssues tha t  I  

have l i s ted  and I  th ink  we can eva lua te  the  in fo rmat ion ,  

l i ke  in  th is  paragraph,  Cha i r,  you can see tha t  Mr  Mole fe  in  

t ry ing  to  re t ro f i t  and  g ive  the  th ing ,  he  ac tua l l y  may g ive  

you –  he  exposes a  th ing  tha t  the  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  –  i t   was re leased a f te r  I  have le f t ,  so  how d id  he  

know tha t  th is  repor t  tha t  –  I  have  le f t  PRASA,  I  was not  a t  

PRASA when th i s  repor t  was re leased in  Augus t .   So 

fac tua l l y,  Cha i r,  you can see tha t  –  he  sa id  I  made a  

m is take or  he  jus t  does not  know what  he  is  ta lk ing  about .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Le t  me te l l  you  what  –  and  p lease  

l i s ten  to  the  quest ion ,  i t  w i l l  make i t  much eas ie r,  Mr  

Montana.   You have a  g iven a  reason fo r  the  fa l lou t .   Now 

Mr  Mole fe  i s  g iv ing  a  d i f fe ren t  reason.   I  am jus t  say ing  

tha t  i s  i t  fa i r  to  say  tha t  tha t  i s  one o f  the  areas o f  

d i f fe rences between you and Mr  Mole fe ,  what  caused the  

fa l lou t .   We know there  as  a  fa l lou t .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  have ar t i cu la ted  th is  t h ing  I  th ink  

today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink  you have d i f fe ren t  reasons.   20 

You have g iven your  reasons.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Mole fe  says i t  i s  because you  d id  no t  
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want  to  be  he ld  accountab le  and you say tha t  i s  no t  t rue .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  am say ing  i t  i s  no t  t rue ,  bu t  I  am 

say ing  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  o f  course  look  a t  the  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A p ic tu re  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    A t  the  sequence  o f  events  and the  fac ts  

and a l l  o f  those th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Inc lud ing  what  i s  I  am say ing  fac tua l l y  

inco r rec t  tha t  Cha i rman is  p ro jec t ing  h imse l f  as  a  10 

champion o f  accountab i l i t y  and then even br ings a  repor t  

tha t  came a f te r  I  have le f t .   So,  Cha i r,  you may  chase  

Montana but… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Rea l ly,  a f te r  I  have even le f t  PRASA there  

is  a  repor t  tha t  cont inues to  cause a  s t ra in  be tween me 

and Mr  Mole fe .   I  mean,  there  you  can see i t  in  b lack  and 

wh i te .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    So  i t  te l l s  you  tha t  th is  i s  an  abso lu te  20 

fabr ica t ion ,  Cha i r,  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  i s  busy w i th .   And I  am 

not  –  I  hear  the  po in t  you are  mak ing .   But  I  am go ing  to  – 

you can see,  the re  i t  i s  in  the  paragraph tha t  here  is  a  man 

who is  t ry ing  to  f ind  reasons a f te r  the  fac t  and he even 

fo rgo t  tha t  th is  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  repor t  was issued –  and I  
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am very  c lear  on  th is  i ssue,  okay?   And I  have sa id  ear l ie r  

on ,  Cha i r,  tha t  the  b iggest   -  what  ac tua l l y  the  f ina l  s t raw 

a f te r  a l l  o f  those th ings,  you asked me d id  the  Knysna 

meet ing ,  you know… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Was a  tu rn ing  po in t .  

MR MONTANA:    Was a  tu rn ing  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR MONTANA:    I  sa id  no ,  the  tu rn ing  po in t  was  when I  

ins t ruc ted  PRASA not  to  pay,  to  te rm inate  the  cont rac t  w i th  

SA Fence and Gate  and recover  a l l  the  money.   A f te r  SA 10 

Fence and Gate  and Gates had rece ived payments  

approved i r regu lar ly  by  Ms Ngoy i  and then they pa id  in to  

the  foundat ion  t rus t  o f  Popo Mole fe .   I  have asked th is  

Commiss ion  bu t  l e t  us  subpoena the  accounts  o f  Mr  Mole fe  

and h i s  foundat ion ,  Cha i r,  you are  go ing  to  see –  you are  

go ing  to  see tha t  peop le  who come here  and accuse o f  

cor rup t ion  a re  in  fac t  the  most  cor rup t .   I  am jus t  ask ing  

th is  Commiss ion ,  go  there  and you w i l l  see  tha t  who is  

pay ing  and you ask  yourse l f ,  Cha i rman,  come back he re  

and exp la in  to  us  how is  i t  poss ib le  tha t  compan ies  20 

cont rac ted  to  PRASA are  pay ing  in to  your  foundat ion?  And  

most  o f  in  my ev idence –  in  my a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r,  you know 

what  happens a f te r  they pa id?   The va lue  o f  the  cont rac ts  

goes up.   So the  more  you pay –  i t  i s  a  very  sys temat ic  

scheme tha t  Mr  Mole fe  ran  a t  PRASA.   I t  i s  a  cor rup t  
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scheme,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  in  v io la t ion  –  I  even say in  my a f f idav i t ,  

i t  i s  ac tua l l y,  i f  you  ta l k  about  the  prevent ion  –  the  

PRECCA Act .   

 I f  you  look a t  the  Popo Mole fe  Deve lopment  

Foundat ion  you w i l l  f ind  the  ev idence o f  g ra t i f i ca t ion  and 

a l l  o f  –  i t  i s  there  in  the  ev idence.   And th is  Commiss ion ,  I  

w i l l  ask ,  Cha i r,  the  invest iga tors ,  they go  and take  22 page  

repor ts  wr i t ten  by  Pau l  O ’Su l l i van  and tha t ,  they  do  not  

invest iga te  because they are  chas ing  us  bu t  rea l l y  

invest iga t ions are  to  be  under taken.   L ike  in  th is  i ns tance,  10 

the  Commiss ion  –  I  was to ld  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  subpoena  

my accounts  wh ich  were  a l ready  c lose  by  ABSA but  i t  

cannot  ge t  where  money f lows,  Cha i r.  

 So,  Mr  Son i ,  the  reason tha t  he  is  –  he  is  t ry ing  to  

c rea te  as  i f ,  you  know,  ou t  there  in  pub l i c  we  shou ld  

be l ieve  tha t  no ,  they are  jus t  d isagreements  be tween Mr  

Mole fe  and the  th ings on  mat te rs  about  –  no ,  you  had a 

man –  Cha i r,  I  am a  very  s t ra igh t  man and you have got  

someone who was invo lved in  schemes and you w i l l  see  i t  

i s  in  b lack  and what  where  bo th  M in is te r  D ipuo Peters ,  Mr  20 

Wi l lem Steenkamp wi th  –  and Popo Mole fe  were  t ry ing  to  

fo rce  me to  pay  a  company tha t  fa i led  to  de l i ve r  on  i t s  

p ro jec t  and tha t  goes –  so  i t  goes  and make donat ions and  

then they come back and say increase the  va lue  and when 

do they increase the  va lue  and when do they increase the  
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va lue  o f  th is  cont rac t?   Not  when I  was there ,  I  go  on  

leave,  Mar tha  Ngoy i ,  when she was here ,  Cha i r,  she to ld  

you about  every th ing ,  bu t  she d id  no t  te l l  you  about  her  

ro le  in  th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r  and why I  had to  take  ac t ion  

aga ins t  he r.   So i t  i s  no t  t rue ,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  I  unders tand.  

MR MONTANA:    I  want  to  be  ve ry  f i rm and w i l l  become 

very  c lear  because the  Commiss ion  is  go ing  to  r igh t  

sweethear t (? )  repor t  tha t  no ,  we th ink  there  was a  fa l lou t ,  

Mr  Montana was go ing  le f t .   No.   There  were  wrong th ings  10 

tha t  were  be ing  done,  Cha i r,  and some o f  them I  – I  pu t  my 

foo t  down and say they w i l l  never  happen and SA Fence  

and Gates,  I  d id  no t  on ly  cance l ,  I  ins t ruc ted  the  CEO I  

want  us  to  recover  the  money tha t  was pa id  i r regu lar ly  to  

th is  company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Las t  t ime,  Mr  Son i ,  when Mr  Mole fe  was 

here ,  there  was ar rangement  in  te rms o f  wh ich  he  was to  

f i le  a  fu r ther  a f f idav i t  dea l ing  w i th  cer ta in  mat te rs .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Has tha t  been f i led?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  has been f i led ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  i t  d id  no t  dea l  w i th  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wi l l  obv ious l y  have to  dea l  w i th  i t  

once Mr  Montana ’s  a f f idav i t  has  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  

vo i ce ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  he  must  dea l  w i th  i t .   I  know I  do  

no t  have the  au thor i t y,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  your  au thor i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  he  must  dea l  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    I  do  no t  know how he is  go ing  to  exp la in  10 

compan ies  cont rac ted  to  PRASA – not  on ly  a t  PRASA,  

Cha i r,  the  recent  one has been in  par l iamen t  where  

Min is te r  Gordhan  was answer ing  a  quest ion  f rom the  EFF,  

why compan ies  cont rac ted  to  Transnet ,  M &  S ,  pa id  in  

excess o f  a  m i l l ion  to  the  Foundat ion  Trus t .   Here  is  a  

Cha i rman o f  a  company,  he  to ld  you,  Cha i r,  he  was a  

paragon o f  t ru th ,  o f  good governance when he was  s i t t ing 

there ,  he  was te l l ing  you and,  Cha i r,  you even sa id  the  

count ry  needs a  man l i ke  you and I  sa id  my t ime i s  coming,  

I  want  to  te l l  DCJ  about  d i rec t  cor rup t  ac t i v i t ies .   We are  –  20 

there  is  the  ins inuat ion  Montana d id  th is  and tha t ,  there  is  

money in  h i s  account .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Yes,  cont inue,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  Mr  Montana,  jus t  to  ge t  th is  

po in t ,  we know tha t  there  was a  fa l lou t .   In  pa rag raphs 47 

and  -  what  47  rea l l y  g ives  de ta i l s ,  Mr  Mole fe  de ta i l s  

d i f fe ren t  aspects  o f  tha t  fa l lou t .   We need not  dea l  w i th  

tha t  because we  know you have d i f fe ren t  v iews on i t  and 

fo r  p resent  purposes we do not  need  to  work  ou t  whethe r  

what  he  says in  the  res t  o f  paragraph 47 is  cor rec t  o r  no t .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  abso lu te l y  –  wha t  he  is  

say ing  is  abso lu te ly  cor rec t .   The on ly  th ing  tha t  i s  

inco r rec t  there ,  i t  i s  when he says:  10 

“Mr  Montana appeared to  have so ld  a  nar ra t i ve  to  

the  med ia  wh ich  por t rayed the  board . ”  

The issue is  tha t  I  d id  in te rv iews a t  tha t  t ime,  the 

re la t ionsh ip  had deter io ra ted .   I  d id  no t  have v iews wh ich  –  

I  th ink  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  and the  board ,  d id  no t  take  – bu t  I  

d id  no t  se l l  any th ing ,  so  I  know what  he  says ,  he  is  

re fe r r i ng  to .   So  i t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  the  

re la t ionsh ip  had deter io ra ted  and when I  d id  the  in te rv iew,  

I  was no longer  ho ld ing  back,  I  was te l l ing  the  t ru th  tha t  I  

never  so ld  a  nar ra t i ve  tha t  th is  board  was bad and a l l  o f  20 

those th ings bu t  he  is  no t  an  an t icor rup t ion  buster  o r  does  

not  change,  i t  i s  no t  t rue ,  tha t  i s  what  he  is  t ry ing  to  do  in  

h is  a f f idav i t ,  he  is  m is lead ing  th is  Commiss ion  and tha t  

v iew I  w i l l  cha l lenge,  Cha i r,  day and n igh t .   Fa l se .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  now tha t  we have f in ished 
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w i th  47  can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 15,  parag raph 48?  

MR MONTANA:    Page 15?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Page 15,  paragraph 48.  

MR MONTANA:    48 ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  he dea ls  now in  the  res t  o f  th is  

par t  w i th  why he th inks  you were  ab le  to  p ro tec t  your  

pos i t ion  a t  PRASA.   I  am jus t  g iv ing  h i s  vers ion  and ask ing  

you to  respond.   He says:  

“An issue tha t  has a lways in t r igued me is  how Mr  

Montana had been get t ing  away w i th  what  he  had  10 

done a t  PRASA such as  co r rup t ion  in  p rocu rement  

and abuse o f  power  as  found by  the  cour ts  and the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r.   I  am respect ive l y  o f  the  v iew tha t  

I  cons ider  the  mat te r,  the  fo l low ing prov ides a  

poss ib le  exp lanat ion . ”  

Le t  us  jus t  look  a t  the  mat te rs  tha t  he  dea ls  w i th .   In  

parag raph 49 he says:  

“ In  the  la te  1990 ’s  and ear l y  2020 ’s  Mr  Montana and  

Mr  Makhensa Mabunda worked together  a t  the  

Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises under  Min is te r  20 

Radebe. ”  

That  i s  co r rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?     

MR MONTANA:    That  I  worked  under  Min i s te r  Radebe,  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i se? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Mr  Mabunda.  

MR MONTANA:    He worked there ,  Cha i r ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

“Mr  Montana was the  d i rec tor  in  the  o f f i ce  and  

worked d i rec t l y  w i th  Min is te r  Radebe.   Mr  Mabunda  

was appo in ted  as  a  d i rec to r  in  one o f  the  d iv is ions  

repor t ing  to  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    Le t  us  say you are  read ing  a  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am read ing  parag raph 49.  

MR MONTANA:    49?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  49 ,  the  las t  sentence.   Wel l ,  there  

are  on ly  two sentences in  the  pa ragraph.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  no ,  can I  respond?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Because I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  we have a  20 

[ ind is t inc t ]  bu t  le t  me dea l  w i th  where  th is  th ing  comes 

f rom and tha t  i s  why,  Cha i r ,  the  prob lem wi th  the  

Commiss ion ,  okay?  That  i s  why I  s ta ted  in  my s ta tement ,  

when you read Werksmans ’  repor t s ,  they are  say ing  these  

th ings.  Mr  Mole fe  br ings i t  there  as  a  fac t  in  h is  a f f idav i t .   
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Okay?  That  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  i t  i s  an  a l legat ion ,  i t  i s  no t  fac t .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes,  i t  i s  an  a l legat ion .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  bu t  there  peop le  are  descr ib ing  –  I  

thought  peop le  wou ld  say Mr  Mabunda and Mr  Mon tana d id  

these th ings,  i t  was a  cor rup t  dea l  and a l l  o f  those th ings.   

I  was work ing  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises ,  nè ,  d id  no t  know Mr  Mabunda f rom a  ba r  o f  

soap.   The Min is t ry  wh ich  is  no t  the  same as the 

depar tment ,  on l y  la te r  ge t  appo in ted  in  the  Depar tment  o f  10 

Pub l ic  Enterpr ises ,  i t  dea ls  w i th  i ssues I  th ink  about  

f inanc ia l  ana lys i s  o f  S ta te  Owned Enterpr ises  and a l l  o f  

those th ings.  

 Now th i s  th ing  tha t  I  –  so  th is  person was in  the  

Depar tment  o f  Transpor t ,  sor t  o f  Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses  were  

now c losed Cha i r,  sure ly  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Mr  Montana  knows 

someone in  Durban and there fore  there  shou ld  be  

someth ing  be tween h im and Mr  Son i .   I  mean is  t ha t  the  

ev idence?   Th i s  a l legat ion  Cha i r  i t  doesn ’ t  make sense to  

me,  i t  seems I  am be ing  cruc i f ied  fo r  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  20 

Mabunda came to  work  in  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  when I  was in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Min is te r  o f  

Pub l ic  Enterpr ises .   I  d id  no t  employ  h im,  I  d id  no t  even  

know h im f rom a  bar  o f  soap,  why is  tha t  an  issue?     

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We wi l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  a  moment ,  
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le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  fac ts ,  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you  worked  

under  Min i s te r  Radebe?  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R igh t ,  and is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  Mr  

Mabunda was a  d i rec to r  in  one o f  the  d i v is ions repor t ing  to  

the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no t  in  a  d iv i s ion  Cha i r,  he  was par t  o f  

the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay so  fac tua l l y  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  you 

are  say ing  don ’ t  read in to  those two independent  fac ts  a  10 

re la t ionsh ip  be tween me and Mr  Mabunda,  i s  tha t  your  

po in t?  

MR MONTANA:    I t  doesn ’ t  make sense to  me Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  the  answer  i s  tha t  i s  your  po in t ,  

because I  th ink  what  you are  say ing  is  –  I  th ink  you used  

a t  some s tage  the  word  man ipu la t ion ,  you  know 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  what  i s  happen ing  he re  is  fac t s  

wh ich  have –  wh ich  don ’ t  c rea te  a  re la t ionsh ip  are  pu t  20 

together  as  i f  there  was a  re la t ionsh ip  be tween yourse l f  

and Mabunda a t  tha t  t ime? 

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r  there  was none.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you say a t  tha t  t ime you d idn ’ t  know 

h im,  you were  work ing  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Min is te r,  he  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   He was appo in ted  to  the  Depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He was appo in ted  to  the  Depar tment  bu t  

you say you d id  no t  know h im a t  tha t  t ime? 

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then he says  a t  parag raph 50:  

“A f te r  the  2004  e lec t ions Min i s te r  Radebe was 

appo in ted  to  the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t . ”  

That  i s  co r rec t  i sn ’ t  i t?  

MR MONTANA:    Sor ry,  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Was appo in ted  to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Transpor t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  cor rec t  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  okay.  

“Mr  Montana soon fo l lowed h im to  the  Depar tmen t  

o f  Transpor t  where  he  took up  the  pos i t ion  o f  

Deputy  D i rec tor  Genera l  fo r  Pub l i c  Transpor t . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t .    20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then he says:  

“The Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  la te r  launched the  

mul t i  . . .  [and he cor rec ted  h imse l f ]  B i l l i on  Rand tax i  

recap i ta l i sa t ion  p rog ramme dur ing  the  tenure  o f  Mr  

Radebe. ”  
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I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR MONTANA:      Yes s i r,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  i t  was not  

launched by  Min i s te r  Radebe,  i t  was –  the  paragraph there ,  

the  game,  the  man ipu la t ion  o f  fac ts  Mr  Montana soon 

fo l lowed h im,  Cha i r  I  d idn ’ t  fo l low,  I  app l ied  fo r  a  pos i t ion  

adver t i sed,  in te rv iewed by  cab ine t  m in is te rs  and my 

appo in tment  as  Deputy  D i rec tor  Genera l  was a  cab ine t  

dec is ion ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing  tha t  we must  –  so  th i s  th ing  

tha t  I  fo l lowed Mr  Radebe,  was do ing  –  done favours  and 

tha t ,  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  must  –  Mole fe  had sa id  t ha t  no  i t  10 

is  because o f  h is  re la t ionsh ip ,  I  app l ied  so  Min i s te r  Radebe  

manipu la ted  o the r  cab ine t  m in is te rs  to  say no  appo in t  my 

boy here .     

 You know i t  i s  th ings l i ke  th is  Cha i r,  and the  second  

Cha i r  the  tax i  recap programme we reca l l  i t  was launched 

dur ing  the  t ime o f  the  La te  Min is te r,  Min is te r  Da loma.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Can I  jus t  ra ise  someth ing  w i th  you 

Mr  Montana,  i t  is  impor tan t .    You keep say ing  what  the  

Commiss ion ,  the  Commiss ion ,  so  le t  me te l l  what  our  ro le  

i s .   Our  ro le  i s  we get  a l legat ions by  members  o f  the  pub l i c  20 

by  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  we put  those a l legat ions down,  we  put  i t  

to  imp l ica ted  persons.    Now we don ’ t  pu t  th is  as  a  fac t ,  

th is  i s  no t  a  Commiss ion  o f  F ind ing ,  th is  i s  an  a l legat ion 

made ve ry  much l i ke  in  a  cour t  o f  law.     

 Now you have a  d i f fe ren t  se t  o f  fac ts ,  pu t  them on 
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the  tab le  bu t  don ’ t  make accusat ions about  why these are  

be ing  put  ove r  there .    Le t ’s  jus t  ge t  to  the  fac ts ,  whethe r  

Mr  Mole fe  d id  i t  de l ibe ra te l y  o r  no t  we need to  unders tand  

what  i t  i s .    So a l l  you  want  to  say in  regard  to  th is ,  and I  

hope i t  i s  go ing  to  be  the  res t  o f  your  tes t imony as  we l l ,  to  

say  look i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  I  was appo in ted  Deputy  D i rec to r,  

bu t  I  d idn ’ t  fo l low Mr  Radebe,  I  app l ied  fo r  a  job  and i t  was  

a  cab ine t  dec is ion .    I t  jus t  removes a l l  the  unnecessary  

aspects  so  we can dea l  w i th  the  fac ts .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  can I  beg to  d i f fe r.    I  know Mr  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  I  unders tand what  you are  

th ink ing ,  you want  to  make su re  a  cer ta in  pe rspect ive  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR MONTANA:    Chai r  can I  ra ise  you on th is  one?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   Because I  th ink  –  I  th ink  tha t  Mr  Son i  –  

Mr  Son i  i s  mak ing  a  s ta tement  tha t  I  am not  agree ing  w i th  20 

Cha i r,  no t  because I  have got  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew,  o r  a  

d i f fe ren t  perspec t ive .   Le t  me – I  jus t  want  to  g ive  i t  two 

ins tances wh ich  I  am go ing  to  dea l  w i th  I  th ink  la te r  in  the 

day,  bu t  le t  me jus t  address the  f i rs t  po in t .     

 You know my accusat ions Cha i r  aga ins t  the  
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Commiss ion  are  no t  accusat ions,  I  am not  mak ing  

accusat ions,  I  have ra i sed spec i f i c  i ssues wh ich  the  

Commiss ion  has ac tua l l y  conducted i t se l f  in  a  manner  tha t  

I  sa id  v io la te  the  very  te rms o f  th is  Commiss ion .     

 Mr  Son i  th is  Commiss ion ,  and I  know tha t  when I  

say  th is  Commiss ion  we inc lude the  Cha i r,  the  

invest iga to rs ,  the  lega l  team and everybody,  and i t  

becomes unfa i r  because i f  you ’ve  go t  Ms Rangakata  wh ich  

was not  invo lved but  she i s  an  employee  o f  the  

Commiss ion ,  she  is  par t  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  Cha i r  th is  10 

Commiss ion  has  been very  se lec t i ve  in  the i r  app l i ca t ion ,  

okay.    I  w i l l  te l l  you  tha t  when I  was accused,  when the  

accusat ion  or  the  a l legat ion  about  my proper t ies  I  was  

here .   Mr  Son i  and the  Cha i r  mak ing  ce r ta in  type o f  

s ta tements ,  bu t  no t  on ly  t ha t  Cha i r.    You inv i ted  everyone 

who accused me,  there  was someone who ac tua l l y  pu t  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  says I  am a  bus inessman,  I  have done a  

proper ty  dea l  w i th  Mr  Montana,  I  don ’ t  work  fo r  

government ,  I  have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  PRASA.    What  

d id  th is  Commiss ion  do ,  they kept  h im as ide  no t  to  come 20 

here  Cha i r,  to  hear  a  d i f fe ren t  v iew.  

 The a f f idav i t  tha t  has been served  on me,  Mr  Andre  

Wagner.    Okay,  so  tha t  i s  the  Commiss ion  hav ing  Cha i r  no  

th is  one we want ,  th is  one we do not  want .    Okay Cha i r,  I  

have ment ioned the  o ther  ins tances o f  th is .    
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 Le t  me g ive  you  another  example  Cha i r,  Mr  –  you  

asked Ms S ingo le  the  Cha i r  was there ,  about  S iyangena,  

bu t  I  am to ld  tha t  you are  go ing  back to  i t ,  le t  me use a  

d i f fe ren t  one o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor.    You know Mr  Son i  

must  –  shou ld  look a t  h is  comments  in  respec t  o f  the 

mat te r  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r.    Cha i r  no t  a  w i tness ou t  

there ,  th is  Commiss ion ,  the  Ev idence Leader,  was  te l l ing  

the  Cha i r  tha t  one,  there  is  on ly  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor,  and Mr  Montana d idn ’ t  cha l lenge th is  pa r t i cu la r  

repor t ,  and Cha i r  I  don ’ t  know i f  –  I  don ’ t  even know tha t  10 

you know tha t  the  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  on l y  

address about  60% of  the  issues  what  you ca l l  dera i led .    

The o ther  i ssues  were  addressed  by  Advocate  Ncuban i .   

When you put  the  two repor ts ,  you have got  th is  ex t reme 

repor t  tha t  I  was  tak ing  on  rev iew,  i t  i s  on ly  50%,  there  is  

another  repor t  by  Advocate  Ncuban i ,  and I  was  s i t t ing  

there  hop ing  tha t  the  Ev idence Leader  wou ld  then say to  

the  Cha i r,  Cha i r  we have got  th is  repor t  and we have got  

th is  repor t ,  and we s t i l l  have to  ascer ta in  whether  Mr  –  no  

there  were  t ime to  say tha t  to  d r ive  the  –  no t  anybody,  the  20 

Commiss ion  i t se l f ,  the  Ev idence Leader,  to  say th is  

damning repor t  because you are  t ry ing  to  c rea te  a  

par t i cu la r  –  so  I  have got  ins tances Cha i r  where  th is  

Commiss ion  has  se lec ted  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i t  pu ts  as  

ev idence and kep t  o thers  ou ts ide .  
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 The reason why in  my a f f idav i t  Cha i r  i s  ac tua l l y  no t  

admi t ted .    In  October,  7 t h  o f  October  2019 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana I  am sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    Can I  f in ish  jus t ,  no  can I  f in ish  th i s  

po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  h im f in ish  Mr  Son i .  

MR MONTANA:   7 t h  October  Cha i r  2019 a f te r  I  submi t ted  

my dra f t  the  Commiss ion  wro te  to  me and to ld  me tha t  my  

a f f idav i t ,  my ev idence . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i t  i s  ou ts ide  the  te rms  

o f  re fe rence o f  th is  Commiss ion  and I  sa id  I  wou ld  ra the r  10 

no t  tes t i f y  i f  the  Commiss ion  is  ac tua l l y  p lay ing  a  ro le  o f  

h id ing  the  t ru th .  

 So Cha i r  w i th  respect  I  th ink  tha t  Mr  Son i  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   But  when he makes a  s ta tement  l i ke  tha t  I  

w i l l  no t  accept  i t  because I  have seen th i s  Commiss ion  

ac t ing  ac tua l l y  in  a  manner  tha t  I  wou ld  say v io la tes  i t s  

very  te rms.  

 Now you gave me some assurances in  the  morn ing  20 

Cha i r,  and I  accepted tha t ,  I  sa id  le t  us  move,  bu t  when  

there  a re  asser t ions  made when  I  know the  fac ts  a re  

d i f fe ren t  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  you see  Mr  Montana I  have no 

prob lem tha t  as  long as  you have  concerns you ar t i cu la te  
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tha t  because where  you have concerns tha t  need  to  be 

looked a t ,  sub jec t  to  our  t ime const ra in ts  as  the  

Commiss ion ,  we must  examine them and where  they mer i t  

be ing  looked in to  fu r ther  they  shou ld  be  looked in to  

fu r the r.    I f  there  are  good reasons where  or  why they  

cannot  be  looked  in to  fu r ther  then  you can be to ld  th is  i s  

the  s i tua t ion ,  so  I  am go ing  to  g ive ,  I  th ink  Mr  Son i  wants  

to  say someth ing ,  bu t  I  must  a lso  say tha t  we l l  I  am to ld  I  

have –  I  have seen more  than I  th ink  380 w i tnesses over  

the  past  th ree  years  who has come and gone he re ,  so  I  10 

cannot  remember  everyone,  so  you ment ioned a  

bus inessman whose a f f idav i t  you say was obta ined I  th ink  

bu t  he  was not  ca l led  or  someth ing ,  so  bu t  Mr  Son i  m ight  

o r  m ight  no t  know about  tha t ,  bu t  I  –  th is  i s  what  I  can te l l  

you  tha t  the  concerns tha t  you have ment ioned I  want  them 

to  be  looked a t  on  the i r  mer i t s  and where  we don ’ t  agree 

w i th  you we w i l l  say  no  we don ’ t  th ink  th is  needs to  be  – 

you w i l l  be  to ld ,  where  we say no  th is  shou ld  be  looked a t  

i t ,  i t  w i l l  be  looked a t .  

 I  to ld  you in  the  morn ing  the  issue o f  Werksmans is  20 

now befo re  the  Commiss ion  and you had been ra is ing  th is  

so  –  and we a l though we a re  near ing  the  end,  we  shou ld  

have f in ished w i th  o ra l  ev idence by  end o f  March  we are  

where  we are ,  we are  t ry ing  to  wrap up,  cer ta in  th ings  

m ight  need to  be  looked a t  bu t  each one must  be  
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cons idered on i t s  mer i t s .  

MR MONTANA:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i r.    Mr  Mon tana le t  

me jus t  g i ve  you th is  as  we l l ,  tha t  i t  i s  a lways d i f f i cu l t  when  

you have got  person A mak ing  accusat ions aga ins t  person  

B  and then person B  mak ing  accusat ions  aga ins t  pe rson A ,  

and they are  l i ke  two d i f fe ren t  vers ions,  bu t  even w i th in  

tha t  contex t  you can get  a  se t  o f  fac ts  tha t  a re  common to  

bo th  and tha t  i s  a l l  I  was say ing ,  so  i f  you  fee l  tha t  I  was 10 

suggest ing  someth ing  un toward  I  was not .   I  was  mere ly  

say ing  I  unders tand you say tha t  I  d id  no t  fo l low you,  bu t  

what  we do know is  you were  appo in ted  as  Deputy  

D i rec to r.   We now know tha t  i t  was a  cab ine t  appo in tment .    

A l l  I  was say ing  is  in  response i t  jus t  has to  fac i l i ta te  the  

fac ts  so  we concent ra te  on  tha t  and say he  says th is ,  bu t  

th is  i s  the  fac ts ,  and then we move on,  as  to  whe ther  he  

t r ied  to  m is lead or  whatever  i s  an  en t i re ly  separa te  th ing ,  

bu t  I  jus t  want  us  to  ge t  the  fac t s  and tha t  i s  a l l  I  am t ry ing  

to  do .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  –  I  th ink  le t  us  do  a  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

because I  can unders tand why somet imes even though you  

don ’ t  d ispute  a  par t i cu la r  fac t  tha t  i s  be ing  ment ioned by  

Mr  Mole fe  you might  want  to  say someth ing  about  i t ,  about  

what  he  says,  because f rom your  perspect ive  maybe i t  
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connects  w i th  someth ing  e lse ,  bu t  le t  us  t ry  I  th ink  f rom Mr  

Son i ’s  s ide  he  is  t ry ing  to  make sure  tha t  as  we move on  

he is  c lea r  wh ich  a l legat ions o f  fac t  a re  accepted,  wh ich  

are  no t  accepted,  bu t  I  th ink  le t  us  jus t  t ry  w i th  a  l i t t le  b i t  –  

w i th  some f lex ib i l i t y  and see how i t  goes.  

 So you –  we w i l l  see  as  we go a long,  le t  us  t ry  and  

accommodate  each o the r,  I  th ink  we w i l l  be  f ine .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  I  accept  your  gu idance,  I  wou ld  l i ve  

w i th  tha t ,  I  am say ing  –  you see fo r  me Cha i r  I  don ’ t  wor ry  

what  Mr  Mole fe ,  Ms Ngoy i  say  about  me,  bu t  when the  10 

Commiss ion  says cer ta in  th ings  or  de l ibera te ly  omi ts  

cer ta in  ev idence  then I  take  except ion ,  bu t  s i r  you have 

g iven gu idance,  le t  us  take  tha t  and move fo rward  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .    We are  a t  four  

o ’c lock ,  we normal ly  take  a  ten  m inutes  break a t  four  bu t  

we a lso  ta lk  about  the  way fo rward  so  tha t  we are  a l l  on  

the  same page about  how fa r  we go in to  the  even ing .   We 

have been go ing  in to  the  even ing  fo r  qu i te  some t ime,  

even ings fo r  qu i te  some t ime to  t ry  and f ina l i se .  

 I  am happy tha t  we go on even up to  seven,  maybe 20 

beyond,  what  i s  your  s i tua t ion  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r  I  am here  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  on ly  

ask  tha t  perhaps we –  request  tha t  we take a  comfor t  b reak 

now,  bu t  I  w i l l  be  gu ided by  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Son i  how is  your  
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s i tua t ion?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  I  am f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  hope the  s ta f f  and the  

techn ic ians they a lways unders tand and they accommodate  

me,  bu t  i f  there  i s  a  p rob lem they w i l l  le t  me know.    Thank  

you ve ry  much.  

 I  th ink  we have been do ing  qu i te  we l l ,  we might  no t  

have been as  fas t  as  we wou ld  have l i ked  but  I  th ink  i t  i s  

f ine .     

 Okay,  le t  us  take  a  ten  m inute  ad journment ,  we 10 

ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.   Wi l l  the  

techn ic ians swi tch  th is  one o f f  p lease?  I t  d is t rac ts  th is  

par t i cu la r  sc reen .   I t  d is t rac ts  my a t ten t ion .   Yes ,  okay.   

But  we can cont inue in  the  meant ime.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  as  you  p lease Cha i rperson.   Mr  

Montana,  so  le t  us  jus t  f in ish  w i th  pa ragraph 50.   On the  20 

fac ts  you do not  have a  prob lem,  you jus t  a re  unhappy  

about  the  fac t  tha t  i t  made i t  sound as  i f  you  were  s imp ly  

fo l low ing min is te r  Radebe when in  fac t  i t  was a  government  

appo in tment .   Would  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  am say ing  i t  was a  government  
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appo in tment  number  one,  and number  two I  am say ing  you  

can see tha t  th is  en t i re  pa ragraph is  r i dd led  w i th  

ins inuat ions bu t  some o f  the  fac ts  a re  co r rec t .   I  do  no t  

want  to  debate  tha t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And p lease,  I  sk inned th i s  inv i ta t ion  

and re i te ra te  what  the  Cha i rperson sa id .   Where  ever  tha t  

i s  so ,  le t  us  jus t  c lea r  tha t  up  and  then but  we know what  

the  fac ts  a re .   Now I  need to  say  th is  to  you because you 

have probab ly  read the  a f f idav i t  o r  the  fu r ther  a f f idav i t .   

 You know tha t  once the  issues is  tha t  Mr  Mabunda ’s  10 

f i rm,  S iyaya,  the  S  group rece ived pre fe rent ia l  t rea tment  a t  

PRASA.   So tha t  i s  the  bas i s  on  wh ich  th is  fac tua l l y,  the 

fac tua l  mat r i x  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  i s  impor tan t .   Now 

we know tha t  the  tax i  recap i ta l i sa t ion  program was headed 

by  yourse l f .   

 Then Mr  Radebe says:  

 “Mr  Mabunda le f t  the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  

to  pursue . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Mole fe  says.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id  Mr  Radebe.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   “Mr  Mole fe  says Mr  Mabunda  le f t  the 

Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  to  pursue pr iva te  

bus iness in te res t  and rece ived one  o f  the  . . . ”  

Wel l  f i rs t l y,  i s  tha t  cor rec t  tha t  Mr  Mabunda le f t  the  
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Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  to  pursue pr iva te  bus iness  

in te res t?    

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  th ink  Mr  Mabunda was never  a t  

the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t .   I  th ink  p robab ly  the re  was an  

er ror  there .   I  w i l l  say  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l i c  Enterp r ise .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  I  see.   So you are  say ing  he  l e f t  

the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ise?  

MR MONTANA:   Ja ,  i t  cannot  be  t ranspor t .   He  never  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ear l ie r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR MONTANA:   Ja .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ear l ie r  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  he  was,  he  jo ined,  

Mr  Mabunda jo ined the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  

when you were  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Min is te r.    

MR MONTANA:   Min is te r,  indeed so .  

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  pub l i c  en terp r ises .  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So ,  okay I  th ink  you are  r i gh t ,    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.   So  we now know tha t  Mr  

Mabunda was never  in  the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t .   20 

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And h is ,  Mr  Mole fe  says he  rece ived  

one o f  the  tenders  fo r  the  tax i  recap i ta l i sa t ion  prog ram.   I s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  jus t  ask  you on tha t ,  d id  you  

know Mr  Mabunda?  I  am ta lk ing  around the  t ime tha t  he 

rece ived the  tax i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  have now I  knew h im f rom the  

Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises .   So by  the  t ime I  was a t  

t ranspor t ,  I  had a l ready met  h im.   I  knew h im f rom there .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   How c lose were  you and he  a t  the 

Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ise?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  we were  never  c lose  Cha i r.   We were  

employees.   Of  course  the  na ture  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  10 

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses  was a t  tha t  t ime,  I  do  no t  know today,  a  

very  smal l  depar tment .   So the  m in is t ry  and the  depar tment  

were  a lmost  opera t ing  f rom same f loors .   

 So i t  was very  smal l ,  because i t  was ac tua l l y  an  

o f f i ce  be fore  i t  became a  depar tment .   So we knew each 

o ther  Cha i r,  bu t  we were  no t  what  you ca l l  f r iends,  no .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then a t  pa rag raph 51 Mr  Mole fe  says:  

 “A few months la te r  Mr  Radebe appo in t  . . . ”  

 Sor ry,  the  one I  fo rgo t  i s  tha t  you res igned f rom the  

Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  in  2006.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?    20 

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  must  be  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  o r  no t?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no .   For  me i t  i s  the  Depar tment  o f  
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Transpor t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  because you  have moved?   

MR MONTANA:   Ja ,  I  had moved to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Transpor t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   The Depar tment  o f  Transpor t .   Cha i r,  can I  

jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   Jus t  a  fac tua l  i ssue.   Where  i t  says  tha t  

he  le f t .   We co r rec ted  tha t ,  tha t  Mr  Mabunda le f t  the 10 

Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses  to  pu rsue pr iva te  

bus iness in te res t ,  and then but  as  fa r  as  I  know,  he  

ac tua l l y  went  to  jo in  the  prov inc ia l  Depar tment  o f  Economic  

Deve lopment  under  Min i s te r  T jabane in  L impopo be fore  he  

went  to  p r iva te  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  no  sure .   

MR MONTANA:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t .   I f  we sa id  la te r  tha t  tha t  

shou ld  I  mean the ,  I  unders tand you were  t r y ing  to  show 20 

tha t  there  is  no  l ink  be tween the  leav ing  and the  pr iva te  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   In te res t  ja ,  no  I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  have  

happened a t  a  la te r  s tage.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Then a t  paragraph  51,  Mr  
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Mo le fe  says:  

 “A few months la te r  Min i s te r  Radebe appo in ted  

Mr  Montana as  CEO of  the  South  A f r i can Ra i l  

Commute r  Corpora t ion . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?    

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   How much,  how long a f te r  you  le f t  the  

Depar tment  o f  Transpor t?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  ac tua l l y  never  le f t .   As deputy  

d i rec tor  genera l  I  was respons ib le  fo r  a  number  o f  10 

funct ions,  RE busses and tax is .   When I  was do ing  the  tax i  

recap,  I  o f  course  I  had a t tacks  on  me.   Wi th  my house 

be ing  a t tacked by  some tax i  war  lo rds  or  whatever,  and o f  

course  the  s ta te  hes i ta ted  to  p rov ide  secur i t y  fo r  me.   

 I  then res igned.   Of  course  I  was oversee ing  the  

very  process o f  the  conso l ida t ion  o f  passenger  ra i l  en t i t ies 

and I  was se rv ing  on  the  board  o f  the  SRCC as we l l ,  be ing  

DDG.   So I  le f t  Cha i r.   I  then res igned and I  sa id  I  am 

res ign ing  w i th  immedia te  e f fec t .   

 So I  then sent ,  ac tua l l y  I  d id  no t  even sent  a  le t te r.   20 

I  th ink  I  sent  an  SMS to  say my  house was a t tacked by  

guys w i th  AK47 ’s  and every th ing .   I  am no longer  coming  

because the  m in is te r  had ins t ruc ted  tha t  I  be  pro tec ted  but  

tha t  p ro tec t ion  is  no t  fo r thcoming.   

 So I  am leav ing .   I t  was dur ing  h is  budget  vo te  o f  
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t ranspor t .   I  d id  no t  even go to  Cape Town.   I  jus t  dec ided  

tha t ,  bu t  a  few . . .  a  month  la te r  Cha i r,  the  m in is te r  sa id  to  

me but  we have not  accepted your  res ignat ion .   You are  a  

member  o f  the  board .   

 Of  SRCC and the  board  had asked tha t  wh i ls t  they  

are  busy search ing  fo r  a  CEO,  you come and he lp  us  fo r  a  

per iod  o f  18  mon ths .   So they asked me to  do  th ree  th ings  

in  th ree  months .   Comple te  the  conso l ida t ion  o f  ra i l ,  o f  ra i l  

en t i t ies .   

 That  i s  why we fo rm PRASA Cha i r.   P repare  fo r  the  10 

2010 FIFA Wor ld  Cup and to  save Met ro  Ra i l  f rom co l lapse.   

That  i s  what  I  was asked to  do .   They say ins tead o f  you 

leav ing ,  he lp  the  board  w i th  th is  task ,  bu t  o f  course  la te r  I  

became,  i t  was then taken to  cab ine t  tha t  I  s tayed there  

and I  s tayed there  fo r  another  seven years .   

 So I  spent  n ine  and a  ha l f  years  in  the  ra i l  spac ing .   

So I  never  le f t ,  ac tua l l y  desp i t e  the  fac t  tha t  I  have 

res igned because o f  the  v io lence tha t  was happen ing  a t  

tha t  t ime.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  were  you pa id  fo r  the  month  tha t  you 20 

were  no t  work ing ,  th ink ing  you had res igned and then they 

to ld  you,  and they d id  no t  accept  your  res ignat ion?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  th ink  . . .  I  am not  sure ,  bu t  I  need 

to  check espec ia l l y  cons ider ing  the  tax  imp l ica t ions  o f  your  

quest ion  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   You want  to  exerc ise  your  r igh t  to  remain  

s i len t?  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r,  on  th is  par t i cu la r  one  Cha i r.   

I  d id  no t  dec la re  i t  up f ron t .   Cha i r,  I  cannot  reca l l  exact ly  

the  de ta i l s ,  bu t  I  had res igned,  bu t  I  ended up not  leav ing  

because o f  the  s i tua t ion  and then I  was tasked.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  we l l  I  was j us t  ra i s ing  i t .   You know 

one can look a t  i t  a t  d i f fe ren t  leve ls ,  you say you res igned 

but  you d id  no t  leave.   I  unders tood you to  be  in  e f fec t  

say ing  a f te r  you sent  tha t  SMS o f  res ignat ion  you ac tua l l y  10 

d id  no t  go  to  work?  

MR MONTANA:   I  d id  no t  go  to  work  fo r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Fo r  a  month  or  so .  

MR MONTANA:   Wel l ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i t  was a  fu l l  month  

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  more  o r  less .  

MR MONTANA:   For  about  two,  th ree  weeks and I  was to ld  

tha t  we have never  accepted your  res ignat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   We th ink  you must ,  you se rve  on  the  20 

board ,  so  go  and he lp  the  board  on  th is  task .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  we l l  so  maybe the re  was no 

res ignat ion  bu t  they app l ied  the  pr inc ip le  o f  no  work ,  no  
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pay.   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  even in  tha t  one I  w i l l  be  fo rced to  

pay back i f  I  was  pa id ,  so  I  am very  ca re fu l  now,  to  agree  

w i th  tha t  response.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   May I  jus t  ask  you,  who was your  

p redecessor  a t  the  SARC? 

MR MONTANA:   I t  was Mr  Edd ie  Lekota ,  bu t  a t  tha t  t ime 

Cha i r  he  had le f t  and we had a  l ady ca l led ,  ac t ing  in  the  

pos i t ion  ca l led  Ms Ne l l ie  Th laba.    10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The reason I  am ask ing  is  you  might ,  

you seem to  have fo l lowed th is  when the  speakers  was  

here .   One o f  the  quest ions was  tha t  the  Cha i rperson,  I  

mean the  CEO o f  PRASA has to  be  approved by  cab ine t .   

Were  you approved dur ing  the  pe r iod  when you were  f i rs t  

appo in ted  to  PRASA or  was i t  Min i s te r  Radebe ’s  dec is ion?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  i t  was a  cab ine t  dec is ion ,  

because I  ac ted  and in  October  2007,  then  cab ine t  

approved my appo in tment .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  your  f i rs t  appo in tment  was an  20 

ac t ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   I t  was an e lec ted  pos i t ion ,  ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  remember  no t  to  speak too  fa r  away 

f rom the  m ic .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease ,  sor ry  Cha i r.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then Mr  Mole fe  says Mr  Mabunda 

appears  to  have  emerged as  a  serv i ce  prov ider  who was 

awarded cont rac ts  in  a round 2010 prov id ing  s igna l  serv i ces  

and adv ice  to  PRASA.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  tha t  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then in  the  next  sentence he  

says:  

 “Mr  Mabunda became a  key ro le  p laye r  in  the  

mul t i -b i l l i on  rand  PRASA s igna l l i ng  program,  10 

be ing  appo in ted  t ransact ion  adv isor  w i th  Ms 

Brenda Maronget i  th rough S iyaya  Eng ineer ing  

Consu l tan ts . ”  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r,  I  th ink  th is  mat te r  i s  in  the  

pub l i c  p ro tec tor  repor t  as  we l l ,  where  the  Mr  Mabunda o r  

h im work ing  w i th  a  German company ca l led  the  German  

Ra i l  Opera tors ,  D i tshabana,  had  tendered and won the  

tender  and there  was a  compla in t  tha t  they go t  the  tender  

improper ly  and one o f  the  th ings,  pos i t i ve  th ings about  the  

ra i l ,  i t  ac tua l l y  d ismissed tha t  par t  o f  the  th ing ,  say ing  tha t  20 

a l legat ion  is  no t  substant ia ted .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  wanted to  say Mr  Son i  read tha t  

sentence o f  page  51.   You sa id  tha t  i s  t rue ,  bu t  I  wanted to  

check whether  the  par t  a lso  tha t  says appears  to  have  
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emerged as  a  se rv ice  p rov ider.   You say i t  i s  a l so  t rue  o r  

a re  you jus t  ta lk ing  about  the  fac t  tha t  la te r  he  was  

awarded cont rac ts  in  2010?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r,  the  f i rs t  one as  I  say  was a  

s igna l l ing .   There  was a  t ransact ion  adv isor  fo r  s igna l l ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   And le t  me exp la in ,  I  do  no t  know Cha i r  i f  

you  w i l l  a l low me to  because we  are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

these th ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  our  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Mabunda  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  ja  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   You made 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Because I  th ink  i t  i s  he lp fu l  fo r  the  

commiss ion  and the  quest ions tha t  w i l l  come.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  the  . . .  they  tendered.   They won  

th is  th ing .   We took a  dec is ion  wh ich  was done by  myse l f  

and the  board  a t  tha t  t ime the  Cha i r  o f  the  commi t tee  o f  20 

the  board  on  th is  was Ms Br idget te  Gasa.   We dec ided to  

say we have in te rac ted  w i th  a l l  these compan ies  a l l  over  

the  wor ld .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Which  commi t tee  o f  the  board  was 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR MONTANA:   That  i s  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   The tender  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No,  the  f inance  cap i ta l  investment  and  

procurement .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Commi t tee .   That  what  we need to  do ,  we 

need to  approach the  Germans.   There  was a  le t te r  tha t  

S iyaya had wr i t ten  to  the  then Min is te r  o f  Transpor t ,  

Min is te r  S ibunda  Be le  a t  tha t  t ime.   The le t te r  was then 

fo rwarded to  us  a t  PRASA.  10 

 Where  the  Germans ind i ca ted  to  us  what  they have  

and tha t  they have par tnered w i th  th is  company.   So I  say  

no ,  tha t  i s  good ,  bu t  we want  to  see the  Germans.   I  

t rave l led  w i th  Ms  Gasa f rom the  board .   We went  then to  

see,  we then took cer ta in  dec i s ions in  our  d iscuss ions w i th  

the  group.  

 We say look,  we  are  commencing  w i th  and I  w i l l  

exp la in  a t  the  end why I  am exp la in ing  th i s  to  the 

commiss ion .   We sa id  PRASA is  imp lement ing  a  very  

complex  modern isa t ion  prog ram,  ye t  i t  does not  have the  20 

sk i l l s  to  do  so .   

 Can we s ign  an  ag reement ,  and we s igned a  

memorandum of  agreement  w i th  the  German.   On s igna l l ing  

o f  course  they won a  tender,  so  i t  was not  an  issue,  bu t  

where  you see them,  and I  th ink  the  o the r  tenders  you ask  
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about  Cha i r,  i s  in  respect  o f  the  what  i s  i t  ca l led?  

 Of  the  depot  modern i sa t ion  program.   Where  we are  

prepar ing  fo r  new t ra ins .   The German suppor t  to  us  was 

inva luab le  Cha i r.   They he lp  us  w i th  a l l  the  des igns.   In  

PRASA,  when we s tar ted  PRASA,  there  were  no t  even 

drawings,  techn ica l  d rawings fo r  most  o f  these fac i l i t i es .   

 [ ind is t inc t ]  S iyaba DB,  had ac tua l l y  pu t  a  tender  fo r  

the  Braamfonte in ,  a f te r  we s igned  an agreement  they have 

a lso  pu t  the  b id  fo r  the  Braamfonte in  fac i l i t y.   The 

Braamfonte in  depot .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Modern isa t ion .  

MR MONTANA:   Which  i t  i s  modern i sa t ion ,  wh ich  we 

d iscussed ear l ie r  on .   Now Cha i r,  the  CEO of  PRASA 

techn ica l l y  comes and b r ie fs  me  about  the  tenders  tha t  

they were  runn ing .   I  sa id  bu t  we have got  a  p rob lem,  

because what  you are  g iv ing  us  is  no t  a  ra i lway so lu t ion ,  i t  

i s  a  const ruc t ion .   

 A depot  looks,  i t  looks  l i ke  i t  i s  ou ts ide  the  ra i lway,  

bu t  i t  i s  an  in tegra l  par t  o f  ra i lway opera t ions,  inc lud ing  

sa fe ty  and opera t ions.   So i t  te l l s  us  tha t  in  South  A f r i ca ,  20 

a f te r  we have done th is  b id ,  we ac tua l l y  do  no t  have tha t  

company,  the  compan ies  tha t  unders tand tha t .   

 That  ins tead  o f  appo in t ing  GB to  bu i ld  

Braamfonte in ,  a re  you a lso  go ing  to  appo in t  them to  bu i ld  

Durban,  Sa l t  R ive r  and Cape Town as we l l  as  Wolmer ton  in  
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P re tor ia?   We have got  a  memorandum wi th  them.   Le t  us  

agree tha t  they then prov ide  us  w i th  the  eng ineers  to  do  

the  drawings fo r  us  so  tha t  when you go out  on  tender,  so  

the  re la t ionsh ip  Cha i r  has to  do  w i th  tha t .   

 O f  course ,  peop le  have t r ied  to  l i nk  i t  and say no ,  

Mabunda and Montana pub l i c  en te rpr ises  and a l l  o f  those  

th ings.   So we l i ve  in  a  wor ld  where  we a re  no  longer  

supposed to  know peop le  Cha i r  o r  tha t  shou ld  no t  have  

been employed.   

 So S iyaya DB,  what  has happened I  sa id  i n  my  10 

s ta tement  Mr  Son i  tha t  s ix  years  a f te r  I  have le f t ,  there  i s  

no  depot  tha t  has been bu i l t ,  and Cha i r  you heard  the  

tes t imony o f  Judge Makube la  here .   Remember  the  issue  

had to  do  w i th  the  payment  o f  S iyaya and tha t  d ispute .   

 The rea l i t y  o f  the  mat te r  Cha i r,  because o f  what  we 

are  do ing  to  ourse l ves as  a  coun t ry,  we have a  s i tua t ion  

where  PRASA and S iyaya are  in  d ispute ,  tha t  a l l  the 

drawings,  the  techn ica l  d rawings and the  p lans,  a re  s i t t ing 

w i th  peop le  and they say okay,  we  have done th is  work ,  we 

have not  been pa id .   20 

 We a re  keep ing  these th ings,  because you do no t  

apprec ia te  the  work .   The essence o f  tha t  i s  tha t  PRASA 

today is  ac tua l l y  le f t  w i th  the  s i tua t ion  because you say 

every th ing  is  i r regu la r,  every th ing  is  co r rup t .   So here  is  a  

young organ isa t ion .   
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 I t  cannot  imp lement  anyth ing  today Cha i r,  because 

fo r  I  th ink  the  d ispute  tha t  th is  commiss ion  was d i scuss ing  

was about  80  m i l l ion ,  80  86  mi l l ion .   Yet  we cannot  ru le  ou t  

in f ras t ruc tu re  wor th  b i l l i ons ,  p rec ise ly  because the  

techn ica l ,  and tha t  i s  the  reason why we needed tha t  

par tnersh ip  w i th  the  Germans.   

 There  is  co l lapse,  PRASA wi l l  no t  be  ab le  t o  

imp lement  anyth ing  Cha i r,  un less  i f  they  knew i ts  board  

and management ,  i t  does not  have to  be  w i th  S iyaya .   They 

need to  appo in t  a  s t ra teg ic  pa r tner  tha t  wou ld  ass is t  them 10 

in  do ing  tha t  techn ica l  work ,  even befo re  they go  out  on  

tender.  

 Because i f  you go out  on  tender,  you do not  have  

th is  de ta i led  work .   you do not  have the  b i l l  o f  quant i t ies ,  

you do not  have the  techn ica l  d rawings.   You then  have a  

lo t  o f  var ia t ions ,  because you cannot  even cont ro l  the  cost  

in  th is  p rocess Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   So you,  the  po in t  you are  

mak ing  is  tha t  i s  how you got  to  know Mr  Mabunda more? 

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r.   I  am say ing  when he was 20 

employed a t  pub l i c  en te rpr i ses  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   I  came to  know h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   And he le f t ,  he  d isappeared.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   And I  th ink  tha t  is  when he was work ing  in  

L impopo fo r  Min is te r  T jabane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   And then he came back.   Of  course  he was  

par t  o f ,  i t  was not  h is  company but  anothe r  company he 

was par t  o f ,  ca l led  I  cannot  reca l l  the  scrapp ing  agenc ies  

o f  a l l  tax is ,  and  then o f  course  the  tenders  tha t  were 

processed.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Son i?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   What  was h is  sk i l l s  t ra in ing ,  was he 

an eng ineer?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no .   He was not  an  eng ineer.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So ,  and h i s  pos i t ion  a t  S iyaya?   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  th ink  my unders tand ing ,  he  is  the  

founder  o f  S iyaya .   Which  was I  th ink  tha t  i s  t ra in ing  based  

on what  he  was do ing  a t  the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t .   He 

was dea l ing  w i th  the  f inanc ia l s  o f  s ta te  owned ente rpr ises .   

He be longed to  a  d iv is ion  ca l led  en t i t y  ove r  s igh t  where  

en t i t ies  repor t ing  to  the  pub l i c  en terp r ises ,  Eskom . . .  so  20 

those wou ld  be  the  teams tha t  ana lyses the  ba lance sheet ,  

what  leve l  o f  recap i ta l  . . .  so  I  th ink  i t  comes more  on the  

f inance s ide  than  on the  eng ineer ing  s ide .   

 But  he  had,  S iyaya had a  lo t  o f  eng ineers  f rom 

South  A f r i ca ,  and they par tne red w i th  the  German 
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company.   The German ra i lway,  the  PRASA or  Transnet  

vers ion  on  the  German s ide .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And,  bu t  the  company was  ca l led  

accord ing  to  wha t  Mr  Mole fe  re f lec ts ,  i t  was ca l led  S iyaya  

Eng ineer ing  Consu l tancy.  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  I  th ink  there  a re  d i f fe ren t  

compan ies .   There  is  S iyaya Eng ineer ing ,  I  th ink  tha t  they  

have got  the  S iyaya Group.   I  th ink  they ca l l  i t  S  Group.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   S  Group,  yes .   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  they had in  a  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  PRASA 10 

they were  p r imar i l y  in  the  pa r tne rsh ip  be tween S iyaya DB,  

wh ich  was a  spec i f i c  par tnersh ip  tha t  they had Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And h is  pos i t ion  in  the  company was 

CEO? 

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know exact ly.   I  cannot  

conf i rm tha t  bu t  I  know he is  a  founder.   He was the  

founder.   Whether  he  was Cha i rman or  Pres ident  o r  CEO,  I  

cannot  conf i rm tha t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then Mr  Mole fe  says:  

 “Such se rv i ces  inc luded s igna l l ing ,  fue l  supp ly  20 

and o the r  eng ineer ing  serv ices  th rough the  

PRASA techn ica l  d iv i s ion  and then  

Mth imkhu lu . ”  

 Now is  tha t  cor rec t ,  tha t  the  serv i ces  inc luded  

s igna l l ing ,  fue l  supp ly  and o ther  eng ineer ing  se rv i ces?  
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MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  yes  I  can conf i rm wi th  s igna l l ing ,  I  

spoke about  i t ,  there  was a  tender  and they go t  the  tender.   

Wi th  fue l ,  S iyaya got  the  tender  and w i th  o ther  eng ineer ing  

serv i ces  and Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu  Cha i r,  ou r  techn ica l  

d iv is ion  Cha i r  was the  one do ing  most  o f  tha t  work .   

 So I  do  no t  have  each and every  de ta i l  on  some o f  

the  pro jec t s  they were  do ing  the re .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  wou ld  Mr  Mth imkhu lu  be  the  

person in  charge o f  the  techn ica l  d iv is ion?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r.   You see,  tha t  i s  why th is  th ing  10 

o f  Mth imkhu lu ,  the  way i t  i s  wr i t ten  in  th is  page,  I  do  no t  

know.   Can I  have one minute  to  jus t  exp la in?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   No,  no ,  no  p lease and i t  is  go ing  

to  come up as  you w i l l  know in  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  so  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   In  the  Swi fambo mat te r.   No Cha i r,  then I  

th ink  pe rhaps le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  come back  

to  i t  and dea l  w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  a t  tha t  t ime,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   He says:  

 “Between 2012 and 2015 th rough  consu l tancy 
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serv i ces  and fue l ,  Mr  Mabunda ’s  S iyaya Group 

earned approx imate ly  900 mi l l ion  rand f rom 

PRASA. ”  

 I s  tha t  about  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:   Ja  Cha i r,  I  th ink  so .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And I  am jus t  say ing  th is ,  I  know a  

f igure  o f  a  b i l l i on  rand a lso  has been g i ven by  I  th ink  Mr  

D ing iswayo in  h i s  a f f idav i t .   

MR MONTANA:   I s  tha t  the  va lue  o f  cont rac ts  o r  the  ac tua l  

payment?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  i t  i s  the  payments  made to  

S iyaya,  because  you wou ld  see  here  there  is ,  he  says 

earned approx imate ly  900 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Yes.   I  th ink  Cha i r,  i f  we s ign  the  

document ,  i f  I  remember  very  we l l ,  because I  par t i c ipa ted  

in  the  l iqu ida t ion  hear ing  o f  Sw i fambo was ca l l ed  as  a 

w i tness there ,  the  amount  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l ,  o f  S iyaya.  

MR MONTANA:   No,  S iyaya,  sor ry.   Of  S iyaya.   My 

apo log ies  Cha i r.   Of  S iyaya.   The amount  was in  the  order  20 

o f  about  850 mi l l ion .   So I  th ink  maybe Mr  Mole fe  i s  no t  

fa r,  fa r  f rom the  po in t  in  te rms o f  the  amount .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   A l r igh t .   Then he makes the  

po in t  wh ich  I  th ink  you wou ld  sympath i se ,  we l l  no t  

sympath ise ,  bu t  you wou ld  accept  tha t  he  was ahead  o f  the  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 213 of 335 
 

s t rugg le  and he was not  be ing  os t rac ised.   I  mean  I  know 

he g ives a  d i f fe ren t  reason,  bu t  i s  tha t  about  r igh t?    

 That ,  no .  

MR MONTANA:   Mr  Mole fe  was never  os t rac i sed.   He d id  

wrong th ings and  tha t  i s  why he c rea ted many enemies as  

we l l .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  But  fo r  tha t ,  was he os t rac ised o r  

you say tha t  d id  no t  happen? 

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  he  was  not  os t rac ises .   I  th ink  a  

lo t  o f ,  I  th ink  the re  was a  lo t  Cha i r,  where  peop le  rea l i sed 10 

tha t  Mr  Mole fe  was ac tua l l y  how wou ld  I  say  Cha i r?   He 

bas ica l l y  led  a  doub le  l i fe  fo r  lack  o f  a  be t te r  word .   On the  

one hand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  see here  Mr  Montana tha t  he  says  

he  was os t rac i sed by  h is  own comrades and I  am 

wonder ing  whether  you know a l l  h is  comrades and you  

know tha t  they d id  no t  os t rac i se  h im.   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  no t  know.   Ja ,  you might  no t  

know.   20 

MR MONTANA:   Exact ly  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  wou ld  be  d i f fe ren t  i f  he  was say ing  he  

was os t rac ised a t  PRASA or  maybe in  c i r c les  tha t  you  

know,  tha t  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  he  ment ioned to  be  spec i f i c  Cha i r,  in  
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h is  tes t imony f i rs t l y  he  says pa r l iament  d id  no th ing .   He  

then sa id  he  br ie fed  the  AND nat iona l  execut ive ,  I  do  no t  

know o f  course  about ,  I  was not  par t  o f  tha t  b r i e f ing  and 

th i rd ly  Cha i r,  he  ment ioned Min is te r  [ ind is t inc t ]  and I  th ink  

bo th  the  m in is te r,  the  fo rmer  m in is te r  and the  deputy  

m in is te r  came,  and ac tua l l y  re fu ted  the  case tha t  he  made.   

 So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   So  I  do  no t  th ink  so  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  my unders tand ing  in  regard  to  10 

par l iament  and Min is te r  Ph i tso ,  was not  tha t  he  was  

accus ing  par l iament  o r  Min is te r  Ph i tso  o f  os t rac i s ing  h im,  I  

th ink  my unders tand ing  was tha t  in  regard  to  par l iament  o r  

the  re levant  por t fo l io  commi t tee  h is  compla in t  was were  

they in te res ted  in  the  f igh t  aga ins t  cor rup t ion  tha t  the 

board  was do ing ,  and even when he appea led  to  them,  to  

in te rvene and do the i r  job ,  they were  no t  do ing  the i r  job .   I  

th ink  tha t  was,  so  maybe os t r i c i za t ion  re la tes  to  ou ts ide  o f  

those ins t i tu t ions .    

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  can I  g ive  you a  good example ,  so  20 

to  unders tand Popo Mole fe?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   Le t  me put  i t  in  Phed i  and I  pu t  i t  in ,  you 

know there  are  t imes when you say in  your  fa ther ’s  k raa l  

you have got  sheep,  and then every  day you come and 



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 215 of 335 
 

check your  sheep,  you f ind  tha t  one sheep is  m iss ing  and  

you take  the  dogs ,  you go a round the  fo res t  to  check,  there  

shou ld  be  someth ing  ea t ing  my sheep.    

 You go out  there  Cha i r,  you do not  look  here  ins ide .   

Okay.   [Vernacu la r  –  00 :35 :00] .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you must  remember  to  say  tha t  in  

Eng l ish .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r,  le t  me say i t  in  Eng l ish .   That  

when you look a f t e r  your  fa ther ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because I  a lso  do  not  unders tand tha t .   10 

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  so  when  you look a t  the  case o f  

Popo Mole fe ,  I  am say ing  Mr  Son i ,  i t  i s  a  s i tua t ion  where  

you have got  sheep a t  home,  a t  your  fa ther ’s  homestead.   

Every  morn ing  you wake  up,  the re  is  one sheep  miss ing  

and then you take  the  dogs and the  boys,  you go ou t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no  I  heard  tha t  par t  because you sa id  

i t  in  Eng l ish .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   There  was the  o ther  par t ,  o r  was  or  you  

a l ready t rans la ted?  20 

MR MONTANA:   I  am t rans,  yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no,  no ,  no .   I  th ink   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  then one day you d iscover  bu t  I  do  no t  

see even t ra i l  o f  b lood,  o f  anyth ing  d ragg ing  these sheep 

and then one day you pu l l  o f f  the  woo l  f rom one  o f  the 
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sheeps on ly  to  f ind  tha t  you have got  a  wo l f  in  your  

fa ther ’s  k raa l .    

 So  he is  ea t ing  the  sheep Cha i r.   Lo ts  o f  peop le  

have been ab le  to  see th rough Mr  Mole fe  and I  th ink  tha t  

fo r  someone who has made such a  huge cont r i bu t ion ,  I  

th ink  tha t  he  needs to  re f lec t  h imse l f .   He cannot  f igh t  

cor rup t ion  and s t i l l  have,  rece iv ing  money f rom,  th rough  

h is  foundat ions.   

 Those th ings do  not  go  hand in  hand Cha i r.   So he 

wou ld  be  os t rac i sed.   I  do  no t  doub t  about  i t  Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  thank you.   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  as  you  p lease Cha i rperson.   Mr  

Montana,  in  paragraph 55 and 56 the  dea l ings,  o r  he  

ind ica tes  tha t  he  is  now go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  Swi fambo 

cont rac t  wh ich  he  s ta r ts  o f f  w i th  a t  parag raph 57 on page  

17.   A re  you the re?  

MR MONTANA:   Paragraph 57?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Page,  paragraph 57 yes sor ry.  

MR MONTANA:   Ja ,  I  am there .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Ja .   20 

MR MONTANA:   Page 17.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  I  w i l l  j us t  read to  you and you te l l  

me whether  you agree w i th  h is  summary.   He says:  

 “ I  se t  ou t  the  ex ten t  o f  the  maladmin is t ra t ion  

as  found by  the  cour ts  in  respect  o f  the  
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con t rac t  tha t  PRASA conc luded w i th  Swi fambo.   

The pos i t ion  in  respect  o f  th is  cont rac t  may be 

summar ised as  fo l lows.   F i r s t  one,  the  board  

app l ied  to  the  H igh  Cour t  to  dec la re  the  

cont rac t  inva l id  and se t  i t  as ide  on  account  on  

onerous i r regu lar i t ies ,  p r imar i l y  the  honest  and 

cor rup t  conduct  o f  PRASA o f f i c ia ls . ”  

 You have read the  papers .   You have read the  

papers  because you app l ied  to  be  an  amicus in  the  H igh  

Cour t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r.   Indeed.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now is  tha t  a  cor rec t  summary o f  what  

he  says the  case was about?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  I  th ink  in  the  app l i ca t ion  by  PRASA 

s igned by  Mr  Mole fe ,  tha t  i s  what  they se t  ou t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   And I  t r ied  Cha i r  to  app ly  as  a  f r iend o f  

the  Cour t  bu t  my  app l i ca t ion  was not  accepted and  I  th ink  

Cha i r  i t  i s  very  un for tunate .   I t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  I  d id  no t  hear  you?  20 

MR MONTANA:   I  say  i t  was very  un for tunate .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   Because hav ing  the  cour t  dea l t  w i th  the  

mat te r  where  the re  were  huge misrepresenta t ion ,  a l l  the  

fac ts  were  no t  p laced before  the  cour ts ,  bu t  we respect  
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judgment  by  a l l  cour ts  Cha i r,  bu t  the  judgment  in  my 

a f f idav i t ,  I  go  in to  de ta i l  about  th is  par t i cu la r  judgment  

Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  then say,  bu t  okay.   So I  mean  

tha t  i s  more  or  l ess  what  PRASA,  the  new board  o f  PRASA 

argued and a l leged in  the  Swi fambo a f f idav i t .   

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then he says:  

 “F ranc i s  J  se t  as ide  the  cont rac t . ”  

 That  i s  co r rec t  as  we l l?  10 

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then he says:  

 “Swi fambo appea led  to  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  

Appea l  wh ich  d ismissed the  appea l . ”  

 That  i s  co r rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then he says:  

 “The Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  re fused to  g rand 

Swi fambo leave to  appea l . ”  

 That  too  is  cor rec t?  20 

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then he says:  

 “Both  the  H igh  Cour t s  and the  SCA were  h igh ly  

c r i t i ca l  o f  the  conduct  o f  PRASA o f f i c ia ls ,  

espec ia l l y  Mr  Montana. ”  
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 Now I  jus t  want  to  say to  you tha t  th is  i s  what  has 

been,  oh  sor ry  you wanted to  comment?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  p roceed.   I  want  to  make a  

comment  on  the  two judgments  and ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   So I  w i l l  te l l  you  what  the  

a f f idav i t  does o r  what  has been done in  the  a f f idav i t .   Mr  

Mole fe  has ex t rac ted  f ind ings o f  manua l ly  the  Supreme 

Cour t  o f  Appea l  and se t  them out  in  h is  a f f idav i t .   

MR MONTANA:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   V i r tua l l y  word  fo r  word  as  to  what  the 10 

f ind ings are .   

MR MONTANA:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And what  I  want  to  do  is  dea l  w i th  

each o f  those f ind ings as  made by  the  SCA.   So can I  say,  

and i f  we want  to  look  a t  the  judgments ,  they are  ava i lab le ,  

bu t  fo r  p resent  purposes there  is  no  need to .   You may 

obv ious ly  re fe r  to  any o ther  par ts  o f  the  judgment ,  o r  

ou ts ide  the  judgments  tha t  you wan t .   

 But  can I  say,  th is  i s  what  he  says  a t  paragraph 59.   

He says:  20 

 “ I t  i s  no t  necessary  fo r  me to  repeat  what  was 

sa id  by  those cour ts ,  except  to  re fe r  th i s  

commiss ion  to  some o f  the  fac tors  tha t  led  the  

H igh  Cour t  and the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  

to  conc lude tha t  the  award  o f  the  tender  was 
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cor rup t . ”  

 Now in  the  H igh  Cour t  mat te r  wh ich  is  no t  re fe r red  

to  here ,  in  paragraph 3  o f  h is  judgment ,  Jus t ice  Franc is  

says tha t  you had app l ied  to  be  an  amicus  bu t  he 

d ismissed the  app l i ca t ion .   That  i s  in  h is  main  judgment ,  

the  one tha t  went  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  tha t  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   I  ag ree w i th  

tha t ,  ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  jus t  want  to  ask  you one ques t ion  on  

tha t .   He d i smissed your  app l i ca t ion  to  be  an  amicus.   D id  10 

you take  tha t  dec is ion  on  appea l  o r  d id  you app ly  fo r  leave 

to  appea l?  

MR MONTANA:   I  app l ied  fo r  leave,  wh ich  he  a l so  

d ismissed Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   D id  you app ly  to  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  

Appea l  fo r  leave to  appea l?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  need,  I  d id  appea l  the  dec i s ion  bu t  

le t  me jus t ,  because . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no ,  no  I  unders tand.   

MR MONTANA:   I  d id  appea l  the  dec i s ion .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  okay and  I  mean tha t  c lea r ly  

shows tha t  you d id  no t  ag ree w i th  what  he  sa id  and you 

wanted a  h igher  cour t  to  make the  de format ion .  

MR MONTANA:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  am ta lk ing  about  the  amicus  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No,  no ,  no  bo th  the  two judgments  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   I  d id  no t  agree  w i th  them,  I  s t i l l  re jec t  

them and ac tua l l y  in  my a f f idav i t  I  dea l  w i th  them.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  sure .   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  I  do  no t  know whethe r  you wan t  me to  

dea l  w i th  them now.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wel l ,  le t  us  p lace on record  what  the  10 

Cour t  found.   

MR MONTANA:   Found,  ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then we can . . .  you  w i l l  have your  

chance and but  be fore  you do tha t ,  I  w i l l  want  to  po in t  ou t  

some parameters  tha t  we wou ld  have to  se t  fo r  tha t .   Now 

in  paragraph 59.1  he  says tha t :  

 “A t  paragraph 10 . . . ”  

 Because he puts  r igh t  a t  the  end the  paragraphs,  a t  

parag raph 59.1  he  says:  

 “Swi fambo,  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  found  20 

tha t  Swi fambo’s  b id  d id  no t  comply  w i th  the  

requ i rements  o f  the  RFP in  severa l  respects  

tha t  i s  no t  hav ing  a  tax  c learance cer t i f i ca te  or  

a  VAT number. ”  

 Now tha t  i s  a  f ind ing ,  I  am jus t  p lac ing  tha t  on  
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record .   You have read the  judgment  o r  can I  jus t  say  tha t  

these are  the ,  I  can say to  you I  checked what  i s  conta ined 

in  the  a f f idav i t  aga ins t  what  the  Supreme Cour t  j udgment  

says.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  Mr  Son i ,  in  so  fa r  as  these a re  

f ind ings tha t  a re  i n  the  judgments  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You can jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Read them.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  because . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Obv ious ly  he  is  no t  go ing  to  say those 

are  no t  f ind ings.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   He w i l l  dea l  w i th  them when he comments  

on  the  judgment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  he  w i l l  ind ica te  I  th ink  when you have  

read,  I  th ink  i t  i s  about  what ,  th ree  or  fou r  more?  Three,  

four  more  under  tha t  parag raph 59? 20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then he can  ind ica te ,  he  can conf i rm 

tha t  he  is  aware  tha t  i t ,  they  are  f ind ings tha t  were  made in  

the  judgment .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  f ind ing .   The  

second f ind ing  is  tha t  Swi fambo d id  no t  subm i t  the i r  

BBBEE p lan  fo r  goods and serv ices  i t  wou ld  procure  fo r  the 

dura t ion  o f  the  cont rac t .   The th i rd  f ind ing  i s  o r  what ,  the  

th i rd  f ind ing  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  re fers  to  i s :  

 “Swi fambo d id  no t  comply  w i th  the  loca l  

content  requ i rement  as  the  locomot ives  were  

to  be  des igned and manufac tured in  Spa in  and 

he d id  no t  p rov ide  ev idence o f  p rev ious 10 

exper ience in  the  ra i l  indust ry. ”  

 Then the  next  mat te r  he  re fers  to  wh ich  is  a t  

parag raph 12 o f  the  judgment :  

 “Swi fambo d id  no t  demonst ra te  i t  had 

exper ience in  the  supp ly  o f  locomot ives  wh ich 

capac i ty  to  manage a  pro jec t  o f  the  s ize  pu t  

ou t  to  tender. ”  

 Now can I  jus t  ask  you th is  Mr  Mon tana,  i s  i t  cor rec t  

tha t  Swi fambo had been fo rmed a  few months p r io r  to  the 

RFP be ing  issued ,  o r  a round tha t  per iod?  I s  tha t  co r rec t?  20 

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know when Swi fambo 

was fo rmed,  the  da te  or  the  per iod  be fo re  tha t ,  bu t  w i th  

b ids  o f  th is  na tu re ,  tha t  i s  what  happened because i f  a  

company b ids ,  e i ther  an  es tab l i shed company o r  peop le  

who fo rm e i the r  JV ’s ,  i t  happens.   
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 I t  i s  no t  unusua l .   Ac tua l l y  tha t  i s  what  happens.   I f  

you  look a t  what  Gabe la  i s .   Gabe la  i s  an  [ ind is t inc t ] .   But  

i t  then say we want  to  b id ,  le t  us  fo rm a  company.   Th is  i s  

a  spec ia l  purpose  veh ic le .   To  b id  fo r  tha t  p ro jec t .   

 Okay.   You then assess the  capac i ty  o f  tha t .   you 

fo r  example  in  t he  Gabe la  case you w i l l  ask  fo r  what  we 

ca l l  parent  company guarantees ,  to  say bu t  th is  i s  a  

spec ia l  pu rpose veh ic le ,  i f  we want  guarantees,  who is  

go ing  to  s tand fo r  th is  guarantee?  

 So Cha i r,  i t  has  happened.   In  fac t ,  i t  ac tua l l y  10 

shows lack  o f  unders tand ing  o f  what  he  has been  say ing  

about  th is  and the  drama tha t  has  been created,  bu t  I  w i l l  

comment  more  on  i t  when I  g ive  my overa l l  comment  to  

ass is t  the  commiss ion  to  have an  apprec ia t ion  o f  what  i s  

happen ing  here .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Then a t  parag raph 60 he 

says tha t  a t  paragraph . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Son i ,  I  take  i t  Mr  Montana you  accept  20 

tha t  the ,  tha t  59 .1  to  59 .4  are  f ind ings or  conc lus ions made 

in  the  judgment?  

MR MONTANA:   59 .1?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  to  59 .4 .  

MR MONTANA:   Ja  no  Cha i r,  I  accept  tha t .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes  ja .  

MR MONTANA:   I  do  no t  agree w i th  them,  bu t  I  accept  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  I  accep t  tha t  you do not  agree.   

Jus t  to  know tha t  you know tha t  they are  made.   

MR MONTANA:   I  have read the  judgment  Cha i r,  I  have  

seen tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then he  says aga in  in  respect  o f  

what  he  sa id  a t  paragraph 13:  

 “Desp i te  the  [ ind is t inc t ]  and o the r  10 

i r regu lar i t ies ,  PRASA’s  BEC recommended tha t  

the  BAC,  to  the  BAC tha t  the  b id  be  awarded  

to  Swi fambo and  a t  i t s  meet ing  o f  the  24 t h  o f  

March 2012,  the  board  approved Swi fambo as 

the  pre fe r red  b idder. ”  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now the  cont rac t  be tween PRASA and 

Swi fambo was conc luded on the  25 t h  o f  March 2013  and the  

re levance o f  the  da tes  I  can jus t  po in t  ou t  i s  th is ,  tha t  the  

recommendat ion  to  the  BAC i s  made on the  24 t h  o f  March  20 

2012.   I t  i s  a  year  and a  day  la te r  tha t  the  cont rac t  

be tween PRASA and Swi fambo was comple te .   

 You accept  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:   I  accept  tha t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  and then  i t  was on ly  on  the  4 t h  o f  
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Ju l y  2013 tha t  a  cont rac t  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  locomot i ves  was 

conc luded between Swi fambo and  Voss loh .   Now Voss loh  

as  I  unders tand i t  was the  Span ish  company tha t  wou ld  

manufac ture  the  l ocomot ives?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then a t  pa rag raph 61 Ms Mole fe  says:  

 “ In  i t s  judgment  . . . ”  

 And th is  i s  in  respect  o f  parag raphs 4  and 5  o f  the  

judgment :  

 “The SCA noted the  ro le  o f  Mr  Dan ie l  10 

Mth imkhu lu ,  the  execut ive  manager  

eng ineer ing  serv ices  as  fo l lows.   In  Ju ly  2011 

he recommended  to Mr  Montana tha t  the  then 

board ,  sor ry  and  the  then board  tha t  PRASA 

sources a  100  locomot ives  to  rep lace i t s  

ou tda ted f lee t  a t  a  cost  o f  f i ve  b i l l i on  rand over  

a  per iod  o f  s ix  years . ”  

 Now tha t  i s  the  f ind ing  o f  the  board .   He says:  

 “A RFP was then  pub l i shed in  November  2011 

to  purchase some 88 locomot i ves .   The 20 

spec i f i ca t ions o f  the  locomot ives  to  be  

supp l ied  were  d rawn up by  Mr  Mth imkhu lu . ”  

 Then a t  paragraph 62 Mr  Montana,  I  mean Mr  

Mole fe  po in ts  ou t :  

 “Of  Mr  Mth imkhu lu  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  
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Appea l  sa id  the  fo l low ing.   He had no 

exper ience in  the  sub jec t .   I t  had been 

appo in ted  to  the  pos i t ion  in  PRASA by Mr  

Montana in  2010 and had a  meteor ic  r i se  

th rough the  ranks w i th  a  meteor i c  sa la ry  h ike  

to  match  i t .   Mr  Mth imkhu lu  c la imed to  have 

d ip lomas in  eng ineer ing  and la te r  a  doctora te .   

In  fac t ,  he  had no  qua l i f i ca t ion  a t  a l l . ”  

 That  i s  word  fo r  word  what  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  

Appea l  sa id  in  i t s  judgment .   A t  parag raph 63 Mr  Mole fe  10 

po in ts  ou t :  

 “The SCA then no te  . . . ”  

 And tha t  i s  a t  paragraph 7 :  

 “That  the  spec i f i ca t ions drawn up by  Mr  

Mth imkhu lu  cont ravene va r ious requ i rements  

o f  PRASA’s  procu rement  po l i cy.   They matched  

those o f  the  locomot ives  manufac tured by  a  

Span ish  company,  Voss loh  es  Spana,  SAU 

which  in  May 2011 had met  recommendat ions 

on  PRASA’s  needs. ”  20 

 Then the  pa ragraph 63 goes on:  

 “The SCA agreed w i th  Franc is  J  tha t  Mr  

Mth imkhu lu  had ta i lo red  the  spec i f i ca t ions to  

inc lude severa l  fea tures  tha t  were  o f  no  

re levance to  PRASA’s  needs,  so  as  to  benef i t  
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Voss loh  and thus Swi fambo.   Accord ing ly  the  

tender  p rocess was cor rup t  . . . ”  

 And tha t  f ind ing  was made a t  paragraph 24.   

Franc i s  J  had,  Mr  Mole fe  goes on a t  paragraph 64:  

 “F ranc i s  J  had found tha t  Mr  Mth imkhu lu  had  

behaved d i shonest ly.   In  the  appea l  be fo re  the  

SCA,  even Swi fambo d id  no t  deny  th is . ”  

 Th is  i s  what  the  SCA says in  i t s  judgment .   The SCA 

a lso  found tha t  Mr  Montana had been a  pa r ty  to  Mr  

Mth imku lo ’s  conduct .   That  f ind ing  is  made a t  paragraph 8  10 

o f  i t s  judgment .   In  add i t ion ,  a t  paragraph 30,  i t  says :  

 “L ike  Franc i s  J  d id  ear l ie r,  tha t  Swi fambo was  

par t y  to  a  f ron t ing  prac t ice . ”  

 Then a t  paragraph 65:  

 “ In  2000 . . . ”  

 Sor ry.   That  i s  the  ex ten t  to  wh ich  he  dea ls  Mr  

Mole fe  dea ls  w i th  the  Swi fambo judgment .   Now you can  

accept  and I  th ink  you do,  tha t  those were  the  f ind ings bu t  

you want  to  comment  on  those f ind ings.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  l i s ten ing  to  the  read ing  o f  the 20 

f ind ings by  the  Cour t ,  i t  ge ts  so  scary  and i f  you do not  

know the  fac ts  o f  th is  mat te r,  and  tha t  i s  why Cha i r  when  

PRASA went ,  and Cha i r  I  accept  tha t  I  am not  here  to  

rev iew th i s  mat te r.   

 I  w i l l  j us t  s ta te  the  fac ts  tha t ,  because I  th ink  the  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 229 of 335 
 

Cour ts  go t  i t  wrong.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   And Cha i r,  I  am go ing  to  say someth ing  

wh ich ,  and say i t  w i th  a  leve l  o f  ser iousness,  because i t  i s  

in  my a f f idav i t .   Both  Cour ts  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   Jus t  repeat  what  you sa id?  

MR MONTANA:   I  am say ing  tha t  I  am go ing  to  say  

someth ing  on  th is  i ssue,  more  spec i f i ca l l y  t he  two 

judgments .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

MR MONTANA:   Which  I  th ink  tha t ,  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  take  

ser ious ly.   But  i f  I  cou ld  be  a l lowed some t ime to  dea l  w i th  

th is  i ssue and ass is t  th is  commiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Son i ,  you had come to  a  po in t  where  

he  can dea l  w i th ,  comment  on  the  judgments .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  except  tha t  Mr  Montana th is  i s  a  

commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry.   I t  i s  bound  by  judgments  o f  Cour ts .   

Now you may have a  c r i t i c i sm o f  the  judgment ,  bu t  we,  I  

jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  so  we are  no t  go ing  to  go  in to  areas 

tha t  a re  no t  go ing  to  be ,  because  I  w i l l  say  immed ia te ly  to  20 

the  Cha i rperson,  who i s  o f  course  the  Deputy  Ch ie f  

Jus t ice ,  and he knows the  law bet te r  than I  do .  

 I  w i l l  say  to  h im tha t  we are  bound in  te rms o f  the  

const i tu t ion  to  accept  what  the  Cour t  says.   You may  

comment  on  i t ,  bu t  I  am pos ing  tha t  ve ry  impor tan t  
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gu ide l ine  fo r  two  reasons.   One is  as  a  commiss ion ,  we  

owe a  du ty  to  our  cour ts  to  respect  the  const i tu t ion  and 

there fo re  the i r  judgment .   

 I  jus t  want  to  po in t  th is  ou t  to  you.   Our  g reates t  

p res ident  eve r,  P res ident  Mande la ,  when he was faced w i th  

a  judgment  adverse  to  h im,  he  sa id  I  w i l l  comply,  even i f  i t  

means I  w i l l  go  and have to  tes t i f y  when a l l  h is  lawyers  

sa id  he  shou ld  no t .   

 Now tha t  i s  the  respect  tha t  the  const i tu t ion  

demands,  and I  am jus t  p lac ing  tha t  on  record ,  so  I  am not  10 

go ing  to  cont inua l l y  in te r rup t  you.   I  have tha t  du ty  to  the 

commiss ion ,  to  the  const i tu t ion  and to  the  count ry  and o f  

course  to  the  jud i c ia ry.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You may comment ,  ja?  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed,  indeed.   Thanks very  much fo r  

tha t .   You see,  you are  mak ing  l i fe  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me.   

Because a l l  the  th ings I  am abou t  to  say Cha i r,  I  do  no t  

want  i t  to  be  v iewed as  i f  I  do  no t  respect  the  jud ic ia l ,  I  do 

no t  respect  the  Cour t s  and a l l  o f  those th ings.   

 Cha i r,  when PRASA went  to  Cour t ,  and aga in  I  20 

accept  the  fac t  tha t  we  are  no t  here  to  rev iew the  th is  

par t i cu la r,  the  Cour t  judgments  and a l l  o f  those th ings,  and 

I  take  in to  account  tha t  these a re  c i v i l  mat te rs .   So the  

Cour ts  a l so  took dec i s ions based on ba lance o f  

p robab i l i t ies .   
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 Cha i r,  when PRASA went  to  Cour t ,  I  read the  paper.   

The PRASA paper.   I  was shocked w i th  these papers ,  the  

amount  i f  m isrep resenta t ion  and I  went  to  Cour t .   I  sa id  

look ,  as  a  fo rmer  CEO of  PRASA a l l  these f ind ings tha t  

they,  because they emerge f rom the ,  what  i s  i t  ca l led?  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t s .   

MR MONTANA:   The a f f idav i t  tha t  was s igned by  Mr  Mole fe  

on  beha l f  o f ,  anonymous ly  deny ing  the  Cour t s  o f  mater ia l  

fac t  wh ich  i f  they  were  p laced before  the  Cour t ,  I  am 

conv inced Cha i r,  tha t  th is  judgment  we wou ld  no t  have.   10 

That  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue Cha i r  I  want  to  say.   

 I  sa id  as  a  fo rmer  CEO of  PRASA,  I  th ink  I  know the  

ins  and outs  o f  th is  mat te r.   I  want  to  ass is t  the  Cour t .   I  do  

no t  want  to  suppor t  th is  s ide  or  tha t  s ide ,  bu t  some o f  the  

th ings,  and I  sa id  i f  indeed some o f  the  a l legat ions tha t  a re  

be ing  made aga ins t  me are  t rue ,  then I  shou ld  ac tua l l y  

have been jo ined as  a  respondent  and I  was not .   

 I  th ink  i t  was,  I  fe l t  te r r ib le  when I  was den ied  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  ass is t  the  Cour t  in  tha t  mat te r.   Cha i r,  there  

are  cer ta in  th ings tha t  a re  jus t  no t  t rue ,  wh ich  the  Cour t  20 

has accepted and hopefu l l y  tha t  when they are  pursued 

probab ly  by  o the r  agenc ies ,  I  mean the  f i rs t  i ssue  about ,  

we know tha t  the re  is  a  genera l  use  o f  the  word  co r rup t ion  

in  the  Franc i s  J  mat te r,  judgment .   

 I  say  Franc is  J  when he dea l t  w i th  the  issue about ,  
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and I  th ink  Mr  Son i  touched on  i t ,  about  the  issue o f  

admiss ib i l i t y  o f  hearsay under  what  c i rcumstances ,  I  look  

a t  tha t  Cha i r.   I t  was a  ser ious er ror  in  my v iew,  and I  have  

consu l ted  o ther  peop le  and asked,  because i t  gave  r i se  to  

th is .   

 Second ly,  the  issues about  Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu ,  

f i rs t l y  Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu  was an execut ive  manager  in  the  

PRASA ra i l  d iv is ion .   But  so  much power  has been g iven to  

th is  man Cha i r,  as  i f  he  was so  power fu l .   He repor ted  to  a  

CEO of  the  ra i l  d i v is ion .  10 

 Peop le  w i l l  te l l  you  tha t  the re  was  th is  power fu l  guy  

repor t ing  to  Montana,  even had found i t s  way th rough the  

judgment .   Cha i r,  le t  me jus t  h igh l igh t  th ree  th ings f rom the  

Franc i s  J  judgment .   The f i rs t ,  and  I  w i l l  te l l  you  what  o ther  

add i t iona l  i ssue.   

 The reason fo r  exc lud ing  me f rom tha t  mat te r,  I  do  

no t  th ink ,  I  have gone out  to  check,  I  am not  sure  tha t  they  

are  be ing  sound .   Some o f  the  th ings tha t  have been 

accepted by  the  Cour t s ,  cou ld  ac tua l l y  cou ld  have been 

tes ted .   20 

 For  example ,  i t  i s  be ing  a l leged tha t  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  

tha t  PRASA a t  tha t  t ime changes procurement  s t ra tegy so  

tha t  Swi fambo can represent  an  ou t r igh t  purchase.   Cha i r,  

we know even f rom the  b idd ing  process tha t  tha t  i s  

fac tua l l y  inco r rec t .   
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 In  fac t  o ther  compan ies ,  Genera l  E lec t r i c  i s  anothe r  

b idder  tha t  was par t i c ipa t ing  in  tha t  p rocess.   He submi t ted  

an  out r igh t  pu rchase tha t  i s  the re ,  and I  pu t  i t  in  my  

a f f idav i t  so  tha t  I  can ass is t  the  Cour t .   So I  was d i smissed  

and tha t  fac t ,  le f t  ou t .   

 So the  Cour t  i s  le f t  w i th  one vers ion  on  wh ich  to  

make i t s  dec i s ion ,  tha t  on ly  Swi fambo was g iven,  was  

t rea ted  fa i r l y,  what  i s  i t  ca l led?  Was g iven the  pr i v i lege to  

. . .  i t  i s  no t  cor rec t  Cha i r.   The ,  I  p resented fac ts  fo r  

example  on  the  b id ,  on  the  br ie f ing ,  compulso ry  br ie f ing  10 

sess ion .  

 I t  ac tua l l y  shows tha t  a l l  b idders ,  inc lud ing  those  

tha t  d id  no t  b id ,  were  g i ven the  oppor tun i ty  to  do  a l l  o f  

those th ings tha t  were  there .   Aga in ,  i f  tha t  fac t  i s  no t  

be fore  the  Cour t ,  the  Cour t  w i l l  work  on  the  bas is  tha t  i s  

be fore  i t .   

 So  I  am t ry ing  to  Mr  Son i ,  to  go  around so  tha t  I  am 

not  seen to  be  a t tack ing  the  jud ic ia ry,  to  take  a  more  l igh t  

approach to  th is  i ssue.   Th i rd ly  Cha i r,  i t  i s  no t  t rue  tha t  

Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu  wro te  th is  spec i f i ca t ion .   PRASA had a  20 

commi t tee .   

 Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu  was the  head o f  execut ive ,  he  

was the  head eng ineer ing  serv i ces  in  our  range d iv is ion .   

So th is  team PRASA had eng ineer ing  funct ions in  i t s 

d i f fe ren t  d iv is ions.   On the  techn ica l  s ide ,  in  the  ra i l  s ide  
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as  we l l  as  in  i t s  p roper ty  s ide .   

 So Dan ie l  was a  Cha i r  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  commi t tee ,  

bu t  he  d id  no t  d ra f t  the  spec i f i ca t ions.   We actua l l y  had 

eng ineers  who spec ia l i ses  in  locomot ives  and every th ing  

invo l ved in  tha t  p rocess and in  my a f f idav i t  I  p rov ide  the  

names o f  tha t .  

 So the  Cour t  had  put  a  lo t  o f  emphas is .   Mr  Mole fe  

says in  h is  a f f idav i t  the  Cour t  says Dan ie l  was d i shonest  

and,  was d i shonest  and Swi fambo d id  no t  oppose,  bu t  

Cha i r,  Swi fambo cannot  oppose someth ing  about  PRASA.   10 

The in te rna l  mat te rs  o f  PRASA because they know noth ing  

about  tha t .   

 So I  th ink  i t  i s  un fa i r  in  fac t  to  expect  Swi fambo to  

ta lk  about  in te rna l  PRASA mat te rs .   Le t  me add Cha i r,  two 

impor tan t  mat te rs .   You know we are  mak ing  a  m is take  

Cha i r.   I f  you  cance l  Swi fambo,  I  th ink  you mus t  cance l  

Gabe la .   

 Because we are  dea l ing  r igh t  in  our,  and I  took  the  

lega l  adv ice .   I t  was wr i t ten  by  Mazwai ,  Do lah  Mazwai  and 

I  a t tached i t  as  par t  o f  the  th ing  there .   I t  ac tua l l y  says tha t  20 

most  o f  the  issues tha t  a re  regarded as  i r regu lar i t ies ,  

ac tua l l y  PRASA d id  no t  ask  fo r  them and you can see tha t  

some o f  the  th ings tha t  Mr  Mole fe  i s  ta lk ing  abou t ,  were  

ac tua l l y  a f te r thoughts  Cha i r.   

 Because a t  the  t ime you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  even the  
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PPPFA was not  app l i cab le  to  PRASA,  because PRASA and 

o ther  s ta te  owned enterp r ises  were  exempt  f rom th is  

par t i cu la r  i ssue.   When Swi fambo  Cha i r  pu t  a  b id ,  I  hear  

tha t  there  was no  capac i ty.   

 The head o f  Sw i fambo i s  an  eng ineer.   Oswald  

Mashabo i s  an  eng ineer.   There  were  fou r  o ther  en t i t ies  

o ther  than what  i s  i t  ca l led?  Oswald  Swi fambo,  Oswald  

Mashaba.   Other  en t i t ies  wh ich  a re  do ing  work  in  the  ra i l  

space Cha i r,  and they have never  been ment ioned because 

i t  d isprove the  no t ion  tha t  you have an ent i t y  tha t  d id  no t  10 

have capac i ty.   

 Cha i r,  the  most  impor tan t  th ing  tha t  South  A f r i ca  

had to  dec ide  on ,  w i th  regard  to  th is  locomot ive ,  PRASA I  

th ink  i t  was buy ing  these locomot ives  fo r  i t s  long d is tance,  

88  locomot ives .   Where  shou ld  i t  bu i ld  these locomot ives?   

D id  i t  have the  quant i t ies  to  bu i ld  a  fac tory?  

 For  example  to  bu i ld  th is  locomot ive .   The b ig  

answer  i s  no ,  PRASA cou ld  no t  have done tha t .   The o ther  

company tha t  uses locomot ives ,  PRASA requ i res  

locomot ives  fo r  8% o f  i t s  bus iness.   Transnet  requ i res  20 

locomot ives  fo r  100% of  i t s  bus iness.   

 So we can see tha t  Transnet  wou ld  buy  

locomot ives ,  o r  even bu i ld  the  p la t fo rm,  bu t  PRASA and 

Transnet  a re  no t  us ing  same locomot ives .   A passenger  

locomot ive  and a  f ra i l  locomot ive  a re  no t  one and the  same 
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th ing .   

 So when PRASA went  on  tender  fo r  88 ,  i t  ended up  

cont rac t ing  on  70.   70  locomot ives  cannot  sus ta in  Cha i r,  

even a  fac tory.   So we d id  no t  spec i fy  Cha i r,  in  the  b id  and  

when I  say  we I  am re fer r ing  to  a t  the  t ime I  was a t  

PRASA.   I  am re fer r ing  to  our  p rocurement  teams,  no t  me  

persona l ly.  

 They d id  no t  spec i fy  in  the  RFP the  fac t  tha t  you  

have to  s t ruc ture  your  re la t ionsh ip .   The b id  prov ide  us  

w i th  a  so lu t ion .   So the  company s t ruc tured i t  themse lves  10 

in  many d i f fe ren t  ways and I  jus t  f ind  i t  odd tha t  you then 

take  and pun ish  them for  the  manner  tha t  we have,  bu t  

what  i s  in te res t ing  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  in  th is  submiss ion  by  Mr  

Mole fe ,  he  ta lks  about  the  b id  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee .   

 We have heard  tha t  the  Cour ts  ta lks  about  Montana.   

I f  there  i s  one b id  where  I  never  even p layed a  pa r t ,  i t  i s  

th is  b id  Cha i r,  because i t  was ove r  th ree  b i l l i on  rand,  ove r  

my de legat ion .   I t  went  to  the  board ,  to  the  b id  eva lua t ion  

commi t tee .  

 I t  then went  to  the  b id  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee  who  20 

was Cha i red  by  Mr  Ph i ro  Ho lero  who came here  and never  

shared w i th  th is  commiss ion  the  fac t  tha t  he  was the  Cha i r  

and had recommended to  the  board .   Ms Matangoya was 

par t  o f  the  b id  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee ,  who was he re .   

 So,  and th is  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee ,  one o f  i t s  
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ma jor  i ssues before  they recommend to  the  board  is  to  

adv ise  the  board  why,  fo r  example  to  say we have p icked  

up cer ta in ,  e i ther  non-compl iance or  i r regu lar  i ssues.   We 

th ink  you must  approve sub jec t  to  the  fo l low ing cond i t ions  

or  we have d isqua l i f ied  these peop le  because . . .  they  d id  

no t  do  tha t  Cha i r.   

 [ ind is t inc t ]  Matango and  o thers ,  they recommended  

to  the  board .   When the  board  o f  PRASA dec ided on th is ,  

none o f  these issues were  there  Cha i r.   Now Mr  Mole fe  

wr i te  about  these  issues,  as  i f  he  on ly  learn t  about  i t  a f te r.   10 

 Cha i r,  Mr  Mole fe  in  2014 in  September,  t rave l led  to  

Spa in .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  do  no t  want ,  remember  we are  

dea l ing  w i th  the  j udgment  here ,  dea l ing  w i th  Mr  Mole fe .  

MR MONTANA:   Ja ,  no ,  no  i t  i s  t rue  s i r,  I  hear  tha t ,  bu t  I  

am jus t  i l l us t ra t ing  a  po in t  here .   He sa id  to  the  Cour t  when  

he went  to  Spa in  and he de l i vered speeches on 

locomot ives ,  he  sa id  ce r ta in  th ings Cha i r  wh ich  even  

cont rad i c t  to  wha t  he  presented.  

 So the  Franc i s  J  judgment ,  wh ich  were  I  th ink  tha t  20 

even f rom the  beg inn ing  the  judge  def ined h imse l f  tha t  the  

Cour t  has go t  the  respons ib i l i t y  to  f igh t  cor rup t ion .   Which  

I  th ink  i s  ve ry  impor tan t  Cha i r,  tha t  the  Cour t  has go t  a  

du ty  to  f igh t  cor rup t ion  where  ev idence suggest  tha t .   

 In  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  I  want  to  a rgue Cha i r  and I  
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w i l l  s t i l l  a rgue to ,  t i l l  th ings change.   In  the  Swi fambo 

mat te r,  you may have ident i f ied  those issues,  bu t  I  th ink  

the  Cour t  went  beyond h i s  du t ies  when he dec la red the  

Cour t ,  tha t  cont rac t  to  be  cor rup t .   

 Cha i r,  and I  am say ing  tha t  a f te r  I  have now had a t  

the  benef i t  o f  even see ing  the  ev idence tha t  was presented  

before  th is  commiss ion ,  by  the  l iqu ida to rs  o f  Swi fambo.   I  

th ink  Cha i r,  m is te r  . . .  was i t  Sacks?   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Sacks was the  fo rens i c  

invest iga to r.   10 

MR MONTANA:   The fo rens ic  invest iga t ion ,  and Mr  Mula  I  

th ink .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Mula  was the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   Indeed,  they came and presented Cha i r  

and they gave the  numbers .   Those numbers ,  they  te l l  us  

two impor tan t  th ings Cha i r.   That  none o f  tha t  money tha t  

you have seen f low ing,  number  one has f lown to  PRASA 

peop le .   

 That  i s  the  f i rs t  i ssue and i t  i s  ve ry  in te res t ing  tha t  

in  cor rup t ion  because who is  supposed to  be  pa id?   I s  the  20 

one who award  the  cont rac t ,  who  does not  ex is t .   That  i s  

the  f i rs t  i ssue.   The second th ing  Cha i r,  I  th ink  you made 

the  po in t  to  say there  is  th is  3 .5  b i l l i on  rand cont rac t ,  okay.   

 Cha i r,  PRASA spent  on  on ly  2 .6  b i l l i on  rand and  

when you ana lyse  the  numbers  Cha i r,  ou t  o f  those numbers  
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1 .9  b i l l i on  are  used.   I  use  approx imate  numbers .   

Approx imate ly  1 .9  b i l l i on  o f  tha t  amount  went  to  buy the  

t rans i t ion  components  and every th ing .   300 mi l l ion  went  on  

tax .   

 Another  100 mi l l ion  goes onto  i ssues o f  cus tom and  

the  t ranspor ta t ion  o f  these locomot ives .   We are  s i t t ing  in  

the  s i tua t ion  where  the  count ry  makes no ise  about  2 .6  

b i l l i on  rand co r rup t ion  when in  fac t  the  money tha t  went  to  

the  d i rec tors  o f  Swi fambo,  i t  i s  qu i te  c lea r  tha t  we ta lk  in  

the  reg ion  o f  about  2 .8 ,  280 mi l l ion  rand Cha i r  tha t  i s  10 

there .   

 The b ig  quest ion  is  a re  the  d i rec tors  o f  Swi fambo,  

because remember  Swi fambo had de l i vered a l ready 13 

t ra ins  Cha i r.   They have bu i l t  ano ther  seven tha t  is  on  i t s  

way and they were  in  the  process  o f  bu i ld ing  seven.   I t  i s  

no t  a  cont rac t ,  I  have heard  th i s  commiss ion  dea l i ng  w i th  

cont rac ts  where  peop le  took money  and d i sappeared .   

 Not  in  th is  par t icu la r  one Cha i r.   There  was no  

cor rup t ion  in  th i s  par t i cu la r  i ssue and when I  read the  

judgment ,  I  expected Franc i s  J  Cha i r,  to  say  we th ink  tha t  20 

Mr  Montana,  Mr  Mth imkhu lu  . . .  Mr  Mth imkhu lu  Cha i r  was 

one p laye r.   

 There  was one eng ineer  ca l led  Mr  Ingwa Seku la  

who ac tua l l y  d ra f ted  the  f i rs t  RFI  in  th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r.   

Not  Mr  Mth imkhu lu .   Now you can see tha t  the  Cour ts ,  
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because they have been presented . . .  i f  your  own fa ther  

say  my son i t  i s  very  bad,  he  comes to  Cour t  and say my  

son is  ve ry  bad.   

 Why wou ld  the  Cour t  no t  be l ieve  the  fa the r,  and th is  

i s  what  has happened Cha i r.   In  my a f f idav i t ,  I  ra ise  a 

mat te r  Cha i r  about  what  I  found when I  went  to  app ly,  

wh ich  I  regarded as  improper  conduct  on  the  par t  o f  

Franc i s  J  Cha i r,  I  ra ise  i t  in  my th ing ,  tha t  Judge Franc is  J  

met  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  dur ing  the  hear ing  o f  the  mat te r.   

 I  was there  w i th  my lega l  team and I  have sa id  i n  10 

my a f f idav i t  tha t  the  conduct  was improper  and tha t  I  am 

cons ider ing  ac tua l l y  tak ing  the  mat te r  w i th  a  jud ic ia l  

serv i ce  commi t tee ,  w i th  ra the r  the  jud ic ia l  conduct  

commi t tee ,  so  tha t  they dea l  w i th  th is  mat te r  because I  

th ink  h is  conduct  Cha i r,  in  the  m idd le  o f  th is  i ssue,  he  has  

met  in  the  morn ing  the  lega l  teams o f  the  respect ive  

par t ies .   

 Then when we took a  break,  Mr  Mole fe  jo ined the  

process.   He met  them in  the  Cour t .   So Cha i r,  I  am not  

surpr i sed when I  see a  j udge,  when a  judgment  i s  wr i t ten  20 

in  tha t  way,  bu t  le t  me te l l  you  someth ing  more  Cha i r  tha t  

w i l l  p robab ly  shock you.  

 Mr  Son i  re l ies  so  much on the  SCA judgment .   Le t  

me te l l  you  what  the  f i rs t ,  I  was not  even pa r t  o f  th is .   The  

f i rs t ,  the  f i rs t  th ree  pa ragraphs  Cha i r,  wr i t ten  by  the  
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judges,  the  f i ve  judges,  the  fu l l  bench o f  f i ve  judges,  they  

wr i te  a  damning th ing  and they a t tack  me Cha i r.   

 I  sa id  we l l ,  I  was the  CEO of  PRASA.   The judges 

maybe take i t  as  i t  i s  no t  fac tua l ,  i t  i s  what  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  

to  the  Cour t  in  the  app l i ca t ion .   Cha i r,  when I  p repared fo r  

my a f f idav i t  here ,  and i t  i s  in  one  o f  the  le t te rs  I  wro te  to  

the  secre tary  o f  the  commiss ion .  

 The f i rs t  th ree  paragraphs o f  the  SCA judgment ,  i t  

comes f rom a  repor t  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  by  Bas i l ius  Conso l ium 

Pro fess iona l  Serv ices ,  one o f  the  compan ies  cont rac ted  to  10 

Werksmans.   I t  was not  the  judgment  f i rs t ,  i t  was th is  

repor t .   

 Word  fo r  word  Cha i r,  in  fac t  I  in tended tha t  when I  

come to  tes t i f y,  I  want  to  read to  you th is  judgment  and  

read to  you th i s  repor t .   I  asked in  my le t te r  to  the 

secre tary,  who wro te  th is  repor t  Cha i r.   How is  i t  tha t  the  

judges o f  the  Supreme Cour t ,  f i ve  judges can ac tua l l y  wr i te  

in  exact ly  word  by  word ,  comma fu l l  s top  every th ing .   

 Cha i r,  the re  are  many o ther  fac tua l  inaccurac ies .   

You know what  the  judges in  the  SCA say Cha i r,  they  say 20 

the  PRASA locomot ives  have never  even moved.   When 

th is  locomot ives  Cha i r  were  s topped and they have done  

76000 k i lomet res ,  the  judges made a  number  o f  o ther  

th ings Cha i r  and I  do  no t  want  to  pursue them.   

 So I  am say ing  tha t  we have to  respect  the  Cour t s .   
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Bu t  I  see a  judge in  the  m idd le  o f  an  impor tan t  hear ing ,  

meet  w i th  one o f  the  par t ies  on  the  s ide .   I  then have 

judges who wr i te  the  judgment  and is  tak ing  them f rom a  

repor t  wh ich  ac tua l l y  i s  no t  a  repor t  tha t  was tab led  dur ing ,  

was presented as  ev idence.   

 No,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  an  in te l l igence  repor t  g iven by  

Bas i l ius  Conso l ium Pro fess iona l  Serv i ces .   I  want  anyone  

to  te l l  me Cha i r.   So yes,  we respect  the  Cour ts ,  bu t  here  

we are  see ing  d isgracefu l  conduct  in  my v iew.   We a re  

see ing  conduct  tha t  i s  inappropr ia te  and we a re  see ing  10 

judgments ,  and Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  I  am prepared the re ,  i t  i s  

in  my a f f idav i t .   

 I t  i s  Annexure ,  one o f  the  key annexures tha t  I  was 

submi t t ing  he re .   Where  I  say  look a t  these judges .   Look  

a t  the  judgment .   We are  be ing  asked as  a  count ry  i f  you  

have got  ev idence o f  improper  conduct  on  the  par t  o f  

judges,  p resent  i t  to  us .   

 I  inc luded tha t  repor t  Cha i r  and I  inc luded the  

judgment  and you w i l l  see  Cha i r,  tha t  th is  judgment ,  I  

re jec t  i t  Cha i r  and you know when  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  20 

sa id  i t  does not  have a  prospect  o f  success because when  

i t  was look ing  a t  what  happened w i th  the  judgment  o f  

Franc i s  J  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   And depend ing  on when i t  was,  I  m igh t  

have been . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR MONTANA:   Abso lu te ly  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  pane l .  

MR MONTANA:   Exact ly.   Cha i r,  I  am not  c r i t i c i s ing  the  

pane l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  am jus t  say ing ,  I  am not  say ing  do  

not  say  what  you  want  to  say,  I  am jus t  say ing  depend ing  

on wh ich  year  i t  was,  I  may have been on the  pane l ,  ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Yes Cha i r.   No,  no  bu t  even w i th  tha t  

Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  wou ld  have 

looked a t  the  two judgments  and sa id  there  is  no th ing  new 10 

tha t  w i l l  come ou t  o f  th is  th ing .   I  respect  tha t .   But  what  I  

am s imply  say ing ,  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  i r respons ib le  o f  me,  as  

a  South  A f r i can,  no t  to  te l l  th is  commiss ion  tha t  o r  no t  to  

go  to  the  jud i c ia l  conduct  commi t tee  o f  the  JSC and say 

here  is  a  judge who met  w i th  one par ty  on  the  s ide .   

 That  i s  i r regu lar  and tha t  here  a re  f i ve  judges who 

take,  who a t tacks  the  BCPS repor t  a t tacks  me.   They say 

PRASA was cont ro l led  by  one Mr  Lucky Montana,  and w i th  

h is  o f f i c ia l s  appo in ted  what  i s  i t  ca l led?  Here  are  the  fac ts  

Cha i r.   20 

 The board  appo in ted  Swi fambo,  no t  Lucky Montana.   

The o f f i c ia l s  who  ad jud i ca ted  on th is  commi t tee  Cha i r,  i s  

no t  my o f f i c ia ls .   A re  ac tua l l y  o f f i c ia ls  who came to th is  

commiss ion  to  accuse me o f  a l l  sor t s  o f  wrongdo ings.   

Mo le le ,  Matangoye.   
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 They were  the re  to  do  a l l  o f  those th ings.   So Cha i r,  

I  am ask ing  myse l f  how to  dea l  w i th  th is  i ssue,  bu t  I  see . . .  

I  th ink  tha t  we must  p ro tec t  and defend the  jud i c ia ry,  bu t  

you must  de fend the  r igh t  th ings.   We cannot  de fend  

someth ing  tha t  is  so  obv ious tha t  the  judges have taken  

Cha i r.   

 I t  i s  my ev idence,  and tha t  i s  why I  th ink  the  sooner  

my a f f idav i t  i s  p resented there  so  tha t  we can dea l  w i th  

what  I  ca l l  d isgracefu l  conduct  by the  judges in  th is  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you lodged any compla in t  w i th  the  10 

jud ic ia l  conduct  commi t tee  over  the  years  or  no t?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  no t  on  these issues.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Because I  have dec ided tha t  I  wan t  to  dea l  

w i th  th is ,  I  do  no t  want  to  pursue Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  the  cost  fo r  me,  the  cost  o f  these 

cour t  app l i ca t ions have been huge on me.   I  have  taken a  

s t ra teg ic  approach.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   20 

MR MONTANA:   Go to  the  commiss ion  and put  them there .   

What  happens,  the  count ry  w i l l  know the  t ru th .   But  Cha i r,  

i t  wou ld  have been the  r igh t  fo rum for  me to  do  tha t ,  bu t  I  

do  no t  have the  capac i ty.   But  I  am say ing  Cha i r,   here  is  

d i rec t  ev idence and tha t  i s  what  I  want  to  ask  Werksmans  
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when they come to  c ross-examine me,  to  say you wro te  

th is  parag raph w i th  your  peop le .   

 How d id  i t  f ind  i t se l f  in to  the  judgment  as  the  f i r s t  

th ree  paragraphs  o f  th is  judgment?   I t  i s  so  wrong.   I t  i s  so  

d isg racefu l  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  we shou ld  when we cr i t i c i se ,  

we shou ld  be  very  spec i f i c  and Mr  Son i ,  tha t  i s  why I  say  

tha t  I  need to  be  care fu l  so  tha t  I  do  no t  even want  to  

undermine what  the  fo rmer,  the  la te  Pres ident  Mande la  had 

sa id  about  the  Cour ts .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

MR MONTANA:   As  i f  now I  am cha l leng ing  the  au thor i t y  o f  

our  in te rna t iona l  i con .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   We in  the  jud ic ia ry  

a lways say tha t  we have never  sa id  tha t  the  jud ic ia ry  

shou ld  no t  c r i t i c i se  bu t  we say i t  shou ld  be  fa i r  c r i t i c i sm,  i t  

shou ld  be  we l l  in fo rmed you know,  be  based on facts  and 

not  jus t  genera l i sa t ions and so  on .   

 But  you have g iven us  your  comments  on  the  two  

judgments .   Mr  Son i ,  do  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Cha i rperson,  I  am const ra ined to  

ra ise  a  number  o f  i ssues.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Montana,  your  a l legat ion  dea l  w i th  
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one i ssue f i r s t .   Your  a l legat ion  aga ins t  Judge Franc i s  was  

put  to  Judge Franc i s  and he submi t ted  an  a f f idav i t .   I  do 

no t  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me,  bu t  I  w i l l  te l l  you  what  he  says.   

F i r s t l y,  be fore  I  do  tha t .   

 As  I  unders tand i t  you say on  the  day,  on  the  f i rs t  

day o f  the  hear ing ,  tha t  i s  the  day when your  app l i ca t ion  

be  admi t ted  as  an  amicus was d ismissed.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   He says,  so r ry.   You say on  tha t  day  

you saw Mr  Mole fe  come out  o f  Judge Franc i s ’s  chambers .   10 

MR MONTANA:   Cor rec t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  I  unders tand i t ,  the  hear ing  was on  

the  n in th  f loor  o f  the  H igh  Cour t  bu i ld ing .   

MR MONTANA:   I  cannot  remember  the  f loor.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember  to  speak c lose  to  the  m ic .  

MR MONTANA:   Ja ,  I  cannot  reca l l  bu t  i t  was  in  the 

Johannesburg  H igh  Cour t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  whatever  f loor  i t  was,  you say  

tha t  Judge,  you saw Mr  Mole fe  come out  o f  Judge Franc i s ’s  

chambers .   Wel l ,  Judge Franc i s  sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  answer  w i l l  no t  be  captu red.   

MR MONTANA:   Oh,  i t  w i l l  no t  be  reco rded.   Yes,  indeed 

Cha i r  I  can conf i rm tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Judge Franc is  says in  h i s  a f f idav i t ,  

tha t  a t  tha t  t ime he was based on the  f i f th  f loor  and the  
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hea r ing  as  I  unders tand i t ,  was on the  n in th  f loor.   So you  

cou ld  no t  have seen h im,  you cou ld  no t  have seen Mr  

Mole fe  come out  o f  Judge Franc i s ’s  chambers .   You are  

smok ing  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r,  I  am say ing  I  do  no t  know.   Do you  

want  to  dea l  w i th  i t?   I  was asked  Cha i r  to  respond  to  th is  

judgment  and then . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  what  Mr  Son i  i s  do ing  in  fa i rness to  

Judge Franc is  who was asked  to  comment  on  your  

a l legat ions and supp l ied  an  a f f idav i t ,  he  is  pu t t ing  to  you  10 

Judge Franc i s ’s  vers ion ,  wh ich  is  what  he  is  say ing .   

MR MONTANA:   Okay Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You might  react ,  you might  want  to  

respond to  tha t  o r  he ,  bu t  he  is  say ing  th is  i s  the  vers ion  

tha t  the  commiss ion  has ob ta ined.   

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  I  am g lad  tha t  the  commiss ion  has 

fo l lowed tha t  Cha i r.   I  have not  seen the  response and I  

th ink  a t  the  r igh t  t ime I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  inc lud ing  the  

w i tnesses tha t  I  was w i th  and tha t  i s  why I  pu t  i t  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   The conduct  in  tha t  way.   So I  am happy.   I  

w i l l  no t  respond now,  because I  d id  no t  even know where  

h is  o f f i ce  i s .   I  sa id  I  saw h im and I  th ink  tha t  was the  . . .  

tha t  i s  where  in  fac t  f rom my lega l  rep resenta t i ve ,  the  
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Honourab le  Judge in  the  morn ing  even met  w i th  the  

d i f fe ren t  lega l  teams before  the  s ta r t  o f  the  case.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Were  you par t  o f  tha t  meet ing  w i th  

Judge Franc i s?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  I  was outs ide .   I  a r r i ved ea r ly  when 

they were  s t i l l  meet ing .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  when you say you were  ou ts ide ,  

ou ts ide  where?  

MR MONTANA:   Outs ide ,  ou ts ide .   Outs ide  the  Cour t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Outs ide  the  Cour t .   10 

MR MONTANA:   When they were  meet ing  in  one o f  the 

rooms.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   A t  the  Judge ’s  chambers .   That  

i s  where  they normal ly  meet .   

MR MONTANA:   Can I  suggest  tha t  I  see the  response o f  

the  judge,  so  tha t  by  the  t ime we dea l  w i th  i t ,  because 

remember  i t  i s  no t  on  th is  spec i f i c  mat te r,  i t  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you not  been g i ven a  copy o f  the 

a f f idav i t?  20 

MR MONTANA:   O f  h is  response?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   And I  look  a t  tha t  and say,  and dec ide  

whethe r  I  even s tand by  tha t ,  and the  w i tnesses.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   
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MR MONTANA:   Because I  th ink  tha t  I  was react ing  to  the 

judgment  and I  made th is  po in t ,  and i t  i s  there  in  my 

a f f idav i t  Cha i r.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  am to ld  tha t  the  a f f idav i t  was  served  

on you.  

MR MONTANA:   No.   I  have not  seen i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   So  le t  me not  say  no ,  bu t  I  have not  seen 

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

MR MONTANA:   A l l  the  a f f idav i t s  tha t  I  was in fo rmed tha t  

peop le  wanted to  cha l lenge inc lud ing  Werksmans,  Judge 

Franc i s  J  as  we l l  as  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Min i s te r  Peters  

MR MONTANA:   As  we l l  as ,  I  th ink  there  was a  th i rd  one o r  

Mr  Po l low Su l l i van .   So I  was in fo rmed,  bu t  I  never  saw the  

ac tua l  papers .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You were  to ld ,  bu t  you were  no t  g iven the  

ac tua l  a f f idav i t s?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  I  d id  no t  see them Cha i r.   No,  I  was  20 

. . .  a t  tha t ,  I  was ja .   So Cha i r,  I  w i l l  doub le  check 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  ge t  an  oppor tun i ty.  

MR MONTANA:   And then when we dea l  w i th  my a f f idav i t ,  

we can dea l  w i th  those in  much greater  de ta i l  Cha i r.    



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 250 of 335 
 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  you know Mr  Montana,  and  p lease 

you must  accept  tha t  I  cannot  s tand he re  and a l low an 

a l legat ion ,  a  se r ious a l legat ion  to  be  made aga ins t  a  judge 

o f  th is  count ry  and when I  know what  h is  ve rs ion is  no t  pu t  

i t  to  you.   

 You may respond on a  d i f fe ren t  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  you can . . .  you  can ce r ta in ly  pu t  

i t .   A l l  he  is  say ing  is  he  is  no t  ab le  to  respond.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  unders tand.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  de f in i te ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  on ly  fa i r  tha t  the  pub l i c  who have 

heard  h im . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Heard  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hear  what  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  i s .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  go ahead.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  I  am go ing  to  ra ise  a  s l igh t ly  

d i f fe ren t  i ssue.   That  i s  the  day  on  wh ich  he  d i smissed 

your  app l i ca t ion  to  be  admi t ted  as  an  amicus.   I s  that  20 

r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  unders tand tha t  you were  

separa te ly  rep resented in  tha t  app l i ca t ion .   In  o ther  words  

you had an a t to rney a t  leas t  when you brought  the 
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app l i ca t ion  to  be  admi t ted  as  an  amicus.   

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r,  I  had an a t to rney and there  was 

a  counse l  who a rgued the  mat te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Now you saw Mr  Mole fe  leave  

Judge Franc is ’s  chambers  on  your  vers ion .  

MR MONTANA:   Ja ,  I  saw h im even ar r i ve  in  Cour t ,  Mr  

Mole fe  and then  I  saw h im when he came f rom the  very  

same room tha t  I  ment ioned.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  your  answer  i s  yes?  

MR MONTANA:   Yes,  the  answer  i s  yes .   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   D id  you te l l  your  a t to rney and your  

counse l?  

MR MONTANA:   I  d id  te l l  my a t to rney.   I  was w i th  my 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Your  counse l?  

MR MONTANA:   I  te l l  my a t to rney Cha i r,  no  I  d id  no t  

d iscuss w i th  the  counse l  because he was appo in ted  o f  

course  by  the  a t to rney bu t  I  was  w i th  my a t to rney Cha i r  

and we spoke to  Mr  Mole fe  in  fac t  on  tha t  day.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   We are  no t  ta lk ing  about  your  20 

speak ing  to  Mr  Mole fe .   I  want  us  to  dea l  w i th  the  

quest ions I  am ask ing  Mr  Montana.  

MR MONTANA:   Bu t  Cha i r,  I  have  conf i rmed tha t .   I  have 

conf i rmed tha t  Mr  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 252 of 335 
 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   So d id  your,  what  was your  

a t to rney ’s  react ion  to  tha t?   I  mean th is  i s  as  ou t rageous  

and a  commi tmen t  to  jud ic ia l  du t ies  as  one wou ld  f ind .   

MR MONTANA:   No,  no ,  no .   Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  must  take  

except ion  to  th is .   You see Cha i r,  now I  hope tha t  Mr  Son i  

w i l l  have the  same energy when we a lso  dea l  w i th  the  next ,  

w i th  the  o the r  mat te r  ph rased.   You sa id  and I  th ink  you  

have gu ided us .   

 You sa id  Cha i r,  tha t  i t  i s  good tha t  Mr  Son i  had put  

fo rward  the  vers ion .   He is  p roceed ing  to  a rgue on beha l f  10 

o f  the  Honourab le  Judge.   Le t  me be served w i th  the  

documents ,  take  adv ice  on  the  issues and rep l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  cor rec t  way Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   Because i f  we do  tha t ,  then le t  us  argue 

and I  b r ing  the  two repor ts .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MONTANA:   And read i t  ou t  to  you and then I  do  no t  

know what  Mr  Son i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   I  thought  your  gu idance was tha t  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MONTANA:   You have sa id  c r i t i c i sm o f  the  jud ic ia ry,  
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where  there  is  a  sound bas i s .   You know,  when Mr  Mole fe  

came out  o f  tha t  room Cha i r,  when I  was w i th  my lega l  

team,  the  a t to rney,  okay.   He came,  we even spoke  to  h im.   

he  was huge ly  embarrassed Cha i r,  bu t  I  am suggest ing  

Cha i r  tha t  ins tead o f  Mr  Son i  tak ing  the  judge as ,  he  can 

come and put  h is  vers ion  he re  and say Montana is  wrong.   

 I  see  the  a f f idav i t  bu t  he  is  a rgu ing  on th i s  

par t i cu la r  i ssue.   I  have then been  g iven the  benef i t  o f  

even what  the  judge has sa id .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   10 

MR MONTANA:   So  i f  I  have to  come back and answer  to  

i t ,  I  w i l l  do  exact ly  tha t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  I  th ink  what  shou ld  happen Mr  

Son i  i s  s ta te  wha t  the  judge ’s  vers ion  is  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

Mr  Montana says he  has no t  been g iven a  copy  o f  the  

a f f idav i t .   Le t  h im be g iven a  copy o f  the  a f f idav i t  and he 

w i l l  le t  us  have h is  react ion  to  i t ,  and then le t  us  take  i t  

f rom the re ,  bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  because he has pu t  h i s  

vers ion  about  the  mat te r,  Judge Franc is ’s  vers ion  we a lso  

know.  20 

MR MONTANA:   And Cha i r,  by  the  way I  have put  my 

vers ion  about  the  f i ve  judges o f  the  SCA as we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Th i s  happened,  th is  inc ident  o f  Judge 

Franc i s ,  you are  say ing  th is  happened in  Ju ly  2017.   I s  tha t  
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cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have the  ac tua l  da tes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Had you made a  compla in t  to  the 

Jud ic ia l  Conduct  Commiss ion?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  make but  I  made 

re ference to  tha t ,  tha t  I  am cons ider ing  lay ing  a  fo rmal  

compla in t .   I  ment ion  tha t  in  my a f f idav i t ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now when d id  you f i rs t  see PRASA’s  10 

s ta tus  in  the  Swi fambo. . .?  

MR MONTANA :    Wel l ,  Cha i r  i t  was  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  was i t  –  i t  had to  be  be fore  your  

app l i ca t ion  to  jo in  th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Indeed Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    R igh t .   Now,  on  your  ve rs ion ,  tha t  

conta ined not  on ly  m isrepresenta t ions,  i t  con ta ined. . .  by 

PRASA’s  ve rs ion .   PRASA’s  vers ion  be fore  cour t .   I s  that  

cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    D id  you  te l l  you  –  th is  was a  

R 3 .5  b i l l i on  con t rac t .   D id  you  te l l  Swi fambo’s  lega l  

rep resenta t i ves :   Look,  you are  ask ing  fo r  th is .   Now you  

are  res is t ing  the  se t t ing  as ide  o f  th is  cont rac t .   I  have 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  can g ive  you and I  do  no t  m ind depos ing  
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to  an  a f f idav i t  depos ing  tha t  app l i ca t ion  bu t  i t  i s  based on 

fa lse?  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no  Cha i r.   No,  no  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  have  

never  to ld .   We know,  here  in  th is  Commiss ion  as  we s i t  

here ,  we know tha t  I  made a  cho ice ,  tak ing  my lega l  adv i ce  

tha t  I  shou ld  do  i t  in  tha t  way because a t  tha t  t ime we were  

care fu l  no t  to  be  seen to  be  suppor t ing  one par t y  over  the  

o ther  bu t  I  knew fo r  a  mat te r  o f  fac t . .  

 And you know Cha i r  the  one th ing  I  do ,  I  wr i te  

my own a f f idav i t  and I  then sent  them to  the  lega l  –  I  wr i te  10 

the  fac ts ,  I  wr i te  the  s to ry  and  say te l l  me what  I  am 

get t ing  wrong,  co r rec t  i t  and a l l  o f  those th ings.    

 The a f f idav i t  on  Swi fambo,  I  th ink  i t  i s  76-pages,  

where  I  de ta i l  a l l  o f  those th ings.   And I  say  in  tha t  in  fac t  

PRASA,  wh ich  means Mr  Mole fe  and Werksmans have  

w i thhe ld  va luab le  in fo rmat ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  Mr  Montana,  my quest i on  is  a  

d i f fe ren t  quest ion .   You knew tha t  they have wou ld  have 

in fo rmat ion?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  and I  exerc ised my r igh t . . .   You are  20 

ask ing  me why d id  no t  I  do  someth ing  as  I  d id  no t  e lec t  to  

do  i t  a t  t ime.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    How does i t  he lp  s ta te  capture ,  Cha i r,  

tha t  I  dec ided to  be  –  to  make a  d i f fe ren t  app l i ca t i on  and 
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no t  he lp?   I  cho ice  no t  to  work  w i th  Swi fambo.   I  wanted to  

go  and ass is t  the  cour t  so  tha t  the  cour t  can see the  t ru th  

on  th is  i ssue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Can I  ask  you?  D id  you know Mr 

Auswel l  Mashaba  a t  tha t  t ime?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mis te r. . .?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Auswel l  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Auswel l  Mashaba?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

MR MONTANA :    A t  tha t  t ime you a re  re fer r ing  to?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    The t ime o f  the  cour t  case.  

MR MONTANA :    No,  no .   A t  t ime,  Cha i r,  I  knew h im .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    You knew h im? 

MR MONTANA :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    When d id  you meet  –  when  d id  you 

f i rs t  ge t  to  know h im? 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  I  have f i rs t  met  h im a f te r  

PRASA in  my con t rac t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    That  i s  Swi fambo cont rac t?  

MR MONTANA :    The Swi fambo cont rac t ,  yes .    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Montana . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    I  th ink  tha t  i s  in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . so  tha t  I  can hear  you or  c lose r  to  the  

m ic .  

MR MONTANA :    Oh,  so r ry  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  shou ld  have been 2012,  

ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    When I  f i rs t  met  Auswel l  Mashaba 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . .and h is  en t i re ty  Swi fambo Team,  i t  was  

in  2012 a f te r  they  were  awarded the  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Now once the  rev iew app l ica t i on  had 

been brought ,  you were  aware  tha t  i f  the  cont rac t  was se t  

as ide ,  Auswel l  Mashaba s tood to  su f fe r  severe  loss .    

MR MONTANA :    Swi fambo,  Cha i r,  w i th  a l l  h is  par t ies  in  i t ,  

yes ,  they wou ld  su f fe r,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   D id  you  te l l  Mr  Mashaba:   Look,  

th is  i s  what  has happened.   I  have seen th is .   Th is  i s  a  

mat te r  tha t  you  can take  up.   That  PRASA’s  –  the 

Cha i rperson o f  PRASA’s  board ,  the  deponent  to  i t s  a f f idav i t  

had jus t  come out  o f  the  judge ’s  chambers .    20 

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r,  aga in ,  I  deposed  to  an  

a f f idav i t ,  a  76-page a f f idav i t .   I  pu t  a l l  the  issues o f  why I  

thought  the  cour t  –  because u l t imate ly  i t  i s  the  cour t  tha t  

se t  as ide  the  con t rac t ,  no t  PRASA.   I  pu t  an  a f f idav i t .   I  pu t  

the  reasons and the  fac t s  and a  lo t  o f  suppor t ing  a f f i dav i t s .    
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 For  example ,  I  pu t  in  documents  tha t  shows tha t  

no t  on l y  Swi fambo but  PE h indered.   I  have a lso  a  repor t ,  

fo r  example ,  done by  the  GM,  Treasury  a t  PRASA tha t  

makes a  compar ison o f  the  d i f fe ren t  b ids .   I  pu t  tha t  in  my  

ev idence to  show tha t  the  s to ry  tha t ,  fo r  examp le ,  on ly  

Swi fambo was g iven an oppor tun i ty,  tha t  i s  fa lse .   So 

before  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    You have gone th rough tha t  

Mr  Montana.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    No,  no .   But  can you g i ve  me –  can you  10 

p lease a l low me? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on.   Le t  Mr  Montana f in ish  h is  

po in t .  

MR MONTANA :    Exact ly,  Cha i r.   So I  am say ing  Cha i r  tha t  

–  Mr  Son i  says to  me,  a f te r  I  have app l ied  to  cour t ,  tha t  

why d id  I  no t  d iscuss the  mat te r  w i th  the  Swi fambo?  I  d id  

no t  have any ob l iga t ion  to  d iscuss w i th  Swi fambo.   I  d id  

no t  have to  go  to  Swi fambo.   I f  he  c la ims tha t  I  was not  

happy and a t  tha t  t ime Cha i r  you w i l l  reca l l  maybe you 

want  to  dea l  w i th  the  Serega(? )  mat te r.   PRASA had  20 

adopted a  s t ra tegy,  th is  l i t i ga t ion  s t ra tegy.   They were  

do ing  tha t  and they were  us ing  my name.   I  was be ing  

dragged and –  bu t  I  was not .   Be ing  ca l led  to  respond,  i t  i s  

be fore  myse l f ,  okay?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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MR MONTANA :    In  th is  par t i cu la r  –  you know,  when you 

look a t  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  the  in i t ia l  asse r t ion  by  the  –  

on  the  PRASA papers ,  was tha t  the  Swi fambo mat te r  was 

approved by  Lucky Montana.   Now we know lega l l y  they 

want  to  change the  papers  because they rea l i se  tha t  tha t  

was fa lse .   I t  was  a  fa lse  asser t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  bu t  your  answer  i s ,  as  you say,  you 

d id  no t  because you had no ob l iga t ion .  

MR MONTANA :    I  d id  no t  have an ob l iga t ion  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    10 

MR MONTANA :    And . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i .  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    You see,  we a re  ta lk ing  about  a  

s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  i ssue he re .   When you found your  

app l i ca t ion  to  be  an . . .   You have  not  seen Mr  Mo le fe ,  on  

your  vers ion ,  leave Judge Franc is ’ chambers  bu t  a f te r  tha t  

you became,  on  what  you have  sa id  today,  tha t  th is  

judgment  was made a f te r  an  i r regu la r  communica t ion  

be tween Mr  Mole fe  and Judge Franc is .  20 

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  Mr  Son i  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i ,  I  th ink  th is  i ssue o f  h is  

a l legat ion  about  the  judge ’s ,  le t  us  dea l  w i th  i t  once  he has  

a  look a t  Judge Franc i s ’ a f f idav i t  to  be  –  and le t  h im react  
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in  te rms o f  an  a f f idav i t  in  response  i f  he  wants  to .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  i t  p lease Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then i f  –  then we can look a t  how i t  

shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th .   There  is  a  quest ion  o f  the  Jud ic ia l  

Commi t tee  bu t  there  i s  the  quest ion  –  the  issue tha t  i t  has  

no t  been –  a  no  compla in t  tha t  has been lodged  over  a  

cer ta in  t ime but  I  th ink  le t  us  ge t  tha t  sor ted  ou t  and then 

le t  us  then look a t  i t .   Bu t  the  Judge Franc is ’ ve rs ion ,  I  

wou ld  l i ke  you to  pu t  i t s  essence or  the  ro le  o f  i t  pub l i c ly  

as  we l l .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  tha t  i t  i s  heard .  

MR MONTANA :    So  Cha i r,  w i thout  –  w i l l  I  a lso  be  send the  

responses o f  the  f i ve  judges o f  the  SCA on tha t  judgment?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know i f  there  a re  any 

a f f idav i t s  f rom those –  f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r  I  have  ra ise(?)  p roper  conduct  

about  the  f i ve  judges.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    And noth ing ,  bu t  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  20 

a lso  do  the  same,  no t  on  judge.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Son i  has to ld  –  has ment ioned 

about  Judge Franc i s .   Mr  Son i ,  you want  to  say anyth ing  

about  the  SCA judges?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Perhaps th i s  i s  the  r igh t  t ime to  say 
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i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    We have submi t ted  what  Mr  Montana 

sa id  about  in  cour t ,  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  judges 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . . to  the  Pres ident  o f  the  Supreme 

Cour t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .by  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And we ind ica te  tha t  shou ld  they w ish  

to  say anyth ing ,  we wou ld  p lace tha t  on  record .   We have 

not  rece ived a  response f rom the . . .  o f  the  SCA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   So,  

Judge Franc i s ’ a f f idav i t  tha t  the  Commiss ion  has,  the  Lega l  

Team wi l l  make i t  ava i lab le  to  you and then –  to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  you reacts  to  i t  once –  reacts  in  te rms o f  an  a f f idav i t ,  

respond ing  and we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there .   In  te rms o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

MR MONTANA :    Can I  ask  another  quest ion?  I  am sor ry,  

Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MONTANA :    I  do  no t  want  to  de lay  the  proceed ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  
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MR MONTANA :    I s  i t  –  we are  a l l  accountab le .   I  am here  

because o f  accountab i l i t y.   To  come and answer  on  cer ta in  

a l legat ions made  aga ins t  me.   I  am mak ing  a l legat ions 

aga ins t  the  judge.   And I  thought  tha t ,  Cha i r,  the 

s t rongho ld  wou ld  be  tha t  you  are  ra is ing  a  ser ious 

a l legat ion  w i th in  tha t  –  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  

because i t  goes to  assu re  even us .    

 I f  they  say:   No ,  you are  wrong.   We got  th is  

th ing  in  th is  way.   That  i s  someth ing  e lse  Cha i r.   But  I  am 

not  sure  i f  I  want  to  leave i t  a t  tha t  w i th  tha t  –  I  am 10 

assuming tha t  he  says tha t  they had responded or  a re  you 

say ing  we are  leav ing  the  mat te r  because they  d id  no t  

respond?  Because I  th ink  f rom an accountab i l i t y  po in t  o f  

v iew . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . . i t  i s  no t  the  r igh t  th ing  to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  me say th is  Mr  Montana.   As  

you wou ld  know by now,  the  Commiss ion  has go t  a  Ru le  

3 .3 .  Not ice  process.   That  i s ,  i f  there  i s  some submi t ted  an  

a f f idav i t  o r  s ta tement  tha t  imp l ica tes  you or  may been  seen  20 

as  imp l ica t ing  you,  you are  g iven  a  copy thereof  and you 

are  g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  respond o r  app ly  fo r  leave to  

c ross-examine tha t  person and so  on .    

 That  i s  an  e lec t ion .   You are  no t  ob l iged to  do  

so .   So I  have a  susp ic ion  tha t  tha t  i s  what  have may have 
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happened w i th  the  SCA judges bu t  i t  m igh t  a lso  be  tha t  i t  

was not  g iven as  a  Ru le  3 .3 .  Not ice  and maybe  i t  was 

s imp ly  g iven as  a f fo rd ing  them an oppor tun i ty  to  know tha t  

there  is  somebody who has some a l legat ions o r  c r i t i c i sms 

about  the i r  judgment  and do they want  to  say someth ing .    

 There  are ,  o f  course ,  as  you know,  s i tua t ions 

where  even i f  somebody who has  been g iven a  Ru le  3 .3 .  

Not ice  has chosen not  to  respond ,  where  the  Commiss ion  

can –  the  Cha i rperson can compare  and there  a re  

s i tua t ions where  peop le  can be issued w i th  summons and 10 

so  on .   So i t  depends on a  lo t  o f  th ings.   So I  th ink  tha t  i s  

the  exp lanat ion .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  shou ld  jus t  po in t  ou t .   

In  fa i rness to  the  judges concerned .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    The  a l legat ions made in  

Mr  Montana ’s  a f f idav i t  in  respect  o f  Judge Franc i s  

conta ined th is  a l legat ion  tha t  he  had seen Mr  Mole fe  leave  

Judge Franc is ’ chamber.   Now tha t ,  obv ious ly,  i s  an 

a l legat ion  tha t  needed to  be  conf ron ted head on where  the  20 

judge says e i ther  I  d id  i t ,  I  d id  no t  do  i t ,  i t  cou ld  no t  have  

happened because o f  whatever.   So tha t  i s  the  one i ssue.    

 In  regard  to  the  judges o f  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  

Appea l .   The a l legat ions were  o f  a  genera l (? )  na tu re .   The 

a l legat ion  –  and I  l i s tened very  care fu l l y  to  the  a l legat ion  
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today tha t  the  f i r s t  th ree  paragraphs o f  the  judgment  o f  the  

SCA rep l i ca tes  what  had been sa id  in  some repor t .   Now I  

do  no t  th ink  –  and i t  has  been a  b i t  o f  t ime s ince  I  read  

Mr  Montana ’s  a f f idav i t  –  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  tha t  i s  what  was 

sa id  in  so  many words in  tha t  a f f idav i t .    

 The c rux  o f  the  a l legat ions were  tha t  those  

judges are  cor rup t  because they m isapp l ied  the  law.   Now 

in  fa i rness to  the  judges concerned.   What  do  they say?   

Judges speak th rough the i r  judgments .   There  is  no th ing  in  

Mr  Montana ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  dea ls  w i th  tha t  i ssue.   So I  jus t  10 

wanted to  p lace  tha t  on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    So  the  pub l i c  ou t  there  does not  th ink  

tha t  there  are  judges who regard  themse lves as  

unaccountab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    I  have l i t t le  doubt  tha t  –  they a l l  

know tha t  they  are  accountab le  and they do  regard  

themse lves as  accountab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  in  these c i rcumstances,  i t  wou ld  

be  unfor tunate  to  c rea te  the  impress ion  tha t  there  is  even 

–  we l l ,  no t  on ly  an  ob l iga t ion  –  even a  jud i c ia l  du ty  fo r  

them to  respond.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Because when one looks  a t  the 

a f f idav i t ,  there  i s  no t  anyth ing  spec i f i c  aga ins t  any o f  the 

judges.    

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r  can  I  rea l l y  ob jec t  to  th is?   

Because I  though t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What  wou ld  you l i ke  to  say?  

MR MONTANA :    Because I  thought  you gu ided us ,  Cha i r,  

to  take  a  more  ba lanced approach.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  10 

MR MONTANA :    That  there  a re  no  counts  Cha i r.   You 

know,  my c r i t i c i sm –  and I  do  go  in to  de ta i l  –  no t  on  th is  

spec i f i c  mat te r  Cha i r.   I  never  accused the  judges o f  

cor rup t ion .   I  d id  no t  do  tha t  in  my a f f idav i t .   And I  th ink  

tha t  we shou ld  no t  go  to  tha t .   I  spoke about  improper  

conduct ,  Cha i r,  in  my th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MONTANA :    I f  I  leave th is  mat te r,  there  are  e igh t  o ther  

mat te rs  where  I  sa id  the  judges made the  –  make er ro rs .   

g ive  on ly  one example  where  they sa id  the  t ra ins  ar r i ved 20 

and they have never  moved.   I t  i s  a  fac tua l  i ssue.   The  

t ra ins  have done  76 000 km’s  bu t  I  make the  po in t . . .   You 

see,  Cha i r.   I  am t ry ing  to  be  ba lanced he re .   I  am t ry ing  to  

here  And make sure  tha t  I  do  no t  th row s tones.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR MONTANA :    The t ru th  o f  the  mat te r  i s .   I  am say ing  

And i t  i s  a  ser ious issue Cha i r  because i f  I  judge wr i tes  a  

repor t  Or  a  judgement  Which  is .  -  I  respect  tha t .   I  have no 

quest ion  w i th  tha t .   But  here  is  a  judgement  And th i s  

judgement  -  the  a t to rneys a t .  Werksmans are  f igh t ing  th is  

i ssue on beha l f  o f  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  hang on Mr  Montana.   You are  

jus t  say ing  ear l ie r  on :   I  gave gu idance.   The on ly  reason  

why Mr  Son i  Was speak ing  about  the  SCA judges Is  

because they have not  f i l ed  an  a f f idav i t  And you ra i sed the  10 

issue Are  they no t  accountab le?   He was exp la in ing  tha t ,  

bu t  in  te rms o f  The way fo rward ,  I  th ink  we maybe we are  

done in  te rms o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    For  the  record  Cha i r.   I  had never  

accused judges o f  cor rup t ion .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA :    That  I  must  say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA :    We d id  no t  dea l  w i th  i t  in  tha t  way.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  a lso ,  I  must  jus t  say.   one o f  20 

the  th ings tha t  one has got  to  th ink  about  in  the  contex t  o f  

the  issues you ra ise  about  the  H igh  Cour t  judgement  and  

the  H igh  Cour t  judge and the  SCA judges is  tha t  -  i s  the 

quest ion  o f  to  what  ex ten t  a re  they  a l l  those issues.   Would  

a l l  o f  those issues be proper ly  dea l t  w i th  by  the  
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Commiss ion  as  opposed to  go ing  to  the  Jud ic ia l  Conduct  

Commiss ion  i f  we  jus t  spec i f i ca l l y  es tab l i shed to  dea l  w i th  

compla in t s  aga ins t  judges.    

 So then tha t  i s  someth ing  a l so  tha t  we w i l l  have 

to  th ink  about .   Ja .   Okay a l r igh t .   we a re  a t  two minutes  to  

s ix .   We normal ly  take  a  10  minutes  break eve ry  two  hours.   

so  le t  us  take  a  10  minutes  b reak and then we w i l l  

cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    As  you w ish .   

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .   10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS :  

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  see  a t  seven.   We wi l l  see  once  

we are  a t  seven o 'c lock  and ta lk  about  whether  we  

cont inue o r  no t  bu t  le t  us  cont inue  fo r  now.   Ja .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson ,  I  need to  p lace  on  

record  tha t  I  have looked now aga in  a t  Mr  Montana 's  

a f f idav i t  and in  fa i rness to  Mr  Montana,  he  d id  no t  accuse 

any o f  the  judges  o f  be ing  cor rup t .   What  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  no t  accuse any o f  the  charges o f  20 

cor rup t ion?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Judges are  be ing  co r rup t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    bu t  what  he  d id  say is  tha t  the  judges  

o f  the  SCA had de l ibe ra te l y  l ied  and eat  cons idered the  
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conduct  to  be  d isgracefu l  bu t  i t  i s ,  as  I  say,  in  genera l  

te rms but  I  -  in  fa i rness to  Mr  Montana I  do  no t  want  i t  to  

be  sa id  tha t  I  looked and d idn ' t  cor rec t  the  record .   i t  i s  

cor rec t  tha t  Mr  Montana d idn ' t  make tha t  accusat ions.    

And i t  came about ,  Cha i rperson,  because I  haven ' t  looked 

a t  h is  a f f idav i t . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  i t  needs to  be  p laced on record .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Cha i rperson,  you have suggested in  10 

regard  to  the  Mr  Montana 's  a l legat ions aga ins t  Judge 

Franc i s  and obv ious l y  aga ins t  the  SCA a t  one wou ld  look a t  

i t  aga in  a f te r  Mr  Montana has been g iven judge Franc i s ’ 

a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    A f f idav i t ,  yes .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    . . .wh ich  I  unders tand he has been 

g iven but  I  accep t  he  -  i t  may not  have reached h im .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Bu t  we w i l l  hopefu l l y  obv ious ly  have  

to  dea l  more  care fu l l y  w i th  tha t  because reputa t ions are  a t  20 

s take.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    And g iven what  has happened today,  

the  SCA might  take  a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  approach.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   And 
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Mr  Montana ’s  c la r i f i ca t ion  tha t  he  has no t  and  is  no t  

accus ing  any judge o f  cor rup t ion  m ight  be  an  impor tan t  

fac tor  in  cons ide r ing  weathe r  -  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  may 

w ish  to  vent i la te  those issues tha t  may be h is  concerns  

m ight  be  be ta  dea l t  w i th  in  the  jud ic ia l  conduct  commi t tee 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .because f rom the  commiss ion 's  s ide  

we have to  a lways keep our  eyes on  the  te rms o f  

re fe rence,  you know.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  -  bu t  le t  us  look a t  i t  once he has had  

a  chance to  look  a t  Judge Franc is ’  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes,  as  i t  has  been sa id  tha t  he  must  

keep in  ou r  lane.   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we must  keep in  our  lane.   Ja ,  ja .   

Okay a l r i gh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   I  jus t  want  to  -  now I  have  

f in ished,  Mr  Montana,  w i th  the  res t  o f  what  Mr  Mole fe  says 

in  h is  e f fo r t  ove r.   I t  i s  a t  page -  in  regard  to  Swi fambo -  i t  20 

is  a t  page -  parag raph 65,  page 19.   He says:  

“ in  2015 the  new board  ins t i tu ted  d isc ip l inary  

proceed ings aga ins t  Mr  Mth imkhu lu  bu t  he  

res igned before  any hear ing  cou ld  be  heard .  

S ign i f i can t ly,  the  SCA had found tha t  
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Mr  Montana had been a  par ty  to  

Mr  Mth imkhu lu ’s  conduct . . . ”  

 So le t  us  leave  out  the  f ind ing  o f  the  SCA 

because tha t  we have been th rough.   May I  jus t  ask  you in  

re la t ion  Mr  Mth imkhu lu?   Are  you aware  about  the  prospect  

o f  a  d isc ip l inary  hear ing  and he 's  res ign ing  unaccounted 

tha t?   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    No,  Cha i r.    

MR MONTANA :    No,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Then Mr  Mole fe  says tha t  o f  you – 10 

tha t  i s  Mr  Montana –  the  SCA sa id  the  fo l low ing:  

“He cont ro l led  PRASA and i t s  s ta f f ,  he  was  

obst ruc t i ve  and a t tempted to  cover  up  h is  ro le  

in  var ious cor rup t  t ransact ions inc lud ing  the 

award  o f  the  tender  to  Swi fambo.  

The Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  had exper ienced s im i la r  

obst ruc t ion  in  he r  invest iga t ion . . . ”  

 Now tha t  i s  the  f ind ing  and I  know i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  you d isagree w i th .    

MR MONTANA :    Th is ,  ac tua l l y  Cha i r,  i s  the  summary o f  20 

what  I  sa id  comes f rom anothe r  repor t  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA :    . . .  made the  po in t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  he  has made  h is  po in t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  then hav ing  seen tha t  
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the  SCA in  the  Swi fambo mat te r  made re ference  to what  

the  Pub l ic  P ro tec tor  found.   Mr  Montana,  Mr  Mole fe  dea ls  

w i th  her  repor t .   And can we do i t  in  the  same way we have  

done the  SCA repor t?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    He says a t  paragraph 68:  

“Among the  f ind ings tha t  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  

made in  he r  repor t . . .  tha t  in  a  number  o f  cases 

PRASA extended  the  scope o f  tenders  wh ich  

const i tu ted  maladmin is t ra t ion  and improper  10 

conduct .  

In  one case,  a  tender  fo r  two t ra in  s ta t ions  was 

la te r  ex tended to  seven s ta t ions g iven the  

cont rac t  a  va lue  o f  some R 1 .95  b i l l i on . . . ”  

 Mr  Montana,  jus t  so  tha t  you know tha t  i t  i s  in  

the  repor t .   Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  a t  the  –  in  the  f i le  conta in ing  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  a t  pages 358 and 359 .   I  am 

jus t  p lac ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  jus t  to  say where  i t  i s ,  to  be  found.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :    Yes.   And o f  PRASA’s  and 20 

Mr  Montana ’s  approach,  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  sa id :  

“ I t  was d i f f i cu l t  to  ge t  in fo rmat ion  f rom PRASA 

wi th  th is  be ing  a  main  cause or  fac tor  beh ind  the  

de lay  in  f ina l i s ing  th is  invest iga t i on  wh ich  was 

lodged in  2012.  
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P romises fo r  documents  were  no t  kept  and even 

a  request  fo r  ass i s tance f rom the  o ld  board  

y ie lded very  few source  documents . . . ”  

 Now –  then she cont inues the  –  the  repor t  

cont inues and I  have ind ica ted  i t  is  a t  page 64,  paragraph 

3 .5  o f  the  repor t .  

“ I t  was a l so  d i scomfor t ing  tha t  Mr  Montana 

boasted about  the  fa i lu re  o f  compl iance to  

p rov ide  documentary  ev idence  on some 

a l legat ions and asked tha t  I  ad jud ica te  those 10 

mat te rs  in  h is  favour  when he fa i led  to  p rov ide  

leg i t imate ly  requested documents . . . ”  

 And then she –  Mr  Mole fe  says:  

“The PP a lso  found tha t  the  CEO suspended 

the  employees  w i thout  fo l low ing proper  

d isc ip l ina ry  p rocesses. . . ”  

 And a l though the re  is  a  page re fe rence to  375,  

on  m ine i t  i s  379.  

“And tha t  the  conduct  o f  hab i tua l l y  suspend ing  

employees cont ravenes PRASA’s  d isc ip l inary  20 

code and const i tu tes  maladmin is t ra t ion  and  

improper  conduct . . . ”  

 Then a t  paragraph 70,  Mr  Mole fe  says:  

“The Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  a lso  no ted  tha t  there  

was a  cu l tu re  o f  poor  in fo rmat ion  management  
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o r  h id ing  o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  cou ld  prov ide  

ev idence o f  ma ladmin is t ra t ion . . . ”  

 And a t  paragraph  71,  Mo le fe  quotes  th is  f rom the 

repor t  i s :  

“Amongst  them,  immedia te  ac t ion ,  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  sa id ,  shou ld  be  taken as  the  

fo l low ing:  

-  The board  must  take  cogn isance o f  the 

f ind ings o f  ma ladmin is t ra t ion  and  improper  

conduct  by  Mr  Montana and o the r  10 

funct ionar ies .  

-  I t  must  repor t  to  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  and 

the  Aud i to r  Genera l  par t i cu la rs  o f  the 

a l leged f inanc ia l  m isconduct  and  the  s teps 

i t  took .  

-   And suppor t  Nat iona l  Treasury  in  conduct ing  

a  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  in to  a l l  PRASA 

cont rac ts  above R 10 mi l l ion  f rom 2012 and  

then take  appropr ia te  measures to  address 

the  f ind ings. . . ”  20 

 And the  re fe rence in  the  repor t  i s  there .   He 

says:  

“G iven a l l  these concerns wh ich  had been add 

the  pub l i c  space ,  one wou ld  have expected  

tha t  the  board ’s  dec i s ion  to  accept  
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Mr  Montana ’s  res ignat ion  wou ld  rece ive  

suppor t  f rom those who cared about  PRASA,  

i t s  employees,  the  commuters  i t  serves and 

the  pub l i c  good. . . ”  

 Then a t  paragraph 73,  he  says:  

“Sad ly,  as  I  no te  in  the  res t  o f  the  a f f idav i t ,  no t  

on ly  was there  no  suppor t  fo r  the  board  when 

i t  began i t s  c lean-up but  in  fac t  i t  was ver i f ied  

and e f fec t i ve ly  d i sbanded. . . ”  

 Leav ing  out  the  o ther  mat te rs ,  go ing  to  be  the  10 

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t ,  Mr  Mon tana,  i s  there  someth ing  

you want  to  say?  

MR MONTANA :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Jus t  b r ie f l y,  Cha i r.   F i r s t l y,  o f  

course ,  we know tha t  I  have  cha l lenged the  repor t .   

Ins t i tu ted  the  rev iew app l ica t ion  in  th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r,  

Cha i r.   And dea l t  w i th  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  Mr  Montana.   Jus t  lower  the  m ic .  

MR MONTANA :    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   My apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  I  pu t  the  rev iew 20 

app l i ca t ion  in  Pre tor ia ,  cha l leng ing  the  –  I  pu t  an  

app l i ca t ion  I  th ink  a  few days a f te r  the  PP re leased the  

repor t .   And by  the  way,  le t  me aga in  repeat .   When the  

repor t  was i ssued ,  Cha i r,  I  was not  a t  PRASA.   And I  th ink ,  

I  f ind  i t  very  s t range tha t  pa r t i cu la r ly  in  pa ragraph  72 tha t  
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Mr  Mole fe  cou ld  use the  Pub l ic  P ro tec tor ’s  repor t  as  they  

were  dea l ing  w i th  my –  I  have le f t  PRASA.   I  was no t  there .   

I  do  no t  know i f  you see tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am look ing  a t  72 .    

MR MONTANA :    Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

“G iven a l l  these concerns wh ich  had been add 

the  pub l i c  space ,  one wou ld  have expected  

tha t  the  board ’s  dec i s ion  to  accept  

Mr  Montana ’s  res ignat ion  wou ld  rece ive  10 

suppor t  f rom those who cared about  PRASA,  

i t s  employees,  the  commuters  i t  serves and 

the  pub l i c  good. . . ”  

 I  unders tand tha t  to  mean tha t  g iven what  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  recorded as  hav ing  found in  the  prev ious 

parag raphs,  the  fac t  tha t  they accepted your  res ignat ion  

shou ld  have got  suppor t  f rom o thers  tha t  –  those who care 

about  PRASA.   Ja .   

MR MONTANA :    Cha i r,  I  am s imply  say ing  there  is  no  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween my res ignat ion  and the  Pub l ic  20 

Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    I  res igned in  March  2015.   

15  March 2015.   I  le f t  PRASA on the  15 t h  o f  Ju ly  2015.   The  

Pub l ic  P ro tec tor ’s  repor t  was i n  August .   So i t  has  go t  no  
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bea r ing  on  a l l  o f  the  th ings tha t  Mr  Mole fe  i s  dea l ing  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r  le t  me ra ise  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  be fore  you do tha t .   Le t  me te l l  you  

what  my unders tand ing  is .   My  unders tand ing  o f  what  

Mr  Mole fe  i s  say ing  he re  is  tha t  a l though the  –  I  am now 

put t ing  i t  in  my own words –  a l t hough the  repor t  o f  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  may have come a f te r  you had  le f t ,  i t  

re la ted  to  th ings tha t  happened wh i le  you were  Group CEO 

of  PRASA and there fore  anyone  who becomes aware  o f  10 

these f ind ings by  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  and th ink ing  about  

the  fac t  tha t  they accepted your  res ignat ion ,  i f  they  ca re  

about  PRASA,  they shou ld  accept .   That  i s  how I  

unders tand tha t .  

MR MONTANA :    No,  I  accept  tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MONTANA :    So  le t  me ra ise  jus t  a  few issues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MONTANA :    Because I  have put  –  I  sa id  I  have  put  in  

a  rev iew app l ica t i on  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    . . . in  August  2015.   The f i rs t  par t  o f  my 

rev iew app l ica t ion ,  I  dea l t  w i th  the  er ro rs  o f  law tha t  the 
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Pub l i c  Pro tec to r  had commi t ted  in  the  PRASA invest iga t ion .   

One o f  the  th ings  I  ra ised Cha i r  i s  the  fac t  tha t  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor,  fo r  example ,  app l ied  Sect ion  38  o f  the  PFMA 

which  ac tua l l y  does not  app ly  to  PRASA.   Even some par ts  

o f  the  cont rac t  and a l l .   So  I  have deta i led  those.   No,  I  w i l l  

no t  repeat .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    I  w i l l  no t  repeat  tha t  here  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA :    Bu t  Cha i r  le t  me –  and then,  o f  course ,  in  10 

February  o f  2016,  I  then moved  the  lega l  const i tu t iona l  

i ssues.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MONTANA :    To  then p ick  each and every  a l l egat ion 

and a  f ind ing  on  tha t  repor t .   I  d id  tha t  Cha i r.   Of  course ,  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  had promised tha t  she w i l l  pub l i sh  

vo lume 2  because she has on ly  dea l t  w i th  50% of  th is ,  

Cha i r.   She pub l i shed vo lume 2  o f  her  repor t  in  s i x  months  

be fore  she le f t ,  be fore  she leaves o f f i ce .   She le f t  o f f i ce  

w i thout  pub l i sh ing  tha t  repor t  wh ich  had an impact ,  o f  20 

course ,  on  the  ab i l i t y  o f  our  rev iew app l ica t ion  w i thout  a l l  

those issues not  be ing  –  because we cou ld  no t  cha l lenge  

ha l f  the  repor t  tha t  i s  there ,  Cha i r.  

 Now,  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  paragraph 68  

…[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you do  so ,  can  I  jus t  es tab l i sh  

where  tha t  rev iew app l ica t ion  is  in  te rms o f  i t  be ing  

pursued?  I t  seems a  long t ime.  

MR MONTANA:    I t  took  a lmost  th ree  years  fo r  the  PP 

o f f i ce  to  ac tua l l y  f ina l i se ,  a f te r  Advocate  –  I  th ink  she le f t  

in  20 . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    2016,  Adv Madonse la .  

MR MONTANA:    2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  th ink  tha t  the  o ther  repor t  was on ly  10 

f ina l i sed –  was  i t  las t  yea r,  vo lume 2 ,  wh ich  are  two 

repor ts  tha t  ac tua l l y  do  no t  ac tua l l y  speak the  same 

language,  as  i t  were .   Cha i r,  I  have wr i t ten  to  the  o f f i ce  o f  

the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor,  tha t  i s  Advocate  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you cont inue,  why shou ld  –  we l l ,  

I  unders tand you to  be  say ing  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  your  

rev iew app l i ca t ion  m ight  no t  have been f ina l i sed,  i t  was  

because there  was the  second phase,  as  i t  were ,  o f  the 

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  invest iga t ion .   Now you were  no t  

sa t is f ied  w i th  ce r ta in  f ind ings or  th ings about  the  f i rs t  20 

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .   Why cou ld  tha t  no t  be  dea l t  w i th  

on  i t s  own?  

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  tha t  was the  –  the  adv i ce  I  

go t  was tha t  i t  i s  p roper  to  dea l  w i th  the  repor t  in  i t s  to ta l  

because a t  tha t  t ime …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Because,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  the  f i rs t  one  

was v iewed as  f ina l  in  regard  to  the  mat te rs  tha t  i t  was 

dea l ing  w i th  and then –  or  tha t  i s  the  impress ion  I  had.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  she postponed a  lo t  o f  mat te rs  

to  vo lume 2  o f  he r  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Which  she d id  no t  then do.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  she cou ld  no t  do .  

MR MONTANA:    Which  she cou ld  no t  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because he r  te rm exp i red .  10 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  she  sa id  w i th in  s ix  months .   

A t  tha t  t ime she le f t ,  so  the  dead l ine  she se t  herse l f ,  she  

cou ld  no t  honour,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  I  fo l lowed tha t  w i th  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  un t i l  they  have course  p roduced vo lume 2  

o f  the  repor t .   Vo lume 2  o f  the  repor t ,  no t  the  same l ine ,  

Cha i r,  tha t  has  been taken in  Dera i led ,  comple te l y  

d i f fe ren t .   I  th ink  tha t  in  a l l  the  mat te rs  i t  ac tua l l y  

d ismissed a l l  the  mat te rs  bu t  one  where  i t  dea ls  w i th  the  20 

issues o f  the  sa le  o f  a  p roper ty  be tween Transnet  and  

PRASA and she say they shou ld  have fo l lowed a  tender  

p rocess,  as  i t  were .  

 Now there  was another  cour t  cha l l enge to  vo lume 2 ,  

Cha i r,  wh ich  came f rom one o f  the  organ isa t ions i n  Cape 
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Town to  say she d id  no t  do  a  proper  invest iga t ion  and a l l  o f  

those th ings.    

 So there  have been a  number  o f  issues but ,  Cha i r,  

i f  I  cou ld  jus t  h igh l igh t  a  few th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    That  I  have ra ised,  w i thout  tak ing  the  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    You know,  Cha i r,  the  hear t  o f  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  repor t  and the  f ind ing  quoted by  Mr  Mole fe  i s  in  10 

parag raph 68 and  tha t  speaks to  S iyagena.   When you say  

the  repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  –  o f  cou rse  I  sa id  in  my  

f i rs t  –  the  rev iew app l ica t ion ,  I  dea l t  w i th  the  er rors  o f  law,  

I  have dea l t  w i th  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  Adv Madonse la .   

Ac tua l l y  no t  even unders tand ing  PRASA,  app ly ing  even  

lega l  p rescr ip ts  tha t  were  no t  app l i cab le  to  PRASA.   I  th ink 

I  have a t tached aga in  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  have a t tached both  

my rev iew app l i ca t ion  as  we l l  as  a  supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t .   

In  tha t  supp lementary  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r,  I  dea l  w i th  then the 

ac tua l  de ta i l s .   Now one o f  them is  ac tua l l y  in  68 .   Th is  i s  20 

about  S iyangena,  Cha i r.  

 Cha i r,  the  Dera i l ed ,  Adv Madonse la  sa id  –  s ta ted  

there ,  Cha i r,  tha t  there  were  two s ta t ions tha t  were  

ex tended to  seven s ta t ions g iv ing  the  cont rac t  a  va lue  o f  

some 1 .95  b i l l i on .   That  i s  no t  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Before  20  –  
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in  the  per iod  lead ing  up to  2010 there  were  two s ta t ions 

tha t  were  modern ised and Cha i r,  le t  me c la r i f y  i t  because,  

by  the  way,  be fore  I  go  in to tha t ,  you asked a  quest ion  to  

Ms Ngoy i  dur ing  the  ev idence to  say were  compan ies  tha t  

were  appo in ted  pushed as ide  and S iyangena was put  in  

there?  She conf i rmed,  Cha i r.    

Now I  want  to  –  and I  sa id  when I  am here  I  need to  

c la r i f y.   I t  i s  no t  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Companies  were  appo in ted  

to  modern i se  and bu i ld  s ta t ions .   They con t inued.   

S iyagena was dea l ing  w i th  the  ins ta l la t ion  o f  sys tems in to  10 

those s ta t ions,  so  there  were  no  compan ies  tha t  were  

pushed as ide  and  S iyangena pushed in  them.    

Cha i r,  here  i n  68  we a re  dea l ing  w i th  2009.   

In te rs i te ,  a  d i v is ion  o f  PRASA appo in ts  S iyagena as  what  

we ca l l  a  nominated or  a  p re fe r red  or  nominated 

subcont rac to r.   So they appo in t  them through a  process,  a  

compet i t i ve  process and say when we appo in t  peop le  to  

work  on  these s ta t ions,  the i r  peop le  a re  go ing  to  ins ta l l  

these sys tems,  access cont ro l s  and every th ing ,  i t  i s  go ing  

to  be  S iyangena.   So S iyangena is  appo in ted  in  tha t  way.  20 

Now the re  is  another  p ro jec t ,  Cha i r,  awarded to  

S iemens.   S iemens is  do ing  the  res t  o f  the  ne twork .   Now 

these were  2010  pro jec t .   In  2010,  S i r,  in  January  2010,  

jus t  a  few months be fore  the  Wor ld  Cup S iemens had then 

w i thdrawn f rom a  number  o f  PRASA s ta t ions because there  
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was d isagreement  about  mon ies ,  how much shou ld  be  the  

va lue  o f  some o f  the  s ta t ions,  so  they pu l led  ou t  o f  tha t .   

PRASA had fou r  months  to  p repare  the  s ta t ions fo r  2010.  

In te rs i te  w i th  PRASA then dec ided tha t  no ,  we have  

got  a  company tha t  has been proper ly  appo in ted  to  do  th is  

work ,  i t  i s  on  s i te ,  we are  no t  ta lk ing  about  bu i l d ing  o f  

s ta t ions ,  i t  i s  no t  the  change,  i t  i s  us ing  the  very  same 

company to  ex tend because i t  has  been appo in ted  fo r  tha t .  

So i t  i s  two s ta t ions  and the  s ta t ions a f fec ted ,  

Cha i r,  were  seven.   Pub l i c  Pro tec to r,  the  va lue  o f  the  10 

cont rac t ,  Cha i r,  you w i l l  no t  be l ieve  i t ,  R68.4  m i l l ion  fo r  a l l  

those se rv i ce  s ta t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    68?  

MR MONTANA:    68 .4 ,  no t  b i l l i on ,  m i l l i ons .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mi l l i on ,  ja ,  m i l l i ons .  

MR MONTANA:    Now tha t  68 ,  Cha i r,  there  is  the  d rama in  

tha t  repor t  the  f i rs t  th ing ,  o ther  than app ly ing  wrong 

repor ts  and presc r ip ts  o f  the  law,  desp i te  hav ing  a l l  

ev idence before  her  inc lud ing  comple t ion  cer t i f i ca tes  o f  

th is  p ro jec t ,  she  made th ree  f ind ings.   The f i rs t  one is  20 

about  the  fac t  tha t  these pro jec ts  cost  R1.9  b i l l i on  rands.   

In  submiss ions I  dea l  w i th  th is  i ssue,  Cha i r.   R68.4  m i l l ion  

and not  R1.9  b i l l i on .   So her  f ind ings is  incor rec t .   Then 

she went  to  c rea te  drama about  th is  maladmin is t ra t ion  

based on someth ing  tha t  i s  fac tua l l y  incor rec t .  
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 She then a lso  says,  Cha i r,  she makes anothe r  

f ind ing  in  re la t ion  to  parag raph  68,  she says PRASA 

awarded work ,  fo r  S iyangena to  do  th is  work  under  the  

pre tex t  tha t  th is  i s  2010 work  bu t  th is  work  was on ly  done 

in  2011.   Cha i r,  i t  i s  incor rec t .   We have prov ided the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  dur ing  invest iga t ion  bo th  comple t ion  

cer t i f i ca tes ,  the  launches,  these s ta t ions were  launched  

around the  count ry  by  even Min i s te r  S ’bu  Ndebe le  in  the  

per iod  lead ing  up to  2010.   The las t  s ta t ion  was ac tua l l y  

comple ted  on the  8  June,  jus t  th ree  days be fore  the  2010 10 

Wor ld  Cup.   The Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  made ser ious  er rors ,  

Cha i r,  in  th is  repor t .  

 Th i rd ly,  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec to r,  Cha i r,  when she says  

–  she ta lks  about  me,  she says  Montana went  to  Park  

s ta t ion  and f i red  compan ies  the re ,  Cha i r.   Okay?  And i t  i s  

t rue ,  I  went  to  Park  s ta t ion .   When  I  ge t  there  the  s ta t ion  is  

f i l t hy,  we have go t  seven s ta te  compan ies  tha t  a re  invo l ved 

in  c lean ing  the  s ta t ions,  they are  be ing  pa id  and I  sa id  to  

my team,  I  do  no t  f igh t ,  I  sa id  to  my team i f  you do not  dea l  

w i th  these compan ies  then I  am go ing  to  f i re  you guys 20 

because he re  is  a  s ta t ion ,  the  second b iggest  s ta t ion  in  the  

cont inent .   I  say  i f  the  Pres ident  come here  and f ind  the  

te r r ib le  cond i t ions ,  ye t  we a re  pay ing  peop le  fo r  

ma in tenance and  c lean ing ,  we have got  to  take  ac t ion .   

Those compan ies  were  then subsequent ly  d i smissed and  
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the  PRASA Cres,  wh ich  i s  our  p roper t y  s ide ,  wh ich  was the  

PRASA’s  proper ty  sect ion  then put  a l te rna t ive  measures fo r  

these s ta t ions to  be  c leaned.   No,  Cha i r,  the  repor t  comes 

Montana i r regu lar ly  f i res  compan ies ,  Cha i r.   Those are  the  

f ind ings.  

 I  can  go on and on,  Cha i r,  bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  the  

repor t  o f  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  fa l l s (? )  because o f  bo th  the  

lega l  as  we l l  as  the  mass ive  fac tua l  inaccurac ies ,  I  –  you 

know,  th is  repor t  does not  speak  about  me,  Cha i r,  and I  

th ink  i t  i s  very  impor tan t .   Out  there  peop le  th ink  the  Pub l ic  10 

Pro tec tor  i s  about  Montana and number  two,  i t  is  about  

cor rup t ion .   I  th ink  we have read  a l l  the  f ind ings  o f  the 

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r.   She ta lks  about  maladmin is t ra t ion ,  power  

and a l l  o f  those th ings,  S i r,  about  the  employees tha t  were  

suspended w i thout  fo l low ing o f  p rocedures.   She never  

ment ioned a  s ing le  f ind ing  in  Dera i led .   In  Dera i led ,  no t  in  

the  second vo lume o f  even th is  cor rup t ion  tha t  we hear.   

When you hear  peop le  –  a  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor,  some o f  them 

even fee l  very  s t rong ly,  has made ser ious f ind ing  o f  

cor rup t ion ,  none,  Cha i r.   I  was the  on ly  person,  you know,  20 

Cha i r,  who cha l lenged th i s  repor t  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  i t  

made a  number  o f  f ind ings because I  became the  face  o f  

th is  repor t  and i t  was so  un fa i r,  Cha i r,  I  mean,  one  o f  the  

c lauses o f  the  PRASA SCM po l icy  says when employees o f  

PRASA or  any bus iness o f  PRASA wants  to  use a  serv i ce  
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w i thout  go t  th rough a  compet i t i ve  process,  where  i t  i s  an 

emergency and so  on ,  they need to  mot iva te  and get  the 

approva l  o f  the  Group CEO.  

 Cha i r,  there  is  one f ind ing  in  Tshwane where  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  says a  chap by  the  name o f  –  an  employee 

by  the  name o f  Buthe lez i  approved the  ex tens ion  o f  a  

secur i t y  cont rac t  w i thout  fo l low ing what  the  po l i cy  

p rov ides,  tha t  you must  mot iva te  and get  the  approva l  o f  

the  Group CEO before  you cou ld  do  tha t .   So she is  r igh t .   

But  comes the  next  one where  employees,  no t  tha t  a re  10 

in i t ia te ,  a  bus iness o f  PRASA wou ld  mot iva te  in  l ine  w i th  

tha t  c lause.   I t  is  there  in  the  po l i cy.   I  approve .   That  

const i tu te  maladmin is t ra t ion .   When i t  i s  no t  done ,  he  d id 

no t  fo l low po l i cy,  when i t  i s  done,  i t  i s  ma ladmin i s t ra t ion ,  

tha t  i s  [ speak ing  in  the  vernacu la r ]  wh ich  means whethe r  

you are  –  you a re  damned whethe r  you do i t  o r  you  are  –  I  

do  no t  know,  someth ing  l i ke  damned i f  you do 

i t…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you fo l low the  law you …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Exact ly,  Cha i r.   So th is  repor t ,  Cha i r,  and  20 

tha t  i s  why I  cha l lenge,  bu t  I  am g lad  Adv Mkhwebane,  had  

ac tua l l y  p roduced  a  repor t ,  no  drama,  very  fac tua l ,  Cha i r.   

Th is  o ther  repor t  where  even peop le  can even say  

these s ta t ions were  comple ted  in  2011.   When we 

launched,  we have got  p ic tu res ,  we have got  m in is te rs  
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there ,  the  s ta t ions were  used fo r  2010 and the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor  sa id  no ,  they were  on ly  comple ted  –  i t  i s  the 

same f ind ing  tha t  we are  d i scuss ing  on  the  SCA tha t  we 

had t ra ins  tha t  never  moved when they have done 76 000  

k i lomet res .   So th is  th ing  is  about ,  Cha i r,  representa t ion  o f  

fac ts .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:    You know,  i f  there  i s  one person,  Cha i r,  

f ina l l y,  who coopera ted  w i th  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r,  i t  i s  me 

and Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  to  p rove tha t  I  have coopera ted  and  10 

tha t  some o f  he r  i ssues and f ind ings about  in fo rmat ion  

were  rea l l y  unca l led  fo r.   I  asked fo r  the  record  when I  –  

be fore  I  –  when I  d id  the  rev iew app l ica t ion .   Can you g ive  

me the  record?  The Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  cou ld  no t  even g i ve  

me documents  tha t  I  had g iven  to  her  ye t  she  makes 

f ind ings about  PRASA not  keep ing  proper  reco rds  and a l l  

o f  those th ings.   But ,  Cha i r,  fo r  me,  I  w i l l  dec ide  whether  I  

want  to  take  i t  o r  no t .    

The recommenda t ion  tha t  Treasury  runs a  fo rens ic  

invest iga t ion ,  the  fo rens ic  invest iga t ions have been  done.   20 

I  have seen and read the  repor ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  you have sa id  you have got  your  

rev iew app l i ca t ion .  

MR MONTANA:    I  have got  my rev iew app l ica t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you in tend ing  to  pursue i t?  
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MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  dec ide  in  the  l igh t  o f  a l l  

o f  tha t  and… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    A o f  –  I  th ink  f ive  years  has in te rvened  

s ince  tha t  t ime,  I  need to  ask  myse l f  what  va lue  I  ge t  in  

go ing  to  cour t  and spend ing  thousands o f  rands .   But ,  

Cha i r,  I  d id  cha l lenge i t  and say i t  i s  wrong and fac tua l l y  I  

d id  pu t  in  those deta i l s ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.   Mr  Mon tana,  I  10 

need –  and I  say  th is  w i th  the  u tmost  respect  to  you,  you  

have c r i t i c i sed the  judgments ,  the  Swi fambo mat te r,  you  

have made a l legat ions about  a l l  the  judgments .   You have 

cr i t i c i sed the  judgment  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  bu t  th is  

Commiss ion ,  because i t  i s ,  sub jec t  to  the  const i tu t ion ,  has 

to  accept  the  f ind ings o f  cour ts  o f  law and unt i l  they  are  

se t  as ide  on  appea l  those f ind ings s tand and in  respect  o f  

the  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor  you know tha t  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  

has sa id  un t i l  a  cour t  has rev iewed and se t  as ide  those 

f ind ings,  those f ind ings s tand.   I  am p lac ing  th is  on  record  20 

because I  have heard  every th ing  you say,  i t  i s  on  reco rd  

bu t  in  fa i rness to  you I  need to  say tha t  a t  the  end o f  the  

day those are  the  submiss ions I  w i l l  make  to  the 

Cha i rperson.   I  do  no t  want  to  say  i t  in  your  absence.   We 

do not  have to  dea l  w i th  i t  today,  I  have l i t t le  doubt  tha t  
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you  w i l l  come back bu t  I  jus t  p laced tha t  on  record  so  you  

know what  my approach to  what  you have sa id  in  respect  o f  

those judgments  and th i s  repor t .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Mr  Son i ,  I  respect  I  respect  tha t ,  

Cha i r.   I  am not  go ing  to  cha l lenge  –  you see,  fo r  me,  I  am 

a lso  no t  here ,  Cha i r,  to  ge t  a  favourab le  response ,  I  want  

to  pu t  the  fac ts  on  record ,  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  w r i te  i t s  

repor t  bu t  I  th ink ,  fo r  example ,  most  o f  these th ings  tha t  do 

no t  have any bas is  whatsoever  and tha t  i s  why I  came to  

dea l  w i th  them.   Once I  have  dea l t  w i th  them in  the 10 

Commiss ion  I  do  no t  need to  go  and spend money in  a  

cour t  and get  what  i s  i t  ca l led ,  a  ho l low v ic to ry.   I  do  no t  

need to  be  c leared by  anyone,  Cha i r,  I  l i ve  my l i fe ,  I  do  no t  

need any cour t  to  c lea r  me,  I  do  no t  need to  be  c leared,  I  

know the  t ru th  and th is  i s  the  t ru th  tha t  I  am shar ing .   But  

Mr  Son i ,  I  respect  what  you are  say ing ,  the  Commiss ion  

w i l l  have to  do  what  i t  has  go t  to  do  as  long as  i t  sa t i s f ied  

tha t  fac tua l l y  those mat te rs  i t  dea ls  w i th  have got  a  sound 

foundat ion .   My a f f idav i t  w i l l  show you tha t  most  o f  those,  

in  fac t  they are  no t  wor th  the  paper  tha t  they are  wr i t ten  20 

on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  cont inue,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.   Then,  Mr  Montana,  

you might  remember  in  paragraph 72 and 73 Mr  Mole fe  

says tha t  g iven the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  he  wou ld  have 
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expected suppor t  fo r  the  board ’s  res ignat ion .   Now in  the  

next  sec t ion  he  dea ls  w i th  fo rmer  Pres ident  Zuma’s  a t tempt  

to  in te rvene and  you know what  i t  i s ,  i t  was in te rvene in  

your  leav ing  PRASA.   I  w i l l  j us t  read to  you –  I  wan t  to  say 

th is  to  you tha t  there  are  par t s  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  wh ich  do  not  

concern  you because they happened between Min is te rs  

Radebe,  Peters  and Pres ident  Zuma and Mr  Mole fe  be fo re  

you came on,  so  I  am not  go ing  to  pu t  a l l  those mat te rs  to  

you,  I  am jus t  go ing  to  dea l  w i t h  –  and I  am not  be ing  

se lec t i ve ,  I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  those are  the  mat te rs  you  10 

can dea l  w i th  and  I  wou ld  l i ke  your  comment  on  i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  su re .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  he says a t  parag raph 74:  

“A f te r  the  board  tha t  accepted Mr  Montana ’s  

res ignat ion  he  pub l i c ly  announced tha t  i f  the  

Min is te r  and the  board  wanted h im back he  wou ld  

be  ava i lab le  to  resume h is  respons ib i l i t i es  as  CEO. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r.   No,  Cha i r,  what  i s  t rue  is  tha t  

I  was address ing  –  we were  launch ing  the  spec i f i ca t ions 20 

fo r  the  new t ra ins ,  no t  the  spec i f i ca t ions bu t  –  I  th ink  the  

spec i f i ca t ions in  Sandton.    A journa l i s t  asked –  a t  tha t  

t ime the  re la t ionsh ip ,  Cha i r,  had fa l len  apar t  and the  

journa l i s t  asked w i l l  you  go to  PRASA and I  was b lun t  and 

say no,  I  ac tua l l y  –  I  th ink  i t  was a  po in t ,  i f  I  remember  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 290 of 335 
 

we l l ,  where  I  ment ioned tha t  I  w i l l  no t  even go to  PRASA 

wi th  th is  cur ren t  board  as  i t  i s .   And,  Cha i r,  there  had been  

un ions,  there  had  been peop le  who  lobb ied  and say –  even 

members  o f  par l i ament  who sa id  we do not  th ink  tha t  he  

shou ld  be  leav ing  PRASA a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime.  

 So I  have heard  the  tes t imony o f  Mr  Mole fe  as  we l l  

as  the  response  by  fo rmer  Min i s te r  D ipuo Peters .   No,  

Cha i r,  bu t  I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  reco l lec t ion ,  I  respect  tha t ,  

Cha i r,  bu t  I  had no in te res t  to  go  back,  I  had res igned out  

o f  my vo l i t ion ,  why wou ld  I  want  to  go  back to  PRASA?  I  10 

res igned.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  can I  jus t  ask  you because i t  w i l l  

come up aga in .   Your  s ta te  o f  mind a t  the  t ime tha t  you  

handed in  your  le t te r  o f  res ignat ion  and then when the  

board  accepted i t  w i th  tha t  le t te r  tha t  we have read w i th  

those cond i t ions  wh ich  you po in t  ou t  were  rea l l y  

mean ing less ,  in  regard  to  your  s ta te  o f  m ind,  you had 

determined you wanted noth ing  more  to  do  w i th  PRASA 

wi th  th is  qua l i f ica t ion ,  wh i le  Mr  Mole fe ’s  board  was in  

p lace .  20 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  le t  us  pu t  i t  

p roper ly  fo r  what  i t  i s .   I  was done,  I  had res igned ,  Cha i r,  

f rom PRASA,  I  exp la ined the  c i rcumstances ear l ie r  on .   I  

was done.   A jou rna l i s t  asked me in  the  th ing  –  I  am not  

sure  i f  my response was co r rec t  and tha t  was la te r  taken  
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by  the  board  and I  heard  Min is te r  D ipuo Peters  say ing  

maybe l i ke  he  wanted to  come back and a l l  o f  those  th ings.   

Cha i r,  you know,  I  le f t  PRASA in  2015,  I  have never  been  

to  any government  o f f i ce  except  a lways I  s ta te  when I  go  to  

pay my munic ipa l  ra tes  and taxes.    I  have never  been to  

any m in is te r ’s  o f f i ce  to  ask  fo r  dep loyment  o r  favours  

because tha t  i s  no t  me,  I  do  no t  do  th ings l i ke  tha t .   I  had 

le f t  bu t  there  was war  and th is  war  was happen ing  ins ide  

PRASA and outs ide  o f  PRASA.   And i f  you speak,  fo r  

example ,  to  a  number  o f  un ions they sa id  look,  we th ink  10 

you are  leav ing  a t  th is  po in t ,  even  March,  and sa id  I  must  

accept  pub l i c ly  t ha t  I  w i l l  no t  s tep  down and a l l  o f  those  

th ings and maybe when I  dea l t  w i th  tha t  i ssue,  I  may not  

have put  i t  ou t r igh t  bu t  my s ta te  o f  m ind was very  c lea r,  I  

am done,  I  am mov ing  on,  bu t  I  was concerned tha t  

PRASA,  i f  i t  does not  manage a  t rans i t ion ,  i t  i s  go ing  to  

f ind  i t se l f  in  ser ious t roub le  and unfor tunate ly,  my  wors t  

fears ,  Cha i r,  th ree  years  down the  l ine  were  p roven  cor rec t  

because the  t ra in  sys tem had co l lapsed e f fec t i ve ly.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   So I  jus t  want  to  be  c lear,  20 

your  answer  i s ,  my s ta te  o f  m ind was tha t  I  am not  go ing  to  

go  back to  PRASA.  

MR MONTANA:    A t  tha t  s tage I  was ve ry  c lea r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i t  was unequ ivoca l ,  in  o ther  

words there  was no doubt  in  your  m ind.  
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MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  there  was no doubt  in  my mind,  bu t  

le t  us  no t  fo rge t ,  Cha i r,  we l i ve  in  a  wor ld  o f  po l i t i cs .   I  had 

wanted to  leave,  I  had a  dream tha t  I  wanted to  c rea te  a  

proper ty  fund o f  some k ind  and get  invo lved in  that  

bus iness bu t  there  were  po l i t i ca l  p ressures,  par l iament ,  

w i th in  government ,  w i th in  po l i t i ca l  s t ruc tures  tha t  we th ink  

a  res ignat ion  i s  a  m is take and –  bu t  maybe I  may not  have 

g iven them a  ve ry  c lear  answer,  so  I  am respond ing  to  you,  

mak ing  them be l i eve  tha t  I  was keen.   And when I  le f t ,  by 

the  way,  on  the  15  Ju ly,  remember  –  and th is  w i l l  b r ing  us  10 

to  the  meet ing  tha t  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ] .   Cha i r,  

there  is  a  p rocedure  in  the  way compan ies  dea l  w i th  

mat te rs  i nc lud ing  prepar ing  agendas and d i rec tors ,  

inc lud ing  myse l f  as  an  execut ive  d i recto r,  wou ld  be  

in fo rmed in  –  fo r  example ,  when there  is  an  issue tha t  they 

had a  board  reso lu t ion  on ,  the  issue o f  me leav ing  on  the  

15  Ju l y  was not  on  the  agenda,  was not  d iscussed even  

w i th  me,  Cha i r,  I  happened to  leave and le t  me – and th is  

i s  what  saddens me,  Mr  Son i ,  I  go t  to  a  board  meet ing ,  we 

d iscussed mat te rs ,  we f igh t  f i rs t  about  the  Mth imku lu  20 

mat te r  in  the  board .   Then in  the  a f te rnoon,  Cha i r,  be fore  

we f in ished the  meet ing  I  ge t  a  ca l l  f rom home,  your  unc le  

i s  s ick ,  he  is  ve ry  i l l ,  come home.   I  sa id  no ,  I  am in  a 

board  meet ing ,  they sa id  no ,  we do not  th ink  –  i t  i s  very  

bad,  you must  come home.    
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 So  I  then go to  Mr  Mole fe ,  even though there  was 

th is  war,  bu t  we cou ld  s t i l l  speak as  we cont inue to  do  to  

th is  very  day,  I  sa id  to  h im,  Mr  Mole fe ,  ay,  my unc le  i s  no t  

we l l ,  I  need to  rush home and then he says to  me,  no  i t  i s  

f ine ,  when you leave,  a f te r  we have dea l t  w i th  the  mat te rs ,  

there  w i l l  be  one  issue on the  agenda,  wh ich  a t  tha t  t ime 

was a  s tand ing  i tem on the  agenda,  the  cont rac t  o f  

employment  o f  the  Group CEO and why i t  i s  on  there ,  i t  i s  

a  s tand ing  i tem,  i t  i s  because I  have res igned and the  

board  and i t s  governance commi t ted  even tha t  i t  i s  m inuted 10 

where  they say l i ke  he  must  he lp  us ,  must  work  w i th  us  so  

tha t  we f ind  a  su i tab le  CEO and a l l  o f  those th ings.    

 As  I  was s i t t ing  in  the  meet ing ,  I  ge t  the  ca l l  tha t  

my unc le  had passed on.   I  go  back to  Mr  Mole fe .   Mr  

Mole fe ,  i t  i s  too  l a te  now,  my  unc le  i s  –  I  have got  t o  run  to  

hosp i ta l  in  Pre tor ia ,  the  meet ing  is  in  Johannesburg .   I  run  

to  Pre tor ia ,  do  whatever  I  have to  do  in  re la t ion  w i th  the  

fami ly.   A f te r  12  m idn igh t  I  go  back home,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  

when I  f ind  a  le t te r  where  the  board  says a f te r  you have  

le f t ,  we –  because we took a  break and then a f te r  lunch 20 

they met  and they say we took a  dec is ion  tha t  no  -  I  was 

a l ready two months  in to  my not ice  per iod ,  Cha i r  –  we fe l t  

you shou ld  no  longer  serv ice  your  no t ice  per iod .   That  i s  

what  happened,  Cha i r.  
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 So  tha t  c rea ted a  b ig  f igh t  because I  then sa id  bu t  

none o f  the  board  members ,  even  you,  tha t  i s  the  d i rec t ion  

tha t  you –  bu t  when I  s tood up and le f t  the  meet ing ,  what  

was e f fec t i ve ly,  Cha i r,  a  coward ly  ac t .   A coward ly  ac t ,  

someth ing  tha t  you v iew as a  comrade and a  leader  -  even  

i f  they  have come to  tha t  de terminat ion ,  they wou ld  have 

wa i ted ,  Cha i r,  and sa id  look,  l i ke  he  is  go t  h is  own  issues 

w i th  the  fami ly,  le t  me wa i t  fo r  h im to  come back a f te r  he  

has dea l t  w i th  th is  and then we convey th is  th ing  to  h im.  

 So I  come f rom home,  my unc le ’s  house,  I  go  to  the  10 

o f f i ce .   So these are  the  k ind  o f  peop le  tha t  you dea l  w i th ,  

Cha i r.   And when  I  took i t  up  they sa id  no ,  l i ke  he  wants  to  

remain  a  CEO of  PRASA.   No,  Cha i r,  I  have res igned.   Mr  

Mole fe  sa id  we want  you to  s tay  fo r  th ree  years(?) .  I  sa id 

no ,  I  am go ing ,  I  can on ly  ass i s t  you.   Two months in to  the  

no t ice  per iod  they say no ,  do  no t  serve  the  o ther  remain ing  

four  months ,  we w i l l  pay  you be ing  a t  home.   Who  wou ld  

no t  want  to  be  pa id  s i t t ing  a t  home do ing  noth ing ,  Cha i r?   

So I  was pa id  fou r  months  no t  do ing  anyth ing  a t  PRASA but  

I  le f t  PRASA wi thout  do ing  a  handover,  Cha i r,  and  tha t  i s  20 

why you see the  chaos because I  was a t  the  hub  o f  the 

s t ra tegy,  I  pu t  together  every th ing  about  the  modern iza t ion  

o f  PRASA.  

So i f  I  want  to  go  back o r  d id  I  want  to  go  back?  

The b ig  answer  i s  no .   But  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  the  –  i f  you 
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jus t  imag ine ,  you come back home,  your  unc le  has jus t  

passed on and you expect  peop le  to  be  your  own comrades 

and they do  someth ing  so  inhuman,  so  crue l .  

 So –  bu t  am I  angry  w i th  h im?  No,  I  do  no t ,  bu t  I  

thought  in  an  A f r i can way,  they wou ld  have dea l t  w i th  i t ,  

bu t  lega l l y,  the  mat te r  was not  on  the  agenda.   When I  

went  to  tha t  mee t ing  and when I  le f t ,  I  d id  no t  know tha t  

the  mat te r  o f  the  cont rac t  o f  employment  o f  the  CEO was  

about  d iscuss ing  tha t  we can  –  the  board  had the  

pre rogat ive  to  take  tha t  dec is ion  tha t ,  hey,  you have  10 

res igned,  we want  another  pe rson.   But ,  Cha i r,  then s t i l l  

you  have to  dea l  w i th  i t  p roper ly,  no t  when you come and I  

leave the  meet ing  and then they s ta r t  to  say no ,  he  le f t  to  

a t tend to  h is  unc le ,  he  shou ld  no t  come back.   That  i s  how 

crue l ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  the  crue l ty,  tha t  i s  the  k ind  o f  –  how 

peop le  lose  the i r  own humani ty  because o f  power.   They  

want  to  cont ro l  th is  th ing  and they even fo rge t  tha t  th is  

man is  g r iev ing  fo r  h is  unc le .   That  i s  what  happened,  

Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana,  le t  us  ge t  back to  the  20 

a f f idav i t  now because tha t  does not  concern  –  and I  am not  

be ing  unsympathet ic .  

MR MONTANA:    Sure .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  can  unders tand your  anger,  I  jus t  

want  us  to  s t i ck  in  our  lane,  i f  I  can  put  i t  tha t  way.  
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MR MONTANA:    Yes,  S i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R igh t ,  then in  parag raph 75 he says:  

“Then qu i te  unexpected ly  in  ear ly  August  2015,  then 

Pres ident  Zuma and Min is te r  Radebe,  who was then  

the  m in is te r  in  the  pres idency  respons ib le  fo r  

p lann ing ,  mon i to r ing  and eva lua t ion  ca l led  a  

meet ing  a t  the  pres ident ia l  guesthouse in  Pre to r ia . ”  

That  i s  co r rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then:  10 

“Min is te r  Peters  was inv i ted  to  the  meet ing  a long 

w i th  Mr  Montana and me. ”  

That  i s  co r rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     

“The meet ing  took p lace on the  20  August  2000. ”  

And tha t  i s  co r rec t ,  i s  i t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    “ I t  was in i t ia l l y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i ,  a re  you scared tha t  i f  you  20 

summar ised the  g is t  o f  the  mat te rs  o r  ve rs ion  re la t ing  to  

the  meet ing  you might  lose  some impor tan t  th ings?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  an  impor tan t  

i ssue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And my worry  i s  tha t  we g loss  over  

someth ing  and then i t  comes back to  haunt  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    By  the  –  i t  w i l l  no t  –  I  do  no t  in tend  

go ing  over  eve ry th ing ,  Cha i rperson .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  he says:  

“ I t  was in i t ia l l y  meant  to  commence a t  th ree  in  the  

a f te rnoon but  i t  on ly  s ta r ted  a t  s ix . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  do no t  know the  t ime i f  he  

was g iven but  I  was to ld  the  meet ing  wou ld  s ta r t  a t  s ix .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Then in  parag raph 76 he says:  

“Jus t  be fo re  the  m in is te r  and I  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  maybe,  Mr  Son i ,  be fore  you p roceed.   

B r ie f l y,  Mr  Montana,  be fore  Mr  Son i  p roceeds,  how d id  you 

come to  know about  the  meet ing?  Were  you inv i ted?  Who 

inv i ted  you?  What  t ime were  you  to ld  the  meet ing  wou ld  

s ta r t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  was inv i ted  by  the  o f f i ce  o f  20 

Min is te r  Je f f  Radebe.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MONTANA:    The min i s te r  and the  pres idency.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.   And what  d id  you –  do  

your  remember  the  t ime tha t  you  were  to ld  the  meet ing  
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wou ld  s ta r t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  i t  was s i x  p .m.  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was 6  p .m.   That  i s  the  t ime you were  

to ld .  

MR MONTANA:    I  was the re  a round quar te r  to  s ix  a t  the  

venue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   How long ahead o f  the  day o f  

the  meet ing  or  t ime o f  the  meet ing  were  you inv i t ed .   Do 

you remember?   A day or  two or  a  week o r…? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  i t  was a  day or  two,  10 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    About  a  day or  two.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  the  meet ing  was meant  in  fac t  

to  take  p lace in  Cape Town.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:    And I  f lew down to  Cape Town.   You must  

reca l l  du r ing  –  when th i s  meet ing  took p lace,  I  had le f t  

PRASA,  I  was  not  longer  in  PRASA work ing  fo r  

government .   Bu t  I  f lew down to  Cape Town.   And the  

meet ing  was cance l led .   I  came back –  o f  course  I  20 

compla ined tha t  you cance l led  the  meet ing ,  I  am us ing  my  

own persona l  resources and then the  meet ing  o f  course  

tha t  i s  descr ibed here  took p lace in  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  Pre tor ia .  

MR MONTANA:    In  Pre tor ia .   A t  Mah lamba Nd lopfu ,  no t  a t  
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the  pres ident ia l  guesthouse,  Cha i r,  as  s ta ted  by  Mr  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  were  you  inv i ted  in  wr i t ing  or  was 

i t  an  ora l  communica t ion  to  you?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  go t  the  ca l l  –  I  th ink  I  go t  the  ca l l  

f rom the  o f f i ce  o f  the  m in is te r,  I  do  no t  remember  rece iv ing  

an  emai l .   I  may be wrong,  bu t  I  do  no t  remember  an  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And what  d id  he  te l l  you  the  purpose 

o f  the  meet ing?  10 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  i f  you  go back,  when I  le f t  PRASA,  

I  le f t  on  the  15 t h .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  Ju ly.  

MR MONTANA:    O f  Ju ly  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And th is  was August .  

MR MONTANA:    Th is  was August .  

CHAIRPERSON :    22 ,  I  th ink .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The 20 t h .  

MR MONTANA:    Yes bu t  the  week –  the  c i rcumstances o f  

my depar tu re ,  Cha i r,  there  was a  b ig  f igh t  in  the  med ia .   20 

There  was a  b ig  f igh t  in  the  med ia .   Now I  was meant  to  

address a  press  conference to  g ive  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry  

and every th ing .   I  go t  a  ca l l  f rom Min i s te r  D ipuo  Peters  

who asked me and say l i ke  we th ink  you shou ld  no t  

p roceed w i th  the  press  confe rence ,  we w i l l  have a  meet ing 
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w i th in  government ,  we w i l l  d iscuss th i s  i ssue,  we do not  

want  th is  pub l i c  space and every th ing .   Then I  re jec ted  

what  the  m in i s te r  sa id .   I  sa id  bu t ,  Min is te r,  I  have met  w i th  

you on two occas ions,  I  have ra i sed the  issues,  now i t  is  

very  impor tan t  tha t  I  pu t  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry  to  the  pub l i c .  

 So I  went  to  –  so  be fore  I  s ta r ted  the  press  

conference I  then got  a  ca l l  f rom Min is te r  Radebe who says  

he  had a  ca l l  f rom Min i s te r  D ipuo  Peters  and tha t  I  have 

re jec ted  cance l l ing .   So the  m in is te r  spoke to  me a t  g rea t  

length  and sa id  l ook,  we have a  meet ing  in  government  to  10 

d iscuss what  i s  happen ing  around PRASA but  we  do not  

want  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The min i s te r  who spoke to  you a t  g rea t  

length  wou ld  be  Min is te r  Radebe? 

MR MONTANA:    Radebe.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR MONTANA:    Yes.   So he spoke to  me persuad ing  me 

not  to  –  I  sa id  look ,  I  have a  press  conference,  I  have  

journa l i s ts  t here  a t  the  h i red  –  packed,  and I  cannot  jus t  

cance l .   I  then sa id  look,  i t  i s  f ine ,  I  w i l l  no t  go  in to  the 20 

deta i l s ,  I  w i l l  ta lk  about  o ther  th ings in  respect  –  I  sa id  I  

w i l l  respect  what  the  leadersh ip  says and then a t  whatever  

t ime we have tha t  meet ing .   So th is  meet ing ,  Cha i r,  i s  in  

fac t  –  d id  no t  come out  o f  the  b lue .   PRASA i t se l f  had i t s  

own press conference p lanned,  so  m ine was go ing  to  be  on  
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Monday,  the  PRASA press conference was go ing  to  be  on  

Tuesday.   We were  bo th  o rdered by  government ,  bo th  

Min is te r  Peters  and Min i s te r  Radebe,  to  ca l l  o ff  those  

press  conferences and tha t  th is  mat te r  must  be  d iscussed  

in te rna l l y.    Even  in  th is  meet ing  –  now I  heard ,  Cha i r,  tha t  

no  ou t  o f  the  b lue  the  Pres ident  –  no ,  Cha i r,  there  is  a  

background to  th is  meet ing  because the  government  and  

the  Pres ident  exp la ined in  tha t  meet ing  we do not  want ,  as  

the  ANC,  the  pub l i c  spat  tha t  i s  happen ing  amongst  

yourse l ves as  ANC,  as  ANC comrades,  and tha t  i s  bas i ca l l y  10 

what  t ransp i red ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  is  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Le t  us  ge t  back to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Son i ,  we a re  a t  two minutes  past  

seven.   You have  been on your  fee t  fo r  the  who le  day,  you 

have been fac ing  quest ions the  who le  day,  we have been  

seated.   I  am qu i te  happy to  p roceed fo r  another  hour  bu t  I  

am sens i t i ve  to  par t i cu la r l y  your  s i tua t ions.   How do you  

fee l ,  Mr  Montana? 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  I  s t i l l  have …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  s t i l l  s t rong.  

MR MONTANA:    I  s t i l l  I  have the  energy bu t  aga in  I  w i l l  be  

gu ided by  you and… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Okay,  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  do  no t  m ind ,  can cont inue,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  m ind.   Okay,  le t  us  go  fo r  

another  hour  and see how i t  goes.   Okay.   Yes,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  parag raph 76 Mr  Mole fe  

says:  

“Jus t  be fore  the  m in is te r  and I  were  ca l led  in to  the  

meet ing  room,  I  was in fo rmed by  one o f  the  secur i t y  

o f f i c ia ls  tha t  Mr  Montana and Mr  Roy Mood ley  had 

jus t  le f t  the  meet ing  room f rom the  oppos i te  s ide . ”  

I s  –  we l l ,  no t  d id  he  rece ive  the  repor t  bu t  d id  you  and Mr  

Mood ley  meet  Pres ident  Zuma? 10 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  I  do  no t  know what  tha t  i s  a l l  

about .   I  have never  met  the  P res ident  on  tha t  day,  I  never  

met  Mr  Mood ley.   I  went  to  a  meet ing  a t  the  –  I  a r r i ved a t  

Mah lamba Nd lopfu  a t  a round f i ve  to  –  quar te r  to  s ix  and 

then I  th ink  the  meet ing  s ta r ted  more  or  less  a t  a round tha t  

t ime.   So I  do  no t  know wh ich  secur i t y  o f f i c ia l ,  I  know 

noth ing  about  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   But  cer ta in ly  Mr  Mood ley  

was not  a t  any meet ing  on  tha t  day tha t  you went  there .  

MR MONTANA:    I  wou ld  no t  know,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  know.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  no ,  I  am ask ing  a  d i f fe ren t  –  

you wou ld  know.   I f  Mr  Mood ley  was a t  a  meet ing  you 

wou ld  know,  I  am ask ing  a t  any meet ing  tha t  you were .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  on  tha t  day,  Cha i r.   No,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now thereaf te r,  f rom paragraph 76 
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onwards,  Mr  Mo le fe  descr ibed what  happened in  your  

absence and we can leave tha t  ou t .   That  is  up  to  

parag raph 86.   That  i s  on  page 23.   He says:  

“They had var ious d iscuss ions  about  d i f fe ren t  

mat te rs . ”  

Then he says a t  parag raph 86,  he  says:  

 “ I  was shocked when the  Pres ident  sa id  I  have  

inv i ted  tha t  boy  Lucky Montana.   He then asked 

Min is te r  Radebe to  ca l l  Montana in to  the  meet ing . ”  

Now o f  course  you w i l l  no t  know what  Pres ident  Zuma sa id .  10 

MR MONTANA:     I  wou ld  no t  know,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Yes but  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  Mr  

Radebe ca l led  you in to  the  meet ing?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  my reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t  meet ing  is  

tha t  we s tar ted  the  meet ing  a l l  o f  us  a t  the  same t ime.   I  

d id  see Min i s te r  Peters  in  one o f  the  wa i t ing  rooms there .   

We greeted and every th ing  and then the  meet ing  s tar ted  

when the  Pres ident  a r r i ved wh ich  I  th ink  was about  15 ,  20  

m inutes  la te r.   I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  bu t  I  do  no t  know about  

tha t  exper ience,  whethe r  there  was –  I  do  no t  work  –  I  was 20 

no longer  in  government ,  I  d id  no t  have a  r igh t  to  ask  who  

was he re  be fore ,  I  jus t  went  to  a  meet ing  and I  a t tended 

the  meet ing ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  you cannot  d ispute  and I  am jus t  

–  so  tha t  we need not  dea l  w i th  i t ,  you  cannot  d ispute  tha t  
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there  was a  meet ing  be tween Mr  Radebe,  Min is te r  Peters ,  

P res ident  Zuma and Mr  Mole fe  be fore  you were  ca l l ed  in to  

the  meet ing .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  do  no t  know,  Cha i r.   Maybe the  

meet ing  was meant  to  s ta r t  a t  th ree ,  I  was meant  to  jo in  a t  

s ix ,  bu t  I  was on ly  to ld  be  here  a t  s ix  and tha t  i s  what  I  

d id ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You see …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry  I  th ink ,  Mr  Montana,  Mr  Son i  asked 

you a  quest ion  somet ime ear l ie r  and I  am not  sure  i f  I  10 

heard  the  answer,  I  want  to  ask  the  quest ion  aga in .   What  

had you been to ld  was the  purpose o f  the  meet ing?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  the  meet ing  was to ld  i t  i s  a  fo l low  

up,  you w i l l  reca l l  I  ment ioned on tha t  the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The press  conference,  yes ,  ja .  

MR MONTANA:    The p ress  conference,  we were  to ld  there  

w i l l  be  an  in te rna l  d iscuss ion  and I  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Connected w i th  the  f igh ts .  

MR MONTANA:    Connected w i th  the  pub l i c  spats  and 

every th ing .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Pub l i c  spats ,  oh .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  –  the  meet ing  was a l l  about ,  

Cha i r ,  was about  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  cont inue 

Mr  Son i .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You o f  cou rse  wou ld  no t  know what  

Mr  Mole fe  was to ld  about  the  meet ing  and so  on .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  know,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O r  what  Ms Peters  had been to ld  i s  

the  purpose o f  the  meet ing .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  I  wou ld  no t  know,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now can I  jus t  ask  you th i s .   On what  

Mr  Mole fe  i s  say ing ,  they were  a l ready i n  the  room when  

you were  ca l led  i n .   Can you reca l l  i f  tha t  happened? 

MR MONTANA:    No,  Cha i r ,  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  we were  10 

a l l  there .   I  have  seen Min is te rs  D ipuo Peters  in  the  th ing  

bu t  th is  was 2015,  I  may have – there  may be a  b i t  o f  

de ta i l  tha t  I  may  have missed bu t  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  

no ,  we s tar ted  the  meet ing  a t  s ix  together .   Now i t  cou ld  be  

–  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  they may have been the re  ear l ie r  and 

had the  meet ing ,  I  was asked to  jo in  when I  was th ink ing  

tha t  I  am coming  –  I  am very  impor tan t ,  I  am coming to  be  

par t  o f  th is  meet ing ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  so  th is  i s  now what  Mr  Radebe  

says happened a t  the  meet ing .   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  you to  20 

conf i rm …[ in tervenes]  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry ,  Mr  Mole fe  says tha t  i t  i s  –  

i t  i s  ten  hours  la te r ,  Cha i rperson,  so  I  apo log i se  fo r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He says tha t :  

“P res ident  Zuma sa id  tha t  wh i le  he  was on a  s ta te  

v is i t  to  the  Peop le ’s  Repub l i c  he  had read about  the  

pub l i c  spat  be tween Montana and I  and he sa id  tha t  

i t  was embarrass ing  to  the  ANC espec ia l l y  s ince  

both  Mr  Montana and I  were  members  o f  the  ANC. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    I  th ink  someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t ,  Cha i r ,  

yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He says tha t :  10 

“Mr  Zuma a lso  sa id  tha t  Mr  Montana was very  

knowledgeab le  about  commuter  ra i l  t ranspor ta t ion  

and he shou ld  no t  be  los t  to  the  count ry . ”  

Do you reca l l  h im  say ing  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  the  Pres ident  never  sa id  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    D id  no t?  

MR MONTANA:    Not  a t  a l l ,  Cha i r .   In  fac t  i f  I  were  to  

exp la in  a  b i t ,  I  know tha t  the  peop le  sa id  the  Pres ident  had 

asked everyone to  speak a t  the  meet ing ,  s ta r t ing  w i th  the  

Min is te r ,  w i th  the  Cha i rman o f  the  Board  and then i t  was 20 

my tu rn  to  speak .   Now when I  s ta r ted ,  Cha i r ,  to  speak,  I  

sa id  look ,  I  am not  go ing  to  ge t  –  I  do  no t  want  –  I  sa id ,  Mr  

Pres ident ,  these are  my leaders ,  I  do  no t  want  to  go  in to  

de ta i l s  and f ind  a  respect  d ispute ,  the  on ly  th ing  I  can do  

is  to  ind ica te  wha t  PRASA has done so  tha t  we can pro tec t  
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what  we have  ach ieved as  a  count ry .   And then 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry ,  Mr  Montana,  I  jus t  want  us  to  

ge t  th rough th is  and you can g i ve  your  vers ion .  

MR MONTANA:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O therwise  we are  go ing  to  be  a l l  over  

the  p lace.  

MR MONTANA:    No,  fa i r  enough.   Thank you,  Cha i r .   The 

Pres ident  –  so  the  po in t  i s ,  the  Pres ident  never  sa id  i t  in  

fac t  there .    10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  unders tand tha t .  

MR MONTANA:    I f  there  was one pe rson who sa id  i t ,  i t  

was Mr  Mole fe  te l l ing  the  Pres ident  tha t  Mr  Mon tana is  

knowledgeab le  and tha t  i s  why I  wanted h im to  s tay  fo r  

th ree  years ,  no t  the  Pres ident .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  d id  he  say tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    Mr  Mole fe ,  yes .   Yes,  i t  was in  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A t  tha t  meet ing?  

MR MONTANA:    A t  tha t  meet ing ,  Cha i r .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   So I  am jus t  go ing  to  say th is  

to  you,  you know because you have fo l lowed th is ,  ne i the r  

Mr  Mole fe  nor  Min is te r  D ipuo Pete rs  reca l l s  tha t  i t  was Mr  

Mole fe  who sa id  i t .  

MR MONTANA:    Ms Peters  ac tua l l y  sa id  he  to ld  the  
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P res ident ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  on  two –  on  the  two days tha t  she 

was the re .   The f i rs t  one she sa id  I  to ld  the  Pres ident  tha t  

Mr  Montana is  knowledgeab le ,  he  knows about  t ranspor t  

and tha t  the  Pres ident  cou ld  use h im as an  adv iser  in  

A f r i ca  o r  tha t  I  cou ld  use –  I ,  as  D ipuo Peters ,  the  M in is te r ,  

cou ld  use Mr  Montana as  my spec ia l  adv iser .   Those are  

the  words tha t  she used here ,  Cha i r .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Ja ,  I  am cha l leng ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken,  the  

occas ion  when she spoke a long those l ines ,  i f  I  reca l l  10 

cor rec t l y ,  she sa id  i t  was pr io r  to  tha t  meet ing ,  I  do  no t  

know whethe r  to  say much ear l ie r .  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  as  fa r  as  the  

meet ing  is  concerned,  he  may have conf i rmed tha t  Mr  

Zuma spoke a long these l ines ,  I  am not  sure .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  seem to  th ink  she was say ing  –  he  

was connect ing  th is  s ta tement  by  Mr  Zuma to  what  she had  

to ld  the  Pres iden t  on  an  ea r l ie r  occas ion  about  peop le  l i ke  20 

you and o thers  tha t  she thought  had sk i l l s  tha t  shou ld  no t  

be  los t  to  the  count ry .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r ,  you are  abso lu te l y  cor rec t ,  I  agree  

w i th  tha t ,  tha t  i s  what  she sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR MONTANA:    What  I  am s imp ly  say ing  is  tha t  a f te r  I  

spoke –  ac tua l l y ,  I  d id  no t  even f in ish  what  I  was say ing  a t  

the  meet ing  when I  was ta lk ing  about  PRASA,  then the  

Pres ident  s topped me in  the  m idd le  o f  tha t  d iscuss ion  and 

he asked the  m in is te r  i s  what  Lucky is  say ing  t rue?  The  

min is te r  conf i rmed tha t .   Then the  Pres ident  looked a t  the  

Cha i r  o f  the  Board ,  Mr  Mole fe ,  and  sa id  Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  what  

Lucky say ing  –  and Mr  Mole fe  then made tha t  s ta tement ,  

Cha i r,  in  tha t  con tex t  and the  P res ident  sa id  –  because he 

was qu i te  d isappo in ted  he sa id  we l l ,  there  i s  a  war.   10 

Actua l l y  I  th ink  he  may have used those words,  bu t  there  is  

a  war  ou t  there ,  we come to  a  meet ing ,  we are  to ld  that  

PRASA is  mak ing  th is  p rogress,  we are  to ld  tha t  th is  young 

man –  he  uses those words indeed,  th is  young man is  

knowledgeab le ,  he  knows about  t ranspor t ,  ye t  –  so  th is  i s  

sa id  in  a  meet ing ,  bu t  ou t  there  i t  i s  war.   Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  

and i t  i s  a t  tha t  po in t  tha t  I  remember  bo th  myse l f  and Mr  

Mole fe  were  asked to  leave because the  Pres ident  wanted  

to  have a  conversa t ion  w i th  h is  two  min is te rs .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A t  parag raph 88,  second sentence,  20 

Mr  Mole fe  says tha t :  

“P res ident  Zuma sa id  we shou ld  sor t  ou t  ou r  

d i f fe rences and br ing  Mr  Montana back as  Group 

CEO.”  

D id  he  say tha t?  
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MR MONTANA:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  –  the  Pres ident  never  sa id 

such a  th ing ,  he  never  sa id  tha t  a t  a l l ,  i t  i s  incor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  paragraph 89 he says :  

“The P res ident  ind ica ted  tha t  some sen io r  members  

o f  the  ANC were  concerned tha t  Mr  Montana and I  

had been mak ing  unp leasant  s ta tements  about  and  

aga ins t  each o the r  in  the  med ia . ”  

D id  he  say tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  in  h is  open ing  remarks  o f  why,  was  

about  the  pub l i c  spat  and not  about  b r ing ing  Montana back 10 

to  PRASA.   The never  Pres ident  never  [ ind is t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then he says tha t  he  and Min is te r  

Peters  had gone  in to  the  meet ing  no t  knowing what  the  

agenda was but  i t  appears  tha t  you had been  br ie fed  

be forehand because you then proceeded to  presen t  a  long  

repor t  in  wh ich  you a t tacked Min i s te r  Peters  and h im.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  no t  cor rec t .   I  mean,  I  wou ld  

be  d i s respect ing  the  Pres ident  by  a t tack ing  m in is te rs  and 

the  Cha i r  o f  the  Board .   I  mean ,  I  -  i t  i s  no t  done and  20 

Cha i r,  I  had there  my notebook,  so  as  they were  speak ing  I  

p repared notes  because I  dec ided  on my approach  –  and 

some o f  these ideas I  came to  wr i te  la te r  about  where  

PRASA is  and a l l  o f  those th ings bu t  there  was not  such a  

th ing ,  I  never  –  t here  was –  ac tua l l y  the  meet ing  ended on  
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a  ve ry  pos i t i ve  and a  jov ia l  no te  and then we le f t  the 

m in is te rs ,  the  Pres ident  and the  m in is te rs ,  we took leave  

and Mr  Mole fe  and I  then had a  b i t  o f  d iscuss ion ,  we sa id  

our  goodbyes.   That  was the  end o f  the  mat te r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  one,  a re  you say ing  tha t  you  and Mr  

Mole fe  le f t  the  meet ing  a t  the  same t ime?  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Leav ing  i t  no t  on  the  bas is  t ha t  you 

wou ld  be  ca l led  back,  there  wou ld  be  some d i scuss ion  and  

you wou ld  be  ca l led  back leav ing  comple te ly  fo r  the  10 

even ing?  

MR MONTANA:    Comple te ly,  to ta l l y,  Cha i r,  yes ,  i t  was  

done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And because the  Pres ident  wanted to  

speak to  the  two min is te rs?  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The meet ing  you sa id  shou ld  have  

probab ly  s ta r ted  around quar te r  past  s ix ,  I  th ink  you sa id?  

MR MONTANA:    Indeed,  Cha i r,  a round tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was meant  to  be  s ix  o ’c lock  bu t  20 

probab ly  s ta r ted  a t  about  quar te r  past  s ix .  

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  bu t  I  am not  re fe r r ing  to  the  ear l ie r  

meet ing  because I  d id  no t  know about  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no .   No,  no ,  I  mean the  one 

wh ich  you a t tended.   Now on your  reco l lec t ion ,  how long 
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d id  th is  meet ing  take  more  or  less? 

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  i t  took  a  b i t  o f  t ime,  four,  f i ve  

hours  p robab ly.   I t  was la te  when we le f t  there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because I  th ink  bo th  Ms D ipuo  Peters  

and Mr  Mole fe  sa id ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken –  cer ta in ly  Mr  

Mole fe  sa id  i t  was about  two o ’c lock  I  th ink  in  the  morn ing .   

Ms Pete rs ,  she m ight  no t  have been ce r ta in  bu t  I  th ink  she  

spoke a lso  o f  the  meet ing  e i ther  hav ing  ended around tha t  

t ime or  cer ta in ly  a f te r  twe lve .  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  a t  a round twe lve ,  I  do  no t  10 

th ink  i t  went  to  2  a .m.   No,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes ,  and you th ink  when you –  

on  your  vers ion  when you and Mr  Mole fe  le f t  i t  wou ld  have 

been around what  t ime?   Or  when you say twe lve  is  i t  

when you le f t?  

MR MONTANA:    When we le f t  ja ,  I  th ink  probab ly  i t  was  

jus t  a f te r  –  jus t  a f te r  11  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR MONTANA:    Bu t  aga in  the  issues o f  t ime fo r  a  meet ing  

Cha i r,  I  cannot  –  I  do  no t  want  to  be  f i rm abou t  i t ,  the 20 

meet ings takes p lace,  the  t imes are ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  what  i t  means is  tha t  you can  

on ly  ta lk  about  when you and Mr  Mole fe  le f t  the  meet ing  

you wou ldn ’ t  know how long they remained a f te r  you le f t .  

MR MONTANA:   Indeed Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  r igh t?    Okay so  on  your  vers ion  

about  f i ve  hours  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    Ja ,  four  o r  f i ve  hours  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Four  o r  f i ve  hours ,  and I  th ink  bo th  o f  

them i f  I  am not  m is taken,  tha t  i s  Ms D ipuo Peters  and Mr  

Mole fe ,  sa id  tha t  you took most  o f  the  speak ing  t ime,  I  

th ink  the  es t imate  is  by  one o f  them,  I  don ’ t  know i f  i t  was 

both ,  i t  was maybe about  two hours .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Two hours  tha t ’s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Two hours  or  so  wh ich  maybe on  10 

re f lec t ion  m ight  no t  be  most  o f  the  speak ing  t ime,  maybe I  

am wrong to  say  tha t ,  bu t  they sa id  you took qu i te  some 

t ime.  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  tha t  i s  no t  –  th is  was in te rac t ive  

meet ing ,  o f  course  I  was,  I  p repared a  no te  because I  am 

ta lk ing  to  my leaders ,  I  cannot  jus t  –  they are  s i t t ing  there ,  

they are  mak ing  the i r  v iews known,  when I  am g iven the  

oppor tun i ty  I  must  be  sys temat ic ,  I  am wi th  the  Pres ident  

and the  Min i s te r,  so  I  jo t ted  down po in ts  tha t  I  wanted to  

ra ise  in  the  course  o f  tha t  conversa t ion .     20 

 Cha i r  I  wou ldn ’ t  have spoken because – spoken tha t  

long,  Min is te r  Pe ters  spoke fo r  a  wh i le ,  then the  Pres ident  

asked Cha i rman Comrade Popo what  i s  your  v iew on th is  

i ssue and then there  was a  d iscuss ion  fo r  a  wh i le  Cha i r  

and then the  Pres ident  says we l l  l e t ’s  hear  t he  v iews f rom 
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the  young man and  then Cha i r  t ha t  i s  when I  made  my 

po in t .  

 Cha i r  I  had a  l i s t  o f  th ings tha t  I  wanted to  ra ise  

about  PRASA,  bu t  I  have on ly  spoken about  f i ve  a t  that  

meet ing  i f  I  remember  we l l .   That  i s  when the  Pres ident  

s topped me and say the  PRASA you a re  descr ib ing  and  the  

award  tha t  we have does not  cor re la te .    He then wanted – 

he  wanted to  conf i rm f rom Min is te r  Peters  i f  wha t  I  was 

say ing  was t rue  and co r rec t .    Min is te r  Pete rs  responded  

pos i t i ve ly,  the  Cha i r  then –  the  Pres ident  asked Mr  Mole fe ,  10 

who a l so  conf i rmed Cha i r,  and i t  i s  in  tha t  contex t  tha t  a  

s ta tement  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  says Pres ident  Zuma s ta ted  tha t  

Mr  Montana was  very  knowledgeab le  about  t ranspor t ,  i t  

was made by  h im,  he  even sa id  in fo rm the  Pres ident  tha t  

tha t  i s  why he as  Cha i rman he sa id  I  wanted Mr  Mon tana to  

s tay  fo r  another  th ree  years ,  and tha t  i s  what  ac tua l l y  I  

th ink  i t  le f t  the  Pres ident  puzz led .   So you want  h im  to  s tay  

fo r  th ree  years  and then –  bu t  tha t  doesn ’ t  cor re la te  w i th  

the  rea l i t y  o f  tha t ,  and Cha i r  tha t  was the  contex t  o f  the 

d iscuss ion  i f  I  cou ld  reca l l  ve ry  we l l  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  we l l  Mr  Mole fe ’s  vers ion ,  wh ich  I  

th ink  to  a  very  la rge  ex ten t  was cor robora ted  by  Ms Peters  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  –  was tha t  one,  I  th ink  Ms  
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Pe ters  pu t  i t  a long the  l ines  tha t  you r  p resenta t ion ,  o r  

whatever  you sa id ,  made i t  c lea r  o r  was cons is ten t  w i th  

somebody who wanted to  come back,  tha t  you were  ta lk ing  

about  how knowledgeab le  you were  w i th  PRASA’s  bus iness  

and so  on  and so  on .   I  th ink ,  I  may be mis taken,  bu t  I  

th ink  Mr  Mole fe  may have been more  d i rec t  in  t e rms o f  

say ing  you wanted to  go  back to  PRASA and h is  vers ion  

was tha t  –  and the  Pres ident  was t ry ing  to  ge t  h im to  –  tha t  

i s  Mr  Mole fe  –  ge t  h im to  agree tha t  you wou ld  be  taken 

back,  bu t  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  he  was res i s t ing  tha t  because as  10 

the  Board  they had taken the  dec i s ion  to  accep t  you r  

res ignat ion  and he sa id  he  went  so  fa r  as  the  d iscuss ion  

be tween h im and  the  Pres ident  went  as  fa r  as  h im  say ing  

to  the  Pres ident  we l l  P res ident  you w i l l  have to  come and 

address the  Board  and when I  quest ioned Mr  Mole fe  what  

emerged was tha t  he  was say ing  we l l  i f  the  Pres ident  

wanted the  Board  to  resc ind  i t s  dec is ion  to  accept  your  

res ignat ion  you wou ld  have to  come and ta lk  to  the  Board ,  

o r  the  Pres ident  was ask ing  what  the  ra t iona le  was  o f  the 

Board ’s  dec is ion  to  accept  you r  res ignat ion .  20 

 I t  was a long those l ines ,  and I  th ink  Ms Peters  was  

a lso  a long those  l ines ,  even though she might  no t  have  

been emphat ic ,  bu t  you are  say ing ,  one,  you never  spoke  

on the  bas is  tha t  you wanted to  go  back,  two,  you say the  

Pres ident  never  ta lked about  you be ing  knowledgeab le  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]      

MR MONTANA:    Not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . in  PRASA’s  bus iness,  i t  was Mr  Mole fe  

who sa id  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    I t  was Mr  Mole fe  Cha i r  in  the  th ree  year  

s to ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  a re  you say ing  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  was  

in  a  way lament ing  the  fac t  tha t  you had le f t ,  you had –  

even though they wanted you to  s tay  fo r  th ree  years ,  i s  

tha t  what  you a re  say ing  or  no t  rea l l y?  10 

MR MONTANA:    No Cha i r  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  he  ment ioned,  he  jus t  ment ioned i t?  

MR MONTANA:   Cha i r  the  issue about  the  PRASA Board  

was never  d i scussed even a t  tha t  meet ing .  There  was no 

issue,  I  th ink  I  know tha t  Mr  Mole fe  somet imes wants  to  

p resent  h imse l f  as  a  hero ,  and tha t  he  took  on  the  

Pres ident  to  say come,  these are  jus t  a f te r thoughts  Cha i r,  

there  was never  such a  d i scuss ion .   I  don ’ t  know what  i s  

the  v iews o f  Mr  Radebe,  Min is te r  Radebe who had  

convened the  meet ing ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  my reco l lec t ion  20 

Cha i r,  I  never  asked to  go  back to  PRASA,  a t  tha t  t ime,  

today and even tomorrow Cha i r  tha t  I  am very  c lea r  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And so  on  your  vers ion  the  d i scuss ion ,  

was the  d i scuss ion  about  the  two  s ides,  namely  Mr  Mole fe  

and yourse l f ,  s topp ing  the  pub l i c  spats .    
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MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  i t  was about  tha t ,  the  person who  

in t roduced the  i ssues was my notes  how I  spoke,  because I  

sa id  what  do  I  debate  w i th  my leaders ,  tha t  was ac tua l l y  

my in t roduct ion ,  I  sa id  Mr  Pres iden t  these are  my leaders ,  I  

respect  them and  so  I  dec ided to  use th i s  meet ing  as  a  way  

o f  g iv ing  a  repor t ,  and then I  h igh l igh ted  – I  then prov ided  

some o f  the  key h igh l igh ts ,  because I  had le f t  government  

Cha i r,  I  thought  tha t  wou ld  be  i t ,  bu t  there  was never  a t  

any po in t  a  d iscuss ion  where  the  Pres ident  cha i red ,  the  

Pres ident  wou ld  no t ,  he  has no t  spoken to  me  to  ask  me do  10 

you want  to  go  back in to  tha t  pos i t ion ,  we never  had tha t  

k ind  o f  a  conversa t ion .  

 So I  mean I  was surpr i sed when I  read the  a f f idav i t  

about  what  Mr  Mole fe  bu t  look  i t  was a  meet ing  in  the  

m idd le  o f  the  n igh t ,  I  may be wrong,  he  may be r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA :    But  I  never  asked to  go  back,  I  never  

asked to  –  the  P res ident  never  asked fo r  me to  be  there ,  

the  meet ing  was about  –  so  I  wan ted –  I  cou ldn ’ t  d iscuss 

w i th  them Cha i r,  what  w i l l  I  d iscuss w i th  them,  except  20 

substant ive  i ssues and tha t  i s  what  I  pu t  on  the  tab le ,  

wh ich  the  Pres ident  s topped to  ask  the  o thers  to  conf i rm  

whethe r  what  I  was say ing  was  cor rec t  and tha t  i s  my  

reco l lec t ion  Cha i r  o f  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  was the  substance or  g is t  o f  what  



16 APRIL 2021 – DAY 376 
 

Page 318 of 335 
 

you  sa id ,  you say i t  was a  repor t  o r  a  repor t  back ,  was i t  

about  what  you had done a t  PRASA,  what  the  s ta te  of  

PRASA was when you le f t  and what  the  cha l lenges o f  

PRASA were  as  you knew them when you le f t ,  was i t  a long 

those l ines?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  –  i t  was a long those l ines  Cha i r,  bu t  

I  s ta r ted  w i th  t he  fac t  tha t  I  ou t l ined a  number  o f  

government  po l i c ies ,  tha t  had been adopted and key  

dec is ions  go ing  back to  t he  Nat iona l  Ra i l ,  Passenger  Ra i l  

P lan  in  2006,  the  Pub l i c  Transpor t  s t ra tegy adopted by  10 

Cab ine t  and say a l l  these in i t ia t i ves  were  a imed a t  g iv ing  

e f fec t  to  government  –  i t  was not  somebody tak ing  the i r  

own in i t ia t i ves  on  the  s ide ,  and then I  went  on to  –  so  Cha i r  

the  fac t ,  so  a l l  in  a l l  I  th ink  tha t  was the  –  tha t  was the  

approach tha t  I  took  fo r  the  meet ing .    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i r.   So can I  jus t  –  

and I  know i t  i s  f ive  years  ago,  about  how long d id  i t  –  you 

speak fo r  Mr  Mon tana?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  I  cannot  reca l l ,  I  don ’ t  even th ink  I  20 

spoke fo r  30  m inutes  when the  Pres ident  s topped me.    I  

th ink  as  I  sa id  f rom my po in ts  tha t  I  jo t ted  down I  th ink  tha t  

the  Pres ident  s topped me,  because he wanted to  conf i rm 

what  I  am say ing  was t rue  wh ich  is  what  then we rever ted  

to ,  then a t  the  end o f  the  responses tha t ’s  when he sa id  
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bu t  I  cannot  unders tand,  tha t ’s  what  he  spoke about  th is  

wa l l ,  we are  ag ree ing  ins ide  bu t  th is  wa l l  i s  there  and the  

conversa t ion  cont inued.    I  never  even had the  oppor tun i ty  

to  comple te  a l l  the  no tes ,  a l l  the  po in ts  tha t  I  have jo t ted  

down to  share  w i th  the  meet ing  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Montana can I  ask  you about  a  

document  ca l led  PRASA In  Turmoi l?   That ’s  a  document  

wh ich  as  I  unders tand i t  you compi led  around the  26 t h  o f  

Ju l y  two thousand and . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r  I  no ted  there  was a 10 

document  in  the  Un ions tha t  was ca l led  PRASA in  tu rmoi l  

o r  PRASA’s  recent  deve lopments ,  someth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t  

there ,  wh ich  was  shared w i th  me.   I  have heard  Mr  Mole fe  

say ing  tha t  the  document  was compi led  by  me.    No tha t  

cannot  be  co r rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay,  I  jus t  want  you  to  be  

unequ ivoca l  abou t  th is .   That  document  you ’ re  aware  tha t  

there  i s  a  document  ca l led  PRASA in  Turmoi l?    

MR MONTANA:    I f  I  remember  the re  was.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  you d idn ’ t  compi le  i t?  20 

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r  I  d idn ’ t  compi le  i t ,  I  no te  

tha t  the  document  was sent  by  the  Un ions,  they were  

say ing  oh  a  who le  range o f  s i tua t ions tha t  I  sha red w i th  

you yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  asked the  quest ion  in  th is  
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con tex t  because  Mr  Mole fe ,  and maybe I  go t  tha t  

impress ion ,  seemed to  suggest  tha t  to  a  la rge  ex ten t  a t  the 

meet ing  you ar t i cu la ted  what  was conta ined in  tha t  

document  wh ich  he  says you had compi led?  

MR MONTANA:    No Cha i r,  I  don ’ t  know what  i s  the  

re la t ionsh ip ,  I  don ’ t  know what  h i s  impress ions were  o f  me 

speak ing .   There  were  ce r ta in  th ings tha t  we know,  tha t  

were  ve ry  c lear  about  us ,  and I  th ink  maybe tha t ’s  the  

impress ion  tha t  he  may have bu t  no  Cha i r  I  had notes  

wr i t ten  on  my b lack  no tebook and hopefu l l y  I  w i l l  s t i l l  be  10 

ab le  to  f ind  i t  and  share  i t  w i th  the  Commiss ion ’s  ev idence.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Can I  then ask  you th is ,  on  your  

vers ion ,  and I  am say ing  th is  because there  is  the  Mole fe  

vers ion .  

MR MONTANA:   H is  vers ion ,  indeed Cha i r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    On your  vers ion  you and Mr  Mole fe  

le f t  wh i l s t  the  two min is te rs  and the  Pres ident  cont inued 

the  meet ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now Mr  Mole fe  says tha t  the  meet ing  20 

s topped because  the  Pres ident  fe l l  o f f  to  s leep.   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  impor tan t  to  c la r i f y  th is .     You may  

be say ing  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  what  –  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t ’s  what  
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Mr  Mole fe  sa id ,  o r  you may be say ing  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  the  

meet ing  ended when –  because the  Pres ident  had  fa l len  

as leep?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  Cha i r,  I  th ink  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  one is  t rue?  

MR MONTANA:   No tha t  the  Pres ident  dozed o f f  du r ing  the  

conversa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MONTANA:   And Cha i r  I  have heard  what  Mr  Mole fe  

sa id  bu t  I  th ink  there  i s  a  contex t  to  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR MONTANA:   For tunate ly  fo r  me who knew a  lo t  o f  

peop le  in  the  Pres idency,  I  remember  when I  a r r i ved and 

served w i th  tea  some o f  the  guys there  they were  say ing  

we are  opposed  to  th is  meet ing ,  you guys know tha t  

[ speak ing  in  vernacu lar ]  has taken  medica t ion  and ac tua l l y  

the  t ime tha t  th is  meet ing  was tak ing  p lace tha t  Ubaba is  

no t  we l l ,  so  tha t  in  fac t  doctors  because th is  chap was 

shar ing  w i th  me tha t  I  know them,  were  say ing  a t  tha t  t ime 

ha l f  past  s ix  we have ac tua l l y  been g iven s t ra igh t  20 

ins t ruc t ions fo r  the  Pres ident  no t  to  meet  w i th  peop le ,  tha t  

i s  when he is  supposed to  take  med ica t ion  and a l l  o f  those 

th ings.   Cha i r  and the  Pres ident  d id  a t  some s tage leave  

the  meet ing  because o f  tha t  and I  th ink  tha t  the  med ica t ion  

was tak ing  e f fec t  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t ,  so  Cha i r  bu t  these are  
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S ta te  secre ts  tha t  we shou ld  no t  be  ta lk ing  about  in  tha t  

way,  bu t  I  th ink  fo r  me tha t  was the  contex t ,  bu t  I  have  

l i s tened to  how Mr  Mole fe  was us ing  tha t  th ing  to  say here  

is  the  Pres ident  who then ca l led  the  meet ing  and la te r  on  

the  Pres ident  Cha i r  cont inued w i th  the  d iscuss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He came back?  

MR MONTANA:   He came back Cha i r  as  i t  were ,  so  th is  

th ing  about  h im fa l l ing  as leep I  knew i t  because  PRASA 

co l leagues sa id  no  but  the  Pres ident  fe l l  as leep,  he  doesn ’ t  

even know what  happened.   Cha i r  tha t  i s  no t  t rue ,  tha t  i s  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Un less  o f  course  –  un less  o f  cou rse  they  

are  ta lk ing  about  –  he  is  ta lk ing  about  what  happened a f te r  

you had le f t  bu t  you say you le f t  w i th  h im,  Mr  Mole fe?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  I  le f t  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  Cha i r,  we  

spoke on the  passage,  we pa r ted  ways,  we went  to  our  

cars ,  and tha t  was i t  Cha i r.   What  happened a f te r  –  beh ind  

–  bo th  o f  us  d id  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  because i t  i s  in te res t ing  because  

both  Ms D ipuo Peters  and Mr  Mo le fe  spoke on the  bas is  20 

tha t  eve rybody le f t  a t  the  same t ime,  i t  was I  th ink  on  Mr  

Mole fe ’s  vers ion  around two am,  and when they le f t  the  

Pres ident  had dozed o f f  and was s leep ing ,  tha t  i s  what  

bo th  o f  them sa id .    Am I  cor rec t  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  how she put  the  contex t  
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cor rec t l y  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  i s  the  one issue tha t  bo th  Mr  

Mole fe  and Min i s te r  Pete rs  agreed on,  tha t  the  meet ing  

s topped because the  Pres ident  had dozed o f f ,  and they a l l  

le f t  the  meet ing ,  leav ing  h im a lone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    None o f  them spoke –  tes t i f ied  about  

any o f  the  par t i c ipants  i n  the  meet ing  hav ing  le f t  ear l ie r  

than o thers .  

MR MONTANA:     No,  no  Cha i r  my,  and maybe because I  

was the  younges t  o f  a l l  o f  the  peop le  in  the  meet ing  so  I  

th ink  I  shou ld  be  g iven the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt  on  tha t  10 

one,  because Cha i r  I  remember  very  we l l  when I  a r r i ved I  

went  to  the  recept ion  room,  I  sa t  there ,  I  was o f fe red  

tea /co f fee ,  tha t ’s  what  I  had and then I  spoke to  one  o f  the 

guys there ,  who had served me co f fee  and tha t ’s  when he 

sa id  hey bu t  you  guys why do you do th is  to  Ubaba,  you  

know tha t  he  is  no t  we l l ,  i t  i s  the  t imef rame to  take  th ings,  

we a re  under  o rde rs  bu t  –  and  he sa id  we hope th is  

meet ing  w i l l  take  an  hour,  w i l l  take  on ly  an  hour,  tha t ’s  

what  he  sa id  to  me Cha i r  and tha t  i s  what  happened Cha i r  

so  fo r  me the  fo l l ow ing,  the  doz ing  o f f  there  i s  a  contex t  to  20 

the  fac t  tha t  here  is  someone who is  tak ing  med ica t i on  and 

the  meet ing  was not  supposed to  be ,  bu t  i t  has  been sa id  

in  a  ve ry  derogatory  sense out  the re  as  i f  you  know –  and I  

th ink  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  i s  no t  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Son i?    
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  want  us  to  unders tand because 

I  need to  pu t  to  you the  doz ing  o f f  accord ing  to  Mr  Mole fe  

came a t  the  t ime when he sa id  to  the  Pres ident ,  and  I  know 

you d isagree w i th  me,  bu t  I  am put t ing  i t  so  tha t  we 

unders tand where  the  d i f fe rences  are ,  when he sa id  to  the  

Pres ident  we l l  i f  you  want  Mr  Montana back you must  come 

and address me and the  Pres ident  was,  as  he  puts  i t ,  

d idn ’ t  take  k ind ly  to  tha t ,  bu t  jus t  soon a f te r  tha t  he  dozed  

o f f  and everybody le f t .    You say tha t  tha t  d idn ’ t  happen a t  

a l l .  10 

MR MONTANA:    Not .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And there  was no re ference  on your  

vers ion  to  the  Board  resc ind ing  the  dec is ion .   Sor ry  you 

shake your  head,  does tha t  mean no?  

MR MONTANA:    No Cha i r  there  was no such a  d i scuss ion  

Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     Okay,  and  there  was no d i scuss ion  

about  the  Pres ident  be ing  inv i ted  to  address the  Board?   

MR MONTANA:    No Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now when you –  and you say you and  20 

Mr  Mole fe  l e f t ,  bu t  the  few minutes  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  the  

Pres ident  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   What  d id  you and Mr  Mo le fe  say 

to  each o the r  as  you le f t?  

MR MONTANA:    I t  was jus t  smal l  ta lk ,  i t  was jus t  smal l  

ta lk ,  no th ing  o f  substance rea l l y  and then we par ted  ways.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  now aga in  want  to  unders tand  

each o f  you r  s ta tes  o f  m ind.    You are  in  a  s ta te  o f  war  w i th  

each o the r,  tha t  i s  the  purpose  o f  the  meet ing  as  you 

reca l l ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MONTANA:    That  i s  r igh t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R igh t ,  now th is  meet ing  takes p lace 

and you on your  vers ion  i t  a l l  ends we l l  because you and  

Mr  Mole fe  agree tha t  you w i l l  no t  be  a t tack ing  each o ther?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Was  there  any d iscuss ion  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  a  yes?  

MR MONTANA:    Yes tha t  i s  a  yes Cha i r,  sor ry.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Was there  any d iscuss ion ,  I  mean i t  

looked l i ke  now maybe you d idn ’ t  bury  the  ha tche t  bu t  i t  

looked l i ke  there  was some less  an tagon ism between you  

and Mr  Mole fe .    Was there  any d iscuss ion  o f  how the re  

cou ld  be  a  rep roachment  ra ther  t han s imp ly  a  cessat ion  o f  

fac i l i t y?  

MR MONTANA:   Chai r  tha t  has never  been my approach,  20 

you know in  these pos i t ions  in  po l i t i cs ,  even your  enemy 

you wa lk  w i th  them,  and I  mean Mr  Mole fe  w i l l  con f i rm th is ,  

I  have met  w i th  h im,  bumped in to  h im whethe r  in  a  mal l ,  a t  

a  funera l  o f  ANC peop le ,  I  a lways  go to  h im,  po l i te ,  g ree t  

h im,  even in  the  m idd le  o f  th is  war  Cha i r.    I t  was a  war  bu t  
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we were  no t  f igh t ing  each o the r  phys ica l l y,  I  w i l l  g ree t  h im  

and to  th is  very  day Cha i r  I  th ink  he  has t rea ted  me 

unfa i r l y,  I  th ink  tha t  he  was not  f rank w i th  me,  

unders tandab ly  angry,  I  know where  Mr  Mole fe  s tands on  

issues,  I  know where  he  s tands  and I  know tha t  in  th is  

d iv ide  i t  i s  tha t  s ide  and tha t  s ide .    So I  d idn ’ t  want  –  I  

accepted the  gu idance we got ,  tha t  th is  i s  b r ing ing  you  

know ANC in to  d i s repute ,  you guys s top  a l l  o f  those th ings 

and l i fe  cont inues .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    D id  you s top  a t tack ing  each o the r  10 

thereaf te r?  

MR MONTANA:    Cha i r  the  –  you reca l l  tha t  what  happened  

thereaf te r,  there  were  a l l  these  cour t  cases tha t  were  

un fo ld ing  and I  th ink  i n  a  way the  war  cont inued  in  the  

med ia  because fo r  example  I  th ink  when we met  in  

November,  tha t ’s  when the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in  2017  I  th ink  

there  was th is  Yange la  mat te r,  so  to  a  la rge  ex ten t  the  

mat te rs  i n  the  pub l i c  space cont inued,  so  I  don ’ t  th ink  i t  

was what  you ca l l  the  cessat ion  o f  host i l i t i es  because I  

usua l ly  don ’ t  s ign  those Cha i r,  i f  you  f igh t  w i th  me I  f igh t  20 

w i th  you fo reve r  bu t  s t i l l  g ree t  you  when we meet  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  the  meet ing  when the  two o f  you le f t  

on  your  vers ion ,  was the re  a  fo rmal  p ronouncement ,  maybe 

I  shou ldn ’ t  say  fo rmal  I  shou ld  say  c lear  p ronouncement  o f  

what  the  conc lus ion  was,  you had been inv i ted  to  th is  
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meet ing  to  t ry  and reso lve  the  pub l i c  space,  was  there  a  

pronouncement  a r t i cu la ted  as  to  what  the  ou tcome o f  the 

meet ing  was?  

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  was on such?  

MR MONTANA:    There  was p robab ly  w i th  the  M in is te rs ,  

the  Pres ident  jus t  sa id  to  us  look I  want  to  ta lk  to  my two  

Min is te rs  and then we le f t ,  me and  Mr  Mole fe  so  the re  was 

no such,  I  don ’ t  know whether  i t  happened a f te r  we ’d  le f t ,  

bu t  when we le f t  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  we knew was tha t  look  10 

a  pub l i c  spat  i s  no t  in  the  best  in te res ts  o f  the  count ry  and  

the  ANC and tha t  was i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  bu t  d id  you know tha t  because you  

–  tha t ’s  what  you  were  to ld  a t  the  end before  you le f t  the 

meet ing ,  o r  tha t ’s  what  the  two o f  you jus t  unders tood? 

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r  a f te r  the  Pres ident  had  opened  

the  meet ing  and  then Min is te r  Radebe a lso  spoke a t  the  

meet ing  in  te rms o f  what  he  has done,  the re  was a  lo t  o f  –  

i t  was a  jov ia l  meet ing  bu t  a t  the  same t ime you cou ld  see 

tha t  there  was a  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A jabb ing?  

MR MONTANA:    A jabb ing  th ing ,  fo r  example  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  phys ica l l y.  

MR MONTANA:   Not  phys i ca l l y,  fo r  example  Mr  Mole fe  
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accused Min i s te r  Radebe tha t  no  he  is  c loser  to  me and –  

no  in  fac t  I  th ink  i t  was Min i s te r  D ipuo Peters  tha t  when  

she ca l led  me to  cance l  the  press  conference I  re fused but  

when Min is te r  Radebe ca l led  me to  cance l  I  then cance l led  

and then she was  say ing  to  the  Pres ident  bu t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

i s  on ly  p repared  to  l i s ten  to  –  he  is  c loser  to  Min is te r  

Radebe,  he  is  on ly  p repared to  l i s ten  to  the  Min is te r.   Then  

Min is te r  Radebe in  h is  response in  a  ve ry  jov ia l  fash ion  

sa id  bu t  I  am much c loser  Mr  Pres ident  to  Popo than to 

Lucky and he went  on  to  exp la in  a t  length  some o f  the  10 

in te rac t ions tha t  th is  i s  to  I  th ink  Botswana . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  a l l  

o f  those th ings were  –  so  i t  was a  po l i t i ca l  meet ing  Cha i r  

where  you know somebody is  a  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  pos i t ion ,  

somebody moves  h is  pos i t ion  and every th ing  bu t  s t i l l  the  – 

i t  was a  cord ia l  d iscuss ion  and fo r  me I  was in  a  d i f f i cu l t  

pos i t ion  Cha i r,  because desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  I  was unhappy  

w i th  some o f  the  th ings tha t  happened I  cou ldn ’ t  say  i t  in  

tha t  meet ing  because I  am meet ing  w i th  my sen io rs ,  no t  my 

own age group,  I  had to  be  respect fu l  to  the  Pres ident  and 

the  Min is te rs  so  I  had to  be  care fu l  and tha t  i s  why I  jo t ted 20 

the  no te  so  tha t  when I  speak I  am not  a l l  over  the  show,  

bu t  I  more  po in ted ,  I  de l i ver  the  message tha t  I  wanted to  

g ive ,  and tha t ’s  what  happened Cha i r,  so  when we  le f t ,  me 

and Mr  Mole fe ,  there  was not  a  c lear  ins t ruc t ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Outcome? 

MR MONTANA:   Outcome as i t  were ,  they remained to  

cont inue the  d iscuss ion ,  and I  never  spoke to  any  o f  the 

Min is te rs  o r  Mr  Popo Mole fe  about  tha t  meet ing ,  I  jus t  –  

l i fe  cont inued Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  i t  jus t  seems a  l i t t le  s t range to  me 

tha t  when the  Pres ident ,  Min is te r  Radebe maybe a  

m in is te r,  D ipuo Peters ,  p r io r  to  the  meet ing  were  very  

concerned about  the  so -ca l led  pub l i c  spat  wh ich  was 

between yourse l f  and Mr  Mole fe ,  tha t  they shou ld  a l low a  10 

s i tua t ion  where  you leave the  meet ing  be fore  there  is  a  

c lea r  ou tcome about  th is  i ssue o f  the  pub l i c  spat .    You 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:   No Cha i r  you  are  abso lu te ly  cor rec t ,  

except  tha t  we took i t  when the  Pres ident  made the  

open ing  remarks ,  because he sa id  th is  has to  s top ,  and so  

I  th ink  there  was no debate  about  tha t ,  and tha t ’s  when the  

compos i t ion  happened Cha i r  so  there  was no d i scuss ion  

bu t  –  there  was  no d iscuss ion  fu r the r,  I  th ink  tha t  the  

Pres ident  made i t  very  c lear  and I  take  i t  tha t  a l l  o f  us  had 20 

accepted tha t  the  Pres ident  has shown us the  l ine  and a l l  

o f  us  have to  accept  tha t  tha t  i s  the  way to  go .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t ’s  f ine .   Mr  Son i  I  don ’ t  know,  I  

am aware  tha t  the  Commiss ion  d id  ask  Mr  Radebe to  

prov ide  an  a f f idav i t  and g i ve  h i s  vers ion  o f  the  mee t ing  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  don ’ t  know whethe r  you have got  i t  

because i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  to  see what  h is  ve rs ion  is  

compared to  the  two.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson I  don ’ t  have i t  a t  hand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you know o f  i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:     Yes,  yes .   And I  w i l l  check  i t ,  I  w i l l  

check i t  up  be fore  the  next  t ime,  tha t  i s  one o f  the  mat te rs  

we w i l l  ra ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Chai rperson I  jus t  want  to  ask  one  

fu r ther  quest ion  i n  re la t ion  to  th is  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr Montana i f  you look a t  paragraph 

91 a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 23 i n  the  second sentence Mr  

Mole fe  says –  we l l  le t ’s  read the  f i rs t  sentence,  he  says  

you spoke d i sparag ing l y  about  the  Board ,  he  d idn ’ t  

respond,  we know your  answer  to  tha t  was tha t  tha t  d idn ’ t  

happen,  you d idn ’ t  speak d ispa rag ing ly.  

MR MONTANA:    Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He says someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  

you to  react  to ,  he  says:  

“As Mr  Montana had th rea tened to  l i t i ga te  aga ins t  

the  Board ,  a l though he never  d id  fo l low th rough  

w i th  th is  th rea t ,  I  to ld  the  meet ing  tha t  I  wou ld  rep ly  
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in  cou r t  shou ld  th is  th rea t  to  l i t i ga te  mater ia l i se . ”  

Do you reca l l  h im  say ing  tha t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  Cha i r,  th is  was not  –  I  th ink  Cha i r  

tha t  I  dea l t  w i th  the  issue a t  the  p ress  conference,  where  I  

sa id  ac tua l l y  the  Board ’s  dec is ion ,  because  i t  was 

procedura l l y,  i t  was not  done in  a  –  a  proper  p rocedure  has 

no t  been fo l lowed,  I  w i l l  take  th is  on  the  th ing ,  so  in  my  

press confe rence  you reca l l  tha t  I  was asked to  cance l  i t  

bu t  I  d idn ’ t  cance l  i t  because the  med ia  was a l ready there ,  

bu t  I  d idn ’ t  go  in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  issue and I  made tha t  10 

s ta tement  Cha i r,  so  I  th ink  he  is  confus ing  the  s ta tement  I  

made when I  spoke to  the  med ia  w i th  what  had  never  

t ransp i red  a t  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Can I  jus t  –  I  thought  as  you d id ,  I  

wou ld  jus t  l i ke  us  to  read th is  aga in ,  because he says as  

Mr  Montana had th rea tened to  l i t iga te  aga ins t  the  Board ,  

he  is  no t  say ing  tha t  the  th rea t  came a t  the  meet ing ,  as  I  

read tha t  and then he says a l though he never  fo l lowed  

th rough so  I  don ’ t  th ink  there ’s  a  confus ion  in  h is  m ind tha t  

the  th rea t  was ea r l ie r.   What  though is  there  is  no  doubt  in  20 

h is  m ind tha t  he  to ld  the  meet ing  tha t  he  wou ld  rep l y  in  

cour t  shou ld  your  th rea t  to  l i t i ga te  mater ia l i se .   I  jus t  want  

to  know whether  tha t  i ssue was d iscussed . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MONTANA:    Not  a t  a l l  Cha i r,  no t  a t  a l l ,  i t  was never  

d iscussed a t  tha t  meet ing .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And he d idn ’ t  ra ise  i t?  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no ,  no t  as  fa r  as  I  can reca l l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  you unders tand he is  no t  say ing  

you made the  th rea t  a t  the  meet ing .  

MR MONTANA:    No,  no  bu t  the  mat te r  was never  

d iscussed or  ra i sed Cha i r  f rom my reco l lec t ion  o f  the  

meet ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson the  res t  o f  Mr  Mole fe ’s  

a f f idav i t  doesn ’ t  dea l  w i th  any  mat te rs  concern ing  Mr  

Montana so  inso far  as  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  goes we have  10 

asked a l l  the  quest ions we want  to ,  sub jec t  o f  course  to  

the  mat te rs  tha t  a re  in  abeyance,  espec ia l l y  about  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Min is te r  Radebe ’s  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Aff idav i t  and a lso  in  re la t ion  to  

judgment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  we 

shou ld  s top  a t  th is  s tage,  obv ious ly  we have not  f in ished.    

Tuesday next  week is  ava i lab le ,  there  was a  w i tness who  

had been schedu led  but  had to  change and some o ther  20 

da te  tha t  wou ld  have been used by  another  w i tness tha t  

w i l l  be  g iven to  h im,  so  how is  you r  ava i lab i l i t y  on  Tuesday  

f rom the  morn ing? 

MR MONTANA:    Wel l  Cha i r  i f  you  remember  I  have been 

summoned to  th is  meet ing  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you wou ld  ava i l  yourse l f?  

MR MONTANA:   No,  no  I  w i l l  make myse l f  ava i lab le  Cha i r,  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay Mr  Son i  a re  you okay?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  ad journ  your  ev idence then,  

fu r ther  ev idence to  Tuesday.    Le t ’s  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine ,  

le t ’s  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  n ine  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Chai rperson i f  I  can  jus t  g ive  a  

roadmap o f  what  i s  s t i l l  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  w i l l  be  and so  Montana can  

prepare  fo r  these  th ings,  i t  w i l l  be  Ms Ngoy i ’s  a f f idav i t ,  Ms  

Mzingwayo ’s  a f f idav i t  and Mr  O l le rman ’s  repor t .   Those are  

the  mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t ’s  f ine .    Thank you ve ry  much  

Mr  Montana fo r  your  coopera t ion  so  tha t  we cou ld  work  

r igh t  in to  the  n igh t ,  thank you Mr  Son i  and your  team,  

thank you to  the  s ta f f  and the  techn ic ians,  thank you to 

everybody fo r  a l l  your  coopera t i on ,  I  know i t  i s  Fr iday 20 

even ing  and Mr  Montana was say ing  ear l ie r  on  i t  i s  Fr iday  

and fo r  young peop le ,  so  I  am hop ing  tha t  the  young 

peop le  in  th is  room don ’ t  say  hey  you know these  peop le  

who are  no t  young anymore  they fo rge t  tha t  i t  i s  Fr iday,  bu t  

I  jus t  want  to  thank everybody fo r  a l l  you r  coopera t ion  to  
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ass is t  the  Commiss ion  to  t ry  and f ina l i se  every th ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson  can I  –  I  jus t  wanted to  

f in ish  on  a  b i t  o f  a  pos i t i ve  no te ,  in  re la t ion  to  Mr  

Montana ’s  a f f idav i t  I  have ind i ca ted  to  h im tha t  there  may  

be a  very  exped i t ious  way to  ensure  tha t  h is  a f f idav i t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  he  has agreed to  meet  –  yes  

and Bongan i  so  tha t  –  Ms Msinga,  so  tha t  we can –  i t  

p robab ly  won ’ t  be  done by  Tuesday but  a t  leas t  we wou ld  

know qu i te  soon how the  mat te r  can be brought  fo rward .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  I  th ink  tha t  i f  the  sp i r i t  tha t  10 

character i sed today ’s  p roceed ings is  anyth ing  to  go  by  tha t  

i ssue is  go ing  to  be  so r ted  ou t  a t  leas t ,  i t  i s  jus t  no t  go ing  

to  be  a  prob lem,  and I  th ink  i t  jus t  shows what  happens  

when everybody has a  const ruc t i ve  and pos i t i ve  approach  

and a t t i tude to  i ssues,  so  I  have no doubt  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  

sor ted  ou t ,  so  thank you very  much to  eve rybody once 

aga in .  

 I  must  jus t  announce fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  

tha t  on  Monday  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  hear ing  the  

ev idence o f  the  Speaker  o f  Par l iament ,  Speaker  o f  the 20 

Nat iona l  Assembly  as  we l l  as  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  NCOP 

on the  issue o f  Par l iamentary  ove rs igh t .  

 And then in  the  –  tha t  w i l l  be  dur ing  the  day in  the  

even ing  Mr  Mantashe w i l l  come back to  f in ish  h is  ev idence 

rep resent ing  the  ANC.    
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 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 19 APRIL 2021  


